Public Document Pack

2859 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

County Council
11 September 2018

Agenda

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Fax: 01865 247805 Media Enquiries 01865 323870



http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/

Declarations of Interest

The duty to declare.....

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to

(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-
election or re-appointment), or

(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or

(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted
member has a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Whose Interests must be included?

The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted

member of the authority, or

o those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member;

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife

o those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil
partners.

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the

interest).

What if | remember that | have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?.

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all
meetings, to facilitate this.

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed.

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room.

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person including yourself’ or “You must not place yourself in situations
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned.....”.

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt
about your approach.

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities.

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines.
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the
document.

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.



http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk

1289 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Members of the County Council

Notice of a Meeting of the County Council
Tuesday, 11 September 2018 at 10.30 am

Council Chamber - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND

/G Clot

P.G. Clark
Chief Executive August 2018

Committee Officer:  Deborah Miller
Tel: 07920 084239; E-Mail:deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk

In order to comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, notice is given that Items 3, 7 and
8 will be recorded. The purpose of recording proceedings is to provide an aide-memoire
to assist the clerk of the meeting in the drafting of minutes.

Members are asked to sign the attendance book which will be available in the
corridor outside the Council Chamber. A list of members present at the meeting
will be compiled from this book.

A buffet luncheon will be provided

AGENDA

1.  Minutes (Pages 1 - 30)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2018 (CC1) and to receive
information arising from them.

2. Apologies for Absence

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Fax: 01865 247805 Media Enquiries 01865 323870



http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/

-2-

Declarations of Interest - see guidance note

Members are reminded that they must declare their interests orally at the meeting
and specify (a) the nature of the interest and (b) which items on the agenda are the
relevant items. This applies also to items where members have interests by virtue of
their membership of a district council in Oxfordshire.

Official Communications

Appointments

(@) Council is asked to note the following:

The Leader of the Council has given notice of a number of changes to Cabinet
Member portfolios and membership. There will no longer be a post of Cabinet
Member for Public Health & Education with the responsibilities transferring to the
newly named Cabinet Members for Adult Social Care & Public Health and Education
& Cultural Services respectively. See the new and revised portfolios below which will
come into effect on 1 September.

Name Portfolio Extent of authority

lan Hudspeth | Leader of the | Strategy; corporate and community
Council leadership; strategic
communications; major external
partnerships; regional and strategic
infrastructure and planning;
economic growth and development;
Districts Liaison.

Mrs J Deputy Leader A Governance and Internal

Heathcoat of the Council | management; HR & industrial
relations; policy co-ordination;
Customer services; Fire & Rescue;
trading standards; emergency
planning; the Prevent agenda

Lawrie Cabinet Adult Social Care & Public Health;
Stratford Member for Champion for Mental Health
Adult Social
Care & Public
Health

Steve Harrod | Cabinet Statutory Lead Member for
Member for Children’s Services.
Children &
Family
Services

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y



Lorraine Cabinet Education; Registration service;

Lindsay-Gale | Member for Library service; Coroner’s service;
Education & Music service; Museum service;
Cultural, History service Cultural services;
Services Tourism.

Yvonne Cabinet Highways; minerals strategy,

Constance Member for strategic waste & waste

Environment | management; environment
management, flooding; strategic

rail.
David Cabinet Finance; Broadband,
Bartholomew | Member for Communications; support to SMEs.
Finance
Mark Gray Cabinet Neighbourhood Plans; Local
Member for Community development;
Local Community cohesion; Equalities;

Communities | Voluntary and community sector
relations; Oxfordshire Together;
Community Funding; Member
Locality working.

Eddie Reeves | Cabinet Fit for the Future, Property, ICT and
Member for Procurement
Transformation

lan Corkin Cabinet Delivery of Cherwell Partnership
Member for agreement
Cherwell

Partnership

(b)  to make any further changes to the membership of the Cabinet, scrutiny and
other committees on the nomination of political groups.

Petitions and Public Address

Questions with Notice from Members of the Public

Questions with Notice from Members of the Council

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y



10.

-4 -

Themed Debate - Fit for Future (Pages 31 - 404)

The Operating Model is a detailed description of how the Council will work in the
future, with the key aims of putting better outcomes for residents and the delivery of
the Thriving Communities Vision at the centre of all plans and operations.

Development activity since March has produced a detailed design for the Operating
Model and Cabinet is due to consider the proposal on 18 September 2018.

Ahead of that meeting, Council is invited to discuss the proposals within the
Operating Model through a Themed Debate.

The draft Cabinet Report and Annexes, including an Executive Summary for the full
Business Case for the Target Operating Model are attached at (CC9).

The Full Business case (330 pages) can be found on the Website
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk or a copy can be obtained on request from
deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Joint Working Arrangements between Oxfordshire County Council
and Cherwell District Council: Governance Arrangements (Pages
405 - 416)

Report by Director for Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer (CC10).

Cabinet agreed on 4 June 2018 to enter into a joint working arrangement with
Cherwell District Council. These arrangements are governed by a formal
“Section113 Agreement”.

Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 enables local authorities to enter into
agreements with one another for the placing at the disposal of each other their
respective officers for carrying out their respective functions. The Section 113
Agreement establishes a structure to enable proposals for joint working to be
approved with the necessary Member oversight.

The Section 113 Agreement envisages that the two Councils will establish “such joint
committees to facilitate joint appointments working as agreed by the two councils”.

It is proposed that Council appoint two such Joint Committees as follows:

¢ Joint Personnel Committee — to take decisions on certain staffing matters arising
from and necessary for implementing, the shared service approach;

e Joint Appeals Committee — to hear and determine staffing appeals arising from the
shared service proposals.

Council is RECOMMENDED to:
(@) establish a Joint Personnel Committee and a Joint Appeals Committee;
(b) delegate to the Audit and Governance Committee the decision to

approve the final Terms of Reference of both of the Joint Committees;

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y


http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk

11.

12.

13.

-5-

(c) ask the Director of Law and Governance to exercise his delegated
authority to give effect to the wishes of Group Leaders and to make
appointments to these Joint Committees; and

(d) ask the Monitoring Officer to exercise his delegated authority to make
the necessary and consequential changes to the Constitution to reflect
these decisions.

Report of the Cabinet (Pages 417 - 420)
Report of the Cabinet Meeting held on 17 July 2018 (CC11).

MOTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

WOULD MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT ANY AMENDMENTS TO MOTIONS WITH
NOTICE MUST BE PRESENTED TO THE PROPER OFFICER IN WRITING BY

9.00 AM ON THE MONDAY BEFORE THE MEETING

Motion by Councillor Nick Field Johnson

“This Council is concerned about the widely reported over use of combined sewer
overflows which should only discharge untreated sewage into our rivers in
exceptional conditions. It appears that this has not been the case and these sewage
overflows are used much more frequently.

The Council is aware the Windrush and all but one of Oxfordshire’s rivers are
receiving treated effluent which is greatly inferior to that which is required for rivers in
Sites of Special Scientific Interest, for example:

The River Windrush and about 80% of British rivers are failing to achieve the good
health standard required by the European Water Framework directive. There is a real
risk that such rivers run the risk of turning from assets to liabilities for our
communities and businesses. The potential designation of the Cotswolds as a
National Park makes this even more pertinent for Oxfordshire.

Council calls for the Leader to write to the Minister for the Environment, the Chief
Executive Officer of Thames Water and the Head of the Environment Agency,
supporting the long and short term aims to fight Against Sewage Pollution in our
rivers. The focus of this motion is on the Windrush but its success will impact
positively on all of Oxfordshire’s river and streams affected by sewage pollution.”

Motion by Councillor Richard Webber

“The impact of Brexit (hard or soft) will affect all Oxfordshire residents.

This Council believes that with Brexit fast approaching, it is both sensible and
realistic that the potential risks and impact of Brexit on Oxfordshire - good and bad,
short term and long term - are fully understood as far as is possible and aired in
public together with detailed discussion on how these impacts can be mitigated.

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y



14.

15.

16.

To achieve this, this Council undertakes to organize and co-ordinate a public
conference/symposium in autumn 2018 in which Oxfordshire’s experts and leaders in
business, science, engineering, education, social services and other areas are
invited to participate, together with elected representatives at all levels. As the
largest organisation in the County representing most of the interests most likely to be
affected, OCC is uniquely placed to lead this initiative by immediately setting up a
Cross Party Working Group. The findings and conclusions of the symposium would
be presented as a report to full Council and other authorities.”

Motion by Councillor Alison Rooke

“Council fully supports the requirement for meaningful public consultation following
the suggestion of any significant change of provision by any of Oxfordshire's NHS
healthcare providers, including the closure of community hospital beds and GP
surgeries, prior to any decisions being made by the Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (OCCG).

Consultation on phase two of the sustainability and transformation plan, which was
promised would happen two years ago, will not now take place. The CCG refuse to
say how or when any consultation will take place regarding the future of
Oxfordshire's community health service provision.

Communities across Oxfordshire are left in limbo regarding the future of their local
health services, and Council calls on the Leader of the Council to write to the OCCG
requesting that they publish their future plans as a matter of extreme urgency.”

Motion by Councillor Bob Johnston

"The current CEO of Network Rail, Mark Carne has stated that the organisation
should end its scrapyard mentality. Thus far nothing has happened. The Council
therefore calls on the Leader of the Council to write to Network Rail calling for
effective action to clear up the County's railway system from the piles of discarded
rails, left over base tubes and all the other metallic detritus currently disfiguring it.
The metal concerned is high quality steel and has a high scrap value, the proceeds
of which could be reinvested in the County's Railway Network."

Motion by Councillor Kieron Mallon

“This Council decries the Ministry of Justice's decision to close the Banbury
Magistrates' and County Court.

This Council notes that "the Banbury Court" is an integral part of the fabric of the
town, and is already a combined justice centre hearing both civil and criminal cases.
The Council therefore rejects any suggestion that it is underused and further
observes that the Banbury Magistrates' and County Court provides an important
alternative venue for criminal and civil justice, both in Oxfordshire and the
surrounding counties, given the high volume of cases now heard out of Oxford.

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper ‘Qgc%\,
(Y



This Council further notes the additional pressure that the closure would place on the
Oxford Combined Court Centre and considers that further centralisation of services
to Oxford will put additional strain on City congestion and, notably, on local Banbury
people and those in the surrounding area in need of access to justice, including the
elderly, families with young children or without independent means of transport and
those on low incomes.

Accordingly, this Council instructs the Leader to write to the Ministry of Justice to
engage with local councils, particularly in light of the joint strategic partnership now in
train between Oxfordshire County Council and Cherwell District Council, with a view
to exploring the options of utilising space in public buildings to continue supporting
locally administered justice and the needs of the people of North Oxfordshire, and
the neighbouring counties.”

Pre-Meeting Briefing

There will be a pre-meeting briefing at County Hall on Monday 10 September at 10.15 am
for the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Group Leaders and Deputy Group Leaders

7\/%7:/{7;) recycled paper @
(Y



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 10 July 2018 commencing at 10.00 am

and finishing at 3.30 pm.

Present:

Councillor Gill Sanders — in the Chair

Councillors:

Sobia Afridi

Jamila Begum Azad
Hannah Banfield
David Bartholomew
Dr Suzanne Bartington
Liz Brighouse OBE
Paul Buckley

Kevin Bulmer

Nick Carter

Mark Cherry

Dr Simon Clarke
Yvonne Constance OBE
lan Corkin

Helen Evans

Arash Fatemian

Neil Fawcett

Ted Fenton

Nicholas Field-Johnson
Mrs Anda Fitzgerald-
O'Connor

Mike Fox-Davies

Stefan Gawrysiak
Mark Gray

Carmen Griffiths
Pete Handley

Jenny Hannaby
Neville F. Harris
Steve Harrod

Mrs Judith Heathcoat
Hilary Hibbert-Biles
John Howson

lan Hudspeth

Tony llott

Bob Johnston

Liz Leffman

Lorraine Lindsay-Gale
Mark Lygo

D. Mcllveen

Kieron Mallon
Jeannette Matelot
Charles Mathew

Zoé Patrick
Glynis Phillips
Susanna Pressel
Laura Price
Eddie Reeves
G.A. Reynolds
Judy Roberts
Alison Rooke
Dan Sames
John Sanders
Les Sibley
Emily Smith

Roz Smith
Lawrie Stratford
Alan Thompson
Emma Turnbull
Michael Waine
Richard Webber

The Council considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or
referred to in the agenda for the meeting and decided as set out below. Except
insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the
agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

216/18 MINUTES
(Agenda Item 1)

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 May 2018 were approved as an
accurate record, subject to the correction printed on the Schedule of

Business.

Page 1



217/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
(Agenda Item 2)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Atkins, Billington,
Johnson and Walker.

218/18 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS
(Agenda Item 6)

Council received the following public address:

Dr D Stork CPhys FinstP Hon Chairman, Group Against Reservoir
Development (GARD) spoke in support of Agenda Item 18 (Motion by
Councillor Mike Fox-Davies) against proposals to build a huge 'bunded' (or
walled) reservoir in the area between the villages of Steventon — East
Hanney and Drayton. GARD also campaigned in favour of environmentally
sound and sustainable water resource policies for the south-east.

GARD had been opposing Thames Water's plans for over 20 years, and in
2010, successfully took a leading role in the fight against the reservoir (with
Local Councils and Campaign to Protect Rural England support) at the
Public Inquiry. The PI threw out the reservoir proposal and stated that, in
future Thames Water should conduct proper options assessments for their
Water Resource Management Plans.

The reservoir size was 150 Million cubic metres in all plans. This was 50%
larger than the plan thrown out at the 2010 Public Inquiry. The reservoir,
which would probably be the biggest bunded reservoir in the world, would
contain 150 Million tonnes of water behind its retaining banks. Its
construction, over 10 years, would devastate quality of life in the local area.
Once built, its visual impact on neighbouring villages was huge and
represented a threat to flood prevention in the area.

A new feature was that Thames Water now intended to sell water from the
reservoir to other SE companies outside their area. Figures show that 40% of
reservoir water is for sale after 2065.

He called upon the Council to support GARD and DEFRA in obtaining a
second public consultation when the revised Thames Water's draft Water
Resources Management Plan (dAWRMP19) was produced.

219/18 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 7)

The Leader of the Council was asked the following Question by Dr Al
Chisolm

In March this year, a motion was passed unanimously by the councillors in
this room calling on the Pension Fund Committee to take the best and latest
advice on ESG matters, with reference to the Norwegian Sovereign Pension
fund’s divestment from oil and gas. This is to be welcomed and is in line with

Page 2



the warning from the Pensions Minister, Guy Opperman, who in March told
the House of Commons Environmental and Audit Committee that many
trustees are failing to fulfil their duty to consider climate risk.

Since the motion was passed, yet another report has been published, this
time by the highly reputable London School of Economics, demonstrating
that removing investments from fossil fuel companies has no detrimental
effect on returns, but that continuing to invest in them comes with the serious
risk of stranded assets. The case for getting out of fossil fuels couldn’t be
clearer or more urgent as many major investors, including New York State,
have understood.

The Pension Fund Committee has the means to act in line with the motion to
protect the Pension Fund from climate risk. The Brunel Pension Partnership
offers Low Carbon and Sustainable funds, but so far, the committee has
rejected these options. There is no evidence that the motion passed by full
council was even discussed at the subsequent Pension Fund Committee
meeting.

There appears to be a glaring gap between rhetoric and action on mitigating
climate risk. What concrete action has been taken in response to the
Council’'s motion and how will you hold the Pension Fund Committee to
account on this matter?

Answer

The questions asked are a matter for the Pension Fund Committee which
has fully delegated responsibility for all matters associated with the
management of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund.

| am aware that the Committee has considered the issues associated with
climate change and fossil fuel investments on numerous occasions and has
set out their position and asset allocation in its Investment Strategy
Statement. | also understand that in preparing this Statement, the
Committee had advice from its Independent Financial Advisor, and from the
Chief Responsible Investment Officer for the Brunel Partnership. The latter
is internationally recognised within the investment community as a leading
authority on responsible and sustainable investment.

The Committee is continuing its work with the Responsible Investment Team
at Brunel to develop reporting in this area, so that the Pension Fund
Committee can demonstrate the results of its current policies in this area, as
part of its overall management of the Pension Fund.

Supplementary Question
It is true that in March 2017, Climate risk was added to that Investment

strategy statement. Since then climate risk has increased but as far as we
can tell no asserts have been moved away from fossil fuels as a result.

Page 3


http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/news/the-mythical-peril-of-divesting-from-fossil-fuels/

Will you encourage the Pension Fund to transfer assets including the £21m
invested directly in Shell to the Brunel Partnership Low Carbon or
sustainable funds as soon as possible?

Answer

It would be inappropriate for me as Leader to direct the Pension Fund
Committee in something that they have delegated responsibility for. There
are however members of the Pension Committee here today and | am sure
they will bring it to the attention of the Committee.

220/18 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 8)

10 Questions with Notice were asked. Details of the questions and answers
and supplementary questions and answers will be set out in the Annex to the
minutes.

In relation to question 4 (Question from Councillor Howson to Councillor
Hilary Hibbert-Biles) Councillor Hibbert-Biles undertook to write to the
Regional School Commissioner to ask them how many EU teachers are
employed in academies in Oxfordshire, cautioning that they were not obliged
to respond.

In relation to question 5 (Question from Councillor Howson to Councillor
Hilary Hibbert-Biles) Councillor Hibbert-Biles undertook to ask the Learning
and Skills Council for an assurance that they would not be pulling funding
from the Swan School due to the current delay in planning permission.

221/18 APPOINTMENT OF A JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVE FOR
OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AND CHERWELL DISTRICT

COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 9)

On 4 June 2018, Cabinet had agreed to work in partnership with Cherwell
District Council and to adopt joint working arrangements with Cherwell on the
basis of a formal ‘Section 113 Agreement’ under the Local Government Act
1972. This included an agreement that there should be a joint chief
executive for both authorities with the intention that this person should also
be appointed as the statutory Head of Paid Service for Oxfordshire County
Council.

Council had before it a report which set out the recommendations of the
Council’'s Remuneration Committee on the appointment of a Joint Chief
Executive and Head of Paid Service for Oxfordshire County Council and
Cherwell District Council. The report also recommends that if this
appointment was agreed, there was then a need to agree the ending, on the
grounds of redundancy, of the role of the County Council’'s current Chief
Executive, as this post would no longer be required.

Page 4



The Council’s Constitution incorporated statutory rules which the authority
must follow when determining the appointment of a senior manager such as
the Chief Executive or ‘Head of Paid Service’.

At this meeting, Full Council was receiving the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee as to an appointment of Joint Chief Executive and
Head of Paid Service. Once an initial determination to appoint had been
made, the Proper Officer would consult Cabinet members. Full Council would
also be asked to make an initial decision on the ending of the current Chief
Executive and Head of Paid Service role on the grounds of redundancy.
Cabinet members would be consulted on this also.

At a second meeting, scheduled for later today, Council would consider any
comments from Cabinet and would determine whether to confirm any such
appointment. If so, it will also consider the matter of any redundancy.

Councillor Hudspeth moved and Councillor Brighouse seconded that the
recommendations on the face of the Agenda and the report be moved.

Following Debate in which the Council paid tribute to Peter Clark, Chief
Executive, the motion was put to the vote and was carried by 45 votes to 14.

RESOLVED: (45 votes to 14) to:

(a) agree that Yvonne Rees should be appointed to the post of Joint Chief
Executive and Head of Paid Service of Oxfordshire County Council with
effect from the 1 October 2018; and in consequence

(b) agree to the ending of the current Chief Executive and Head of Paid
Service role on the grounds of redundancy; and

(c) in consequence of 1 and 2., to ask the Proper Officer, under Part 8.4(4)
and (10) of the Constitution, to notify members of Cabinet of these
intentions in order to seek their views on the proposed appointment and
redundancy.

222/18 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE TRANSITION FUND FOR CHILDREN'S

SERVICES
(Agenda Item 10)

The Oxfordshire Together Transition Fund for open-access children’s
services had been running for one year. The Council had before it the first
Annual Report on outcomes from grants made to community organisations
from the Fund.

The report set out the background to the County Council's move to a
community-led approach to open-access children's services and how the
Transition Fund grants had been awarded. It further set out the types of
services being delivered, how they link to other services and the feedback
from residents on the quality of provision.

Page 5



RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Gray, seconded by Councillor
Hudspeth and carried nem con) to note the report.

223/18 2018/19 REQUESTS FOR SUPPLEMENTARY ESTIMATE
(Agenda Item 11)

As set out in the Provisional Revenue and Capital Outturn Report to Cabinet
on 19 June 2018, all over and underspends had been transferred to general
balances. This included an underspend of £123,909 on the Transition Fund
for open access children’s services.

Applications to the fund were considered by a cross-party panel of
Councillors in seven rounds during in 2017/18. A total of £876,091 was
allocated to be used over the agreed three-year period. This left a balance of
£123,909 as the fund had now closed to new applications.

Council had before it a report which proposed that Council approve the use
of the £123,909 underspend and that it is transferred to the Budget Priorities
Reserve until it is required.

With the consent of Council, Councillor David Bartholomew moved and
Councillor Brighouse seconded an alteration to the recommendations at the
suggestion of Councillor Liz Brighouse as shown in bold underline below:

Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the use of the £123,909
underspend on the Transition fund for open access children’s services
which-will-be-transferred-te and until required for this purpose transfer

to the Budget Priorities Reserve untireguired-

Following debate, the recommendations as amended were put to the vote
and were carried nem con.

RESOLVED: (nem con) to approve the use of the £123,909 underspend on
the Transition fund for open access children’s services and until required for
this purpose transfer to the Budget Priorities Reserve.

224/18 CORPORATE PLAN
(Agenda Item 12)

The Council had before it the Corporate Plan (CC12) which set out the
County Council’s overarching strategy for the period 2018-2021, together
with an updated vision for ‘thriving communities’ in Oxfordshire and
described the council’s main priorities and the specific actions that will be
taken in the period to March 2019.

This document built on a short, public-facing document (the ‘prospectus’)
which was published in October 2017 and summarised the council's vision
and priorities. The Corporate Plan 2018- 2021 expands on the messages in
the prospectus, drawing together our vision, values and the key areas of
focus for the coming year.

Page 6



RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Heathcoat, seconded by Councillor
Hudspeth and carried nem con) to receive the report.

225/18 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
(Agenda Item 13)

The Council had before it the Scrutiny Annual Report which provided a
summary of the work and impact of the council’s three scrutiny committees;
Performance Scrutiny, Education Scrutiny and Health Overview & Scrutiny,
and any Cabinet Advisory Groups appointed by Cabinet during the year.

The report (CC13) was structured by committee and highlighted where the
committees’ influence had been greatest. It emphasised the areas where
scrutiny had a tangible impact on decision-making and held decision-makers
to account.

Both the Audit and Governance Committee and Performance Scrutiny
Committee had reviewed this report and its layout and content had been
amended to reflect their comments.

RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Brighouse, seconded by Councillor
Waine and carried nem con) to receive the report.

226/18 REPORT OF THE CABINET
(Agenda Item 14)

Council received the report of the Cabinet.

In relation to paragraph 5 of the report (Adult Social Care Contributions
Policy) (Question from Councillor Afridi to Councillor Stratford) Councillor
Stratford undertook to provide Councillor Afridi with a written answer on how
many assessments have now taken place and how many residents have
been adversely affected by the Policy.

In relation to paragraph 6 of the report (Area Highway Operations in the City
Council Authority Boundary — Agency Agreement) (Question from Councillor
Buckley to Councillor Constance) Councillor Constance undertook to provide
greater clarity in the form of written guidance to officers and members around
how the new process is going to work in relation to the Agency Agreement
and who is responsible for what.

In relation to paragraph 8 of the report (Thames Water — Draft Water
Resources Management Plan 2019) (Question from Councillor Mathew to
Councillor Constance) Councillor Constance undertook to investigate the
issue of Sewer Flooding through Cabinet or CAG.

In relation to paragraph 12 of the report (Provisional 2017/18 Revenue and
Capital Outturn) (Question from Councillor Howson to Councillor
Bartholomew) Councillor Bartholomew undertook to provide Councillor
Howson with a written answer in relation to whether the £0.2m overspend

Page 7



referred to at 55.5 could be reclaimed from Network Rail or central
government.

227/18 MOTION BY COUNCILLOR LIZ BRIGHOUSE
(Agenda Item 15)

With the Consent of Council, Councillor Liz Brighouse moved and Councillor
Waine an alteration to her Motion as shown in bold italics/strikethrough
below:

“This Council believes that children with SEND should not have their
transport to and from schools and associated activities cut. This
Transport enhances their lives and enables their parents to work and
contribute to the economy.

The Council asks the Director for Children's Services to consider, with
the affected Schools' Heads and other interested parties, this issue in
order to come up with other options to curtail these costs rather than
withdrawing provision from these vulnerable children and their families.
Such options to include working with schools to maximise the use of the
maintenance grants and looking at alternative procurement -practices
including better use of the integrated transport service.

The results of this work to be considered by the Education Scrutiny
Committee- as part of their policy development role before being
determination at Cabinet Council endorses the use of Any-shertfall-in
the-budget-to-be-funded-from reserves in the event of any shortfall in

the Budget until such time as all the options have been considered.

Cabinet is requested to defer implementation of the recent changes
to the home to school transport policy until these alternative options have
been diligently pursued and evaluated.”

Following debate, the motion as amended was put to the vote and was
carried by 51 votes to 0, with 7 abstentions.

RESOLVED: (by 51 to 0, with 7 abstentions)

“This Council believes that children with SEND should not have their
transport to and from schools and associated activities cut. This
Transport enhances their lives and enables their parents to work and
contribute to the economy.

The Council asks the Director for Children's Services to consider, with
the affected Schools' Heads and other interested parties, this issue in
order to come up with other options to curtail these costs rather than
withdrawing provision from these vulnerable children and their families.
Such options to include working with schools to maximise the use of the
maintenance grants and looking at alternative procurement -practices
including better use of the integrated transport service.

Page 8



The results of this work to be considered by the Education Scrutiny
Committee- as part of their policy development role before being
determination at Cabinet Council endorses the use of reserves in the
event of any shortfall in the Budget until such time as all the options
have been considered.

Cabinet is requested to defer implementation of the recent changes to
the home to school transport policy until these alternative options have
been diligently pursued and evaluated.”

Following debate, the motion as amended was put to the vote and was
carried by 51 votes to 0, with 7 abstentions.

228/18 MOTION BY COUNCILLOR SUSANNE BARTINGTON
(Agenda Item 16)

With the Consent of Council, Councillor Bartington moved and Councillor
Cherry seconded an alteration to her Motion as shown in bold
italics/strikethrough below:

The rate of global plastic production has increased in recent
years with an estimated 8-12 million tonnes of plastic entering
the world's oceans each year. Plastic production and pollution
on this scale is unsustainable and harmful to our planet, health
and wildlife.

"This Council welcomes the—propesals—by—the Government plans to

reduce waste from single use plastics (SUP’S) including a te ban
on the sale of plastic straws plastic stirrers and plastic- Stemmed cotton
buds and consultation for extension of the 5p plastic bag charge
and introduction of a bottle deposit return scheme. These
proposals, demonstrate the government's commitment within the 25-
year Environment Plan to eliminating all avoidable reduce-theuse—of
plastic waste by 2042.

This Council asks resolves to work towards elimination of all
avoidable plastic waste and calls upon the that Cabinet Member for
Environment to bring eemes forward proposals by with-arealistic
timetable to stop ustig—plastie—straw  plastic stirrers, plastic cotton bud,
non-recyclable-cups-and-single-use—plastics-by-the Autumn 2018 to:

”5'5 SGH“e”E asks EI.'aE the—Leader—of Itlne_ Qeull_n—:lI wiite tle_ the Seenete_uy

(i) Phase out the use of avoidable SUPs in all County Council
premises.

Page 9



(i) Work with contracted partners to end purchase and
procurement of avoidable SUPs through the Council supply
chain.

(iili) incentivisetraders on County Council sites to avoid SUPs as
a condition of their event permission.

With the consent of Council, Councillor Bob Johnson withdrew his
motion.

Following debate, the motion as amended was put to the vote and
was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimously)

“The rate of global plastic production has increased in recent years
with an estimated 8-12 million tonnes of plastic entering the world's
oceans each year. Plastic production and pollution on this scale is
unsustainable and harmful to our planet, health and wildlife.

This Council welcomes Government plans to reduce waste from single
use plastics (SUP’S) including a ban on the sale of plastic straws plastic
stirrers and plastic- Stemmed cotton buds and consultation for extension
of the 5p plastic bag charge and introduction of a bottle deposit
return scheme. These proposals, demonstrate the government's
commitment. within the 25-year Environment Plan eliminating all
avoidable plastic waste by 2042.

This Council resolves to work towards elimination of all avoidable
plastic waste and calls upon the Cabinet Member for Environment to
bring forward proposals by Autumn 2018 to:

(i) Phase out the use of avoidable SUPs in all County Council premises.

(i) Work with contracted partners to end purchase and procurement
of avoidable SUPs through the Council supply chain.

(i) incentivise traders on County Council sites to avoid SUPs as a
condition of their event permission.”

229/18 MOTION BY COUNCILLOR RICHARD WEBBER
(Agenda Item 17)

With the Consent of Council, Councillor Webber withdrew his Motion.

Page 10



230/18 MOTION BY COUNCILLOR MIKE FOX-DAVIES
(Agenda Item 18)

With the consent of Council, Councillor Fox-Davies moved and Councillor
Bob Johnston seconded an alteration to his motion at the suggestion of
Councillor Bob Johnston as shown in strikethrough below:

“The Thames Water Draft Resources Management Plan (dWRMP19),
consultation was opened on the 8th. February and closed on the 29th April.
The plan proposes a new reservoir near Abingdon to serve the forecast
needs of not only the Thames Water area, but also the wider South East.

The consultation response from OCC looks for clarification on: -

o the population forecast figures;

o how much water will be sold to other water companies;

o how Thames Water will speed up their programme of leakage
reduction.

This Council supports the position of- GARD in response to the plan which
asks Thames Water to: -
. Reduce leakage by half by 2050;

. Improve water-use efficiency to match the norms of other companies;

. Provide a proper analysis of water available through other measures,
including Teddington DRA,; SevernTFrent-watertransfer and water re-
use.

Which together should together solve the water shortage issue and provide a
1 in 200 severity drought resilience.

And calls on the Leader of the Council to write to Thames Water, Defra, the
Environment Agency and Ofwat, requesting that a second consultation be
undertaken due to incomplete information or errors on the information used
to base their recommendations.”

Following debate, the motion as amended was put to the vote and was
carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimously)

“The Thames Water Draft Resources Management Plan (dWRMP19),
consultation was opened on the 8th. February and closed on the 29th April.
The plan proposes a new reservoir near Abingdon to serve the forecast
needs of not only the Thames Water area, but also the wider South East.

The consultation response from OCC looks for clarification on: -

o the population forecast figures;

o how much water will be sold to other water companies;

o how Thames Water will speed up their programme of leakage
reduction.

Page 11



This Council supports the position of- GARD in response to the plan which

asks Thames Water to: -

. Reduce leakage by half by 2050;

. Improve water-use efficiency to match the norms of other companies;

. Provide a proper analysis of water available through other measures,
including Teddington DRA and water re-use.

Which together should together solve the water shortage issue and provide a
1 in 200 severity drought resilience.

And calls on the Leader of the Council to write to Thames Water, Defra, the
Environment Agency and Ofwat, requesting that a second consultation be
undertaken due to incomplete information or errors on the information used
to base their recommendations.”

231/18 MOTION BY COUNCILLOR SUSANNA PRESSEL

(Agenda Item 19)

Councillor Pressel moved and Councillor Banfield seconded the following
motion:

“‘DEFRA is considering whether to grant a licence to expand the badger cull
to areas of lower risk, including Oxfordshire.

There has been 5 years of culling in high risk areas at a cost to the UK tax
payer of £50m so far. Not only has there been no significant reduction in
bovine TB, there has actually been an increase.

So far culling has had the effect of causing badgers to move to other areas.
Any that do have TB may be spreading it further. This is entirely predictable
and impossible to prevent.

This Council resolves to ask the Leader to write to DEFRA saying that we
are opposed to the licensing of a badger cull in Oxfordshire.”

Following debate, the motion was put to the vote and was carried by 23
votes 19, with 13 abstentions.

RESOLVED: Accordingly.

232/18 MOTIONS BY COUNCILLORS MARK CHERRY, LAURA PRICE

AND JOHN HOWSON
(Agenda Item 20)

The time being 3.30, these motions were considered dropped in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 15.1.

in the Chair

Date of signing

Page 12



OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 10 July 2018 commencing at 3.30 pm

and finishing at 3.55 pm.

Present:

Councillor Gill Sanders — in the Chair

Councillors:

Sobia Afridi

Jamila Begum Azad
Hannah Banfield
David Bartholomew
Dr Suzanne Bartington
Liz Brighouse OBE
Paul Buckley

Kevin Bulmer

Nick Carter

Mark Cherry

Dr Simon Clarke
Yvonne Constance OBE
lan Corkin

Helen Evans

Arash Fatemian

Neil Fawcett

Ted Fenton

Mrs Anda Fitzgerald-
O'Connor

Mike Fox-Davies
Stefan Gawrysiak
Mark Gray

Carmen Griffiths
Pete Handley

Jenny Hannaby
Neville F. Harris
Steve Harrod

Mrs Judith Heathcoat
Hilary Hibbert-Biles
John Howson

lan Hudspeth

Tony llott

Bob Johnston
Lorraine Lindsay-Gale
Mark Lygo

D. Mcllveen

Kieron Mallon

Jeannette Matelot
Charles Mathew
Z0é Patrick
Glynis Phillips
Susanna Pressel
Laura Price
Eddie Reeves
Judy Roberts
Alison Rooke
Dan Sames
John Sanders
Les Sibley
Lawrie Stratford
Alan Thompson
Emma Turnbull
Michael Waine
Richard Webber

The Council considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or
referred to in the agenda for the meeting and decided as set out below. Except
insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the
agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

118 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Atkins, Billington,
Field-Johnson, Johnson, Leffman, E Smith, R Smith, Reynolds and Walker.

2/18 APPOINTMENT OF A

JOINT CHIEF

EXECUTIVE FOR

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AND CHERWELL DISTRICT

COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 4)

The Council had before it a report (CC4) which applied in the event that,
earlier on 10 July, Full Council reached a decision to make an appointment
to the post of ‘Joint Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service’, in partnership
with Cherwell District Council. Following that decision, Cabinet members had

Page 13



CC1

been consulted during lunchtime about these intentions, in accordance with
the Council’s Constitutional, and statutory rules.

The report therefore sets out the decisions that would need to be confirmed if
Full Council was minded, in the light of any comments from Cabinet
members, to proceed with an appointment and subsequent redundancy. The
rationale and context was supplied in the report of the same title on the Full
Council agenda, at the meeting held earlier today.

The Leader of the Council, in moving the recommendations confirmed that
the Cabinet had all been consulted individually and had agreed to the
proposals before the Council today.

The Monitoring Officer confirmed that the statutory duty of the returning
Officer set out in the main duties and responsibilities in Annex 1 was indeed
an error and that the correct information was contained in paragraph 11 to
the report.

RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Hudspeth, seconded by Councillor
Brighouse and carried by 41 votes to 11):

Having received the views of Cabinet in consequence of Full Council’s earlier
decisions then, as appropriate to:

(&) confirm the appointment of Yvonne Rees as Joint Chief Executive and
Head of Paid Service of Oxfordshire County Council in accordance with
paragraphs 8 and 9; and as a consequence

(b) confirm the ending of the current Chief Executive and Head of Paid
Service role on the grounds of redundancy in accordance with
paragraphs 14-15 and Annex 2, and that a Notice of Termination be
issued on the 30 September 2018 ending Mr Clark’s employment; and

(c) ask the Director of Human Resources to issue the necessary offer of
appointment to Yvonne Rees;

(d) ask the Monitoring Officer to amend the Constitution to reflect these
decisions, as appropriate;

(e) agree that these decisions are subject to Cherwell District Council

confirming its decision to enter into joint working with Oxfordshire
County Council, which it is currently scheduled to do on 16 July 2018.

in the Chair

Date of signing



GT obed

QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

Questions

Answers

1. COUNCILLOR SIMON CLARKE

Better management of plastic waste is now a major
public concern. Will the Cabinet member please
report what the County is doing to respond to this
issue?

COUNCILLOR YVONNE CONSTANCE, CABINET MEMBER FOR
ENVIRONMENT

Oxfordshire has consistently had one of the best recycling and composting rates
in the country, with the one of the lowest rates of waste per head. The
Oxfordshire Environment Partnership (OEP) consisting of the county, district and
city councils lead on this issue, and are committed to ambitious reduction, reuse
and recycling targets.

OEP has established that almost half of the general waste (disposed of in black
bags) could have been recycled, some of this is plastics, but a lot of it is food
waste. We know from our consultation in January that residents want to recycle,
but are confused, especially about which plastics are recyclable, and are
concerned about the amount of packaging provided with products.

OCC and our partners are working on several projects on plastics including
introducing recycling of hard plastics at HWRCs, and planning to get information
out to residents in each District/City about which plastics are recyclable, and how
to differentiate them. OCC support the work that WRAP is doing with
manufacturers and retailers on the Plastics Pact, aiming to reduce the amount of
single use plastics used and make what is used reusable, recyclable or
compostable.

The County Council also champions efforts to reduce plastics use. The
Community Action Group network is now made up of over 60 local groups,
including SESI (a local social enterprise) who have 7 refill stations for detergents
around the county, and several Refill groups in towns across the county, signing
up and promoting businesses who will refill a water bottle for free, preventing
more single use packaging from being bought.




9T abed

Questions

Answers

We are also looking at our own operations. Single use plastics such as
disposable water cups and plastic stirrers are already being phased out and we
are working with our own waste contactor to maximise the amount of material
recycled from our buildings.

We want Oxfordshire to be the best at recycling and composting in the country,
and are looking to take another step change in our recycling rates. As part of
this we will be focussing on encouraging the public to separate their food waste
for recycling but would welcome ideas and engagement form communities and
other stakeholders interested in sustainability issues.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

Can Councillor Constance tell us with regard to
plastic waste what progress has been made with the
District Councils on this matter?

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

Thank you for the question as it gives me an opportunity to make public
Oxfordshire County Council’s very advanced and continuing interest in recycling
not only of plastics but of all recycling of all waste. The most important item in
my written answer is that we are (county is still working) working with all the
districts in the Oxford Environmental Partnership which will meet next Friday. |
believe at the moment is being chaired by the Cherwell Member Councillor
Debbie Pickford. The districts have been working in the last three months since
our previous meeting on developing a fact sheet to get out to all their members
about the plastics that can be recycled. We are hoping that a standard fact
sheet will be going out to all the districts because they all have different
contractors for the collection of waste. We are working very hard to try to get
that information out so that people understand exactly what can be recycled.
More importantly however, from the County’s point of view is that the greater part
of waste still to be separated and recycled is actually food waste. The analysis
of black bag waste shows that something like 60% of what we are discarding
could be recycled and the great part of that both by volume and by weight is food
waste. We have to find ways to encourage people to recycle all that.




/T obed

Questions

Answers

2. COUNCILLOR NICK FIELD-JOHNSON

In the last five years, how much has been paid by
Oxfordshire residents and businesses in road tax;
and in the last five years, how much has been
received back from the Government to repair our
roads in Oxfordshire.

COUNCILLOR YVONNE CONSTANCE, CABINET MEMBER FOR

ENVIRONMENT

Officers are unable to provide information on how much has been paid in Road
Tax by Oxfordshire residents as this is collected by Central Government, nor are
they able to comment on funding for the M40, A34 and A43 as these roads are
operated by Highways England and data of specific funding for these roads is

not available.

The table below shows the funding that Oxfordshire has received from

Government in Grant Funding:

DfT Grants (m) 13/14 | 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Annual DT SM Block £12.8 |£121 |£167 |£153 |£148 |£134

Allocation

Incentive Fund (Band 2) £0.9 £1.3 £2.0

National Productivity Fund £1.7 £1.6

Challenge Fund £2.9 £2.0 £8.0

Addltlonal Highway £23 £12

Maintenance

Severe Weather £1.8

Pothole Grant £3.1 £1.0 £3.6 £0.5

Additional available for £0.8

Incentive Fund Band 3 '

Total £15.1 £19.3 £19.6 £19.2 £29.4 £18.3
SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

I would like to thank my colleague Councillor
Constance for the response. From public records
there are 350,000 vehicles registered in Oxfordshire.

Thank you for raising the possibility of finding a further £100 million from
Government that would serve the £150 million | am looking for road surfacing

extremely well.

However, | think we as Councillors and members of the whole




gT obed

Questions

Answers

My calculation is that if there is an average of £250-
£300 paid in tax that is about £87-£90 million a year,
over 5 years that is £450 million in contributions
towards our roads, we as a county have made. In
the response from Councillor Constance | see we
have had grants and funding, nearly £100 million
basically. My question is we have a huge disparity
here between the contribution of about £450 million
and the amounts we actually receive back as a
county of £100 million. Can we reduce that gap
because at the moment we are contribution much
more than we are receiving?

Government chain have to accept that tax is hypothecated in that manner. If it
were we would find ourselves in dyer position to fund those services which do
not generate tax or revenue, defence, education, health would be without a
funding source. So, | think we have to accept that the tax however it was
introduced, however it was presented as intended to fund roads has become
part of the Treasuries big kitty and we do not hypothecate or expect to have it
spent. That said we do keep pressure on Government both at our level and
through local government association for funding for potholes and you know that
we got £2.8 million this year.

3. COUNCILLOR JOHN HOWSON

What will be the effects of leaving the EU on
Oxfordshire Schools?

COUNCILLOR HIBBERT-BILES, CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
& EDUCATION

Clir Hibbert-Biles has decided to field this question on the day and won’t be
providing a response to this beforehand.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

| can’t ask a supplementary as she hasn’t given me
an answer.

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

| wish | had a crystal ball Councillor Howson for your first question you have
asked me and as we are aware at the moment there is quite a lot going on with
regards to what is happening in Europe. So, although I wish that | could answer
your question and | wish perhaps | was in Government, I’'m not, and | can’t
answer your question at this moment but hopefully in the near future we might be
able to.

4. COUNCILLOR JOHN HOWSON

How many EU teachers are currently employed by
maintained schools in Oxfordshire?

COUNCILLOR HIBBERT-BILES, CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
& EDUCATION

There are currently 90 Teachers (including Head teachers, Assistant Head-
teachers and Teachers of all levels) in maintained schools. As highlighted in the




6T obed

Questions

Answers

table below the count of nationality and schools.

Nationality Count of NINo [ EU
American 3

Australian 2

Bangladeshi 1

British 1974

Canadian 2

Cypriot 1 Yes
Dutch 1 Yes
Finnish 69 Yes
French 2 Yes
Greek 2 Yes
Hungarian 1 Yes
Indian 9

Irish 6 Yes
Norwegian 1 Yes
Not Known 16

Polish 2 Yes
Romanian 1 Yes
South African 2

Spanish 4 Yes
Zimbabwean 1

Grand Total 2100 90
School Name Count of NI
SS Philip & James CE 6
Carterton Com. College 5
Cumnor CE Primary 3




0z abed

Questions

Answers

Dunmore Primary

East Oxford Primary

Fitzharrys School

Valley Road Primary

Carswell Primary

Church Cowley St James

Hardwick Primary

John Hampden Primary

John Watson School

Larkrise Primary

North Kidlington Primary

Sandhills Primary

Springfield School

St Ebbe's CE

St Joseph's RC (Oxford)

William Fletcher Primary

Windmill Primary

ACE Centre

Bardwell School

Beckley CE Primary

Brookside Primary

Bure Park Primary

Caldecott Primary

Chesterton CE Primary

Chilton Primary

Drayton Primary

Dry Sandford Primary

Fritwell CE Primary

RPIRPIPIFPIPIFPIPIFPIPIFPIFRPININININININININININININDIN([WW[W]W




T¢ obed

Questions

Answers

Great Tew Primary

Hailey CE Primary

Hook Norton CE Primary

Kingham Primary

Kings Meadow Primary

Kirtlington CE School

Launton CE Primary

Little Milton CE Primary

Long Furlong Primary

Mill Lane Primary

Oxford Hospitals

Radley CE Primary

Ridgeway CE Primary

Shellingford CE Primary

Sonning Common Primary

South Stoke Primary

St Edmund's RC Primary

St Francis' CE

St John Evangelist CE

St Leonard's CE Primary

St Mary's (Ch Norton) CE

Stockham Primary

Sunningwell CE Primary

Sutton C All Saints' CE

Wood Farm Primary

Wootton CE Primary

Wychwood CE Primary

R RN R R R R

Grand Total

(o]
o




2¢ obed

Questions

Answers

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

Can | ask the Cabinet Member whether she would
be prepared to write to the Regional Schools
Commissioner to ask the Regional Schools
Commissioner Office to undertake the same task in
relation to the academies so that we know
particularly what the state of play is in the secondary
schools in Oxfordshire?

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

| can write and ask yes, they don’t have to do what | ask though, but | can write
and ask.

5. COUNCILLOR JOHN HOWSON

Which Oxfordshire schools have the largest
proportion of EU pupils in 2017-187?

COUNCILLOR HIBBERT-BILES, CABINET MEMBER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
& EDUCATION

As ClIr Howson is aware the DfE does not publish citizenship data at school level
as part of its Schools, Pupils and their Characteristics statistical releases and the
data we hold is for our maintained schools.

Below is a list of our schools with a percentage of pupils with EU citizenship
(other than GBR) over 10% in our maintained schools.

%EU Citizenship

other than GBR | School

5% Oxfordshire's Maintained Schools
10% New Hinksey C.E. Primary

10% East Oxford Primary School

10% Wood Farm Primary School

11% Rose Hill Primary School

12% St Aloysius’ Catholic Primary School
12% Ewelme CE (VA) Primary School
12% St. John's R.C. School

13% St Edmunds RC Primary School




ez abed

Questions Answers
14% SS Philip and James' Primary School
15% Clifton Hampden C.E Primary School
16% Hardwick Primary School
17% The Slade Nursery School
18% St. Joseph's Catholic Primary School
24% Sacred Heart School
SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

Will the Cabinet Member discuss with the Education
& Skills Funding Council whether there is any risk to
the Swan School being built now it isn’t going to
receive planning permission before September at the
earliest in view of the very large number of children
from within the EU that there are within City primary
schools who would be transferring into the
secondary sector in the next few years. | want an
absolute assurance if possible from them that they
will not be pulling the Swan School.

That is a difficult one, isn’'t it? | can ask again but nobody wants the Swan
School pulled.

6. COUNCILLOR PAUL BUCKLEY

Oxfordshire is currently a major recipient of EU
research grants, especially to Harwell, Culham and
Oxford University (which is currently receiving more
EU research funding than any other university in the
EU). This will cease after Brexit. The Government
has made no commitment to make up the funds lost,
beyond 2020. Would the Leader of the Council
please explain what he is doing, to press the
Government to replace all of the EU research funds
that will be lost, to minimise damage to research in
Oxfordshire: widely acknowledged to be an

COUCILLOR IAN HUDSPETH, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

You are correct to highlight the fact that the Conservative government has
confirmed the funds until 2020, this is good news for Harwell, Culham and
Oxford University, I’'m sure that once all the negotiations are dealt with the
Conservative government will show similar commitment beyond 2020 and | wrote
to the Secretary of State some time ago to highlight Oxford and Oxfordshire's
interest in maintaining European, and indeed global, scientific cooperation.

Countries associated with the Horizon 2020 programme stretch from Iceland to
Armenia, via Turkey and Israel, so | see no barrier to the UK continuing to

participate after Brexit. Third countries are in any event eligible for funding from
the programme, and the EU explicitly publishes a list of such countries - this list




vz abed

Questions

Answers

important driver of the county’s economy.

spans the globe, including Cambodia, Iran, Venezuela, and Zimbabwe. |
therefore have every confidence we will remain closely engaged in scientific co-
operation, and in the unlikely event that the EU were to exclude us it would,
given the above, say more about them than about us.

What I'm doing is working with Government along with the City and Districts
councils to ensure that Oxfordshire has the infrastructure to grow the economy
making it the best area in the country to invest in. We have been successful in
bidding for £215 million of funds for the Growth Deal, we have moved to the next
stage of bidding for Housing Infrastructure Fund bids for Didcot and the A40
worth £300million, with this level of investment in Oxfordshire; Harwell, Culham
and Oxford University will all be able to grow to attract even more investment.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

Since the health research in our County depends
much more on research funding than the bus lane on
the A40 for example to which he refers, does he
agree that these institutions will be worse off unless
Government ups the research funding to make good
the £3.4 billion that will be missing and will be press
the Government to make that good supporting for
example the Vice-Chancellor of Oxford University
who has been making that case.

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

| understand that this figure is about £69 million of research funding within
Oxfordshire. The reason | referred to the investment that we are putting in is
because having that bus lane on the A40 will encourage more firms to come to
West Oxfordshire and they will be able to invest by themselves and that is the
key thing about it. You have got to remember at the moment we are currently
putting in vast sums of money into European Union and when the Brexit deal
goes through we won’t be putting that money in and we will be able to put in
services for UK citizens.

7. COUNCILLOR PAUL BUCKLEY

Several large companies important to Oxfordshire -
BMW, Airbus, Unipart - have recently highlighted the
dangers facing their businesses, if Brexit does not
lead to a totally frictionless Customs arrangement
with the EU. Could the Cabinet member for E&E
please quantify the expected consequences for

COUCILLOR IAN HUDSPETH, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

| am not of the view that Brexit will force these companies to leave the United
Kingdom despite the fact that | campaigned hard for Remain. | now see that we
will have the opportunity to grow our economy without the shackles of the EU
allowing for more investment in the UK. BMW have shown that they have the
confidence in the Oxfordshire market by investing £500 million to produce the
latest version of the Mini.




Gz abed

Questions

Answers

Oxfordshire’s economy and jobs, if Brexit forces
these companies to leave the UK.

With the support of the Conservative government that has awarded Oxfordshire
a Growth deal of £215 million along with potentially up to another £300 million of
HIF for Didcot and the A40 | can see more businesses and jobs in Oxfordshire in
addition to the 43,000 jobs created since 2011.

| have confidence that the Government and EU negotiators will reach a deal
which delivers on the promise of Brexit, protects our European trade, and
enhances our global opportunities. That companies have mentioned the US or
China as alternative locations in the event of a negative outcome shows that
frictionless customs' are not the only issue in play.

Therefore, while individual businesses have the right to speak out on matters
which affect their interests, | suspect the prophets of doom will be as wrong this
time as they were when they forecast three million job losses if we didn't join the
Euro, or an immediate severe recession after the Leave vote.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

My question was what will be the consequences for
Oxfordshire if Brexit forces the big companies to
leave the UK now. Central Government is doing
contingency planning for a no-deal Brexit, we know
that from many things that civil servants have said. |
assume that the County is similarly doing
contingency planning for a no-deal Brexit. A no-deal
Brexit will almost certainly send BMW away from the
UK. So, what will be the consequences for
Oxfordshire, please.

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

| am much more confident about the procedure. BMW put £500 million into East
Oxford into providing good jobs there. | can’t see them pulling it because they
know the workforce there are a good workforce it will encourage more people to
come to the UK for investment and we can go outside the EU for investment
because we won’t be contained by EU investment alone., The £40 billion that we
currently send and squander for administration in Europe will be able to be used
to support UK industry.




9z abed

Questions

Answers

8. COUNCILLOR PAUL BUCKLEY

The Oxford North development (previously known as
Northern Gateway) has recently reappeared in
public: a consultation is underway on outline plans
for the site. Residents of my Division are extremely
concerned about the potential for even worse road
congestion; and the chairman of Oxford North
himself has said publicly that the Loop Farm link
road will be essential, to divert A40/A44 traffic away
from Oxford North. Can the Cabinet member for E&E
now give residents a definite commitment that this
road will be built, commencing in 2019?

COUNCILLOR YVONNE CONSTANCE, CABINET MEMBER FOR
ENVIRONMENT

Work on the A40-A44 Link Road project has been extended in light of the
proposed Garden Village at Eynsham and Cherwell Modifications to their local
plan, and the possible route/corridor of the Expressway. All of which will have an
impact in this area and will need to be assessed within the transport modelling.

Once this assessment has been completed, further design work on the A40-A44
Link Road can continue, but it does mean the start of works, due to begin in
2019, are likely to be extended by several months.

In terms of the relationship between Oxford North and the A40-A44 Link Road,
whilst the link road could provide wider congestion benefits it is not required to
deliver a development at Oxford North. This was agreed by a Planning Inspector
following an examination in public of the City Council’'s Northern Gateway Area
Action Plan in 2015, and based on technical evidence submitted by the County
Council (the North Oxford Transport Strategy). Both the Area Action Plan and
Planning Inspector’s report are available via the following link:
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/northerngateway

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

Councillor Constance in her reply says that she
cannot give me a definite commitment that this road
will be built. It is notable that the Oxford North
proposals especially in the design of their link road
that goes from the A40/A44 absolutely requires the
Loop Farm link road to be viable. So, does she
agree with me therefore that the current proposals
from Oxford North that is are totally unviable
because there is not guarantee of A40/A44 Loop
Farm link road.

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

No, | don’t agree with you. It's quite clear that the date is not known. There is
still work going on the viability of that road and as the written answer tells you, it
was quite clear at the City Council’s Northern Gateway Area Action Plan
examination that the Northern Gateway can proceed without the link road, and
that must be a fairly conclusive decision on which we stand at the moment.
Work is continuing on that road and there is no date and | cannot confirm or
answer the question as you hoped | might.



https://www.oxford.gov.uk/northerngateway

/¢ abed

Questions

Answers

9. COUNCILLOR SUSANNA PRESSEL

A 20-mph limit is working well on busy stretches of
some of the arterial roads in Oxford, for instance in
Summertown and in Cowley Road.

You may remember that a passionate group of
residents from my division presented a petition to
Cabinet a couple of years ago asking for a 20-mph
limit in Botley Road. This followed serious road
accidents involving several children. Ideally, we
would like it to cover the whole length of the road,
but it would certainly be better than nothing to have it
along the busy stretch by the shops (including
outside Waitrose, which is extremely busy and
where the road is difficult to cross).

Please can this be included in the plans for
improvements to Botley Road?

COUNCILLOR YVONNE CONSTANCE, CABINET MEMBER FOR
ENVIRONMENT

Designs for the Botley Road corridor are being developed for public consultation
in November. The design team are reviewing the speed limit on the corridor as
part of this work and any changes to the existing speed limits will be included in
the design proposals when they are published in November so people can
comment on them as part of the overall scheme.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

This question is about the huge desire among
people in the Botley Road area for a 20mph limit in
Botley Road and my supplementary question is
please could Yvonne give this her personal backing?

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

Thank you, | think anybody is lucky to get above 20mph along the Botley Road.
My complaint is crawling congestion. However, | do hear you and the answer of
course is quite correct, as you know there is £5million grant for a new design and
implementation of improvements at the big junction and of cycling improvements
and the possibility of a 20mph limit can certainly be considered. | am not going
to give you a personal commitment that we would impose it. | think it is
unrealistic in uncongested times if it is possible to go above 20mph, 30mph is a
reasonable speed for a big link road into a major city.




gz abed

Questions

Answers

10. COUNCILLOR SIMON CLARKE

What would be required for the Leader to support a
move towards Decriminalised Parking Enforcement
by Oxfordshire’s District Councils”

COUNCILLOR YVONNE CONSTANCE, CABINET MEMBER FOR
ENVIRONMENT

Oxfordshire County Council has always supported the implementation of
Decriminalised Parking across the County and the devolution of such powers to
the District Councils. Indeed, in 2010 the Leader of the Council, in his role as
Cabinet Member for Transport, personally led arrangements to introduce such
powers into West Oxfordshire and devolve enforcement to the District Council.
This arose from a joint working party between all District Councils and the
County Council with only West Oxfordshire District Council deciding to proceed.

Decriminalised Parking requires both Local Authority on Street and Off-Street
Parking to be Decriminalised which are the responsibility of the County Council
and District Councils respectively. Modelling undertaken at that time showed that
implementation of such powers would not make a surplus and indeed was likely
to require a significant subsidy from the public purse at a time when all
authorities were needing to make reductions to their budgets. Surveys
undertaken by District Councils at that time showed that there was insufficient
demand from residents and businesses to justify such an investment. Officers
from remaining authorities were mandated to review the matter again in 2014
however, the profiled losses from such an arrangement had increased further,
with revised surveys still showing little demand. The County Council remain open
to further discussions.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION

Can Councillor Constance tell us whether any of the
districts have made any efforts towards
decriminalised parking enforcement.

SUPPLEMENTARY ANSWER

Thank you again for your question, it is an opportunity to make public the fact
that civil enforcement continues to be a matter of real interests to the districts
and to the County Council. | made it one of my ambitions on taking this portfolio.




62 abed

Questions

Answers

Sadly, it doesn’t get very far, it is a matter for the districts to impose and | do
know from the Vale where | am a District Councillor that when we examined the
issue some 3 or 4 years ago, it was found to be hugely expensive to introduce
and it was decided that far from being of any service to the Council, it would be
an ultimate cost and they decided not to do it. But the issue remains alive and |
do know villagers in my division are seeking powers to be able to introduce
wardens that can have powers to enforce parking because some of the villagers
in Wantage Town for instance are in dire straits over parking. The possibility
continues to be examined.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Division(s): All

COUNTY COUNCIL - 11 SEPTEMBER 2018

THEMED DEBATE ON A NEW OPERATING MODEL FOR
OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report by the Chief Executive

Introduction

1. The Operating Model is a detailed description of how the Council will work in the
future, with the key aims of putting better outcomes for residents and the
delivery of the Thriving Communities Vision at the centre of all plans and
operations.

2. Development activity since March has produced a detailed design for the
Operating Model and Cabinet is due to consider the proposal on 18 September
2018.

3.  The draft Cabinet Report and Annexes, including the full Business Case for the
Target Operating Model (which incorporates an Executive Summary), are
attached to this report.

4. These papers are made available to County Council in order to help inform a
Themed Debate on the Operating Model. The views of members expressed at
Council will be collated and used to inform Cabinet’s decision.

The Business Case

5. The purpose, approach and structure of the Business Case for a new Operating
Model is set out in the attached Cabinet report.

6. Fundamentally, the Operating Model seeks to describe the way that the Council
will function in the future. The Operating Model, in itself, does not determine
what the Council will do but how it will work. It is therefore closely aligned to the
Corporate Plan and the wider strategic policy and planning framework, which
set out the Council’s agreed priorities and objectives, and is integral to the
delivery of that framework.

7. The Business Case is set out in full at Annex 1 of the Cabinet report, introduced
with an Executive Summary.

Page 31



CC9

Member Engagement ahead of decision making

8. Ahead of the Cabinet meeting planned to consider this report on 18 September
2018, there will have been a number of opportunities for all Councillors to
formally and informally review the Operating Model and to engage with senior
officers — in addition to opportunities throughout the development of the
approach, as set out in the Cabinet report. These are summarised as follows:

4 Sept | All Member Briefing

6 Sept Performance Scrutiny Committee

6 Sept | Audit & Governance Committee

11 Sept | County Council —themed debate

9. ltis anticipated that views from these forums will be brought to Cabinet.
10. This report and the associated documents will have been available to all

members from late August, following the publication of Performance Scrutiny
and Audit and Governance Committee papers.

Themed Debate

11. Members of Council are invited to participate in a themed debate on the
Operating Model. Members may wish to reflect on the following questions:

¢ Will the Operating Model contribute to delivering the Thriving
Communities Vision?

e Do the proposals address long-standing concerns on how the Council
operates?

e |s this the right strategy to address transformation savings already
required within the Medium Term Financial Plan?

e Taken overall, do the proposals describe the kind of Council that
Members want to lead, on behalf of residents, into the next decade?

PETER CLARK
Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Robin Rogers, Strategy Manager

August 2018

Attachment 1. Draft Cabinet Report Implementing a new Operating Model for
Oxfordshire County Council

e Annex 1: Business Case
e Annex 2: Service and Community Impact Assessment

Page 32



CC9

Division(s): All

COPY
CABINET - 18 SEPTEMBER 2018

IMPLEMENTING A NEW OPERATING MODEL FOR OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Report by the Chief Executive

Introduction

1. This report sets out the work that has led to the development of a new
Operating Model for the Council and summarises the business case for
change. It seeks Cabinet approval to adopt the Operating Model as the basis
for whole-council transformation, ahead of a future decision on the detail of
investment in implementation.

2. In July 2018, the County Council adopted a new Corporate Plan for 2018-21.
This plan sets out the Council’s ambitious Thriving Communities vision and
explains how the Council will work to deliver its objectives. It recognises long-
term resource and demand pressures and identifies as a priority the need to
transform the way that the Council works to be more efficient and effective in
order to deliver the best outcomes for residents.

3. A specific commitment is made within the Corporate Plan to complete work on
a full review of the Council’s delivery model to be the fundamental basis for
future change.

4. During 2017, an in-depth analysis was undertaken into the Council's
operations, developing a detailed evidence base on how staff spend their time
on a day to day basis.

5. Oxfordshire is a good council delivering good outcomes for residents,
demonstrated by positive external statutory inspections and by the Council’s
leadership role in place, infrastructure and economic planning. Areas that
need improvement are understood and actions are in place to bring about
change.

6. However, the analysis showed that the Council could deliver outcomes
significantly more efficiently through reducing duplication of effort, improving
systems and processes and improving the way that services work with each
other and with support functions. Overall, the Council could be more effective
in meeting its obligation to support staff in delivering outcomes for residents.

7. This insight led to the commissioning of a detailed design project which

through the first half of 2018 has identified opportunities for change and
improvement at an organisation-wide scale. The final product of this phase of

Page 33



10.

11.

12.

13.

CC9

work is an Operating Model which sets out detailed proposals for how the
organisation will work in the future. The Operating Model is attached within
the Business Case at Annex 1. These changes, if implemented, would provide
a detailed plan for delivering savings already required within the Medium Term
Financial Plan, with the potential for additional benefits to be released. As
significantly, they would provide a framework for delivering a council that is as
effective as possible in delivering better outcomes for residents.

Background and the drivers for change

Councils across England and Wales face the combined impact of rising
demand with severely constrained resources. As has been seen in the
financial crisis impacting Northamptonshire, responding to this scenario
requires prudent financial management and sustained difficult decision
making. Different but serious challenges are emerging in counties including
East Sussex and Lancashire. Having taken a pro-active approach to these
changes through eight years of annual real-term reductions in available
budgets, amounting to a 51% reduction in government funding over the
decade to 2020, Oxfordshire is in a better position than many councils in this
regard. Never-the-less without further change, the Council will continue to face
the challenge of long term financial sustainability.

The Council faces a choice between two approaches to establishing that
sustainability:

Firstly, the Council can continue to manage ongoing reductions in funding, and
rising demand through reductions in service budgets and individual efficiency
initiatives. Ultimately the Council would anticipate a service offering close to or
at the ‘floor’ of statutory obligations with major impact on residents and on the
Council’s ability to prioritise preventative activity. In any case, and particularly
because of the constraint on resources to manage increases in demand
through prevention, this may not be sufficient to ensure sustainability in the
long term.

Alternatively, the Council can take an overall look at its total approach to
delivering outcomes and ask whether a major change to its operation can
release resource to support services, offer policy choices and deliver financial
sustainability while at the same time improving the Council’s effectiveness in
terms of outcomes for residents.

By negatively impacting on outcomes for residents and with highly constrained
opportunities for investing in services, the first approach would not allow the
Council to meet the ambitions set out in the Thriving Communities vision. The
potential of this second approach is acknowledged in the Corporate Plan
which sets the requirement for a full review of the Council’s Operating Model.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) agreed by Council in February 2016
first set out the need for large scale transformation due to the significant
impact of the redistribution of Revenue Support Grant and the further loss of
funding above the worst-case planning scenario applied. Savings of £15m

Page 34



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

CC9

were built into the MTFP over the period 2017/18 to 2019/20. The phasing of
savings has been reprofiled since then, over the period 2019/20 to 2021/22
and now include a further £2.4m savings relating to ICT due to the decision,
made during and as part of the Service & Resource Planning process last
year, to defer elements of ICT redesign (specifically a proposed partnership
arrangement with Local Government Shared Services), in order to align with
delivery of the new Operating Model.

As a consequence, the Fit for the Future programme was established to
manage the Council’s organisation-wide transformation agenda. It aims to
deliver a council that is in the strongest possible position to meet the ambitions
of Thriving Communities, by re-focussing effort on resident outcomes,
delivering specific identified transformation savings, contributing to long term
financial sustainability and enabling political choice on service investment.

A first phase of enabling work, completed in summer 2017, has led to
significant improvements in the Council’'s website and digital capacity and
direct improvements for customers accessing services.

Experience of planning and implementing these and broader change
demonstrated to the Council that the interconnections between services, and
between services and support functions, were so significant and complex that
major change would only be brought about at the pace required with a
comprehensive plan for the total organisation. Developing and delivering such
a plan would require significant investment and effort to bring about whole-
organisational change.

Activity analysis and the case for change

In order to develop a firm evidential basis for change, the Council
commissioned an activity analysis in summer 2017. With support from PwC,
all staff were asked to undertake a questionnaire exploring how they spent
their time on a day to day basis. The aim was to provide a scan of the
organisation, showing how the Council’s workforce apportions effort across 37
standard local government processes. To collect the data each member of
staff allocated the time they spent each week against these 37 processes.
Their responses were collated to develop a baseline for the Council and
enable an analysis of the extent of fragmentation and duplication of effort. This
output was benchmarked by comparison to other similar councils. Detailed
interviews were also undertaken to validate the information, understand the
issues identified and consider likely causes of the conclusions.

The main conclusions from this work were not that staff were not working hard
in the interests of residents, but that the Council as an organisation was not
fully meeting its obligations to support staff to get their jobs done. Specifically:

o Considerable effort was being put into support services when compared

with the comparator group, even though some of these services are
outsourced in Oxfordshire;

Page 35



19.

20.

21.

22.

CC9

o The Council could be utilising the information it holds about customers
more effectively and that a large proportion of staff effort is spent on
customer management processes, rather than direct service provision;

o Complex processes, technology and an immature digital offering may
be driving some of these characteristics with leadership teams
highlighting that confusing, non-standard processes and out of date IT
applications were a hindrance to their workforce;

o Significantly less effort as a proportion of overall staff time is being used
to deliver services, when compared to the comparator group®

o That the strategic direction of the Council could be clearer

Given the findings of the Activity Analysis a decision was taken by the Chief
Executive to undertake an ‘Operating Model assessment’. This enabled more
detailed analysis of the issues identified in the activity analysis and formed the
basis of second phase of Fit for the Future workstreams that were undertaken
between October 2017 and January 2018, with the support of PwC.

The most significant area of this work focused on a more detailed assessment
of the Council’s Operating Model. A series of cross cutting workshops were
held with many staff at different levels from across the Council. Detailed data
analysis was undertaken and qualitative sessions held with senior managers
for their assessment of current issues and future opportunities.

Additional work focused on understanding the Council’s digital and technology
environment and working with members and officers to consider future
opportunities for doing things differently through the use of technology and a
detailed analysis of our third party spend environment to consider
opportunities for savings through commissioned services was also
undertaken.

This work was drawn together into a Case for Change presented to the
Council in January 2018. Building on the evidence from the Activity Analysis,
the Case for Change concluded that:

o there was significant scope for efficiency in support services;

o that decision making is not consistently robustly informed by data and
insight;

o that the Council has not fully exploited the potential of digital
technology;

! The activity analysis acknowledges that this may be caused in part by the proportion of services out
sourced rather than being provided directly by the Council, as well as by staff performing tasks outside
of their core activity — but this notwithstanding, concluded that the effort expended on service delivery
was low in comparison to similar councils.

Page 36



23.

24,

25.

26.

CC9

o that there is duplication and fragmentation of staff effort across all areas
of the Council;

o and that the Council was not clear on how it will achieve its strategic
ambitions.

Opportunities for reviewing procurement and contract management for third
party spend, and for commercialisation, were also identified.

By addressing these challenges and opportunities, the Case for Change
identified significant scope for achieving cashable financial benefits without
negatively impacting on outcomes for residents. When finalised through
further analysis, it has been estimated that between £34m - £58m of annual
recurring savings could be delivered with a one-off investment in the region of
up to £18m. Officer assessment was that the changes in approach identified
also had the potential of delivering an organisation that was far more effective
overall.

While the Case for Change identified the considerable potential of pursuing
the opportunities and issues identified, addressing changes of this nature
would require substantial financial investment and long-term commitment of
the Council to prioritising a new approach. In order to prove the case before
investment and the full commitment of the Council’'s resources, a further
phase of work was authorised.

The remainder of this report introduces the Council’s subsequent development
of a new Operating Model with associated enabled benefits in third party
spend and from commercialisation and an overall increase in effectiveness
with respect to resident outcomes. The Operating Model is set-out within a
broader Business Case document which builds on the case for change and
sets out in more detalil the costs and benefits of delivery.

—
JuIy-S;gIgmber e Activity analysis
"~
~
October 2017 * Operating Model Analysis
"~
~
January 2018 * Case for Change completed
N
-
February-April 2018 ¢ High level design of Operating Model
NG
~
May-July 2018 * Detailed design of Operating Model
N
—
September 2018 ¢ Member review of Operating Model
N

Fig 1. Timeline of Operating Model Development

Page 37



27.

The Business Case

CC9

The Business Case for delivering a new Operating Model is structured in six

sections:

1. Operating Model

A detailed description of
how the future council
will operate divided into
seven functioning
‘layers’

2. Enablers

The core enabling
functions that will allow
the Council to maximise
the benefits of the
Operating Model

3. The financial case

The financial benefits of
delivering the Operating
Model and the
associated costs

4. Service impact and
gap analysis

The outcome of work
with services to develop
understanding of the

issues and impact
associated with
implementation and

identify any gaps in
design

5. Construct and
implement

Outline proposals on the
practicalities of
implementation and an
outline phase plan

6. Risks

An assessment of risks
within the design and
implementation of the
Operating Model

28.

29.

30.

31.

The Business Case is set out in full at Annex 1, introduced with an Executive
Summary.

Understanding the Operating Model

An Operating Model is a detailed description of the way an organisation works.
The Council currently has an Operating Model. However, this is not one that
has ever been purposefully designed, formally articulated, considered as a
whole, or that is well understood or consistently applied. Rather, the current
Operating Model has developed piece-by-piece over the years of the Council’s
existence, adapting and changing overtime in response to specific pressures,
issues, technological and policy change and the absorption or loss of services.

Deliberately designing a new model of operations will allow the Council to
consider all of the way things are done and consider how they best fit together
in the interests of efficiency and effectiveness. Within the context of tight
financial management and sustained difficult decision making, this represents
a one-off opportunity to re-set the organisation’s basic framework for a
generation.

This is important in local government where councils seek to further the
interests of residents through a large number of diverse and interrelated
services — often working in partnership with other organisations. The way
these services work together, and with support and back-office functions, is
determined through a complex network of policy, processes, technology,

Page 38



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

CC9

governance and organisational structures underpinned by local and
organisational culture.

Without deliberate design, different areas of the Council can very easily end-
up undertaking similar activity in different ways for no sound-business reason
— with the potential for duplication, contradiction and conflict - ultimately
diminishing the impact of scarce resources.

This is not to say that it is appropriate for all services to be delivered in the
same way; one-size does not fit all and specialist services and complex needs
require different ways of working to maximise outcomes for residents, comply
with legislation and obtain best value for money. However, many tasks and
activities that sit-behind very specialist services are fundamentally common
across the organisation.

Understanding and carefully re-designing how the organisation operates in
this context offers the opportunity for major improvement and the return of
significant benefits to the organisation and community.

Setting the Operating Model in Context

The Operating Model in itself does not determine what the Council will do but
how it will work. It is therefore interrelated to the Corporate Plan and the wider
strategic policy and planning framework which set out the Council’s agreed
priorities and objectives and is integral to the delivery of that framework.

The decision-making, oversight, scrutiny, and representative roles of elected
councillors are central to the Council’s purpose and functions. The intention of
the Operating Model is to be the vehicle by which the Council can ensure that
it has the right capabilities, processes, structures, people, information,
technology, governance and culture to deliver agreed vision, policy and plans,
as set out by elected members of the Council.

The Operating Model, if agreed, will not supersede or direct any political,
commercial or service decision making — although it will inform and shape the
considerations made. For example, the Operating Model takes no position on
whether services should be delivered ‘in-house’ or ‘out-sourced’. It does
however set out the mechanisms and considerations which in the future will
support such decisions and sets out the processes, technology, information,
capacity and skills that will be needed in such determinations.

Equally, the Operating Model is intended to serve any political governance
structure and so is not dependent and does not pre-judge the outcomes of the
ongoing Governance Review.

Finally, the Operating Model should not be regarded as the final position that
will be implemented exactly as described at this stage. Rather, it is the
organisation’s best attempt to describe the future state of the council. It will
inevitably be amended through implementation and in the future through
experience and evidence and especially through feedback and engagement

Page 39



40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

CC9

from councillors, residents, partners and staff. Importantly however, such
change will be designed and controlled against this baseline.

Developing the Operating Model

The Operating Model has been developed in response to the Activity Analysis
in accordance with design principles set by the organisation and included
within the Case for Change (see Slide 12 of the Executive Summary of the
Business Case — Annex 1).

The detail of how the Council will work in the future is broken down into seven
inter-related ‘layers’ for the purposes of describing the model. The layers are
not a structure or a replacement for service departments or support teams;
rather they describe the common activity that when put together, will deliver
what is needed to deliver the best outcomes for residents. It then asks how
these activities are best delivered for optimum overall outcomes: what is
common, what is specialist, what needs to change and what will the overall
design look like. How these layers are then built into functioning teams with
associated systems and processes, is the substance of the ‘construct and
implement’ phase of the programme that would come next if Cabinet agree to
adopt the proposed model.

Each layer was worked on in detail by an officer working group led by a
director or pair of directors and supported by PwC. Layers were also tested
with services including with a cross-section of staff and managers. Councillors
were asked to contribute through a specific member briefing, through briefings
held in each Locality area and through feedback at the Audit and Governance
and Performance Scrutiny Committees held in March. Portfolio holders and
Political Group Leaders have also been engaged with the Operating Model as
it has emerged.

The approach to developing the proposed Operating Model is set out in
Section 2 of the Business Case document attached. The detailed design of
each Operating Model layer is set out in Section 3. Additional ‘enablers’, those
areas of the Council’s approach that need to change and develop to maximise
the impact of the Operating Model, are set out in Section 4.

In summary, the proposed model describes:

o Firstly, a council which prioritises investment in the community in
resilience building and community solutions to maximise the
opportunities for prevention and support communities and individuals to
help themselves (see the Pre-Front Door Layer)

o Secondly, a council with an integrated and streamlined approach to
customer management (see the Customer Management layer)

o Thirdly, a council with transparent and simplified assessment processes

with proportionate resource deployed according to the complexity and
risk of the assessment (see the Customer Assessment layer)

Page 40



45.

CC9

o Fourthly, a council with a consistent framework of processes for
identifying, obtaining and managing the products and service it requires
(see the Provision Cycle layer)

o Fifthly, a council with leading-edge professional support services to
ensure that staff across the Council are able to do their jobs with
maximum efficiency (see Enabling and Support Services layer)

o Sixthly, a council with a refreshed capacity to support members in
defining priority aims and vision and to manage, support and
communicate the delivery and monitoring of those aims (see Strategic
Capability layer)

o Finally, a council with a new function that will develop significant
insights from data and information, using technology, data science and
partnership approaches to support the Council in making evidence
based and data-led decisions (see Business Intelligence layer).

Taken together, implementing the new Operating Model will amount to a

complete reconsideration of how almost all functions are undertaken and how
they inter-relate, across the Council.

Page 41



CC9

Pre-Front Door

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

Customer Management

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Q
s
&
O
-
c
(=]
rud
L

Customer Assessment

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

(<)) < The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal

"M Enabling and support . e . .

= S customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
(@) and responsibilities.

-

g The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its

C-Bl Strategic capability vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the

realisation of each of these.

Business intelligence

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

Fig 2. Extract from Business Case — Operating Model Layers




46.

47.

48.

49.

CC9

The Financial Case

Analysis by PwC tested the design of the Operating Model against the
evidence of the Activity Analysis and an assessment of the opportunities
within each service area for change and the release of benefits.

Within the financial case, detail is given of the approach to calculating benefits
against each layer of the Operating Model.

Assessment of the costs of implementation has also been made to develop an
overall financial benefits profile for the life-time of the implementation
programme and an ultimate annual recurring financial benefit which can be
expected.

In summary, the overall estimated benefits profile associated with
implementation of the Operating Model is as follows — assuming that delivery
of benefits at the midpoint of the range of savings estimated (£34-£58m) is
achieved:

1815 | 1920 | 2001 | 2022 | 2223

50.

Annual recurring benefit

. ) £0m £14m  £18m £10m  £4m
delivered in-year

Cumulative annual recurring

. £0m £14m £32m £42m £46m
benefit

The costs of delivery depend on choices made as to how the Operating
Model, if adopted, is implemented. For indicative purposes, one oOff
implementation costs (excluding recurring maintenance for technology and
potential redundancy costs, as explained in the financial implications section
below), are estimated as follows:

1619 | 19020 | 2021 | 2022 | 22123

51.

In-year one off costs -£4m -£9m -£2m -£2m -£1m

The implications of this assessment and its relationship to resource planning
processes are set out in the Financial Implications section below.

Page 43



52.

53.

4.

55.

56.

S7.

58.

CC9

Construct and Implement

Section 7 of the Business Case deals with implementation of the Operating
Model.

Delivering an Operating Model is a major initiative and the scale of change
should not be underestimated. Taken overall, the Council will effectively be
rebuilt in full, with no service area left unchanged in terms of the way the
Council operates (as distinct from the outcomes services seek to deliver —
which are not the subject of the Operating Model). The change overall would
represent the largest transformation initiative that the authority has ever
undertaken.

Section 6 of the Business Case assesses the impact of change on services
and the extent to which the proposed changes are significant when compared
with existing practice. It concludes, overall, that while with careful
consideration and design service impact will be manageable and will not
negatively impact on service users, the difference from existing ways of
working is considerable.

Given these considerations, it is not possible or desirable to implement the
substantial changes required at one single point in time. An ordered construct
and implementation methodology will be required to manage the risks of
change and maximise the benefits of investment. The proposed method is to
deliver the organisation’s new approach through a series of four phased
‘releases’. While the full financial benefit will not be realised until the
completion of the programme, each release will give the opportunity to deliver
an element of benefits which, when assured, will be available for incorporation
into the MTFP.

Managing delivery through an iterative series of releases will allow for testing,
to respond to change and to learn as the programme progresses. It accepts
that not every project element will deliver perfectly first-time and allows for
flexibility to cope with that uncertainty. It will also allow for policy and
operational choices along the way with a developed understanding of the
impact of choice on delivery of financial benefits and improved services to
residents.

Professional programme management will be needed to manage the
interdependencies of different changes and the complexities and risks of
managing an organisation in transition between current ways of working and a
new model. Considerable resource will be required for communication,
engagement, re-training and change management and this has been
incorporated into the financial case.

It is projected that the implementation programme will take place over an initial
two to three-year period with benefits continuing to build through to 2022/23 as
new ways of working are embedded. Ongoing benefit can then continue be
incorporated into the MTFP.

Page 44



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

CC9

To meet this ambitious timescale, the Council as a whole will need to prioritise
delivering the new Operating Model. However, the release-based approach
will allow services to manage the impact on competing priorities and day-to-
day service delivery by containing intense delivery periods within clearly set
out timescales. While detailed delivery of the Operating Model will be
predominantly undertaken by the Council’s own staff and directed by senior
leaders, overseen and scrutinised by elected members, the Council will also
need to supplement its existing resources, again to maintain pace and to
minimise impact on front-line service delivery. Such additional resource will
include strategic advice and programme management, technical and specialist
support (for example IT, digital and procurement) and support for change
management. It will also be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is
available to carefully manage and account for the delivery of benefits to
ensure that real benefits are delivered before incorporation into financial and
strategic plans.

The Construct and Implement section and the Financial Case assume that a
significant element of this additional resource is provided through an external
provider.

It is the purpose of this report to consider the Operating Model itself asking
Cabinet to consider its success in reflecting the specific Oxfordshire County
Council context and if satisfied, to agree to its adoption.

The detail of the investment required for implementation and a recommended
delivery mechanism - including the decision whether to appoint external
providers or to supplement internal resources — will be made through a further
report proposed to be considered by Cabinet in October 2018.

Implications for the partnership with Cherwell District Council
and for broader partnership working

The developing partnership with Cherwell District Council is based on the
initial sharing of the Chief Executive post with the potential in the future for
sharing senior management posts and the development of shared services.

The Operating Model is not directly related to the partnership. However,
opportunities created through the analysis now available and through the
implementation phase will mean that the development of the partnership will
be within a well-understood and adaptable framework. Overall, implementation
of a coherent Operating Model will allow support and front-line services to be
clear on both their requirements and capacities for any partnership working
subsequently considered— including with Cherwell but extending to the County
Council’'s many existing and potential partners — and so may bring forward
more ambitious and deliverable business cases in the future.

Any such benefits and associated investment would be additional to the
business case developed so far.

Page 45



CC9

Options for Change

67. On consideration of the Business Case document, the options for change are
summarised in the chart below:
Description Commentary
1 | Adopt the proposed | Recommended — the business case sets out the costs and benefits

Operating Model to
enable delivery of the
estimated range of
savings (£34m-£58m)
to the fullest extent
appropriate — agree to
the proposals as set out

and go forward to
identify ~ options  for
delivery

of the model, the potential for improvements to resident outcomes
and includes new ways to support prevention and minimise future
demand contributing to long-term financial sustainability. Delivering
the maximum benefits may create capacity to manage future
pressures and for policy and investment choices. It will also help
create a council that is agile and resilient to change with greater
capacity to manage risk and deliver agreed political objectives.

2 | Adopt the proposed | Not recommended — the business case does not support the case
Operating Model to | for not pursuing implementation to the furthest extent possible —
enable delivery of | when taking into full account the requirements of service delivery:
required MTFP
savings only, i.e. o Firstly, the costs of delivery are not related to savings on a
£33m - agree to linear basis - significant enabling investment is required, for
implement the example in technology, to release the initial savings;
proposals only as far as e Secondly, there are no proposals within the business case
required to deliver the that are intended to lead to reduction in resident outcomes -
MTFP savings without a rather, the range of savings shown throughout provides the
requirement to deliver flexibility for professional judgement and policy choices to be
additional benefits made during the construction phase where the Council will

be able to assess the extent to which it thinks the Operating

Model can be applied without impacting on outcomes. Where

there is risk of impact, the model would not be applied, or

changed, or the risk mitigated in some other way whilst

maintaining overall benefits within the envelope identified.
Therefore, not taking the full possible savings obtainable, whilst
making the significant enabling investment, would represent poor
value for money.

3 | Do nothing — deliver | Not recommended — this option is likely to have a negative impact

required MTFP savings

through identifying
service reductions and
individual efficiency
initiatives, including

those which have yet to
be identified.

on resident outcomes through service reductions and would mean
the Council having to take a similar approach to service cuts and staff
reductions as in previous years. Minimal proactive investment in
prevention and reducing demand will be possible, undermining any
strategy to cope with increased demand in the future and reducing
the ability of the Council to establish long-term financial sustainability.
Relying on individual efficiency initiatives increases risk in the MTFP
as these have not yet been fully identified. Continuing with individual
initiatives perpetuates the challenges of duplication and un-joined up
services and support functions. No benefit will be released to enable
policy and investment choices.

Page 46




CC9

Governance Arrangements

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

In December 2017, a number of changes were made to the arrangements for
the governance of the transformation programme. These changes were
designed to:

o Strengthen overall governance and decision making, ensuring
coverage of all services, avoiding duplication or gaps, and addressing
concerns about the lack of a ‘design authority’;

o Promote clarity of arrangements for programme management; ensuring
compliance with programme management tools and the Council’s
programme management approach;

o Refresh the existing processes and templates for the programme
management office;

o Improve the tracking of benefit realisation (financial and non-financial
benefits).

o Provide a ‘whole council’ comprehensive approach as the previous

arrangements had only focused on some of the overall activity being
undertaken across the Council (the three ‘enabling workstreams in
phase 1 work).

A new Fit for the Future Board was established in January 2018, chaired by
the Chief Executive, with membership by strategic directors and other key
officers. This board now covers all transformational activity across the Council,
and will act as a ‘design authority’ to ensure that there is a single and joined
up authoritative approach to decision making on transformation. The corporate
Fit for the Future Board is fed and informed by directorate transformation
working groups.

A small team (the Programme Management Office) is now supporting the Fit
for the Future Board, ensuring oversight and accountability for all
transformation projects, and that there is compliance with organisational
processes and effective benefit realisation processes in place.

Processes and culture have embedded over the subsequent eight months and
the programme management arrangements are now well-embedded.
Development of the governance, support team and approach — including
culture, skills and approach across the organisation — continue to be reviewed
and the refresh of capacity required within the Programme Management Office
is itself an early deliverable of the proposed Operating Model.

Member oversight will continue to be led through a cabinet portfolio holder on
behalf of the cabinet. The Performance Scrutiny, and Audit and Governance,
Committees are also expected to continue their role of monitoring and
challenging performance, delivery, reporting and control as they have done
during the development of the programme so far. It is proposed to incorporate
wider councillor-engagement through the ‘Construct and Implement’ phases to
ensure that member insight and ideas and fully considered. Some Locality

Page 47



73.

74.

75.

76.

CC9

Meetings have, for example, already expressed an interest in continuing the
engagement that started during the design phase.

Delivery principles

The Operating Model is designed to be the optimum balance of acceptable
service impact and risk against level of benefit. There are no areas where
service outcomes are knowingly compromised by the implementation of the
Operating Model in and of itself.

In order to maintain this position, detailed and specific decisions will be
required throughout the Construct and Implement phase at different levels,
depending on scale. The overall design and key milestones will be overseen
by the Fit for the Future Board, as set out in the Governance section above,
and reported to Cabinet and council committees as required. The Cabinet will
formally consider and sign off each release phase, agreeing investment and
timescales. It is through this process that the detail of where within the
potential benefits scale the programme will deliver and regular reporting and
scrutiny will ensure that the right balance of programme impact and benefit
delivery is achieved.

In order to guide these detailed decisions that go beyond what is already set
out in the Operating Model, it is proposed to adopt a set of guiding principles
which will direct the overall balance of decisions and ensure overall that the
Cabinet’s intention is delivered in the detail of service decisions.

The proposed principles are as follows:

e That outcomes for residents will always be the priority consideration
through Operating Model construction;

e That the Council’s priority outcomes are set out in the Thriving Future
Vision and that these should form the basis of all organisational
aspirations, supported through the application of the agreed Organisational
Values;

e That a prudent approach to estimating benefits will be taken and that
additional investment or savings will not be incorporated into the MTFP
until real cashable benefits are on track and signed-off as ‘in-delivery’ by
the Fit for the Future board;

e That members will take the decision on the allocation of benefits released
in addition to those already required within the MTFP through the normal
service and resource planning process;

e That the Council will always consider any identified risks to service
outcomes and impact on service users and will ensure that before the
agreement of each phase-release plan, sufficient impact assessment has
been undertaken;

Page 48



7.

78.

79.

80.

CC9

e That the Council will minimise compulsory redundancies wherever possible
and prioritise retraining and redeployment.

Financial Implications

This report recommends that Cabinet agrees to the adoption of the Operating
Model set as out in the Business Case at Annex 1 as the basis of Council
transformation going forward.

The savings arising from the Business Case range from £34m at the low end
to £58m at the high end. The Business Case itself assumes the mid-point of
the savings is achieved at £46m. A review has been undertaken of the PwC
model to verify its logic and accuracy.

The existing MTFP already includes savings to be delivered through individual
service redesign, income generation measures and contract efficiencies. In
total theses amount to £15.6m These savings cannot be achieved in addition
to those set out in the Business Case. Savings of £17.4m are also included in
the existing MTFP to be delivered through corporate transformation, including
£2.4m relating to ICT.

Therefore, in implementing the Operating Model, achieving the low end of the
Business Case (at £34m) will allow for existing savings in the MTFP to be
achieved. The chart below sets this out.

£58m
£58.0m
£2.4m savings hl.3uhsme;s Ca'se
from ICT igh end savings
£33m|- l
£15.0m savings
required from
corproate £34.0m
transformation [PEIEGESS RS
£15.6m 'other’ low end savings
transformation
savings
fOmL
Existing Estimated

Transformation Benefitsinthe
Committments Business Case
within MTFP

Page 49



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

CC9

The Business Case sets out total implementation costs of up to £18m, of
which £4m is expected to be incurred in 2018/19. Further detail on the costs
and phasing will be brought to Cabinet in October. Costs which are expected
to be incurred in 2019/20 and beyond will need to be considered as part of the
Service & Resource Planning process and agreed by Council as part of the
2019/20 budget and MTFP to 2022/23, in February 2019. A decision on how
the costs expected to be incurred in 2018/19 will be met will be included in the
report to Cabinet in October 2018.

The Business Case includes assumptions on the timing of savings. Savings
are delivered in phases in line with implementation plan releases. The
Business Case does not assume full in-year savings will be delivered in the
year of each release, allowing realistic time for implementation to deliver
savings and providing an element of budgetary tolerance for delay. Dependent
on the implementation method to be agreed by Cabinet in October, further
consideration will need to be given to the phasing and value of the savings
and these will need to be included as part of the Service & Resource Planning
process for decision by Council in February 2019.

The challenge for the Council will be whether it can achieve the savings in full
and in the time scale that is set out in the Business Case. Depending on the
option agreed as part of this report and the method of implementation to be
agreed in October, a view will be taken on the level of savings in the Business
Case that can be achieved and in what timescale they can be achieved in.

Through the Operating Model transformation, the Business Case assumes a
reduction in overall staffing levels of between 600-890 current posts (before
taking into account opportunities for reinvesting in services — which could
reduce the net reduction). The Business Case does not however include any
potential costs arising from redundancies. Full redundancy costs are not
possible to calculate at this stage as the identification of an indicative number
of posts to be reduced does not directly relate to specific roles. Further, the
Council has a strong record of minimising redundancy as the establishment
has been reduced through retraining and redeployment. In addition, as the
implementation will be phased over two to three years, the Council will be able
to take advantage of an annual staff turnover of some 650 staff per annum.

As redundancy costs need to be accounted for in the year the decision is
made, it is probable that some costs will be incurred in 2018/19. Consideration
of how this will be funded will be set out in the Cabinet report in October,
alongside the implementation costs.

Page 50



86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

CC9

Staffing Implications

This report in-itself contains no direct implications for individual staff. However,
if implemented, the subsequent delivery programme will clearly have
substantial impact for all staff in the way they work. The report shows how
cashable benefits may create policy and investment choices for councillors in
addition to meeting existing savings commitments. What choices are made —
including to reinvest potential savings in services - and the ongoing-overall
financial environment, will determine the extent to which net-employment will
be affected. In the scenario where benefits are delivered to the fullest extent,
choices could include investing in creation of new roles, or to posts being
rebalanced across the organisation.

If the Operating Model is applied in full, given the change both in the way
resources are applied overall — with an assumed shift of resources towards
service delivery — and how each individual job role will be undertaken, it is
very likely that a significant number of roles will be changed to the extent that
redundancy situations are created. Some compulsory redundancies may be
required.

The Council’s policy on redundancy is, and will continue to be, to avoid
redundancies wherever possible. Throughout implementation, as in design,
staff and unions will be consulted and the change processes managed in
accordance with our agreed policies. The Council currently has processes to
actively look for opportunities to redeploy staff who are at risk of redundancy.
Should implementation go ahead these processes will be reviewed to ensure it
iIs able to support the potential increased numbers of staff needing to be
redeployed. £3m has been incorporated into the financial case to support the
management of the change process.

The attached Service and Community Impact Assessment sets out the
mitigating actions that will be taken to ensure that due regard is given through
implementation to the impact of change on all individuals including how
consideration will be given to potential differential impact on those with
protected characteristics.

It is worth stating that in all scenarios, delivering the substantial savings
already set out in the MTFP are likely to have a significant staffing impact.
Delivering the full savings within the overall-management of the TOM delivery
programme will give the maximum opportunity for retraining and redeployment
where required.

Page 51



91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

CC9

Equalities Implications

The Operating Model as set out describes at a high level the design of a new
approach for overall council operations. In itself, this decision will not have a
direct impact on residents or staff. However, the detailed implications and
outputs of the Construct and Implement phase will impact on these groups.

Detailed impact assessment will need to be undertaken throughout the
Construct and Implement phases as each new service area is considered.
High level potential impact, initial mitigating activity undertaken through design
and plans for further assessment throughout implementation are set out in the
attached Service and Community Impact Assessment (see Annex 2).

Member Engagement ahead of decision making

Ahead of the Cabinet meeting planned to consider this report on 18
September 2018, there will have been a number of opportunities for all
Councillors to formally and informally review the Operating Model and to
engage with senior officers — in addition to opportunities throughout the
development of the approach, as set out in the Developing the Operating
Model section above. These are as follows:

4 Sept | All Member Briefing

6 Sept Performance Scrutiny Committee

6 Sept | Audit & Governance Committee

11 Sept | Full Council — thematic discussion on the Operating Model

It is anticipated that views from these forums will be brought to Cabinet.
This report and the associated documents will have been available to all

members from late August with the publication of Performance Scrutiny and
Audit & Governance committee papers.

Page 52



96.

CC9

RECOMMENDATION
The CABINET is RECOMMENDED to:

e Endorse the proposed Operating Model set out in the Business Case in
Annex 1 as the basis of whole council transformation planning;

e Agree to Option 1 (see para. 67), to enable delivery of the estimated range
of savings (£34m-£58m) to the fullest extent appropriate;

e Agree the delivery principles set out in paragraph 76 as the basis for future
detailed decision making;

e Direct the Chief Executive to bring a costed proposal for implementation to
Cabinet in October 2018.

PETER CLARK
Chief Executive

Annex 1: Business Case
Annex 2: Service and Community Impact Assessment

Contact Officer: Robin Rogers, Strategy Manager
August 2018

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



2259 OXFORDSHIRE
5% COUNTY COUNCIL

Business case
Oxfordshire County Council

Target operating model

August 2018

FINAL




9G abed

Contents

1. Executive summary 3-29

2. Context & approach 30-41

3. Target operating model 42 -197
4. Enablers 198 - 256
5. Revised financial case 257 - 269
6. Service impact & gap analysis 270-304
7. Construct & Implement 305-323
8. Risks 324 -329
9. Next steps 330-332

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




1. Executive summary




gG abed

ol

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Foreword from the Chief Executive...

Foreword
During the summer of 2017, we conducted an in depth assessment of our strategy and the way that we work as an organisation. The assessment
found that while there was nothing about the Council that was fundamentally broken, there was considerable room for improvement.

To some extent, this confirmed what | suspect many of us already thought. While we had been successful in taking steps to deal with reductionsin
public spending at a national level, and had delivered tangible improvements in some key service areas, there was a sense in which we knew that
more fundamental change was required.

The results of the assessment provided direct evidence of this. It showed that we were spending a much higher level of effort on managing
customers, data entry and recording and carrying out support activities than we were on delivering services. In addition, the assessment
highlighted issues concerning our processes, use of technology and information. While none of these issues had the potential to undermine the
organisation in the short term, we recognised that if we didn’t listen to this evidence, and respond in the right way, we would be storing up
problems for the Council in the future.

Consequently, we have spent the past six months carrying out a detailed redesign of our operating model. This has comprised working through all
the major functions of the County Council systematically, establishing how we would like each one to work in the future, the processes that will
need to be adopted, what this will require in terms of technology and what it will all mean for our people.

This has been one of the most ambitious pieces of work we have ever undertaken. It has touched almost every aspect of the way the Council
operates and really has challenged us to think much more creatively about the kind of organisation we want to be. | am very pleased that so many
Councillors and members of staff were able to contribute to the work — through the numerous design sessions, service impact testing workshops
and briefings that have been delivered since January.

This document is the culmination of the work that has been carried out. It sets out an exciting vision of the future, and a roadmap for transforming
the whole Council over the next two years. | firmly believe that this is the right course to take, and that by taking action now we can ensure we
achieve the high standards we set for ourselves for many years to come. The new operating model will be key to achieving our strategic vision:
Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire.

As | have said previously, implementing the changes described in this document will not be straightforward. We will need to be more disciplined
and more focussed than at times in the past, ensuring capacity to transform while continuing usual business. However, we must take confidence
from what has been achieved over the past six months. We have proven we have the ideas and the will to imagine a more sustainable future. We
now need to make sure we deliver on this potential and create the organisation that our residents, communities, Members and staff deserve.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

Local government continues to face significant uncertainty especially in
terms of decreased funding and increasing demand for its services...

Context

Local government continues to face an unprecedented set of challenges. Further reductions in central government funding are creating a 20-
30% funding gap, and there is increasing demand for existing and new services. Increasing budgetary pressures and service demand mean that
councils have to do more with less.

PwC’s Local State We're In 2018 review, an annual survey that consults local authority CEOs and Leaders, identified the following key themes
which have begun to emerge;

Fear of failure is rising: Almost a third of councils now feel that the ‘cliff edge’ is imminent and are not confident of their ability to
deliver next year.

Confidence in the financial sustainability of the sector is reducing: When it comes to considering the sector as a whole, almost
three quarters (74%) of respondents think that some local authorities will get into serious financial crisis in the next year.

Councils are at the heart of public service reform: As councils shift their thinking towards driving public service reform across
their place, six out of ten respondents agree that councils should be more responsible for facilitating outcomes rather than
delivering services.

Good growth continues to climb the agenda: Place based growth has also risen up the agenda with councils’ priorities for growth
largely reflecting those of the public with skills, housing and transport topping the agenda. However, significant challenges remain
in each of these areas, such as lack of investment in infrastructure, the impact of Brexit, lack of affordable or suitable housing and
lack of influence over skills.

Significant capacity and capability gaps remain: Councils need to build organisational resilience and in particular develop new
skills and commercial acumen in order to be effective. Areas in particular need of development are supply chain management,
contract management, talent management, cyber security and data analytics. Rising market pressures in key sectors such as social
care require the right capability, capacity and agility to respond to provider challenges and unpredictable circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



09 abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is in a better position than many Councils
but still has to make changes in order to solve the challenges they face...

Background

While the Council’s current financial pressures do not constitute an immediate need for change as experienced by other local authorities, there is a
recognition amongst the County Leadership Team (CLT) that OCC faces a number of challenges which the Council must be forward thinking in
addressing in order to achieve its strategic ambition of creating, and maintaining, “Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”.

The challenges facing OCC

Requirement to be fit for the future

The local government landscape is changing

Closer collaboration with the wider public
sector

Improving efficiency of current services

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

OCC recognises the need to be fit for the future. It understands it needs to
improve its overall efficiency and effectiveness, while recognising, and
building on, those areas of good performance (e.g. Children’s Services
Ofsted report).

Local councils are experiencing a period of unprecedented pressure.
Demand for services is rising and customer expectations are changing. For
OCC this is manifesting itself in increasing demand for social care as well as
additional pressures across other core service areas.

At the same time, OCC is working closely with local district councils,
specifically Cherwell District Council, and other public sector partners such
as the NHS to identify opportunities for closer collaboration across the
whole system.

The Council understands that having the right people with the right skills
to perform the right activity at the right time will be crucial to achieving its
vision to be fit for the future.




T9 abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Specifically OCC faces cumulative budgetary pressures of £57.8m to 2021/22
driven by demographic changes, legislative changes and existing savings
initiatives that are not expected to be delivered...

Scale of the financial challenge

In the most recent Service & Resource Planning 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total
2018/19 to 2021/22 report Council officers identified £m £m £m £m £m

that over the next four years the Council faces

lative budeet £ £57.8m. dri Pressures,
cumulative budgetary pressures of £>7.om, driven Improvements &  £46.223m £7.318m £4.547m (£0.330m) £57.758m
by: Investments

* Demographic pressures, including increasing Directorate

numbers of Children requiring placements and an Savings (£16.790m) (£7.730m) (£0.734m) (£0.325m) (£25.579m)
increase in the number of children with disabilities
* Legislative pressures, including those continuing CRlpeE (£29.433m) £10.412m £0.387m (£4.021m) (£22.655m)
. . . Measures
to arise as a result of the implementation of the
National Living Wage ;
;;i?;;zrmat'm £0.000m (£10.000m)  (£4.200m) (£3.200m)  (£17.400m)

* Existing savings initiatives that are not expected to

be achieved, including those related to services Net Pressure /
provided or commissioned for older people and (Saving) £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m (£7.876m) (£7.876m)
people with learning disabilities

In response to these pressures, the Council has OCC - Overall Financial Position 2018/22 (as at August 2018)

identified a number savings initiatives (a combination
of corporate measures, MTFP savings and
Transformation Savings) the successful delivery of
which will be critical to ensuring it is able to meet the
challenges it faces and succeed in delivering against
its strategic ambition.

Central to ensuring that OCC is able to respond to the financial challenges it faces, and for
other pressures that are likely to develop in the future, is the need for the Council to
develop an operating model that is efficient and effective, and facilitates a transformation
in the way in which it delivers, or commissions, services for residents.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



#9%) COUNTY COUNCIL
The Council also has a clear strategic ambition and vision for what type of

12852 O X F O R DS H I R E. o

local authority it wants to be and what it wants to achieve for residents...

29 abed

Strategic vision

a
v

o
v

i3]

Thriving communities

We help people live safe, healthy lives
and play an active part in their
community.

We provide services that enhance the
quality of life in our communities, and
protect the local environment.

“Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”

To achieve our vision, we will listen to residents so we can continuously improve our services and provide value for money.

Our priorities
(X )

w

Thriving people

We strive to give every child a good start in
life, and protect everyone from abuse and

neglect.

We enable older and disabled people to live
independently and care for those in greatest

need.

=

(=
Thriving economy

We support a thriving local economy
by improving transport links to create
jobs and homes for the future.

With this strategic ambition in mind, the Council has already begun to think about how its business model will need to change:

“More transactions will be digital. We will dispose of

“We will increasingly involve people
who use services and their families to
design, buy and evaluate the quality

“We will continue to move
away from the traditional
top-down service design
and delivery model”

properties we do not need or generate an income
from them. We will also work with partners and
central government to join up local services”

of those services”

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




g abed

o

\‘“ ﬂ

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

2 OXFORDSHIRE puss—

To meet its challenges and deliver its ambitious vision, the case for change
completed in January 2018 identified that the Council could achieve the
following benefits through operating differently...

Benefits

The case for change identified that, through addressing these
opportunities, OCC could achieve between £33m - £58m of saving
made up of the following:

It was estimated that OCC
could achieve a minimum
£21m of benefit, but that
Savings there was the potential to

achieve more than this (up to
Quick wins £33m)

Operating model
FTE transformation

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £8m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to go achieve more
than this (up to £17m)

Strategic sourcing
& process
improvements

3 party
Spend

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £4m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to achieve more
than this (up to £8m)

Income Commercialisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Alongside the financial benefits shown opposite the case for change
also identified that by addressing these opportunities OCC could
achieve the following outcomes:

“Are enabled to resolve their own issues. Their
experience of the Council will be on a level with
what they experience in other parts of their lives
and will live up to their expectations.”

Customers

Services “The Council’s critical services will better able to
cope with future pressures and less likely to fail.”

Staff “Staff will feel empowered to help the Council
deliver its ambitions.”

Communities  “The transformation of the Council’s operating
model will exploit the local advantages
Oxfordshire possesses.”

This would give the Council some choices:

“Reinvest in alternative delivery
models to achieve long term
sustainability”

+ £

“Release cash to deal with
existing financial pressures”

sk ---:_‘_'E_.__> :1':5:1}1;;‘”"_‘_‘“: i



,:.,,(4 OXFORDSHIRE
#0% COUNTY COUNCIL

Following on from the case for change the Council began the design of a
Target Operating Model (TOM)...

Approach to designing the TOM

An operating model is a representation of how the Council uses its customer offerings, business capabilities and corporate structure to deliver
the best possible outcomes for its residents in keeping with its vision. A Target Operating Model, purposefully developed and designed, will
provide the council with a blueprint against which to build an organisation that is capable of providing all of the products and services that its
customers require in a more efficient and effective way.

The design of the Council’s target operating model started in February 2018 and concluded in July 2018. The work took place across two phases:

U : . . :
8 High level design phase Detailed design phase
g The high level design phase focused on... The detailed design phase focused on...
+ Defining the key inputs to the Council’s target operating model * Reviewing the emerging design blueprints against the outputs
including customer personas, strategic parameters and the from the engagement with staff and service areas.
needs and characteristics of each of the nine localities within
Oxfordshire. * Designing, to an increased level of detail, the operating model
components needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-
* Designing, at a high level, the operating model components scope business capabilities (focusing on how they will operate in
needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-scope the future).

business capabilities.
* Describing, in further detail, the outcomes, experience and

* Describing the benefits, outcomes and experience of the in- benefits of the new design for the in-scope business capabilities.

scope business capabilities.
* Testing with staff and services to further test and refine the

* Testing the emerging design with a range of council staff detailed design blueprint.
involved in the current delivery of the in-scope business
capabilities as well as with service areas to understand the * Planning out the approach the Council will need to take in order
implications of the emerging design. to implement the detailed design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



G9 abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of the Council’s TOM was informed by the following key inputs...

Key inputs

It is critical that the Council’s TOM is informed by an understanding of its customers, its strategic vision and the needs and characteristics of the

physical place it serves.

As part of the design of the TOM, consideration has been given to each of these key inputs:

6~

Strategy

The Council has a clear strategic ambition
and vision for the type of local authority
that it wants to be, as set out in the
2018-2021 Corporate Plan.

From this a set of strategic parameters
have been developed that have been
used throughout the design process to
test and challenge each and every
emerging design concept in order to
ensure that it aligns with the Council’s
ambition and vision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Place

Consideration has also been given to the
needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire
as a place and the various localities
within Oxfordshire.

The Council is clear in its ambition to
become more of a place based authority,
which is responsive to the needs and
characteristics of local communities. This
has led to a number of key decisions /
choices that have been focused on as
part of the design of the TOM.

[ N )
() 4
Customer

‘Customer’ is used as an overarching term
to refer to any person or group of people
that is part of the Council or interacts with
itin some way.

It is recognised that there is a diverse
range of customers with many different
needs and circumstances. In order to
inform the design process, broad customer
groups were identified and used to test,
challenge and amend the design of each
layer of the operating model and ensure
that it remains customer focused.

Throughout the construct and
implementation phase, significant further
customer analysis and engagement across
the full range of county council customers
and service users will be required.



99 abed

As well as the following overarching design principles...

Overarching TOM design principles

Customer offering

Processes

Technology

2

Information

e

Organisational
structure

(YY)
L/ N\

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Residents are experts in their own lives - they are the best to identify outcomes, inform service design and help
themselves within their community.

We will hold a ‘single record’ for each of our customers making it easier for us to understand our communities,
manage demand and offer support/ intervention based on need.

Councillors and staff help people and communities to support themselves

We will design processes around the user and their experience, enabling self-service at every opportunity.
We will be transparent about the ways in which we manage risk.
There is a clear and open approach to how we manage and scrutinise what we do, including through councillors

Systems, applications and infrastructure will be designed around business need, with a consistent approach to
functional requirements.
We will ensure that technology is always an enabler, not a hindrance.

Our decisions will be informed by sound business intelligence and data analytics
We understand community needs and priorities, and gather intelligence from councillors

We will provide transparency, clarity and consistency on roles and expectations for councillors and staff across the
organisation

Accountability will sit at the most appropriate structural and community level

We will consolidate strategic and common functions with a clear purpose, maintaining flexibility in local delivery

We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.
Councillors act as community leaders.

We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.
There is effective scrutiny and challenge from councillors.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/9 abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

At the start of the process the Council confirmed that the Target Operating
Model would be comprised of different layers...

OCC TOM Layers

The Council has used cross-cutting ‘layers’ to design a Target Operating Model which maximises opportunities across the whole organisation,
builds greater consistency and avoids fragmented silo thinking based around traditional service-based directorates. These layers are defined by
their functional purpose for the organisation, cutting horizontally across services, as follows:

Back Office

Pre-Front Door

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

Customer Management

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Customer Assessment

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

Enabling and support
services

The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal
customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
and responsibilities.

Strategic capability

The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its
vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the
realisation of each of these.

Business intelligence

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

In addition, Service Delivery relates to the actual provision of frontline services to customers. This has not been designed as an individual layer of
the TOM, but the rest of the layers will involve change across all operational service areas to better enable and improve service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Front Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Front Office

Digital by design Enhanced Customer Enabling service areas
PY function and communities
N 3
«Q
9]
(@)]
o Development and promotion of channel An enhanced Customer function with the Links with the Pre-Front Door will help
shift opportunities across all service right mix of resources and service specialisms people to find solutions and create
areas, with a particular focus on digital to effectively signpost, filter, resolve queries opportunities in their local communities.
and self-service. This will be enabled by a at first contact or route to operational service Operational service areas will be able to
simple digital customer portal, areas. This supports a consistent Front Door focus on more complex customers and
integrated systems and an assisted across the whole council to assist residents, service delivery, supported by streamlined
digital offer. Members and staff. processes and improved technology.

How will the functional model for the Front Office work...

The future ‘front office’ will have streamlined channels of contact and consistent ways of working so that residents, Members, partners and
businesses can interact with the council easily and effectively. Customer management and assessment activities will be consolidated wherever
possible, with close collaboration between the Customer function and operational service areas to ensure the needs of customers are being
met appropriately. Technology, systems and processes will be integrated between the front office and operational services, so that services
can be delivered in the right way, staff can focus their efforts where they are most needed, and there is a seamless customer experience. By

facilitating community action through the Pre-Front Door, the council will also promote more sustainable approaches to supporting and
enabling Oxfordshire residents over the longer term.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



69 abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Front Office work...

= Functional model for the Front Office

The model below sets out how the key functions for the Customer Management and Assessment layers, linking into the Pre-Front Door, work

together to form the Front Office for the council.

o8
{i‘r Partners Communities VCs Carers Individuals Businesses ﬁ
\/ - el

L4 ' v
- Signposting and intelligent outbound information
()]
£ Requests for service and information
8
g
§ Low
: A
g _E Specialist resource
% | for initial
3 z screening or direct

-E : - contact with
» = = Assisted digital service areas
£ 3 Autnmat_ed decision where appropriate
£ ° making and Rules-based screening
a E provision of services o doted and data collection for
g =3 assessments
2 |3 plex assessments
@

S 1
£ '{\?‘/ Quality assurance, Officer follow-up, Referred complex :;gﬂl;z:‘:ﬂ;ﬁ
2 support and validation decision making and service assessments e
> High approvals and approvals PP

Low Level of complexity of customer need High

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Pre-Front Door will involve
the council working with a range
of external stakeholders to grow
resilience and opportunities in
communities. By strengthening
support within communities and
enhancing the role of
prevention, this will improve
resident outcomes overall and
reduce the call on council
services, which can then focus
on the most complex needs.

Where customers do need to
contact the council. the
functional model highlights how
the approach to customer
interactions and the level of
manual intervention will vary
according to the level of
complexity of customer need.
Simple interactions will require
less manual intervention
through the use of automation
and technology, with access to
the appropriate specialisms for
more complexinteractions.



¢85 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Back Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Back Office

Consistent across Enabling Powered by technology
the whole Council

a ‘e
1111 a8

o O
&
) The Back Office will provide internal The Back Office will deliver a The Back Office will be powered by
~ and external customers with a set of responsive and high quality service to technology. This will provide customers
o consistent business capabilities that are customers. The menu of products and with easy access to the tools,
delivered on a ‘whole council basis’. services delivered by the Back Office information and insight they need in
Existing silos will be broken down and capabilities will be developed in order to deliver against the Council’s
Back Office capabilities will be partnership with customers and will be strategic objectives.
consolidated and standardised where regularly reviewed to drive a cycle of
appropriate. continuous improvement.

How will the functional model for the Back Office work...

The future Back Office will have standardised and consistent processes that are delivered on a whole Council basis so that the siloed,
fragmented and duplicative ways of working identified in the case for change are eliminated. Back Office capabilities will be consolidated
wherever appropriate, with close collaboration between Back Office capabilities and service areas in order to ensure that the needs and
wants of service areas are being managed and met. Technology, systems and processes will be streamlined and consideration will be given
to the most appropriate channel through which to deliver Back Office capabilities (Self-service; dedicated business partners supporting
activities for service areas; specialist corporate hub leading activities which can take place on a whole council basis).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



T/ obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Back Office work...

= Functional model for the Back Office

The model below sets out how the key functional elements of the Provision Cycle, Enabling & Support Services, the strategic capability and
business intelligence combine together to form the Back Office for the council.

E Directorates / Service areas I * The functional model for the
I o Back Office will be based on
- . the principle of self service and
Low Level of complexity High

self sufficiency wherever

appropriate. This will be driven
through investment in
technology and the use of
intelligent outbound
information.

A Intelligent outbound information

Requests for information, support and advice
Where customers do need

h 1

1

| !

I 1

1 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

| |

1 1

: i

Information, advice, guidance |:> Specialist Back i specialist support for a Back !
o . I . .

Office functions 1 Office process, a business |

1 1

| |

1 1

I 1

! |

H 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

I 1

I 1

! |

1 1

1

! !

! |

- R

located preferred delivery channel

Requests and transactions E> centrally or calling on corporate resources
within service .
where needed (e.g. Business
Business partnering areas

Administration support).
Automated Specialist input and
. . Rules based pec .I inpu
information . advice to Back ..
. transactions . X Specialist
and services Office transactions.

Level of manual intervention

Where requirements are more
complex, specialist Back Office
teams will be used (either
located as a corporate hub or,
where appropriate, with
service areas).

delivery of Back
Office

<

Quality transactions.
assurance and

High validation PP

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2/ obed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following key enablers will be required to deliver the Target Operating
Model and to maximise the benefits that the Council can achieve...

Key enablers required for the TOM
Enablers describe the supporting changes needed to create the right conditions for the target operating model to be implemented and

sustained, maximising the benefits that the Council could achieve through it. They can be grouped into a number of categories.

The following enablers have been described as part of the layer by layer run through of the TOM (slides 42 — 197) with further information
available as part of the appendices to this business case.

Customer Performance

Organisation

Offering Management

The following enablers are described at an organisational level in a dedicated section of the business case. Where relevant, specific enabler
requirements per layer are also highlighted in the TOM design, as well as the appendices.

People

Processes rens
Capabilities

Technology Information

Integrated
Governance Culture Business

Role of the
manager

Centre (IBC)

Each enabler has been described using the following structure:

Where are we today? How will this change in the TOM? What will this look like in practice?
What is the current state assessment of the How will the enabler be different in the What will this change actually look like in
council in regard to this enabler (from the future TOM? the future TOM?

Case for Change)?

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



¢) abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The analysis undertaken as part of the design of the TOM has validated the
benefits identified in the case for change...

Benefit categories

It is estimated OCC could achieve c.£34m - £58m of on-going benefits over the next five years through 3 key areas.

The design of the TOM
Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that the Council validates the benefits
could deliver between c.£22m - £33m of benefits. The level of outlined in the initial
1 FTE Operating model capacity released will depend on the Council’s ambition and the case for change,
savings transformation choices made through construct and implement, but a range of estimating that OCC
€.603 — 885 FTE through a whole council redesign should be could achieve c. £22m
achievable. - £33m of potential
benefits.
The Operating Model
A wholesale review of procurement and contracts should yield Assessment estimated
significant benefits for the Council. Based on experience elsewhere that OCC could
31 Strategic sourcing and the work undertaken through the 3 party spend review and achieve c.£8m - £17m
party } . o . ) . .
2 spend & process Strategic Sourcing Plans (SSPs), it is estimated the Council could of potential benefits.
improvements achieve at least £8m of benefit on its third party spend (This is in The SSPs developed in
addition to the FTE savings identified as part of the Provision Cycle this phase start to
layer of the operating model). validate this through 3
specific examples*.
Based on experience elsewhere, there are a number of The Operating Model
opportunities for non-people related initiatives to drive additional Assessment estimated
3 Income Commercialisation income from the Council’s services. This could include service cost that OCC could
recovery, trading or commercialisation opportunities, or a further achieve c.£4m - £8m
review of fees and charges. of potential benefits.

* SSPs have been produced for Adult’s residential & nursing homes, Children’s residential care and Children’s fostering. These support a number of existing initiatives within directorates related to these areas identified within the Medium Term Financial Plan and
further work is being undertaken to progress these.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




v/ abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

Pulling the revised benefits and costs together provides the Council with the
following cost - benefit profile over the next five years...

Cost - benefit profile

Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that Council will
deliver between £34m and £58m of on-going benefits over the
next five years.

This cost-benefit profile aligns with the proposed
implementation plan outlined in section 7 of this business case.
This assumes that FTE benefits through operating model
transformation will begin to be realised on the 1%t of the month
following each ‘release’ (please refer to section 7 for an
explanation of what a release is and how this links to OCC’s
services and operating model layers).

As outlined previously, the estimated required investment is
made up of one-off costs associated with external
implementation support, people costs and technology. The
Council may be able to capitalise a proportion of these.

These investments will enable the Council to construct and
implement its TOM, as well as to implement the new ways of
working and technologies that are required to deliver the savings
identified in this revised case for change.

The graph to the right shows the benefit off the baseline over a
five year period, using the mid-point benefit scenario (c.£46m).

Cost assumptions
* A summary of the assumptions that underpin this cost-benefit profile

can be found at slides 269 — 270 of Section 5: Revised Financial Case.
*  For the avoidance of doubt redundancy costs have been excluded from
the cost estimate calculation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

w w b b U
o U1 O 1 O

N
o

Benefit (£ millions)
= N
(9] (9]

=
o

18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Financial year
m Annual benefit e Cumulative annual benefit

o wun

Annual recurring benefit

. . £0m £14m £18m £10m £4m
delivered in year

Cumulative annual recurring

. £0m £14m £32m £42m £46m
benefit

The following one off costs will be incurred over the period to
implement the TOM.

In-year one off costs** -£4m -£9m -£2m -£2m -£1m

*For simplicity, all numbers in this table are rounded to the nearest whole number. The totals have
been calculated before rounding for accuracy.
** The costs shown in this table exclude recurring maintenance costs for technology.



G, abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

The revised financial case will support the Council with responding to its
budgetary pressures...

= Linking the revised financial case to the Council’s current financial plan

The Council has identified that over the next four years it faces cumulative pressures, improvements and investments of £57.8m.

The revised financial case, set out in Section 5 of this document, builds on the existing transformation activities the Council has underway,
whilst recognising that there is some overlap with existing Directorate Savings, to provides a clear roadmap for how the Council can achieve the
minimum level of benefit required (£34m) to meet its existing budgetary pressures (as set out on slide 7).

£40.0 Thgminimumben.efitcasescenfarioset ettt
out in the TOM business case delivers the i High business case benefit scenario - £58m i
£30.0 minimum level of benefit required for ! :
the Council to meet existing budgetary ! !
£20.0 pressures. i i
I | L 1
£10.0 ! — - — - - i
M Minimum business case benefit scenario - £34m !
£0.0 i i
| £25.6m !
2 -£10.0 ' !
2 ! £15.6m !
2 00 i Overlap with existing Directorate Savings i
L F]
£30.0 £22.7m t_
-£40.0
The estimated benefit range to be
-£50.0 delivered through the TOM includes
£15.6m of overlap with existing
£60.0 - £57.8m Directorate Savings
-£70.0
Pressures, Improvements and Corporate measures Directorate Savings (existing Operating Model Benéefits (including re-profiled
investments MTFP savings) transformation savings)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9, abed

( 7(

O X FO R D 'S H I R E s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The TOM has been reviewed by each service area in order to understand the
impact on the service and the gap between current and future ways of

working...

Service impact & gap analysis approach

There has been a range of opportunities to consider service impact throughout the design process. In addition, each service area (based on CLT
members and their direct reports) has had two dedicated opportunities (one at the end of the high level design phase and one at the end of
the detailed design phase) to review the emerging TOM design and comment on the potential impact of the proposed design on the service.

In addition at the end of the detailed design phase the service areas were also asked to capture the gap (H/M/L) between the proposed way of
working set out in the TOM and the current way of working within the service area. These gaps have been used to inform the composition and

sequencing of each of the proposed releases set out on slide 26.

Service impact testing round 1 (High level design)

At the end of the high level design phase service areas were asked
to review the high level design and RAG rate a series of statements
summarising the key changes arising from the TOM based on their
impact on the service. Services also discussed a number of changes
and opportunities for the Front Office in their areas.

Proposed change Proposed change Proposed change
would result in would work for would work for the
service area not service area but service area...
being able to fulfil consideration would

statutory obligations need to be given to...

due to...

Service Impact Testing RAG Key....

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Service impact testing round 2 (detailed design)

At the end of the detailed design phase service areas were asked to
repeat the RAG rating exercise (based on the additional
information provided) and to consider the gap between the

proposed future way of working and the current way of working
within that service area.

I R R

Significant gap Medium gap Low gap between
between current between current current state and
state and future state and future future state.
state. state.
Gap Analysis Key....



B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council
Proactive signposting
Digital customer portal

Digital self-service
Customer management

/] abed

Multi-skilled customer management function

Multi-purpose face-to-face sites

Strategic customer approach

Improved screening & triage

Simplifying non-complex assessments
Customer assessment Channel shift to reduce manual interventions

Streamlining complex assessments

Enhanced partnership working & shared records

=<

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

More Active Engagement

§ Category Management M
D

a Provision cycle Strategic Contract Management M

Operational Contract Management H

Transparent Governance M

Self Service H

Business Partnering M

Enabling & support services Centrally managed BAS H

Virtual BAS Teams H

Functional BAS Teams M

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

Strategy & Policy Definition —
g Project Management Framework — H
«Q
D
~ Clear project approval process H
© Strategic capability
Single view of corporate performance — M
Streamlined performance reporting — M
Outcome based KPIS at a corporate level — M
Automated standardised reporting — M
Business intelligence Quality assurance checks — H
Data will be easy to update and share — H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



08 abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The outputs from this have been used to develop a plan for how the Council

should construct and implement its TOM...

Target implementation plan*

The implementation plan

. SE : Dt i M Dec Ja Feb
shown opposite sets out at e B e Rt s

Mor : Apr | May | June | luly | Aug | Sept | Oct | Mov | Dec 2020

a high level the activities
required to construct and
implement the Council’s

Releases involved a series
of stepped changes to
process, people and
technology required by
each layer of the Council’s
TOM as well as service
areas in order to achieve
the target benefits. Full
detail of activities is
included in Section 7.

The County Leadership
Team will further develop
this high-level release plan
in order to confirm a
realistic phased approach
to implementation given
operational and regulatory
factors.

TOM over the next 2 years.

Fmr,lrumm! -
morogement ond

implementation : Develon rdlease
planning plnn_’m I

Ltrategic odvice,
oversight and core _ Ongaing stroteghc adivee ard suppart
team z I ]

Cngoing PRT SUpRot

{Pre mnblll::.'.ha-.

Helea-se 1 Release ] Release 3 Release 4 =——p

o ' | |
fine Org. I I i
xr1n1nm ] ] H]

[ogmi ) 1

Service construct

; I
1
i | 1 i
HR ond OD sugpart ] [ ] 1
Embred new ways of I !_-_-_-'- ______ i
wanking ] i il i i 1
......... : Golive2 [
L
_ - ‘ _ [ | !
----- —----------I-----_---l ] i
: i ; Golive3 |
| |
: i1 K L
: E. e e e
Additional ml:.'mm_rml
requirements engugEmant i
|
Key N.B. The precise make up and ordering of eoch release will be determined during the implementation

pianning and pre-mobilization work.

Inderim support Release 1 Release 2 Release 3 Aeloase & G ue
& mukilsation acinities aciriiies ackrtes acttics

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



T8 obed

Implementation roadmap
The table below shows an indicative ordering of the horizontal layer components of the TOM and vertical service areas covered in each release.
These have been prioritised based on the benefits that can be released, the risk associated with implementation, along with speed and complexity
to implement. It should be noted that there will be a time lag from when technology goes live to when benefits can be realised.

HSos OXFORDSHIRE s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This includes the following implementation roadmap showing the proposed
composition of each release...

TOM layer (involves all service areas)

* Customer Management

* Customer Assessment
1 * Provision Cycle

* Business Intelligence

* Strategic Capability

2 * Pre-front door
3 * N/A
4 * N/A

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* Enabling & Support Services

Residual service area redesign (All service areas will be impacted by the implementation of
the horizontal TOM layers)

Remainder of:
* Policy
* Customer Experience

Remainder of:

* Infrastructure Operations
* Planning and Place

* Public Health

* Law & Governance

Remainder of:

* Adult’s Services

* Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue

* Investment and Capital Delivery

Remainder of:
e Children’s Services

* HR
* Finance
e T

This high-level view will be updated and a more detailed release plan created in preparation for Construct and Implement. The implementation of
horizontal layers will involve change and create opportunities for all service areas, but the implementation plan will also need to reflect how
functions within service areas might be ordered across different releases. The plan will need to ensure there is sufficient review and approval time
for key milestones and is likely to need further refinement when technology decisions are made.

£4.0m

£f4.1m

£11.3m

£8.5m



28 abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

IR

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This business case provides the Council with a comprehensive design for a
more efficient and effective organisation. The Council now has a decision to

make about whether it wants to implement this design and how it wants to
do that...

Next steps

The Council has taken significant steps towards becoming a more efficient and effective organisation in the future. The operating model

assessment enabled the Council to look at itself in a holistic manner, to understand how its effort and resource were being deployed and to
develop an overarching case for change.

The subsequent design of the Council’s TOM has engaged staff from right across the organisation to set out an exciting vision of the future, and

a roadmap for transforming the whole Council over the next two years. The Council now has a decisions to make about whether it wants to
implement this design and how it wants to do that.

October January August October October
Y 2017 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2020
Key decision
point
Following the completion Implementation of the core
of the detailed design components of the new operating
x@ X < phase a decision will be model including char?ge an.d p.roject

& N2 & made as to the approach management, benefit realisation
@Q &Q @Q the Council will take to and technology implementation.
(,o (,o (,o implementation and how Duration: c. 18 months - 2 years

the Council wants to
deliver this.



cq abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The decision as to whether or not the Council chooses to implement the
TOM is of critical importance. Delay will impact on the benefit profile and
will reduce the options the Council has to enhance service provision and
ensure financial sustainability...

Conclusion
The Operating Model and the approach to implementation described in this Business Case has been designed to tackle the particular challenges
faced by Oxfordshire County Council. Successful implementation will enable the Council to address the issues identified in the analysis

conducted during the summer of 2017. It will ensure the Council is better equipped to cope with ongoing financial pressure as well as improve
outcomes and experience for residents and staff.

Implementing the TOM will enable the Council to adopt an approach that is consistent, streamlined, entrepreneurial, agile, innovative and
ambitious. It will provide an opportunity to address existing inefficiencies in the way the Council is organised and operated. It will enhance the
Council’s capacity and capability to address front line service challenges — enabling specialists to focus on delivering better outcomes for
residents, at the same time as improving efficiency and resilience within services and at a whole council level.

Fundamentally, the transformation described in this document will provide an opportunity to achieve these benefits at the same time as
reducing the cost of running the Council. While the Council has made prudent decisions in the past about its finances, ensuring it is in a better
position than many other local authorities, it will still need to make significant savings in the coming years. Implementing the TOM will enable
the Council to meet this challenge by reducing expenditure in certain areas by design.

The consequences of not implementing the Operating Model are difficult to quantify. To some extent, the Council has been attempting to
achieve the benefits described above, but without the coherence and structure an Operating Model implementation programme provides, for
many years. The Council’s own assessment of the effectiveness of this programme suggests that the benefits achieved have been somewhat
limited. If the Council decides not to pursue the more structured approach described in this document, or opts for a partial implementation
aimed at achieving the minimum level of benefit required to meet existing pressures, then it is highly likely that the required reductions in
spending will be apportioned out across existing services, with the result that any progress that is achieved will become piecemeal, levels of risk
will increase and there would be a greater likelihood of unforeseen consequences arising.

Implementing the TOM in full, following a structured and coherent programme and investing in the right level of support and enabling
technology, offers the Council the best chance of securing a strong and sustainable future, delivering on its strategic objectives and playing its
part in improving the lives of everyone living and working in Oxfordshire.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2. Context & approach




#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

Local government continues to face significant uncertainty especially in
terms of decreased funding and increasing demand for its services...

Context

Local government continues to face an unprecedented set of challenges. Further reductions in central government funding are creating a 20-
30% funding gap, and there is increasing demand for existing and new services. Increasing budgetary pressures and service demand mean that
councils have to do more with less.

PwC’s Local State We're In 2018 review, an annual survey that consults local authority CEOs and Leaders, identified the following key themes
which have begun to emerge;

Fear of failure is rising: Almost a third of councils now feel that the ‘cliff edge’ is imminent and are not confident of their ability to
deliver next year.

Confidence in the financial sustainability of the sector is reducing: When it comes to considering the sector as a whole, almost
three quarters (74%) of respondents think that some local authorities will get into serious financial crisis in the next year.

Councils are at the heart of public service reform: As councils shift their thinking towards driving public service reform across
their place, six out of ten respondents agree that councils should be more responsible for facilitating outcomes rather than
delivering services.

Good growth continues to climb the agenda: Place based growth has also risen up the agenda with councils’ priorities for growth
largely reflecting those of the public with skills, housing and transport topping the agenda. However, significant challenges remain
in each of these areas, such as lack of investment in infrastructure, the impact of Brexit, lack of affordable or suitable housing and
lack of influence over skills.

Significant capacity and capability gaps remain: Councils need to build organisational resilience and in particular develop new
skills and commercial acumen in order to be effective. Areas in particular need of development are supply chain management,
contract management, talent management, cyber security and data analytics. Rising market pressures in key sectors such as social
care require the right capability, capacity and agility to respond to provider challenges and unpredictable circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9g abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is in a better position than many Councils
but still has to make changes in order to solve the challenges they face...

Background

While the Council’s current financial pressures do not constitute an immediate ‘burning platform’, there is a recognition amongst the County
Leadership Team (CLT) that OCC faces a number of challenges which the Council must be forward thinking in addressing in order to achieve
their strategic ambition of creating, and maintaining, “Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire”.

The challenges facing OCC

Requirement to be fit for the future

The local government landscape is changing

Closer collaboration with the wider public
sector

Improving efficiency of current services

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

OCC recognises the need to be fit for the future. It understands it needs to
improve its overall efficiency and effectiveness, while recognising, and
building on, those areas of good performance (e.g. Children’s Services
Ofsted report).

Local councils are experiencing a period of unprecedented pressure.
Demand for services is rising and customer expectations are changing. For
OCC this is manifesting itself in increasing demand for social care as well as
additional pressures across other core service areas.

At the same time, OCC is working closely with local district councils,
specifically Cherwell District Council, and other public sector partners such
as the NHS to identify opportunities for closer collaboration across the
whole system.

The Council understands that having the right people with the right skills
to perform the right activity at the right time will be crucial to achieving its
vision to be fit for the future.




/g8 abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
&Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Specifically OCC faces cumulative budgetary pressures of £57.8m to 2021/22
driven by demographic changes, legislative changes and existing savings
initiatives that are not expected to be delivered...

Scale of the financial challenge

In the most recent Service & Resource Planning 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total
2018/19 to 2021/22 report Council officers identified £m £m £m £m £m

that over the next four years the Council faces

lative budeet £ £57.8m. dri Pressures,
cumulative budgetary pressures of £>7.om, driven Improvements &  £46.223m £7.318m £4.547m (£0.330m) £57.758m
by: Investments

* Demographic pressures, including increasing Directorate

numbers of Children requiring placements and an Savings (£16.790m) (£7.730m) (£0.734m) (£0.325m) (£25.579m)
increase in the number of children with disabilities
* Legislative pressures, including those continuing CRlpeE (£29.433m) £10.412m £0.387m (£4.021m) (£22.655m)
. . . Measures
to arise as a result of the implementation of the
National Living Wage ;
;;i?;;zrmat'm £0.000m (£10.000m)  (£4.200m) (£3.200m)  (£17.400m)

* Existing savings initiatives that are not expected to

be achieved, including those related to services Net Pressure /
provided or commissioned for older people and (Saving) £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m (£7.876m) (£7.876m)
people with learning disabilities

In response to these pressures, the Council has OCC - Overall Financial Position 2018/22 (as at August 2018)

identified a number savings initiatives (a combination
of corporate measures, MTFP savings and
Transformation Savings) the successful delivery of
which will be critical to ensuring it is able to meet the
challenges it faces and succeed in delivering against
its strategic ambition.

Central to ensuring that OCC is able to respond to the financial challenges it faces, and for
other pressures that are likely to develop in the future, is the need for the Council to
develop an operating model that is efficient and effective, and facilitates a transformation
in the way in which it delivers, or commissions, services for residents.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



g9g abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

In response to these challenges the Council
has embarked on a journey to transform its
operating model...

Overview

Over the last 12 months the Council has embarked on a journey aimed at transforming
its operating model in order to respond to the many challenges it faces.

Activity analysis
To begin with the Council undertook an activity analysis to help it understand how

staff effort was being deployed across the Council.

Operating Model Assessment

Building on the findings from the Activity Analysis the Council then
completed an assessment of its current operating model
culminating in a case for change.

High level design

Following acceptance of the case for change the Council developed a high level
design setting out what its target operating model could look like.

a Detailed design

Building on the high level design the Council then completed a subsequent
phase of design work setting out how the target operating would work in the
future.

TOM Business case

Finally the high level and detailed designs were pulled togetherinto a
summary business case.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The operating model
transformation journey...

July 2017
Activity analysis
starts.

October 2017

Operating Model
Assessment starts.

February 2018

High level design of
target operating
model starts.

May 2018

Detailed design of
target operating
model starts.

27t July 2018

September 2017

Activity analysis
report
completed.

January 2018

Case for Change
completed.

April 2018

CLT Away Day to review
outputs from high level

design.

July 2018

CLT Away day to
review detailed
design.

TOM Business case

completed




68 abed

Q0 0 6 O

The output from the activity analysis and the operating model assessment
was a case for change setting out how the Council could operate in the

future...

The case for change

The operating model assessment identified a number of challenges
with the way the Council is currently organised, including:

The Council does not consistently demonstrate
leading practice in the delivery of support services.

Decision making across the Council is not robustly
informed by data and insight.

The Council has not fully exploited the potential of
digital technology.

There is duplication and fragmentation of staff
effort across all areas of the Council.

The Council is not clear on how it will achieve its
strategic ambitions.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Based on the findings from the operating model assessment, the
case for change identified the following opportunities for how OCC
could operate differently in the future:

Business model themes

Place-based

Unlocking the
transformation power of
and leadership communities

Partnership &

integrated working

Operating model themes

Service provision Digital workforce -
and delivery mobile/ agile
models working

Commercialisation
& income

Customer
management
models

Procurement &
commissioning

Enabling &
Support Services

Role of the

Strategic core/ Bl
& reporting manager

Digital



06 abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

The case for change identified that, through operating differently, the Council

could achieve the following benefits ...

Benefits

The case for change identified that, through addressing these
opportunities, OCC could achieve between £33m - £58m of saving
made up of the following:

It was estimated that OCC
could achieve a minimum

FTE £21m of benefit, but that
Savings there was the potential to
achieve more than this (up to
Quick wins £33m)

Operating model
transformation

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £8m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to go achieve more
than this (up to £17m)

Strategic sourcing
& process
improvements

3 party
Spend

It was estimated OCC could
achieve at least £4m of
benefit, but there was the
potential to achieve more
than this (up to £8m)

Income Commercialisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Alongside the financial benefits shown opposite the case for change
also identified that by addressing these opportunities OCC could
achieve the following outcomes:

“Are enabled to resolve their own issues. Their
experience of the Council will be on a level with
what they experience in other parts of their lives
and will live up to their expectations.”

Customers

Services “The Council’s critical services will better able to
cope with future pressures and less likely to fail.”

Staff “Staff will feel empowered to help the Council
deliver its ambitions.”

Communities  “The transformation of the Council’s operating
model will exploit the local advantages
Oxfordshire possesses.”

This would give the Council some choices:

“Reinvest in alternative delivery
models to achieve long term
sustainability”

+ £

“Release cash to deal with
existing financial pressures”

RS ---:_‘_'E_.__> :



T6 obed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Alongside this the case for change recommended that developing a target
operating model (TOM) would put OCC in the best position to achieve these

benefits...

Developing a target operating model

The case for change provided a deep understanding of both the issues
facing OCC and the opportunities it has to change.

Its key recommendation was that through developing a target
operating model (TOM) OCC could pull together all of the identified
opportunities for change into a single, coherent, transformation
programme.

What is an operating model?

An operating model is a term that is widely used and has a variety of
interpretations.

For OCC an operating model is a representation of how the Council
uses it’s customer offerings, business capabilities and corporate
structure to deliver the best possible outcomes for its residents in
keeping with its council vision.

What is a target operating model (TOM)?

OCC currently has an operating model that the case for change
identified as having a significant number of weaknesses leading to in-
efficiency, in-effectiveness and higher operating costs.

A TOM, purposefully developed and designed, will provide OCC with a
design blueprint against which to build an organisation that is capable
of providing all of the products and services that its customers require
in a more efficient and effective way.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The case for change described at a high level what the Council’s TOM
could look like (shown below) and recommended that the Council
undertake a phase of design work to develop out the TOM in more
detail.

Demand Management (“Pre-Front Door”)

t unit . g ppo; xary s, al car, \ pare,
@MY g o Yay, o SUPPORE T S e ot e, #Toe? 7,
& %o < e, A ‘e, o oy W s of Cnp

= Vi LRV~ RV W W
° e e - (™) N 8
— & Oy @ | Qb' r - = JRE
= n:; &% = S ="

Integrated Customer Management, Application & Assessment (“Front Door”)

E r- Signposting and intelligent outbound information
Requests for service and information ./
it atfc

Self serve customerand col

Engquiry Handling
In Service Assessment In Service Assessment In Service Assessment

Service Delivery

e

Commissioning
Intelligent Client

Self Service

Enabling & support services

Procurement & Contract Management
HR & Payroll| [ Administration

Strategic Core

Strategy & Policy Innovation & Project Management QA & Performance Management

Business Intelligence

Dashboards Needs Analysis Customer Insight Predictive Analytics

OCC - Draft target operating model as included in the case
for change




2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of a new target operating model for the Council was completed in
two stages...

Approach to designing the TOM

The design of the Council’s target operating model started in February 2018 and concluded in July 2018.

The work took place across two phases (high level design and detailed design), the purpose of which is set out below.

High level design phase Detailed design phase

Y The high level design phase focused on... The detailed design phase focused on...
) * Defining the key inputs to the Council’s target operating model * Reviewing the emerging design blueprints against the outputs
%e) including customer personas, strategic parameters and the from the engagement with staff and service areas.
N needs and characteristics of each of the nine localities within
Oxfordshire. * Designing, to an increased level of detail, the operating model
components needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-
 Designing, at a high level, the operating model components scope business capabilities (focusing on how they will operate in
needed to enable the successful delivery of the in-scope the future).

business capabilities.
* Describing, in further detail, the outcomes, experience and

* Describing the benefits, outcomes and experience of the in- benefits of the new design for the in-scope business capabilities.

scope business capabilities.
* Testing with staff and services to further test and refine the

* Testing the emerging design with a range of council staff detailed design blueprint.
involved in the current delivery of the in-scope business
capabilities as well as with service areas to understand the * Planning out the approach the Council will need to take in order
implications of the emerging design. to implement the detailed design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

Design of each layer of the TOM was supported by a working group
comprised of experienced officers and supplemented by additional

engagement as required, including with members...

Officer engagement with design process

Held at least one design session
per week with each operating
model layer working group, led by
a member of the County
Leadership Team.

o 100

design sessions

e abed

Member engagement with design process

Fortnightly briefings with portfolio
holder for transformation.

Delivered seven cross Council
workshops involving over 150
different members of staff from
right across the Council.

150 ......

of staff from across the
Council.

Held three service impact
workshops (one per directorate)
for High Level Design plus further
sessions for service areas in
Detailed Design

100+

members of staff from
each directorate.

Monthly updates to extended
political group leaders.

Nine briefings for members in their
localities and an All Members
Briefing.

Broader engagement has also taken place through the Innovation Jumpstart approach, which is helping the Council to move to

the ways of working needed for the new TOM. Staff from across the Council were asked to provide ideas for how the Council

could do things differently, with several concepts then being tested and developed further.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



28 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Once the design of the TOM was completed the Council developed a revised
financial case setting out the benefits it could achieve...

Revised financial case

A revised financial case has been produced that sets out the following:

76 obed

1
Target benefits

An overview of the
potential target benefits
that could be delivered

based on the TOM design.

4

Technology costs

A summary of the
technology costs required

to enable the TOM design.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Benefit levers

A summary of the various
benefit levers that have
been applied as part of the
design of the TOM.

5
Cost / benefit profile

The overall cost / benefit
profile for the TOM driven
by the target benefits,
implementation costs and
technology costs.

3

Implementation
costs

A summary of the various
costs required in order to
implement the TOM
design,

6

Assumptions

A summary of the key
assumptions that underpin
the financial case.



G6 abed

The structure of this business case is shown below, which details the design
developed by OCC setting out how it should operate in the future...

= Structure of this business case

1. Target operating model

£ OXFORDSHIRE

think about what it’s TOM could look like...

As part of the case for change, completed in January 2018, OCC began to

b inwoduction

eeovdzarans
Opesingrondel
et s ez i e for At cegan o
Gcccmulby it 3 IO B 2 S8ryica s tsicenes.

o1 12 50 the lars oS TOM are sz ot

e

3~ Toe e gars of an prgavsationoe s

e copnbiities T coemrmat A penple, pentessa
cepanisenion, teceenlogyand informsen thatshe Counc nes g

carire, o A Tunction,

0T Dt et perting moded s ncltesd s e gose
far ange

L @oxrokbsmu
|COUNTY COUNCIL

Key enablers will be required to deliver the Target Operating Model and
maximise the benefits that the Council could achieve through it...

- Tom

sustained, of categories.

available as partof the appendices to this business case.

 laye
Customer i formar
Offering = Management
” i here relevant, specic enab

Tecnelon
e
- ol =
- Centre (1BC)

Each enabler has been described using the following structure:

Tom?

What s the current state assessment o the  How will the enabler be different inthe. ‘What wilhischange actuallylook ke in
councilinregard to this enabler from the o ? the future Tom?

Case for Change)?

3. Revised financial case

£l OXFORDSHIRE
= @coumr COUNCIL

The analysis has validated the benefitsidentified in the case for change...

4. Service impact & gap analysis

OXFORDSHIRE

f— R R RSt

impact on the service and the gap between current and future ways of
working...

The TOM has been reviewead by each service area in order to understand the

5 s 500 s on CLT s et i Soctraparts ™} i i oppestussiios{ ona o e o s eghlavel dolgeghasaand
eeatt the smergng! w g

pope——

5. Construct and implement

oot b ey 38 - F5Bem of patectis e tre g 3 by s

Tt g the oM the Con e ol el veretueen
220 3000 Q. T e o 20y RS

= AR ot A A i A PR .
- ARG ST, B araeig of LS - 803 FIE g || SeE oo
whete o e o be vl £18m of patntil
Aoty prosssand andaoes
et ettt e o .
ol | e
spent

e ssewhere, thers s number ot
BarTunius for nan-gooySrstated Inilzthesia o sddicnst
rovury, urcthur iradinges

o and hirges corvice.
rommercalisatin oppr

% OXFORDSHIRE
f— @ccunn COUNCIL
The Council will need to adopt the ing “ and i
gy inorder to y deliverthe TOM...
A— Implement
eirodtchanipan g lrmad by e ol
sesignsstout * sirace 2 o igsane
, atthesnd

WOrRiNg 561 aut 41 TG TR ang

Sl o Ak 17 AR €543 A it 25 1]

Sacvicn impact tasting round 1 (igh beved design] Sarvice impact testing round  {detaded design]

prepeeed
et Bt sdevice i

future way ot weorking secihe curmentover of ek

St gog Metum g
Betmean s cysncuttant i as s
Matwaitiiie smeshier  fliresiee
. e

Sorviue it Testhng RAG Aoy G Arslystc Koy

+ - pllmetation oftha TOM willraqiré a rast dastof changs, aver & rakitnuly lorg e

+ Chgemustie: e e st o g
thacetote o prester chance of mev ey ofworking Seg cpted.

et wiay 3 T ———
9 53 0 B0 HBIA TGRS 7 T I B 580 O gl EN g Hages

cussasand teckeiagy

y 105 1
Plafor= il b et i s apmsnt mshuco gk aweas Al

+ gl showstummns requivam

eyl s cormpiebed sl e ey
2 s appraach
Ot sty or 03 panDGecy v lang IO R

¢ L e 1| G S5 0 GO 3 TSEADIG ST s, W S Ao
STINAM Gt o P BRI 1§ S S8 G G A

OXFORDSHIRE
=== ¥ counry councit

The ing ri i i part of the design of the Council's

acharvicaare i e with awnars 5signed.
period afmcserainty e . i
comation P ———

© decelerate deyeiroeentfopportciies ot v sirg stafl.

etgeslaotogatonat W B Claa oiearshipof HanSTomMSton eI and marageensatat AU
g ot he delivery Irfarmationartries
o business sl octves
End s wrys of workg i " [
eracticatnat being ity adograd lsad e milgated
and withintha + Cluarcommurication s rsching ol waysclweeking
pr—
Culturesan behmiousdonst ™ I an e
PG NG ey T
eIt aw s aTWOTHINg + EMGCTINS et o o 1 EAUaeeTs.
are nutroacec. + Cluarbuyie od sporezeshi fram i eaders whiniha Counc.
The e e opfom L W
Fasidans o
oirealisad, ot takus oo g i e
Fasch {argutsand gomarai » kn ffctvo pronsions for kst (3] surves,
Femuire i ram e -

gl lstform.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




3. Target operating model




2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of the case for change, completed in January 2018, OCC began to
think about what it’s TOM could look like...

Introduction

The case for change described at a high level what the Council’s TOM
could look like (shown below).

Demand Management (“Pre-Front Door”)

it unity upp. ary s, al car, \ part,
unity g~ @ 3, i suPPor o & o e, < Ne,
0, & S s N Sat ta, St s N s o ey

) d U \5":e G e 2 ™ iy b
- i’i y = m o.af g “‘@ * rﬂ‘ @ y s "\"’ '.ri\
—_ L) () GB B¢ | sor . — an
= B &% . B 2 =
d Customer M ent, Application & A (“Front Door”)

Signposting and intelligent outbound information

Requests for service and information

Self serve customer and community platform

In Service Assessment In Service Assessment In Service Assessment

Service Delivery
Trede /shere pernershes m
Enabling & support services

Commissioning
Intelligent Client

Self Service
Procurement & Contract Management
HR & Payroll || Administration

Strategic Core

Strategy & Policy Innovation & Project Management QA & Performance Management

Business Intelligence

OCC - Draft target operating model as included in the case
for change

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Council’s high level TOM is comprised of the following (all of
which have been worked up in more detail during the development of
this business case).

For the purposes of the design phase OCC have grouped together
similar elements of its operating model into ‘Jayers’ in order to ensure
that all commonalities and similarities are captured in order to
provide a consistent experience for Customers.

Operating model layers — The different parts of an organisation or a
business that are required in order for that organisation or business to
successfully provide a product or a service to its customers.

For the Council the layers of its TOM are made up of:

Business capabilities — The combination of people, processes,
organisation, technology and information that the Council needs to
deliver a specific outcome(s) for customers and support its
organisational objectives, e.g. a finance function, customer contact
centre, or HR function.

Enablers — The specific people, processes, technology, assets and
information required in order to enable the delivery of a business
capability (or capabilities) e.g. a website, finance system or
accountants.



g6 abed

wIrs

£2 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

This section of the business case sets out the work the Council has
undertaken to design its Target Operating Model...

Designing the Target Operating Model

a

Key inputs to
the TOM design

The design of the
Council’s TOM has
been informed by a

number of key
inputs.

These include: the
Council’s strategy,
the requirement to
be responsive to the
needs and
characteristics of
the various localities
within the County,
and the needs and
wants of Customers.

b

Design
principles

The County
Leadership Team
(CLT) developed a

set of design

principles that have
been used to guide
the design of the
TOM.

In addition to this
each working group
developed a set of
layer specific design
principles as well.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

C

Layers of the
TOM

To support with the
design process the
Council’s high level
TOM was divided up
into ‘layers’ in order to
ensure that all
commonalities and
similarities between
business capabilities
are captured in order
to provide a consistent
experience for
Customers.

d
The ‘Front Office’

This sub-section
provides a summary of
those layers of the
operating model that
are focused on
interactions with the
Council’s customers.

These are: Pre-front
door, Customer
management and
Customer assessment.

e
The ‘Back Office’

This sub-section provides
a summary of those layers
of the operating model
that primarily provide
capabilities to other areas
of the organisation.

These are: The Provision
Cycle, Enabling & Support
Services, The strategic
capability and Business
Intelligence.



3a. Key inputs to the target
operating model design




00T abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The design of the Council’s TOM has been informed by the following key

inputs...

Key inputs

It is critical that the Council’s TOM is informed by an understanding of its customers, its strategic vision and the needs and characteristics of the

physical place it serves.

As part of the design of the TOM, consideration has been given to each of these key inputs:

B

Strategy

The Council has a clear strategic ambition
and vision for the type of local authority
that it wants to be, as set out in the
2018-2021 Corporate Plan.

From this a set of strategic parameters
have been developed that have been
used throughout the design process to
test and challenge each and every
emerging design concept in order to
ensure that it aligns with the Council’s
ambition and vision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Place

Consideration has also been given to the
needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire
as a place and the various localities
within Oxfordshire.

The Council is clear in its ambition to
become more of a place based authority,
which is responsive to the needs and
characteristics of local communities. This
has led to a number of key decisions /
choices that have been focused on as
part of the design of the TOM.

[ N )
() 4
Customer

‘Customer’ is used as an overarching term
to refer to any person or group of people
that is part of the Council or interacts with
itin some way.

It is recognised that there is a diverse
range of customers with many different
needs and circumstances. In order to
inform the design process, broad customer
groups were identified and used to test,
challenge and amend the design of each
layer of the operating model and ensure
that it remains customer focused.

Throughout the construct and
implementation phase, significant further
customer analysis and engagement across
the full range of county council customers
and service users will be required.



Strategy

Page 101



¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

12852 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

The Council has a clear strategic ambition and vision for what type of local
authority it wants to be and what it wants to achieve for residents...

Strategic vision

o
v

“Thriving communities for everyone in Oxfordshire” 5

To achieve our vision, we will listen to residents so we can continuously improve our services and provide value for money.

i3]

Thriving communities

20T abed

We help people live safe, healthy lives
and play an active part in their
community.

We provide services that enhance the
quality of life in our communities, and
protect the local environment.

Our priorities

w

Thriving people

neglect.

need.

We strive to give every child a good start in
life, and protect everyone from abuse and

We enable older and disabled people to live
independently and care for those in greatest

=

/
Thriving economy
We support a thriving local economy

by improving transport links to create
jobs and homes for the future.

With this strategic ambition in mind, the Council has already begun to think about how its business model will need to change:

“We will increasingly involve people

who use services and their families to

design, buy and evaluate the quality
of those services”

“We will continue to move
away from the traditional
top-down service design
and delivery model”

“More transactions will be digital. We will dispose of
properties we do not need or generate an income
from them. We will also work with partners and
central government to join up local services”

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




€0T abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

From this a set of strategic parameters have been developed which have
been considered as part of the development of the Council’s TOM...

Linking the TOM to the Council’s strategic direction

These parameters for the TOM ensures it will help members and staff at all levels to realise the council’s strategy.

...an integrator with joint operational commissioning functions with
other public bodies, commissioning with ‘one voice’. Increasingly the
Council will act as the fulcrum through which other public bodies as well
as itself commission outcomes.

This may mean having less direct control, but improved influence, while
also needing investment in developing the capabilities of partners.

...a co-ordinating council, shaping markets ‘ ...a community-led approach where the Council and
and providing the tools, capability and its partners will provide strategic oversight with

platform for residents, businesses and others budgets and operational commissioning increasingly
to become more self reliant. delegated to a local level.

This may mean brokering provision and Thlsl.ma.\y mear? the f(;cfus ison d.(ryelorlng capa?blllty
enabling access to solutions, without ro € I',mlg‘zteF .e needfor coun.a. |n\r/]o lver:ent ml
necessarily providing them yourself. A clear ocalised decisions as communities help themselves.

procurement and market management
strategy is required.
...in line with the co-ordinating council principle there will

be a move to relying more on influencing and focusing
commissioning on strategic priorities and outcomes.

Oxfordshire
County Council

&

...a decisive focus on the areas in which the council has the
opportunity to trade and grow, where it offers potential for
revenue and enhanced customer service.

This may mean agreeing a framework for defining a limited
number of priorities with a high chance of generating returns
and investing in their success, not spreading capacity too thinly.

This may mean developing a more strategic intelligence,
policy and commissioning capability.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Place

Page 104



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Consideration has also been given to the key needs and characteristics of

Oxfordshire as a place...

*Further detail on the needs and characteristics of
Oxfordshire as a place is available at Appendix A.

Key needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire

LSOAs are small geographic =P Score of 1= most deprived

areas of approximately 1,500
residents designed for

reporting purposes. There are
32,844 LSOAs in England and
414 in Oxfordshire

Average IMD Score (Deciles)

5.50-5.99

6.00—-6.49

6.50-6.99

7.00-7.49

Oxfordshire is the 4th |east deprived county in England. However levels of
deprivation differ vastly between measures and between areas of the county.

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of income, almost a whole decile less deprived than its
CIPFA nearest neighbours.

7.50-7.99

8.00-8.49

WOODSTOCK,

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of employment, with 54% of LSOAs in the 20% least
deprived nationally.

CHARLBURY,

8.50-8.99

GOT obed

CHIPPING NORTON,
EYNSHAM

Score of 10 = least
deprived

BICESTER

ARTERTO HAME, WHEATLEY,

WATLINGTON,
BERINSFIELD,

FARINGDON,
GROVE, WANTAGE

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Oxfordshire is the 4th least deprived county in England in
terms of education, with 66% of LSOAs less deprived than the
national average.

Oxfordshire is the 18th most deprived county in England in
terms of barriers to housing, over a decile more deprived than
its CIPFA nearest neighbours.

Oxfordshire is the 20th most deprived county in England in
terms of geographical barriers to services, worse than the
national average but close to the CIPFA average.

Oxfordshire is the 3rd least deprived county in England in
terms of health. 85% of LSOAs are less deprived than the
national average.

SCEF DY




90T obed

As well as how far the Council wishes to go in terms of being a place based
local authority...

Place based aspirations

Thinking about the needs and characteristics of Oxfordshire as a place has identified some key choices facing the Council in terms of the role it
wants to play within the community.

! OCC aspires to be... | A more place-based authority

| E 1. Residents are experts in their own lives - they are the best to identify outcomes, inform
' ...and has described how it i service design and help themselves within their community.
E will be more place-based in | 2. We will design processes around the user and their experience, enabling self-service at

its approach: every opportunity.
Accountability will sit at the most appropriate structural and community level

w

Will OCC’s service offer be the same in each place?

Will OCC deliver services in the same way in each place?
How will OCC work with partners in places?

What will be the extent of local decision making?

...therefore OCC needs to
make some important
choices over it’s place-
based approach:

* % % %

OCC'’s stated ambition is to be more place-based to meet geographical variation in priorities and demand for
services. The design of the TOM seeks to enable the council to be flexible and responsive to different needs

while remaining efficient and consistent overall. While fundamental elements of the TOM will not need to be
varied across localities, specific policies, priorities and practice in service delivery may be tailored to meet
circumstances in different localities.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Customer

Page 107



£52) O X F O R D'S H I R E. o
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

What we mean by ‘customer’...

Defining ‘customer’

Due to the nature of local government and the wide range of services it provides and co-ordinates, people will have many different backgrounds,
needs, motivations and attitudes which will influence how the Council as an organisation will operate. Throughout this business case, ‘customer’
is used as an overarching term to refer to any person or group of people that is part of the Council or interacts with it in some way.

The interpretation of ‘customer’ is much broader and flexible than a traditional definition of someone involved in a transactional exchange of
goods and services. In some circumstances, a person may not have a choice in interacting with the Council, such as services making an
intervention as a result of statutory responsibilities or the Council being the sole provider of the required service. There may also be other
alternative terms used in relation to different customers — for example, ‘service user’, ‘client’, ‘service recipient’ or ‘end user’ — which may be
more suitable due to the context or type of interaction.

Regardless of the specific term used, the aim and principles will remain the same in describing the purpose, value and role of the operating model
in servicing the customer and meeting their needs.

OCC Customer Segments

80T abed

While it is recognised that the Council has a very wide range of customers, each with very different needs and wants, it is necessary to group
similar customers together in order to develop the Target Operating Model. They help to identify key characteristics, preferences and
requirements that can inform the design process. The Council has therefore looked at six broad customer groups, also known as segments:

154 [
Resident Partner

-
Business

Lives in Governs OCC Employed by Works with Works in Visits
Oxfordshire occ occ Oxfordshire Oxfordshire

Consideration of these customer segments has been used in designing each element of the TOM to ensure it is focused on delivering value for all
customers of the Council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



60T abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

How the customer segments have been used...

Using customer segments in the TOM design process

85D OXFORDS HI RE o

*Further detail on the customer segments and
associated personas is available at Appendix B.

The customer segments have been used in a variety of ways throughout the development of the TOM:

Personas

Personas were created as fictitious archetypal
characters that represent the needs of each
customer group. They identify the users’
motivations, expectations and goals responsible L\.
for driving their relationship with Oxfordshire ‘
County Council. They provided a reference to
consider what the TOM would do and how it
would work for each segment.

Testing elements of the design

Throughout the design workshops and
discussions, the customer segments provided a
focus point for developing new ways of working
and constructive challenge regarding the TOM.
As key elements of the design emerged for each
layer and the overall TOM, the customer
segments were used to test how it would work
for each group.

Developing customer offers

The influence and impact of each customer
segment was considered when developing how
each layer of the TOM would work. This helped
to set out the customer offer of each layer by
defining who its main customers are, their
requirements of the layer and the approach for
how these will be delivered.

User stories

The anticipated benefits and
improved outcomes for key customer
segments have been identified for
each layer of the TOM. User stories
describing what the future looks like
for customers were also developed to
illustrate the positive impact of
implementing the TOM.

When the Council proceeds to construct and implement the TOM, it will need to directly engage with its

customers and consider their requirements in further detail. This will ensure it has the flexibility and robustness
to meet the wide-ranging requirements of its diverse customer base.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




3b. Design principles




282 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The Council has developed a set of design principles that have been used to

guide the development of the TOM...

== What are design principles

» Design principles are the “overarching truths” that guide practice
and determine the ‘target’ organisation we need to be. They
must be adhered to throughout the transformation

» Principles are not service specific - they set the direction for the
whole Council.

» There will be a number of “elements” that characterise each
principle in unambiguous terms that the Council understands.

How have design principles been used in the development of the
Council’s TOM?

TTT abed

* An overarching set of design principles were set out for the
Council’s Target Operating Model.

* In addition, a series of specific design principles were developed
for each individual layer of the TOM. They are derived from the
overarching principles, but contains specific guidance that is
specific to the nature and purpose of that layer.

* Each aspect of the TOM has been tested against the design
principles to ensure that it supports / maintains the integrity of
the overarching design and does not contradict the principles.

* Itis recognised that not every element of the design supports
every principle. Some elements of the design only support a few
principles but most importantly they do not contradict any.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

o What makes good
onstraining design principles?

Authoritative

Introducing design principles...

What do the design principles cover?

Customer Offering
Processes

Technology

Information
Organisational Structure
People Capabilities

Performance Management




22 OXFORDSHIRE
./ COUNTY COUNCIL

The overarching principles used to guide the design of the Council’s TOM are

set out below...

Customer offering

Processes

Technology

2

Information

ZTT obed

LT
Organisational
structure

(L 1)
o~

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Overarching TOM design principles

Residents are experts in their own lives - they are the best to identify outcomes, inform service design and help
themselves within their community.

We will hold a ‘single record’ for each of our customers making it easier for us to understand our communities,
manage demand and offer support/ intervention based on need.

Councillors and staff help people and communities to support themselves

We will design processes around the user and their experience, enabling self-service at every opportunity.
We will be transparent about the ways in which we manage risk.
There is a clear and open approach to how we manage and scrutinise what we do, including through councillors

Systems, applications and infrastructure will be designed around business need, with a consistent approach to
functional requirements.
We will ensure that technology is always an enabler, not a hindrance.

Our decisions will be informed by sound business intelligence and data analytics
We understand community needs and priorities, and gather intelligence from councillors

We will provide transparency, clarity and consistency on roles and expectations for councillors and staff across the
organisation

Accountability will sit at the most appropriate structural and community level

We will consolidate strategic and common functions with a clear purpose, maintaining flexibility in local delivery

We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.
Councillors act as community leaders.

We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.
There is effective scrutiny and challenge from councillors.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




3c. Target operating model
layers




yTT obed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

At the start of the process the Council confirmed that the Target Operating
Model would be comprised of different layers...

OCC TOM Layers

The Council has used cross-cutting ‘layers’ to design a Target Operating Model which maximises opportunities across the whole organisation,
builds greater consistency and avoids fragmented silo thinking based around traditional service-based directorates. These layers are defined by
their functional purpose for the organisation, cutting horizontally across services, as follows:

Pre-Front Door

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

Customer Management

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Customer Assessment

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

Enabling and support
services

The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal
customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
and responsibilities.

Back Office

Strategic capability

The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its
vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the
realisation of each of these.

Business intelligence

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

In addition, Service Delivery relates to the actual provision of frontline services to customers. This has not been designed as an individual layer of
the TOM, but the rest of the layers will involve change across all operational service areas to better enable and improve service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




GTT obed

X

8 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

These layers and the Council’s high level TOM on a page were confirmed as
part of the detailed design phase...

OCC High level TOM on a page

The ‘Pre-Front Door’

émunifré,% _.fﬁ..ﬁ'\uﬂil‘v a5 : \\u uppar_.l_ @ta ry ’E‘c .-w'tal Carq'.;‘r- ¥ -(','L'a\ partg,
o %, o G S ] o s y T
o S YV SN i SR
LN ] y o — ’ &
; f[jn ) L = i
L) @ J ﬁ 2 g = nh

w =

Integrated Customer Management and Customer Assessment {“Front Door”)

ﬁ Signposting ond intelligent outbound information [
. Requests for service and informatian .'} E:J !

The Provision Cycle

Enabling & support services

HR & Payroll Business and Administrative Support

Strategic Capability

Strategy & Policy Innovation & Project Management QA B Performance Management

Business Intelligence

Dashboards Needs Analysis Customer Insight Predictive Analytics

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




91T obed

wIrs

Overview of design pack output

2 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

For each layer of the TOM, a detailed design pack has been produced. These
are summarised for each layer in the following sub-sections of this business
case...

Each layer description in this section follows the format set out below with full detail of the design for each layer available at the relevant

appendix.

1
What is the layer?

A definition of the
operating model layer.

2

Why are we looking
at the layer?

The reasons for looking at

the layer of the operating

model as identified in the
Case for Change.

3

What is the Council’s
ambition for the
layer?

The Council’s ambition for

the layer as part of its
TOM.

4

What are the design
principles governing
the layer?

The specific design

principles governing the
design of the layer.

5

What will the layer
look like in the
future?

A section describing what
the layer will look like as

part of the Council’s TOM.

6

How will the layer
work in the future?

A section describing how
the layer will work in the
future (including how it
will work with the rest of
the TOM).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

7

What needs to
change in order to
achieve this?

A section summarising the
key enablers and changes
required to achieve the
Council’s ambition for the
layer.

8

What are the
benefits of the
layer?

The benefits the Council
can achieve through

constructing and
implementing the layer.



3d. Front Office




gTT obed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the ‘Front Office’...

The Front Office layers

The Front Office involves interactions with external customers, primarily residents but also partners, businesses and other organisations. It refers
collectively to the top three layers of the Council’s future operating model:

The Pre-Front Door focuses on how the Council works with individuals, communities, partners and other
organisations to empower residents to build resilience and help themselves. As well as improving experiences and
outcomes, it aims to reduce customer contacts or service requests coming directly to the council.

4 N
Customer Customer management refers to all activities undertaken by the Council that involve interaction with customers
Management and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery. Initial contact with customers, signposting and receiving
S requests for information and/or services occurs at the ‘Front Door’. )

Customer Assessment is a key part of many customer interactions with the Council, with information being used to
decide whether and how services should be provided. Assessments can be relatively simple, based on rules and
L ‘binary criteria’, or complex requiring professional expertise and judgement based on relative information.

Customer

Assessment

Purpose of the Front Office

The overall purpose of the Front Office is to understand the wants and needs of customers and fulfil these as appropriate. This will be achieved
through proactive signposting to support outside the council, resolving at the point of contact or directing to operational service areas. The Front
Office needs to balance experience of customers, efficiency for the council and outcomes for all in order to be fully effective.

The Front Office also plays a key part in working with and supporting Members with their case work and representation of constituents, helping
them to get the right information and support through the Council.

There are considerable interdependencies between the three layers of the Front Office, as customers will flow through initial contact,
assessment and engagement with operational service areas in different ways according to their circumstances. As a consequence, this overview
first sets out the overarching principles and approach which underpins all three layers, providing the required integration and consistency for the
future operating model. The design of each individual layer and its contribution within the ‘Front Office’ is then set out in more detail.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the principles that underpin its future design...

Processes

Technology

6TT abed

Information

||
i

Organisational structure

(L 1)
L/ N\

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Front office design principles

We will design our customer approach to embrace the digital age.
We will be proactive in the management of our customers.

Processes will be simplified, standardised and ‘self serve’ wherever possible.
Processes will be fit for the modern world, involving minimal touchpoints and bureaucracy.

We will seek innovative, new solutions to drive our transformation, where appropriate with technology supporting
our customers to ‘self serve’.
Our technology will enable a modern customer experience.

We will adopt a ‘customer account’ approach where we will collect and store data once to personalise our services
where possible.

We will use our data to identify trends and issues, to help improve our services, keep customers informed and
target areas of concern.

We will embed accountabilities at the right level (in consultations with our partners), to enable us to make the
right decision, at the right level, at the right time.

We will empower our staff to take ownership of the relationship with customers and to drive the delivery of
solutions.

We will encourage staff to be innovative in approach to delivering solutions whilst maintaining a consistent look
and feel of interacting with the council.

We will empower and support our partners to utilise performance information to innovate, take measured risks
and manage demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Front Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Front Office

Digital by design Enhanced Customer Enabling service areas
PY function and communities
U D
QD
Q A .
D
H
N . . .
o Development and promotion of channel An enhanced Customer function with the Links with the Pre-Front Door will help
shift opportunities across all service right mix of resources and service specialisms people to find solutions and create
areas, with a particular focus on digital to effectively signpost, filter, resolve queries opportunities in their local communities.
and self-service. This will be enabled by a at first contact or route to operational service Operational service areas will be able to
simple digital customer portal, areas. This supports a consistent Front Door focus on more complex customers and
integrated systems and an assisted across the whole council to assist residents, service delivery, supported by streamlined
digital offer. Members and staff. processes and improved technology.

How will the functional model for the Front Office work...

The future ‘front office’ will have streamlined channels of contact and consistent ways of working so that residents, Members, partners and
businesses can interact with the council easily and effectively. Customer management and assessment activities will be consolidated wherever
possible, with close collaboration between the Customer function and operational service areas to ensure the needs of customers are being
met appropriately. Technology, systems and processes will be integrated between the front office and operational services, so that services
can be delivered in the right way, staff can focus their efforts where they are most needed, and there is a seamless customer experience. By
facilitating community action through the Pre-Front Door, the council will also promote more sustainable approaches to supporting and
enabling Oxfordshire residents over the longer term.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

An approach tailored to meet a wide range of customers...

Customer segments

The ‘Front Office’ design is primarily focused on residents as the main
external customers interacting with the council.

The council’s approach and customer offer for residents will be steered
by how active they are in needing to interact with the council, as well as

the complexity of their query or circumstances.

T¢T abed

Contact channels

Passive but need
engaging

Passi

Active but should J
be passive &

Transactional
active

Passi

Active

E.g. Someone who
needs preventotive
health information

E.g. A frequent
Oxfordshire road user

E.g. A resident making
several complaints
wbout a pothole

E.q. Someone applying
for a blue badge

E.g. An individual with
complex learning
difficulties

An individual may have n:\ultiple needs and sit in multiple categories simultaneously

include:

Partners

Business

Other key groups interacting with the front office

*  Members contacting the front door for information
and services on behalf of residents.

* Partners such as other local authorities, schools and
health professionals.

* Businesses such as commissioned providers delivering
goods and services for or on behalf of the council.

The same principles of self-serve, automation, simplicity
and consistency as far as possible in contacting the
council will be applied. This will be supported by digital
technology such as customer portals and access to the
right service areas where needed.

Increasing use of digital channels is key to the council’s Front Office model, resulting in changes to other contact channels for customers.

HE

Digital

1

Primary contact channel, fully
transactional and mobile.
Focused on self-serve for
information, application and
some assessments.
Automation such as chatbots
for simple interactions.

A\

Phone

Maintaining a high quality
telephony service, including
assisted digital offer.
Consolidation of contact
numbers into the council.
Reduced direct phone
contacts into service areas.

bt

Email

U

Phasing out inbound email
contact, replacing with
transactional web forms and
e-forms where possible.
Automation, templates and
greater consistency for
outbound contacts.

Face to face

=

Information, advice and
assisted digital through
some front-facing sites such
as libraries and receptions.
By appointment only for
operational services, with
some emergency provision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2eT obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The functional model for the Front Office of the TOM...

= Functional model for the Front Office

The model below sets out how the key functions for the Customer Management and Assessment layers, linking into the Pre-Front Door, work

together to form the Front Office for the council.

o8
{i‘r Partners Communities VCs Carers Individuals Businesses ﬁ
\/ - el

L4 ' v
- Signposting and intelligent outbound information
()]
£ Requests for service and information
8
g
§ Low
: A
g _E Specialist resource
% | for initial
3 z screening or direct

-E : - contact with
» = = Assisted digital service areas
£ 3 Autnmat_ed decision where appropriate
£ ° making and Rules-based screening
a E provision of services o doted and data collection for
g =3 assessments
2 |3 plex assessments
@

S 1
£ '{\?‘/ Quality assurance, Officer follow-up, Referred complex :;gﬂl;z:‘:ﬂ;ﬁ
2 support and validation decision making and service assessments e
> High approvals and approvals PP

Low Level of complexity of customer need High

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Pre-Front Door will involve
the council working with a range
of external stakeholders to grow
resilience and opportunities in
communities. By strengthening
support within communities and
enhancing the role of
prevention, this will improve
resident outcomes overall and
reduce the call on council
services, which can then focus
on the most complex needs.

Where customers do need to
contact the council. the
functional model highlights how
the approach to customer
interactions and the level of
manual intervention will vary
according to the level of
complexity of customer need.
Simple interactions will require
less manual intervention
through the use of automation
and technology, with access to
the appropriate specialisms for
more complexinteractions.



2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Front Office functions be delivered in the future Operating Model...

A blended approach to delivery
In order to effectively address the wide range of services types and customer needs that the Council supports, a blended approach to delivering
Front Office functions will be required. The four main approaches are highlighted below, along with the main functions that they will undertake
in the future Operating Model. The role of the Pre-Front Door, Digital and a Customer function will be developed and enhanced to better
manage demand in a consistent and effective way, while complex customer interactions will continue to be met by operational service areas.

Pre-Front Signposting and intelligent outbound information Assessments (various)

Door
Main channels into |:| . . ) "
) Online =l Mobile Email Phone MW\ roce to face
the Council: a-a - ad f

Customer function

Signposting and intelligent
outbound information

e2T obed

Operational service areas \
Complex customer management
(including ongoing / open cases)

Referred complex service
assessments and approvals
Complex service assessments
and approvals

Service delivery

ﬂgital \

Signposting and intelligent
outbound information

Requests for services and Requests for services and
information information

Information, advice and

! Service requests, applications,
guidance

transactions and referrals

Specialist resource for initial
screening

Self-service transactions

Assisted digital

Service requests, applications,
transactions and referrals Rules-based assessments

Automated decision making and Rules-based screening and data
k provision of services / collection for complex assessment

Crisis / Emergency contacts

/

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



v2T obed

wIrs

£2 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What benefits can the Council achieve through this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for the Front
Office can be found in the Revised Financial Case
and at Appendix F.

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

)

An intelligent and integrated Front
Office for the council will deliver
improved outcomes for its customers.

v Customers interacting with the council
will receive the right support they need
at the right time in a manner which
best suits their circumstances.

v Customers will access appropriate
information and services more easily
and quickly, so issues do not escalate
and take up more time and resources
than initially required.

v Customer interactions and operational
services will continuously improve as a
result of better insight and
understanding across the whole council
of needs and demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

A better experience for external
customers who interact with the
council, as well as for staff.

Digital channels and simpler ways of
working will make it easier for
customers to access information and
complete transactions at a time and
place convenient for their lives.

Customers will experience a seamless
journey across service areas within the
council as well as external partners.

A consistent front door supported by
the same principles and standards will
ensure that customers have a positive
experience regardless of how they
contact the council.

Operational staff will be able to focus
on their professional roles and
delivering services, instead of managing
customer interactions and the
associated administration.

<

Benefits of £7.2m — £10.0m per annum
through channel shift and new ways of
working for Front Office activities across
the whole Council, with further benefits of
between £8.6m - £12.1m across related
Middle Office activities.

v Through proactively helping customers
to lower cost channels, reducing
avoidable customer contact, improving
processes and better utilising resources
for customer management and
assessment, the Council can achieve a
reduction of between in the total effort
it expends on Front Office activities.

v" While not quantifiable at this stage, it is
anticipated that the impact of the Pre-
Front Door in building more resilient
communities will also help the council to
be more sustainable over the longer
term.



GeT obed

Pre-Front Door



9¢T obed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

28252 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

What is the Pre-Front Door...

Definition
What it is... What it isn’t...
* Individuals, communities, Members, the council and partner * The council operating in a vacuum — the Pre-Front Door design is
organisations working together to build resilience, develop a proposal to develop collaboratively with communities.

in order to support this vision.

* The role of the council will range across:

Light touch Proactive
strategic co- enabling

ordination support

strengths and create opportunities in local areas.

* Trying to take the place of the multitude of individuals, groups

* The council will act as a facilitator within and across Oxfordshire and organisations that already do a huge amount of important

work.

* Establishing a corporate central function responsible for ‘Pre

Lead role in Front Door’ activity.
co-delivery * Duplicating what operational services are already doing in

providing support and interventions to communities.

Why do we need it...

é

The council responds reactively to demand,
resolving presenting needs which can be
costly with less positive outcomes.

A& A&
il
The council is currently viewed as

remote and bureaucratic, with limited
engagement with communities.

2
2 S
(O- J.I\P
Different initiatives and approaches to There is a lack of shared knowledge &
working with communities are not as joined insight regarding local community needs
up as they could be across Oxfordshire. and capacity.
Rising demand requires a new approach There is no whole system approach to
to helping communities to ensure longer-term prevention solutions in
sustainable services in the future. Oxfordshire.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/2T abed

8 OXFORDSHIRE

X

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Pre-Front Door do (i)...

Existing examples of Pre-Front Door activity in Oxfordshire
There are a wide range of existing projects and initiatives delivered across Oxfordshire by communities which enable people to build resilience,
develop strengths and create opportunities in their local areas. Many of these are supported in some form by the council, including through
grants, additional resources and the use of assets. A number of examples are illustrated below.

Projects led by communities Projects co-led by the council and
communities

* Volunteers running a wide range of

. . ‘ *  Wellbeing employment service and the print unit
Libraries and Museums services.

providing employment and skills training for
» Community Action Group leading . vulnerable adults.

work on climate change action. *  Community Wardens in local areas building

* South Chilterns Path Maintenance . community links.
Volunteers. * Community Safety activity including cycle safety
* Oxfordshire Community & Voluntary ‘ training and Safe and Well visits.
Act'lo'n (OCVAI) linking and providing ‘ * Oxfordshire Together providing advice and
training to volunteers. ' assistance to towns, parishes and volunteer
groups for delivering local services.
‘ ‘ * Thames Valley Environment Records Centre.
e."‘.j Projects led by communities with initial R
support from the council l“'
* Stay & Play sessions run by volunteers + Scam awareness training and volunteer
using OCC physical assets. ‘ programme to help protect people from financial
‘ crime.

* Reminiscence sessions for older people

operating from Oxfordshire museums. * Community Information Network providing
information, advice and guidance for older people

* Commissioned dementia support
PP and vulnerable adults in Oxfordshire.

services.

* Family Information Service providing information,
advice and guidance to families.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



What will the Pre-Front Door do (ii)...

The role of the council in facilitating the Pre-Front Door

There are many strengths in the existing initiatives being undertaken across the county, utilising local knowledge and expertise in communities
to understand assets, needs and how best to support them. However, there is an opportunity to build an even stronger Pre-Front Door,

facilitated by the council working with communities and partners. A systemic approach to linking services and community initiatives together

will collectively increase experience and learning, maximising impact. This can help the growth of resilient and thriving communities.
Current projects & initiatives

The current ongoing activity across the

—_—

Connecting & enabling the Pre-Front Door —» A strengths based Pre-Front Door

Linking ongoing initiatives from across the Learning from each other and strategic use
U county, carried out by a range of individuals, county will allow for sharing and learning of of resources help initiatives to grow,
g groups and organisations. other good practice. maximise and sustain their impact.
D
|_\
N
(00]

. par N
Projects led by communities Projects led by communities Projects co-led by the Projects led by

with initial support from the with support from the council council and communities communities

council

Connecting, sharing & learning =— == = =

These are illustrative examples
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




6¢T abed

85 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s future ambition for the Pre-Front Door...

Future ambition for the Pre-Front Door

Council directs
demand
influencing
activity in

Role of the
Council

Demand
influencing
activity is
planned and
co-ordinated by

communities

services

Service-led or

Whole Council

Key features of the layer have a spectrum of options for how they could be designed and delivered. The
icon below indicates the Council’s broad position for the future, with a box highlighting how this may vary. | [ The Council will be a place-

Whole council analysis, strategy and planning; co-ordination by services

In the future...

based facilitator for Pre-Front
Door activities. Its role may vary
from light touch strategic co-
ordination to proactive enabling
support and up to leading co-
delivery with partner
organisations (for time-limited
periods). This will involve the
Council’s whole operating model

working to link up, support and
grow Pre-Front Door activities

An overall ambition is that the council can become known for its vibrant and innovative approach to developing the Pre-Front Door, leading to

recognition within the sector and beyond.

Customer offer

Facilitating the right conditions Empowering others

The Council shall seek to maximise the
role of individuals, community groups
and partners in developing and
sustaining thriving communities.

The Council’s Pre-Front Door will
facilitate the conditions for communities
to create opportunities and solve
problems locally for themselves.

Connecting resources
The Council will use its unique position to
better connect information, people and
support across the Pre-Front Door to
build resilience and empower individuals
and communities.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




0¢T abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Pre-Front Door look like in the future (i)...

How the council’s role in the Pre-Front Door will vary

Different types of activity will enable the Pre-Front Door and can be broadly grouped into the following six areas. The Council’s role and level
of involvement will vary according to the intended outcome and the capability and capacity of local communities.

Light touch strategic coordination by the The council provides proactive enabling For specific initiatives, the council will play

council enables local communities by support by using its expertise and resources a lead role in working with key groups for

pushing out easily accessible data, in targeted ways to catalyse and grow the delivery of community based projects.

information and guidance. This builds community action. This can includes This will require the council to leverage its

greater understanding of assets and needs incentivising volunteering activities and brand, transfer skills and knowledge so the

in local areas and promotes collaboration. providing funding, training and access to initiative can continue sustainably when
assets for community groups. the council steps back.

Low level . @) . @) O High level
ofactivity ~ Light toucl.1 ST @ Proactive enabling support @ Co-led delivery @ of activity
council ' — council

Strategic capabilities link Business intelligence link Provision Cycle link
@ O @
Strategically linking in initiatives, capabilities and Proactive sharing of business intelligence and insights, Pre-Front Door aims
outcomes from across the council and different which shows strengths, needs and capacity at a local are inherent within
partners, ensuring that whole council leadership, level. Understanding of current and forecasting the Provision Cycle
governance and evaluation supports the Pre-Front demand informing Pre-Front Door strategy and and commissioned
Door. actions within the council and communities. services.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



TET abed

How different functions contribute to the Pre-Front Door

What will the Pre-Front Door look like in the future (ii)...

Different functions within and connected to the council will play important parts in growing and promoting the Pre-Front Door:

Members are one of the first points of contact between residents
and the Council, democratically accountable to residents of their
ward. They directly serve the interests and needs of their
community, acting as a voice, motivator and connector, adopting
an ‘asset based approach’ to enabling communities.

degrees by the Council.

Communities are at the heart of the Pre-Front Door. The ultimate goal
is that communities are able to find solutions, are resilient and create
opportunities for themselves. The ownership of Pre-Front Door activities
by different communities will increase over time, supported to varying

—0 Members

I

Communities

Front Office
Customer Assessment & Management
Service Areas
Operational Delivery

Pre-Front Door Co-ordination

Back Office
Commissioning, Strategic Capability, H
Business Intelligence

Co-ordination across the whole
council will connect Pre-Front Door
activity, linking together existing
activity & information, driving
forward partnerships, functioning as
an incubator, always maintaining an
‘asset based’ approach to building &
supporting communities .

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

The Front Office will maintain comprehensive knowledge
of the council, its services and wider support in
Oxfordshire so best to signpost customers at the first point
of contact.

Service areas will provide specific knowledge & expertise
in their specialism and locality, maintaining relationships
with specific partners and communities. They will enable
others to develop specific skills in the process.

Enabling functions will provide
information & insight to different
areas of the business where Pre-
Front Door activity is taking place,
so that the business can make
informed decisions and think
strategically regarding Pre-Front
Door activity.




ZsT obed

What will the Pre-Front Door look like in the future (iii)...

Developing the Pre-Front Door over time

The council will need to consider how it can use its resources across the organisation and beyond to develop the Pre-Front Door, with the balance
changing over time as community capacity and capability builds.

Stage 1: Set Up & Interim Model

Front Office
and service
delivery

Back Office ;

Initial balance of effort weighted towards Council

resource.

Pre-Front Door Enabling Activity

Commissioning

Strategic Capabilities
Business Intelligence

Pre-front
Door
Coordination

Developing Pre-Front Door activity so that it is sustainable and
effective will require more effort and investment from the council in

the initial stages. Dedicated interim resource with a clear mandate, as
well as linking up existing council resource, will support the necessary

co-ordination.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Stage 2: To be state - Business as Usual

Communities

Balance of effort shifts to communities as model matures.

l
I
|
1
I
|
I
|
1
I
|
v

Front Office and
service delivery

Back Office Pre-Front Door Enabling Activity
Commissioning
Strategic Capabilities
Business Intelligence

Co-ordination

Beyond this interim model, however, the council will be able to step
back allowing communities to be more self-sustaining, provided that
the adequate support has been delivered and community networks are
mature.



ceT abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Pre-Front Door work with the rest of the council...

The interaction model

Pre-Front Door activity will be woven through every layer of the operating model, so as to facilitate the right conditions for communities to

build resilience, solve problems and create opportunities. ittt
Types of Pre-Front

Door activity

Customer management and assessment

Light-touch

* Understands Pre-Front Door capacity and opportunities in order to signpost effectively and enable others to find solutions i
strategic co-

themselves.

* Contributing data on customer demand in order to further plan and develop the Pre-Front Door. ordination

* Contributing locality and community knowledge to inform and influence community action. Proactive

* Providing subject matter expertise when playing a lead role in co-delivery of specific initiatives. enabling
support

* Enhancing social value throughout all of the council’s commissioning activity to support Pre-Front Door aims. .
+  Working with partners to develop a place-based approach to commissioning and funding for provision in local areas. Lead role in co-

i delivery

Enabling & Support Services

* Providing the supporting infrastructure to enable the Pre-Front Door across the council’s operating model. The Provision

Strategic capabilities Cycle link
* Oversight of how policy objectives and business plans across the council and wider system are informed by and contribute
to the Pre-Front Door. Strategic
* Collective development of policy and strategy with communities. capability link
* Key role in building the strategic partnerships and relationships to support the Pre-Front Door.
Business intelligence Business

* Place-based information and insights to give a shared picture of their local area. Intelligence link

* Insight on current needs, provision across the system and gaps for local communities.

* Insight on long term patterns and trends in needs and gaps in communities [ s

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Pre-Front Door look like in practice...

2 OXFORDSHIRE pu—

*Further user stories are available at Appendix C.

An example user story*

e : :
%ﬂl ':r" Donnais a wor!<|ng
it . bbee " mother of 2 children,

~ {8 -, withan elderly

mother Dorothy who
is progressively less
able to live on her
own.

yeT obed

* Donna is able to log on to
the Council’s customer
portal via her smart
phone.

* Donna'’s profile
recognises her locality,
her needs and her

* Donna is able to view
the different
community groups
offering advice and
support in her area,
both for older people
and for children.

interests. * The groups are listed
* The customer portal is by proximity and the
integrated with extent to which these

information from a range
of voluntary and
community groups in the
area.

groups will serve
Donna’s needs.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

User story....

‘I want to easily understand
what groups may be available
in my local area to support my
mum, my children and me.’

What does this user story show...

Appropriate, place-based information being available.

Highly functional online portal providing relevant information to
the resident and ability to carry out actions.

Information gathering and feedback that can then be used by
the wider Council .

D D N ST ST

* Donna finds a social
connections group
which is hosted at her
local library.

* She uses the
information on the
online portal to book
attendance for her
mother at the next
event.

* Donna also finds other
community groups that
she would like to be
involved in.

* Donna, her children and
her mother are able to
attend the relevant
groups, which provides
appropriate support and
also allows Donna to
build networks with
others who are in a
similar position to her.

Using her customer
portal and the digital
community hubs, Donna
can give feedback to the
groups she is involved in
and the Council.

The information Donna
provides, as well as
Business Intelligence, is
used by the Council to
shape support for
community groups, as
well as its own services.




12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s
0¥ COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix C.

Governance

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (i)...

Enablers*

Strategy

GeT obed

Co-development of a vision and proposals for the Pre-Front
Door across Oxfordshire by the council, communities and
partner organisations, building on this design concept.

Agreed strategy for how the council as a whole can act as a
place-based facilitator of Pre-Front Door activities.

Strategy embedded in business plans and translated into
operational practice with directorates and services.

Increased community resilience and capacity overall to be
measured by a suite of strategic indicators.

Streamlined and agile ways to try out pilots and new initiatives
which support the ambition of the Pre-Front Door.

Processes involved in running initiatives and programmes will
vary and be owned by those responsible for delivering
initiatives, which may be the council or communities.

Clear, accessible technology enabled processes for residents
to understand what opportunities and assets are in their
community.

Clarity on how the council steps back from Pre-Front Door
initiatives it has been supporting once they are sustainable.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Flexible and enabling governance which reflects the council’s
position as a facilitator rather than an accountable body.

» For specific projects, governance mechanisms will depend on
risk and statutory accountabilities for any Pre-Front Door
initiatives or activities being led or sponsored by the Council.

» Use of existing partnership networks to build collective
ownership and oversight across Oxfordshire.

» More recognition and support for members in their local
leadership role regarding the Pre-Front Door.

Technology

* Use of digital channels to signpost and connect people to Pre-
Front Door opportunities.

* Access to digital community hubs which enable customers
(residents, voluntary organisations etc) to understand what
opportunities are available in their locality.

« A digital platform for council staff that consolidates and maps
pre-front door activity and relevant projects in service areas.

* Ability for partners and community organisations to input data
into systems to enable monitoring, support and other
operational activities by OCC.




o¢T abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (ii)...

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix C.

Enablers cont. *

» Open-access approach to relevant council data for others to
develop relevant support and services in local communities.

» Improved flexibility and visualisation of information, such as
being able to cut data by different characteristics e.g. locality,
demographics.

* Insight on current and future needs, provision and gaps across
the system for local communities.

* Local knowledge, understanding and qualitative information
provided by local communities and Members.

* An organisational culture which puts the resident at the heart
of everything, with every staff member thinking how they can
enable the Pre-Front Door.

» Being prepared to take risks and be agile, learning from
initiatives that do not work to improve the ones that do.

« Adistributed leadership approach which is able to let go of
control and empowers others in communities to do more.

» Thinking outside of service or organisational boundaries to
develop a place-based identity and ways of working.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

People & Structure

* Interim dedicated resource to co-ordinate and better connect
Pre-Front Door activities across the Council but this would not
be a permanent, consolidated function.

* Building greater understanding of staff who are engaged in
facilitating Pre-Front Door activities across the council.

» Growing capacity and skills for community engagement and
development across the council.

* Embedding Pre-Front Door principles and values into
recruitment, induction and performance management to
support shift in organisational culture.




/€T abed

How will the Council know the Pre-Front Door has been successful...

Measures of success

There will be challenges in directly measuring the impact of the Council’s facilitation of the Pre-Front Door, due to long timescales for
realising outcomes and difficulty in attributing them to interventions. However, for specific initiatives led or co-ordinated by the Council,
there will be a clear and consistent approach to monitoring impact which is related to return on investment.

In addition, a broader range of indicators could be used when measuring the overall strategic value of developing the Pre-Front Door:

Efficiency
Effectiveness

Outcomes

.

Experience

Reduction in demand on council resources over time as more resilient communities prevent or delay the need for
more expensive services, assistance and care.

Improved use of resources by better connecting initiatives and learning from experience.

Increased mobilisation of external resources to support local communities, including external grants and funds.

Increased awareness across the council of Pre-Front Door activities in local communities, so is able to provide
targeted support where appropriate. Learning and good practice is then shared and built upon.

More links between service areas and across other organisations to tackle priorities in local communities.

Increased community capacity and resilience, with local communities in control.
The voluntary and community sector report that they feel valued and enabled.

Improved reputation for the County Council, which is perceived as in-touch, responsive, collaborative and trusted.

Increased engagement by community groups and partners to find solutions and create their own opportunities.

Greater attachment and ownership of ‘place’ by individuals, community groups and partners, instead of perceiving
divided organisational responsibilities.

Increased number of residents who can access information, opportunities and support in local communities
without requiring direct council intervention, which may otherwise involve some delay and less local provision.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




g¢T obed

22859 OXFORDSHIRE
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

What benefits can the Council achieve through this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for the Pre-
Front Door can be found at Appendix C.

Outcomes, benefits and experience *

)

Improved outcomes for residents and
the council as a result of thriving
communities

v Residents are supported by those in the

community who know them, their needs
and their local context.

v' Quality of information regarding resident

need, existing initiatives, community &
council assets is improved.

v" Improved access to this information allows

residents, members, partners & council
staff to make smarter choices and support
each other more effectively.

v' There is a greater range of support at a

local level which addresses gaps in the
system.

v' Proactive engagement and early

intervention at a local level prevents the
needs of individuals or places from
escalating and becoming more difficult to
solve.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

A better experience for residents,
local organisations, members and
council staff

Residents are connected and
empowered to support their
communities and help themselves.

Close collaboration between the
council, partners and communities is
the expected way of working.

The whole council is better able to
support Members in their local
leadership role to connect and enhance
community action across Oxfordshire.

The council is known nationally for
facilitating its local communities in
dynamic and innovative ways.

<

Financial benefits could be made
across the council and wider public
services.

v Demand on council services is diverted
to others who are enabled to deliver
outcomes in local areas.

v" Prevention and early intervention
through Pre-Front Door activities delays
or reduces demand on council services.

v' More effective use of resources by
reducing fragmentation and duplication
of activities by the council to enable
communities.

v Greater local insight supports ongoing
improvement of core council services,
reducing failure demand.

The Pre-Front Door represents an
investment case for the Council. It will
save money in the future, but has not

been designed to release capacity in the
short term (unlike the other layers of
the TOM).




6ST abed

Customer Management



ot T obed

3;:(‘ OXFORDSHIRE
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is Customer Management...

Definition

What it is...

Customer Management captures all activities that involve
interaction with customers and/or have an immediate impact on
customer service delivery.

It primarily focuses on initial contact with customers, signposting
and receiving requests for information and/or services. It can be
referred to as the ‘Front Door’.

a
‘g Enquiry Processing requests Managing
a handling 48 and applications appointments

What it isn’t...

Ongoing interactions with customers requiring services or
support are considered to be inherent within service delivery,
not part of customer management.

Applying a blanket ‘one size fits all’ approach to all customers
regardless of their needs or desired outcomes.

Addressing information and service requests by staff as internal
customers, which is covered by the Enabling & Support Services
layer of the Target Operating Model.

Why do we need it...
500 FTEs

We currently spend approximately
500 FTEs worth of effort on Customer
Management activities, a greater
proportion than comparator Councils

»

The majority of interactions through the
customer service centre occur on the
phone, with only 10% of interactions

taking place online.

9
2F

There is no consistent approach to
Customer Management activities,
resulting in a fragmented experience for
customers.

Y=

Effective Customer Management upfront
can help to avoid demand by resolving

issues at first point of contact or keeping
customers better informed.

®

The Council does not have a single,
holistic view of demand or its customers
across the services it provides.

Jo,

Simplifying and streamlining customer
management activities will enable staff to
focus their efforts on more complex
customers and service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




T T abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Management do...

== \What is the role of Customer Management within the Council’s operating model?

The council’s operating model will be underpinned by an integrated Customer Management layer with standardised ways of working and
streamlined channels of contact wherever possible. Its purpose is to ensure a consistent approach in experience and outcomes across the
council while ensuring it meets the wide range of needs and circumstances in the customers it serves.

Customer Management involves interactions across
Customer Management all channels — online, email, phone, face to face — and

- - - across all service areas in the council.
Processing requests and liManaging appointments
applications & payments

Customer management

Enquiry handling

support The main Customer Management processes focus on
A — ] ] - initial customer contacts to fulfil requests for
advice LIRS EeeRlL SUEEEEWURREEIR  information or services. The detailed processes will

— vary according to complexity and service type, but
. . . : Communications and : N
Signposting Request a service Pay it social media consistency across the council will include:

el el - Consistency of process regardless of channel;
payments feedback

Proactive outbound

. . Report it
information P

* Automation and self-serve wherever possible;

. . . Customer journey and
Register it
g Recording and data entry T * Use of one customer account / portal for
transactions;
Appeal it Close records Customer intelligence
and analytics * Upfront information and eligibility to set

expectations;

Enquiry screening and
routing

Recording and data entry

Close record

Recording and data entry Predictive analytics

* Use of standardised systems integrated to

operational service areas.
Close record

In addition, there are a range of strategic and
transactional supporting processes that improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of Customer

Process Level 1 Management, as well as Customer Assessment.
These are linked to the Back Office layers but with a
particular Customer focus which enables the council
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case to be proactive in managing its customers.

Key: Process Level 0




2T obed

X

8 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s future ambition for Customer Management...

Future ambition for Customer Management

Key features of the layer have a spectrum of options for how they could be designed and delivered. The In the future...

icon below indicates the Council’s broad position for the future, with a box highlighting how this may vary.

AR

Level of self-service
and automation

Customer Management
activities to be as consistent and
consolidated as possible while
recognising differences in
customer complexity. To achieve
this, we will simplify, enable self-
service, automate, consolidate

Self-service &
automation

Requests for

services and

info met by
variety of
channels

use of digital
channels,
reduced
manual
activity

enquiries

All customer Consolidation Consolidation and standardise activities where
management of initial of all possible, providing additional
activity customer customer support and assistance or
within management management

ensuring access to services /
expertise when needed.

activities

service areas,

Consolidation of resource

customer management

Low complexity,
high frequency

High complexity,
low frequency

Customer offer

g 5,

Simple digital front door

For the majority of residents, we will
offer a simple, digital front door that
minimises effort on behalf of residents
and staff, whilst providing additional
arrangements where required for
residents with specific needs.

Getting it right first time
We will provide customers with a front
door that delivers a timely and
appropriate response that meets their
needs, supported by effective links with
the relevant services.

Proactive and informative

Our front door will keep residents
informed with clear and regular
information which is appropriate for
their needs and circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




8 OXFORDSHIRE

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Management look like in the future (i)...

A flexible customer offer for different circumstances

The Customer Management layer will need to support the needs and wants of a wide and diverse range of residents. How the layer operates will
vary according to how passive or active residents are in their interaction with the council.

These residents are unlikely to need to contact the council There will be automation, self-serve and consistency in approach as
independently. Through proactive information and social far as possible, available 24/7 through digital channels. Notifications
media, however, they will have a better understanding of and tracking of progress will avoid repeated requests. There will be
what the Council does and where to go for information.

an assisted digital offer to help where required.

T
Q
(@)
@
'E Passive Passive but need Active but should Transactional Complex active
w engaging be passive active
Passive Active
E.g. A frequent E.g. Someone who E.g. A resident making | |E.g. Someone applying E.g. An individual with
Oxfordshire road user needs preventative several complaints for a blue badge complex learning
health inf}/‘:tion about a pothole Nii@ties

An individual may have multiple needs and sit in multiple categories simultaneously

A
Customer contact will be managed in a way that is suitable for the individual,
but aiming to provide resolution wherever possible at point of contact.
Customers will be appropriately directed based on need and risk e.g.
safeguarding concerns fast-tracked to specialist teams, minimising handoffs.
Many contacts and referrals may come from partners or other professionals.

These residents will receive more targeted information and
communications through council and partner channels on what
services are available and where to get further information.
Partners may signpost and direct this group to the council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



v T obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Management look like in the future (ii)...

Key features of future Customer Management functions

Building on the Front Office model presented on slide 68, the following diagram highlights how Customer Management functions will be delivered.

* Improved connections to to alternative provision in the Pre-Front * Digital is actively promoted as the primary contact channel.

Door. * Simple and intuitive website, with use of chatbots to automate
* Automatic email and text notifications keep customers updated. simple requests for information.

* Self-serve for ® * Professional
simple Signposting and intelligent outbound information service expertise

ERNL ST =

transactions. incorporated in

Requests for service an d information

" Single ¢ o
customer . e e : S Customer
portal for Information, advice and guidance function to
ZZ? \:i:zmg Sl S iraniiiions speclis resourc fn”c')cr':::':r:zlc;x

* Use of e-forms Service requests, transactions, applications & referrals screening or direct contacts
to replace : IR contact with * Key principle is
email, paper e Assisted digital wh:-:"l“ T;E?:ate to resolve issue
and making and provision Rules-based screening i at point of .
downloadable OF Servioes e contact to avoid
forms. PO F A —— unnecessary

* Continued handoffs
rationalisation Quality assurance, Officer follow-up, Referred complex e Customer
of phone support and validation "“':::::I';‘ o Er:ﬂ"::mnh interactions for
numbers ongoing cases

* Consolidated managed in
Customer * Assisted digital for residents who cannot self-serve and need support to access council services. operational
function for all i} * Residents are guided to complete the digital process themselves or information is taken on service areas.
initial contacts. their behalf by phone or face-to-face.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



GiT obed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Management work in the future (i)...
Digital by Design

Digital by Design is a key pillar for the Front Office of the future operating model, with channel shift, a customer portal and assisted digital
applied across all service areas.

There will be a proactive drive towards digital channels for the majority of customer interactions, minimising manual effort required for simple
requests and transactions so officer time can focus on more complex customers. A key feature will be a customer portal with a single account
that residents can use to easily access information and services.

* An easy-to-use customisable portal for the customer
based on their personal situation and preferences. “Welcome to
your account”

* Integration of front and Back Office systems to improve
the customer experience and better enable service
¢ Access to all council services through portal, including delivery by operational services.

all assessments which can be completed online. * Interaction log keeps records of all prior contact,

service requests and assessments carried out by the
council to support a single view of the customer.

* Selection of interests and preferred communication
channel to personalise engagement with the council.

Assisted Digital

Assisted digital is support for customers who can’t use online council services on their own, Face to Face

including those that are offline (without access to the internet) and those with limited digital Available at key Council locations, such as
capability. While some customers will always need assisted digital support, a key aim is to libraries and receptions. Using own device,
increase the number of people who can use digital services by themselves. self-serve kiosks or desktop PCs.

It can take the form of guiding customers to complete the digital process themselves or Telephone

entering information on their behalf, using face to face, telephone or webchat assistance. Can be guided over the phone to complete
Effective assisted digital is: 0 themselves or operator can register and

¢ Designed to meet well-defined assisted digital user needs then complete for customer.

¢ Helps users build the skills and confidence to use online channels independently

¢ |s easy for users to find — at the times and places they need it
¢ |Istrusted, free to use and easy to access

Webchat
Can support the customer through the
process when they are already online and

require intervention / support.
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE

X

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Management work in the future (ii)...

Using physical locations for customer contact
Lower cost channels such as digital will be actively promoted for the majority of residents. However, there will continue to be face-to-face

customer interactions at the front door, particularly for more complex customers. A range of delivery models can be considered, involving varying
degrees of integration of public services:

Long-term potential

i Further strategic development and closer multi- i
' agency working could lead to a more integrated place- T m---oo
In the near future through the operating i based model of public services. This would aim to .
model, designated libraries and reception i improve accessibility and experience for customers at

OCC future

§ desks will provide an enhanced face-to-face a more local level. This is beyond the implementation .

D offer. They will focus on enabling future of the operating model and would be dependent on Integrated place-based sites
= channel shift through effective digital ' theaspirations of other organisations. An integrated space for a wide
g assistance and query resolution where range of public services across

possible. Improved processes and digital Oxfordshire.
platform will help staff to meet customer Sites incorporate access to and
'r?eeds and'5|gnpost effectl\{ely. Some 0CC locality model delivery of services by the
additional services could be delivered through LA county council as well as
these sites on a case-by case basis. WARE Strategically located customer- partners such as the Districts
' facing sites provide an and Health.

expanded customer offer of Acting as ‘one-stop shops’ for
Enhanced as-is council services. residents to meet a wide range

Current model - Current locationsbetter Increased open access to sites of needs and circumstances.

Libraries and reception desks as enabled to provide effective for community events. Delivered through a small

main customer-facing locations. information, advice and Greater RN of Prg-Front number of hubs in key locations,
Door activities through sites. based on analysis of

Personalised service but staff guidance across the council

have limited tools and using improved tools and A;Z?ts'smelnt CI'_”'CZ a:'nd . demographics and needs. '
information to meet a range of technology. cloleliliplnell ielrdiciz gy 2 Supported by smaller satellite

designated hubs by where needed.

customer queries. * Consistent assisted digital offer. ;
appointment.

Inconsistent customer offer.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/T abed

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Management work in the future (iii)...

An enhanced Customer function
An enhanced Customer function will consolidate resources to undertake customer management activities. This will complement ongoing customer

interactions in service areas and support a consistent front door for customers across the whole council, regardless of contact channel. The box
diagram below represents how key responsibilities will be delivered in the future.

I Enhanced Customer function

. A virtual hub for all initial customer contacts, information and service requests to the council.

. Responsible for majority of ‘one-off’ transactions and applications, linking to services where required.
. Right mix of resource to effectively signpost, filter, resolve queries at first contact or route to services.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case 93



81T abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Management work in the future (iv)...

*Further detail on the roles set out
below is available at Appendix D.

Enhanced Customer function roles *

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for the

enhanced Customer function, undertaking Customer Management and Assessment activities as appropriate. The balance and structure of
these roles across a virtual hub and service areas will be determined during the construct phase.

Generalist

Team Manager

Customer Supervisor

. Generallst teams undertake the majority of

: information requests and service requests

: that do not required service-specific expertise.
! 1 Clear career pathways based around

i experlence in customer management.

Indicative Customer function roles

Head of Customer

P

Specialist Strategic

Specialist Team Manager Customer Analyst

Customer Development
Officer

Service Professionals

Customer Technical
Officer

Specialist Customer
Adviser

| Technical expertise to develop customer

i insights and solutions for continuous

: improvement. Additional bespoke

. | requirements can be commissioned from

. other functions, such as Business Intelligence.

1 Specialist teams for relevant service areas

E which incorporate professional expertise to
I resolve issues at point of contact wherever
|pOSSIb/e Potential career pathways into

] operat/ona/ service areas (and from them).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




61T abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Management work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

The consolidated Customer function will be required to engage, interact and develop links with other parts of the Council as well as wider

organisations on a regular basis.

Operational service areas:

* Need confidence and
assurance that the right
customers are being
directed to or away from
service areas by customer
management function.

Reciprocal development of
practice and continuous
improvement.

Potential opportunity for
cycles of experience
between customer
management function and
service areas.

Leadership and governance:

* Sets agreed business rules for how customer management activities
are delivered for the organisation.

Frontline managers to be empowered and agile in balancing volume

and quality of customer contacts at the 'Front Door". .
Support functions

(Bl / ICT / Finance):

* Ability and capacity to
develop and deliver
technical solutions which
automate, simplify and
consolidate customer
management activity.

Clarity and guidelines for Members to help resolve casework issues.

Customer function

(Customer Management)

Integrated Back Office
processes and people
capabilities which better
enable customer needs.

Some strategic and
support functions may sit

Partners and external organisations: within Customer function.

Relationship building and development for referrals to OCC.
Information sharing and integrated systems across partners.

Potential alignment / integration of initial customer management
activities with partners (ie. Health, Districts).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



0GT abed

fosess O X FO R D'S H I R E o

HY% COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this™* (i)... | /\dciiled explanation ofeach enabler required

is available at Appendix D.

Enablers*
» Agreed OCC Customer Strategy, detailing the Council’s » Cross-Council compliance and oversight with its agreed
customer offer for accessing information and services that it Customer Strategy.
provides.

» Clear navigation and guidance at the front door for members.

« Consistent policies for the ‘front door’ in line with the strategy . Effective oversight and quality assurance shared between

* Promote low-cost digital channels for all service areas, with Customer function and operational service areas.
ongoing rationalisation of telephone numbers and face-to-face

. . i ) » Appropriate delegation of decision making to frontline
contact for simple information requests and transactions.

managers in the Customer function.

» A consistent approach to Assisted Digital across the council,
providing additional support for more complex customers to
use these channels where required.

» Potential alighment and/or integration of customer
management functions with other public sector partners.

» Consistency in customer management processes regardless of « Adigital portal for customers (residents, businesses etc) which
contact channel, which will enable better alignment and enables online transactions, payments and appointment
integration with systems. bookings. This portal also keeps customers informed of the

* Clearly defined processes for the Customer function to be status of their requests and applications.

undertaken on behalf of operational service areas. » Use of chatbots and Artificial Intelligence to automate simple

TP . information requests and transactions for OCC customers.
» Simplification and automation of customer management

activities across all service areas, with a particular focus on » Developing and enhancing the number of e-forms for
minimising surrounding administrative processes. applications and service requests which are integrated with line
of service systems to minimise processing time and repeat

* Migrating initial contact handling activity by telephone and

> . . . contacts.
online from service areas into the Customer function.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



TGT abed

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (ii)... | /,icied explanation ofeach enabler required

is available at Appendix D.

Enablers cont. *

* Clear and consistent data will be captured on customer « Service-specific expertise brought into enhanced customer
demand types, volumes and contact channels utilised. function to resolve issues at first point of contact if possible.

* Smart customer segmentation and cross-council understanding  Operational service areas to focus effort on more complex
of current and predicted customer demand will inform customer management requirements and service delivery.

customer management activities and service planning. . .
& P & » Overarching management structure to ensure clarity and

» Ongoing insight on customer satisfaction and experience used consistency of customer management activities.

to improve customer management processes or service areas. . . .
* Strateglc customer focus that involves customer segmentation,

+ Use of real-time demand information and historic patterns to and predictive analytics to proactively avoid failure demand.
inform resource planning and continuously improve the
customer function to reduce failure demand.

» Putting the customer first in terms of co-creation and
development of the front door with customers in mind.

* Links to Council’s asset strategy and use of locations.

* Networking and joining up internally to understand the wider
offer from a whole council perspective.

» Cross-council trust and collaboration where this is a split in
responsibilities and accountabilities for customer interactions.

« Staff empowered by and confident in technology and digital
platforms so as they can assist customers in channel shift.

» Reflective practice built across the whole council rather than
in pockets to continuously improve customer interactions.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



ZGT obed

How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Effectiveness

Outcomes

.

Experience

Increased use of self-service and lower cost channels which reduces the cost to serve through customer
management activity.

Increased speed of service for customers who have simple information requests and service transactions.

Reduced demand on the council as a result of greater prevention and early intervention, resolving issues at first
point of contact as far as possible and minimising repeated requests for information and services.

Appropriate use of resources to undertake customer interactions according to the type and complexity of demand.

Customer management activity is consolidated around clear roles and responsibilities with a consistent approach
across the whole council.

Increased proportion of staff effort in operational service areas focused on service delivery and supporting more
complex customers instead of customer management activities.

Increased number of customers are connected to other organisations or support in local communities which best
meets their circumstances.

Simple information and service requests are addressed quickly with minimal effort by customers and council staff.
Members are well-supported when contacting the council on behalf of their constituents.

Operational service areas receive all the information they need from customer management activities to plan and
deliver an effective service for the customer.

Increased customer uptake and confidence in the use of digital channels, but utilising additional support or
alternative access where this is not possible.

Increased customer satisfaction, with feedback captured consistently and used to develop and improve customer
management on an ongoing basis.

Operational service areas report that they are confident and assured that relevant customers are entering their
services at the right time.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




52 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Management look like in practice...

*Further user stories are available at
Appendix D.

An example user story*

Peter is a 42 year- User story...

old resident and
an active user of
Oxfordshire’s
roads.

Peter Andrews .
repair.

€GT abed

* Peter has noticed a pot-hole
and traffic light issue over the
last two weeks and would like
to report them for repair.

* Peter accesses the Council
website and easily navigates to
the relevant page where he is
provided relevant information
around the reporting process
and expected timescales.

the faulty traffic light and is
informed it has already been
reported. He is shown accurate
information on progress of this

repair and schedule repair date.

Peter then enters the pot-hole
location, notices it hasn’t been
reported and progresses with
the reporting process.

Total Time: 5 minutes

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Peter inserts the street name for

What does this user story show...

“Peter has noticed multiple * Simplicity and self-service functionality of a ‘Report it’ request.
street maintenance issues
and would like to report
these to the Council for

Reduction of duplication through upfront information for pre-
existing issues such as the progress and outcomes.

Automatic notifications providing progress updates and the
ability to track progress through the digital portal.

1. Need identification 2. Information finding 3. Application 5. Close record

* Peter inserts initial pot-hole
details including estimated
depth and width before
instantly being prompted that
it is eligible for repair.

* Due to the eligibility for repair,

the e-form then requires Peter

to submit further details and
photos of the pot-hole.

* Peter is prompted to log in to
his personal customer account
before reviewing and
submitting the issue details to
the Council.

Total Time: 10 minutes

24 hours later, Peter receives
an automatic confirmation
email that his repair has been
accepted and is provided
accurate information on an
expected repair date.

Through his customer portal,
Peter tracks the status of the
repair and receives an email
notification each time this
status is updated, removing
the need to contact the
Council.

* One week later, Peter
receives a final confirmation
that his repair has been
completed and valuing his
efforts to improve
Oxfordshire’s roads.

Peter receives a request to
provide feedback on his
experience with his
comments being used to
continually improve the
process.




vGT obed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What benefits can the Council achieve through this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for Customer
Management (as part of the Front Office) can be
found in the Revised Financial Case and at Appendix F.

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

)

Rethinking how customer management
is undertaken will deliver improved
outcomes for the Council and its
Customers.

v' Customers will receive a response
which is appropriate to their
circumstances, which may be provided
by the council or an alternative
organisation.

v Greater consistency across the
organisation in how customers interact
and engage with the council.

v Improved clarity for council members
and staff on responsibilities and
connections across service areas and
with partner organisations.

v' Management of customers
continuously evolves, informed by
business intelligence and feedback from
operational service areas.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

A better experience for external
customers who interact with the
council for information and services,
as well as staff.

v' Customers can use digital self-service to
access information and services at a time
and place convenient to their lives.

v Customers will interact with
knowledgeable staff able to resolve
queries or route to the right service.

v Members will be well-supported in
finding the right support for their
constituents effectively and efficiently.

v’ Greater consolidation and
professionalisation of customer
management activities will mean
operational service staff can focus on
service delivery and customers who most
need their support.

<

Digital by Design and a Customer function
contributes to the overall financial benefits
from the Front Office.

The key benefit levers which contribute to
financial benefits through the Front Office
include:

v Proactively pushing customers to lower
cost channels

v" Reducing avoidable customer contact
with resolution at point of contact
where possible

v" Improving business processes and
integrating systems to deliver end to
end customer journeys

v Consolidating and better utilising
resources for customer management.

This helps to reduce total effort expended
on Front Office, and related Middle Office,
activities.



GGT obed

Customer Assessment



9GT abed

¢85 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is Customer Assessment...

Definition

What it is...

* Customer Assessment is a key part of the Front Office, using

‘binary’ criteria to make decisions.

* Complex assessments review information against variable
factors, with decisions being based on professional opinion.

information to decide whether and how services are provided.

* Rules-based assessments involve reviewing information against

What it isn’t...

A process which is undertaken in isolation from customer
management activities or operational service areas.

Applying a generic approach to determining need, eligibility and
provision across a range of service types and customers.

Undertaking checks of eligibility, needs or circumstances where
it is not necessary.

Eligibility

checks

r, Assessment

é' Approval of

services

Why do we need it...

268 FTEs
We currently spend approx. 268 FTEs
worth of effort on customer
assessment activities, a greater
proportion than comparator councils.

O=—) =0
[ e 3
Q=9

o—)
Inconsistency and fragmentation of

assessment processes across the
council, with a number of handoffs and
information requested multiple times.

A

Assessments can be excessive, with a risk
averse approach requiring a
disproportionate level of information from
customers and significant staff time.

o

There is uncertainty for customers and
staff about the status and outcomes of
assessments.

N

Assessments are often conducted
manually, with opportunities to automate
assessment processes and introduce
greater use of self service.

o O
e\
A proportionate approach to assessments

based on risk, quality and cost will release
staff capacity to focus on service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/ST abed

What will Customer Assessment do...

== \What is the role of Customer Assessment within the Council’s operating model?

Customer Assessment is closely integrated with Customer Management as part of the Front Office, with several requests that are dealt with
at point of contact with the council also requiring an assessment to test eligibility and type of service required. Its purpose is to ensure that
customers can access the right type and level of service to meet their circumstances at the right time as effectively and efficiently as possible.

For all assessments, eligibility checks determine
entitlement to receive or request a service, with upfront
information helping to manage demand and
expectations.

Customer Assessment

Assessment
(Complex)

Assessment
(Non-complex)

Knowledge gathering
Rules-based assessment
Determine service
provision
Recording and data entry

Quality assurance and

Eligibility checks Approval of services

Knowledge gathering Knowledge gathering Decision making

Assessments to determine extent of eligibility can be

broadly categorised into two:

Initial screening Complex assessment Outcome notification

* Non-complex assessments: These are rules-based
and relatively transactional, with information
reviewed against ‘binary’ criteria to make decisions
and limited additional judgement needed.

Determine service
provision

Routing to service

Eligibility decision
& ¥ provision

Routing for assessment Recording and data entry Decision appeals

* Complex assessments: These assessment involved
information being reviewed and judged against a
range of variable factors, with decisions being based
on professional opinion

Quality assurance and
support

Close record

support

Officer follow up /
intervention

Ongoing case The core processes for assessments are the same but
management / review the level, complexity and requirements will vary
depending on the customer and service type. There will
be consistency and use of automation as far as possible

OB Process Level 0 Process Level 1 Process Level 2 to streamline assessment processes, with divergence as

required for more complex circumstances.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



8GT abed

X

8 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

Future ambition for customer assessment

What is the Council’s future ambition for Customer Assessment...

Primarily
face-to-face,
IMELIVE]

assessments
Level of self-service
and automation

Key features of the layer have a spectrum of options for how they could be designed and delivered. The
icon below indicates the Council’s broad position for the future, with a box highlighting how this may vary.

In the future...
For non-complex assessments,

self-service, automated decision
making and consolidation of
resources will streamline effort.

For more complex customers,
service-specific expertise will be

All
assessments
undertaken
by service

Service-led or areas

ixture o Primarily
self-service self-service
with and
specialist automated
professional decision
terventioa making
onsolidati
. . Centres of
of simple
Excellence
4 assessments
. for the
T majority of
dedicated !
assessments

teams

centres of excellence

High complexity,
low frequency

Low complexity,
high frequency

involved early. Professionals will
be skilled and empowered to
determine the type and scale of
assessment required, minimising
time spent on assessment
activity as far as possible.

Customer offer

-0

Proportionate

Assessments will be proportionate and
offered at the right place at the right
time, including the use of self-service

options, all appropriate to the customer’s
circumstances.

Informed throughout

Customers will be assessed in a timely
and appropriate manner, being informed

of progress and with outcomes

explained.

v

Quality and fairness

We will be customer-centred in our
assessments with a focus on quality,
fairness and achieving the right outcome,
which will improve overall experience,
effectiveness and efficiency.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Assessment look like in the future (i)...

A flexible customer offer for different circumstances

As with Customer Management, the approach to assessment will vary according to the needs and wants of a wide and diverse range of residents.

These customers are unlikely to require any
assessment activity. However, any possible need to
contact or interact with Council is minimised e.g.
Auto-renewal for a previous simple transaction such
as parking permits.

For these customers, assessment processes are removed where not
beneficial. Automation, self-serve and consistency in approach is used as far
as possible to reduce the manual effort required. Assisted digital helps
people who need support to complete online assessments.

Passive but need
engaging

Active but should
be passive

Transactional
active

. Complex active
Passive

5
=
=
=
=

Passive Active

E.g. A frequent
Oxfordshire road user

E.g. Someone who

E.g. A resident making

E.g. Someone applying

E.g. An individual with

needs preventative several complaints for a blue badge complex learning
h/eglth information about a pothole difficulties

An individual may have multiple needs and sit in multiple categories simultaneously

/ I/

The majority of assessment effort is focused on more complex customers.
However, there will be a greater ability for residents to check eligibility
themselves. Involving specialist expertise early and a consistent approach
to screening, triage and initial knowledge gathering will enable service
areas to focus on more complex requirements and service delivery.

Integrated information across Council services and
partners makes intelligent connections. This enables
better identification for prevention and early
intervention for a range of service areas.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



09T abed

A OXFORDSHIRE
y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Customer Assessment look like in the future (ii)...

Key features of future Customer Assessment functions

Building on the Front Office model presented on slide 68, the following diagram highlights how Customer Assessment functions will be delivered.

i i §° Extended use of online eligibility checkers and self-assessments to enable customers to |

i approvalsfor | | determine likely entitlement to a service and gather information required for the assessment. i S ;
. high volume, i- If not eligible, intelligent information and signposting to alternative provision P Improved i
\ low complexity | L ’ : } | processesand |
| service i technology enable |
| requestsso | professionals i
' that the | assessing and i
| customer i screening referrals !
i receives a i and complex i
E service where | assessments. i
i criteria are i « A risk-based i
| metwithout Specielist resourme approachtothe |
| manual i B allocation of time |
HE. . 1 screening or direct I
. intervention by | ; ' contact with and resources for !
| council e © Assisted digital service areas assessments. i
i officers. ] Automated decision ‘ |
; ' i making and provision Ridler s SRR * Improved mobile |
1+ Automatic : of services and data collection for working for i
| renewalsfor | frontline staffto |
. transactional | ; reduce i
| service i Quality assurance, bl i ) : administration and |
i ;eq u'estf, and i support u:d validation d;cl::pl:::lr;z and e duplicated effort. i
i applications. | S N W N shiec iR ESeesesseeeeeny 00 RN !

* Similar assessments are standardised and consolidated where possible.

* Self-service where possible is supported by follow up

* For complex assessments, initial information gathering takes place upfront i
activities or decisions that need to be completed by officers. ]

as part of the screening process through a digital platform.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



wIrs

8% OXFORDSHIRE

% COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Assessment work in the future (i)...

Q.
i3]

T9T abed

Digital by Design

Mobile workforce

Automation

For rules-based assessments, processes to determine eligibility and provision of services where defined criteria are met can be undertaken
automatically when an application is made online. Key potential applications include the issuing of parking permits, transport passes and
blue badges within clear circumstances. This will require integration of front and Back Office systems across the OCC digital platform, as
well as robust quality assurance to monitor impact.

Customer-focused self-assessments

Customers will undertake more self-assessments on digital channels to increase their involvement in eligibility checking and assessment
processes. Self-assessments will be easy to access and understand with effective links and flags to operational service areas to capture
needs appropriately. Where relevant, a focus on existing strengths can allow additional service provision to build on these assets and
enable signposting to alternative forms of support through the Pre-Front Door.

Shared data across partners
We will take a leading role, working with key partners such as Health, in enabling customer information to be accessible in an appropriate
and secure manner to support a holistic view of service users. This will help improved collective planning and delivery of services.

Many assessments will require a range of information and professional judgement on complex situations, including assessing physical environment.
Staff will be better digital enabled to undertake these assessments more efficiently and effectively

Alternative channels for assessments
Qe jm| f

Y
()

The use of phone, Skype and photographs can be used to undertake some assessments remotely in appropriate circumstances, such
as where risk is low or conditions are stable. This streamlines the assessment process for the customer and removes staff travel time.

Enabling technology

Mobile enabled technology will allow frontline staff to better complete assessments on the move, as well as improving engagement
with customers (such as social workers completing assessments with families on visits). Speech-to-text technology can also help to
capture notes from an assessment, minimising additional effort for the staff member to write up notes back in the office.

Improved connectivity and access to systems
Enabling better internet connectivity for frontline workers by using MiFi dongles, tablets with 4G or wifi hotspots, or making use of
offline functionality, will support access to key line of business systems and reduce duplication in rekeying information.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



29T obed

OXFORDSHIRE
— @COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Customer Assessment work in the future (ii)...

An enhanced customer function
Alongside Customer Management activities, the enhanced customer function will also undertake some assessment activity. Most complex
assessment activity will take place in service areas but will not have to repeat initial screening or information gathering performed by the
Customer function wherever possible. The box diagram below represents how key responsibilities will be delivered in the future.

. Where possible, assessments automated or shifted to online channels to reduce manual involvement.
. Where assessment is required as part of initial contacts to the council, this undertakes many non-complex
assessments, eligibility checks and initial information gathering for complex assessments.

e e e e e e e e e e e e e e = —————

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

108



€97 abed

*Further detail on the roles set out

How will Customer Assessment work in the future (iv)... oclow s svaabie ot Ao €

Enhanced Customer function roles *

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for the

enhanced Customer function, undertaking Customer Management and Assessment activities as appropriate. The balance and structure of

these roles across a virtual hub and service areas will be determined during the construct phase.

Indicative Customer function roles

Generalist

H Team Manager A
QP QU@

Customer Supervisor h
g QP
ﬂ a
QU@

1 Generalist teams undertake the majority of

i information requests and service requests

I that do not required service-specific expertise.

i Clear career pathways based around
experience in customer management.

Head of Customer

Specialist

Specialist Team Manager

Service Professionals

Specialist Customer
Adviser

1 Specialist teams for relevant service areas

E which incorporate professional expertise to
| resolve issues at point of contact wherever
| possible. Potential career pathways into

1 1 . .
' ' operational service areas (and from them). !
____________________________________ ] e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ==

Strategic

Customer Analyst

Officer

Customer Technical
Officer

N

- Customer Development
«Ur

)
QP

Technical expertise to develop customer

! . . . .

vinsights and solutions for continuous

| improvement. Additional bespoke

| requirements can be commissioned from

1
I
L

other functions, such as Business Intelligence.

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




9T abed

How will Customer Assessment work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

Assessment activity undertaken by the enhanced customer function will require close engagement and collaboration with other parts of the
Council and partners.

Operational service
areas:

Clear roles and
responsibilities for
assessment across
functions.

Any triage / assessment
activity undertaken by
the Customer function
must be trusted to avoid
effort being repeated.

Clarity on the
interactions and
information previously
provided by the
customer to allow
seamless continuation of
the assessment process
by the service area.

Leadership and governance:

* Agreed business rules for a proportionate approach to assessments

based on complexity and risk. Support functions

(B1 / ICT / Finance):

* Capability through
business intelligence to
analyse and predict
assessment demand,
causes and outcomes.

Responsible for driving culture change across the whole
organisation to utilise assessment effectively as an enabler, not a
barrier or goal in itself.

Technical expertise to
develop and improve

Customer function

(Customer Assessment)

digital solutions, such as
online self-assessments.

Ongoing review and
assurance by Legal and
Finance on the business
rules established for
various assessments and
the impact on risk,
quality and cost.

Partners and external organisations:

* Potential role for partners to be trusted assessors, reducing need
for assessment activity or intervention by the council.

Information sharing and integrated systems would further
streamline processes, particularly for complex assessments.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

SIS COUNTY COUNCIL

GoT abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (i)...

Enablers*

Strategy

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix E.

Establish clear policies and business rules based on complexity
and risk which determine when and how assessments are
undertaken, aiming to minimise assessment activity and
maximise service delivery by the council or other parties.

Development of partnership working across Oxfordshire so
shared data and knowledge informs assessments, providing a
more holistic view of the customer and a seamless response
to their circumstances.

Changes to operational practice which remove unnecessary

assessment activity and promote self-assessments.

Clear upfront information on eligibility, process and timescales
to keep customer informed and updated.

Reduced handovers and gaps between contact, assessment
and service being delivered in order to support an effective
and timely response.

Simplification and consolidation of processes to streamline
complex assessments.

More agile decision making, including passporting into a
service where there is a clear need or trusted referral, to
increase effort on service delivery instead of assessment.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Governance

Organisational will and agreement to provide services
automatically without assessment in defined circumstances
(e.g. parking permits; blue badges) with retrospective quality
assurance such as spot checks, audits etc.

Appropriate delegation of decision making to frontline
managers to determine level and intensity of assessments
required.

Oversight and quality assurance to ensure statutory
requirements for assessments are sufficiently met in relation
to Adults’ and Children’s Services.

Technology

* Integration of technology and systems to support a single view
of the customer across all service areas which will underpin
assessment activity.

Customer-focused design of digital platforms and supporting
infrastructure to expand and enhance the use of online
eligibility / self-assessment tools.

Improved use of technology and connectivity for staff to
undertake assessments on the move and reduce duplicated
effort once back in the office.

Use of photos / Skype to shift assessment to remote channels.




99T abed

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (ii)... | /,icied explanation of each enabler required

is available at Appendix E.

Enablers cont. *

« Strong identity management to support single view of the Staff who undertake rules-based assessments to act as
customer and help to determine eligibility for other services navigators and connectors to other council services if
across the Council and partners. appropriate, including escalation if further expertise is needed.
* Improved access (where appropriate) to customer data across * Specialist expertise to be involved early for complex
the council and partners to improve efficiency of assessments. assessments to effectively screen, triage and route demand,
* Improved operational information for managers to better map avoiding issues and duplication further downstream.
demand to capacity and track workflows, timeliness and other * Frontline managers to be empowered and agile in balancing
performance indicators. quality and quantity of assessments.
* Insight and predictive analytics on assessment outcomes and * Capability to link assessments for similar needs or services to
root causes of demand to improve practice and service planning. improve the customer experience and reduce duplication.

* Empowering and encouraging all staff to adopt a risk based
approach to assessment and decision making, supported by
strong and supportive managers.

» Confidence to trust the work that has been done by others
and have the discipline to build on assessments rather than
redoing them.

» Creating opportunities for customers to self-assess, take
responsibility and do things for themselves where possible.

* Working with partners to share the right information, take
responsibility and be proactive in working towards joint goals.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Effectiveness

/9T abed

Outcomes

.

Experience

Reduced demand as a result of greater prevention and earlier intervention, customers receiving right level of
support when appropriate and removing repeated contacts for further information, status updates or support.

Reduced steps and handoffs in assessment processes with no duplication of information gathering, screening or
other relevant assessment activity.

A greater proportion of staff effort is focused on direct service delivery with customers and minimised for
assessment activity.

Increase in the number of assessments completed within appropriate timescales as a result of more streamlined
processes and technology.

Greater flexibility of resource across the enhanced Customer function and operational service areas to respond
flexibly to seasonable peaks in demand, such as school admissions and social care referrals in winter.

Improved service outcomes and reduced failure demand as operational services are better able to provide the
right type and level of support or intervention.

Fewer customers return for additional or similar assessments as they receive support which is appropriate to their
circumstances when they need it.

Fewer complaints and appeals due to greater clarity for customers on the assessment process and reasons for
decision.

Customers report that they have been assessed promptly, fairly and with dignity.

Customers have realistic expectations of their potential eligibility and service response through upfront
information and self-assessments tools.

Customers do not have to repeatedly tell their story or provide information in order to support an assessment.

Assessment process is seamless with minimal delays and customers are kept informed on timescales and status.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




89T abed

What will it look like in practice...

An example user story*

*Further user stories are available at Appendix E.

Rose is a 75 year
old local resident
who would like to
apply for a parking

permit.

* After recently moving to the
area, Rose decides she would
like to apply for a parking
permit.

Rose accesses the Council’s
website and easily find the
correct page to apply.

If Rose was not fully confident
with using the website, she
could call a customer adviser at
the Council who would use the
same platform and coach Rose
to use digital channels next
time.

User story...

car.”

* The application page includes
all relevant information on the
cost, timescale and criteria
around applying for a parking
permits.

Rose logs in to her customer
account before progressing
with her application.

After checking a few simple
criteria, Rose progresses to the
application e-form.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

“I have recently moved to .
Oxfordshire and would like
to sort out parking for my

1. Need Identification 2. Information Finding

What does this user story show...

The role and value of assisted digital.

A resident’s experience of an ‘Apply for it’ process with a rules-
based assessment.

Effectiveness of automation in rules based decision making and
self-service eligibility.

3. Apply for it

Rose’s personal details from her
account are pre-populated into
the application e-form and she
completes the remaining fields.

A web-chat from a customer
service agent pops up noticing
Rose is having issues completing
a few fields. With their support,
Rose is able to correctly
complete and submit the
application.

Rose receives a text notifying her
that she will hear a response
within 24 hours.

Total application time: 20 min

4. Outcome

* 24 hours later, Rose is informed

her application was accepted, she
pays via the online portal and her
parking permit is issued.

* Rose is informed her parking

permit will be auto-renewed each
year provided she confirms there
is no changes in her
circumstances.

The following year, Rose receives
a text requesting that she
confirms there has been no
change in address and
circumstances.

Rose confirms with a single text
that her circumstances have not
changed and her permit is
automatically renewed and re-
issued.




wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

* Further detail on the benefits case for Customer
Assessment (as part of the Front Office) can be found
in the Revised Financial Case and at Appendix F.

What benefits can the Council achieve through this...

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

) x

An agile, proportionate approach based
on complexity and risk will deliver
improved outcomes for the Council and

<

Digital by Design and a Customer function
contributes to the overall financial benefits
from the Front Office.

A better experience for external
customers who request or require
services or support from the council.

69T abed

its Customers.

v" Quicker decisions and provision of

support where required across all
service areas (or signposted to
alternative provision if not eligible).

v" Complex assessments which are

proportionate and informed by
appropriate expertise ensures the right
service is provided in the right way.

v' Greater involvement of customers

through self-assessment.

v Customers may not receive the

outcome they want or expect from an
assessment, but they will recognise the
process has been prompt, transparent
and fair.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

v" Customers can self-assess and check

eligibility, status and outcomes of their
assessment in quick and simple ways.

v' Assessments will capture a

proportionate amount of information
to the service being requested.

v' Customers will not have to provide the

same information multiple times to be
assessed.

v Streamlined route through assessment

to service provision.

v Efficient and effective assessments will

allow a greater focus on service
delivery, motivating operational staff.

The key benefit levers which contribute to
financial benefits through the Front Office
include:

v' Automating non-complex assessments
and greater user of self-assessments

v' Removing duplication of effort in
assessment activity, such as screening
and information gathering

v Simplifying processes and systems for
quicker assessments and decisions

v’ Using the right mix of resources to
undertake assessments and handover
into operational services.

This helps to reduce total effort expended
on Front Office, and related Middle Office,
activities.



3e. Back Office




T/ 9bed

8 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the ‘Back Office’...

The layers of the Back Office

The Back Office is primarily comprised of those business capabilities that interact with and provided enabling support to internal customers (staff
and members). It collectively refers to the bottom four layers of the Council’s TOM:

4 N
. . The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council decides how
Provision Cycle . e . e
best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome.
- J
. 4 N
Enabling & The Enabling & Support Services layer provides the Council with Enabling & Support Services that will be optimised
Support to meet the needs of internal customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and
Services S clear delineation of roles and responsibilities. )
Strategic The Strategic Capability layer provides the business capabilities that the Council requires in order to define it's
ca abilgit vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as the high level business capabilities required to support, manage
P y S and review the realisation of each of these. )
e N
Business The Business Intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including
intelligence businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.
N J

Purpose of the Back Office

The overall purpose of the Back Office is to provide those areas of the Council that deliver products and services to external customers with the
enabling services they require in order to operate (e.g. HR, Finance, Legal, ICT, Business Intelligence). In addition the Back Office also contains
those business capabilities that set, support and monitor the delivery of the Council’s strategy and that work with service areas to help them
determine the most appropriate way to meet a customer need or requirement.

There are considerable interdependencies across the Back Office layers therefore this overview sets out the overarching principles and approach
which underpins all four layers, providing the required integration and consistency for the future operating model. The design of each individual
layer and its contribution to the Back Office is then set out in more detail.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the principles that underpin its future design...

Processes

Technology

2/ T abed

Information

|
frr
Organisational
structure

(1)
L

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Back Office design principles

We will embrace the ‘digital age’ in the way in which we engage with our customers.
We will provide transparency, consistency and clarity of expectations of the strategic offerings

Our processes will be simplified, standardised and ‘self serve’ wherever possible.
Our processes will be designed around controlling risk rather than eliminating it.
We will be ‘intelligent clients’.

We will use business intelligence and policy analysis to understand our technology requirements.

We will ensure staff have the right technology to support management of information and efficient and effective
delivery of services to our customers.

We will rationalise, standardise and link our applications to support new ways of working.

We will collect and store data once, sharing between departments where appropriate.

Our staff will have access to standardised performance information and reports (in real time where possible), to
ensure consistency across the organisation.

We will use business intelligence to improve the way in which we use our information.

We will embed accountabilities at the right level to enable us to make the right decision, at the right level, at the
right time.

We will empower our staff to take ownership of the relationship with customers and to drive the delivery of
solutions.
We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.

We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.

We will empower and support our partners to utilise performance information to innovate, take measured risks
and manage demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




¢/ T abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

IR

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Back Office look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Back Office

Consistent across
the whole Council

The Back Office will provide internal
and external customers with a set of
consistent business capabilities that are
delivered on a ‘whole council basis’.
Existing silos will be broken down and
Back Office capabilities will be
consolidated and standardised where
appropriate.

Enabling

e
\

The Back Office will deliver a
responsive and high quality service to
customers. The menu of products and
services delivered by the Back Office

capabilities will be developed in
partnership with customers and will be
regularly reviewed to drive a cycle of
continuous improvement.

Powered by technology

The Back Office will be powered by
technology. This will provide customers
with easy access to the tools,
information and insight they need in
order to deliver against the Council’s
strategic objectives.

How will the functional model for the Back Office work...

The future Back Office will have standardised and consistent processes that are delivered on a whole Council basis so that the siloed,
fragmented and duplicative ways of working identified in the case for change are eliminated. Back Office capabilities will be consolidated
wherever appropriate, with close collaboration between Back Office capabilities and service areas in order to ensure that the needs and
wants of service areas are being managed and met. Technology, systems and processes will be streamlined and consideration will be given
to the most appropriate channel through which to deliver Back Office capabilities (Self-service; dedicated business partners supporting
activities for service areas; specialist corporate hub leading activities which can take place on a whole council basis).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



v/ T abed

Customer segments

Functional model

,(

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

An approach that drives consistency and efficiency but recognises specialist
requirements where they exist...

Members

The Back Office will ensure that members have access to the insight
and information they need to make, review and scrutinise decisions.
It will also support the role of members in setting the overall
direction of the Council as well as ensuring that members are clear
on who they can talk to within the Council about key issues and case

work.

The Back Office design is primarily focused on internal customers (members and staff) as the main customer segments interacting with the
business capabilities in the Back Office. The Back Office offer to its customers will primarily be focused on consistency and efficiency but will
recognise specialist needs / requirements where they exist.

A

Staff

The Back Office will provide staff with the direction, guidance and
enabling services they need to deliver services to external
customers. Services will be delivered through multiple channels
and will be standardised wherever appropriate however access to
specialist / professional support will also be available.

Self service

* Wherever appropriate Back Office
capabilities will be self service
(powered by the appropriate
technology).

* Scrutiny will be applied to all non-
self service activity to determine if it
can be shifted to this model.

Increasing use of self service and business partnering is key to the council’s Back Office model, driving consistency / efficiency and lowering cost
wherever appropriate.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Business partnering

* For more specialist / professional
Back Office capabilities there will be
increased use of business
partnering to drive the
development of professional skills /
career paths across the Back Office.

Embedded Back Office support

* Scrutiny / challenge will be applied
to all embedded Back Office
support to challenge service areas
over whether this could be
delivered through alternative, lower
cost models (where appropriate).




G/ T obed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The functional model for the Back Office of the TOM...

= Functional model for the Back Office

The model below sets out how the key functional elements of the Provision Cycle, Enabling & Support Services, the strategic capability and
business intelligence combine together to form the Back Office for the council.

E Directorates / Service areas I * The functional model for the
I o Back Office will be based on
- . the principle of self service and
Low Level of complexity High

self sufficiency wherever

appropriate. This will be driven
through investment in
technology and the use of
intelligent outbound
information.

A Intelligent outbound information

Requests for information, support and advice
Where customers do need

Information, advice, guidance |:> Specialist Back specialist support for a Back

! |
1
! i
| 1
! i
| 1
! i
! i
| 1
! i
| 1
! i
! i
| 1
! i
| 1
! |
! |
! I
Office functions 1 Office process, a business |
1 1
1 1
! i
| 1
! i
| 1
! |
! |
| 1
! |
| 1
! |
! |
| 1
! |
| 1
! |
! |
! :

- R

located preferred delivery channel

Requests and transactions E> centrally or calling on corporate resources
within service

. ' areas where needed (e.g. Business
Business partnering Administration support).

Level of manual intervention

Where requirements are more
complex, specialist Back Office
teams will be used (either
located as a corporate hub or,
where appropriate, with
service areas).

Automated Specialist input and

. . Rules based .

information . advice to Back ..
. transactions . X Specialist

and services Office transactions.

delivery of Back
Office

<

Quality transactions.
assurance and

High validation PP

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9/, T abed

&% COUNTY COUNCIL

Introducing the hub and spoke model

How will the hub and spoke model work in the council

For some business capabilities in the back office, a hub and spoke model will consolidate and co-ordinate resources at different levels to effectively
deliver Council functions. The model will be applied in different ways according to the purpose of each function.

7 Overall, using a hub and spoke model supports consistency across the whole
organisation while assuring flexibility and expertise for specific directorate or service
areas where needed. There are three key features of the model:

Directorate / Directorate /
Service B Service C

Directorate /
Service A

* Corporate hub: This type of hub leads on activities which can take place on a whole
council basis. It also sets clear policies, processes and procedures to ensure a
consistent approach across the whole organisation.

Directorate / Directorate /
Service hub Service hub

Directorate /
Service hub

* Directorate / service hubs: These hubs lead on activities requiring specific expertise
and understanding of a directorate / service, interacting with the wider service area.
The hubs consolidate related activity for their respective areas, where appropriate.
and are aligned with the consistent approach set by the corporate hub.

Corporate hub

* Spokes: The hubs must be connected by the flow of activity, information and ideas,
enabled by effective processes and technology. This exchange might also be
facilitated by Business Partners. Spokes are critical for effective collaboration
between hubs so they work collectively together.

This visual is indicative and the number of directorate/service
hubs will vary according to function.

Different hubs will take the lead in different areas

The role and scale of the corporate and directorate hubs will vary by the different functions. In order to establish the right balance between hubs
and their connecting spokes, the following principles will be considered during the Construct and Implement stage:

* Enhance functional expertise — Corporate hubs will consolidate resources, where appropriate, to grow functional expertise that can operate
across the whole council and build best professional practice.

* Maximise cross-council co-ordination — The balance between the hubs will reduce fragmentation and enable more cross-cutting opportunities
and use of resources across the whole council.

* Responsive to service needs — All hubs will be able to deliver against and adapt to the requirements of operational service areas while
maintaining agreed levels of consistency across the whole council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/1T abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How Back Office functions will be delivered in the TOM...

A blended approach to delivering Back Office functions

In order to effectively address the wide range of services types, requests and needs that service areas across the Council require from the Back
Office, a blended approach will taken to delivering these function in a consistent manner.

The three main approaches are highlighted below, along with the main functions that they will undertake in the TOM.

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Main chanm?ls into [ 5./ine E Mobile ® Email \‘ Phone e\ Face to face
the Back Office: aa - ap
Self service Business partnering Specialist functions

Information, advice, guidance

Information, advice, guidance

Information, advice, guidance

Simple transactions More complex transactions Most complex transactions

Specialist delivery of Back Office
transactions.

Requests for support Rules based transactions

Specialist input and advice to Back Office
transactions.

Automated information and services

Quiality assurance and validation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

* Further detail on the benefits case for the Back

What benefits can the Council achieve through this... | ofice canbe foundinthe revised Financial case

and at Appendices G - J.

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

) £ <

A simplified and consistent Back Office
will deliver improved outcomes for
Council staff and members.

A better experience for staff and
members who interact who are
customers of the Council’s Back Office.

Benefits of £5.4m — £7.9m per annum
through moving to a standardised model
for Back Office functions and consolidation
of effort where appropriate.

v' Customers interacting with the Back

v’ Digital channels and simpler ways of v Through moving to a standard and

8/ T abed

Office will receive the right support
they need, through a convenient
channel and within a time frame that
they understand.

Customers can access appropriate
information and services more easily
and quickly, so issues do not escalate
and take up more time and resources
than initially required.

v" The offer from the Back Office to

services will continuously improve as a
result of better insight and
understanding across the whole council
of needs and demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

working will make it easier for staff and
members to access information and
complete transactions.

v’ Staff will experience a seamless journey
across Back Office functions powered
by appropriate technology and simple
processes.

v’ Staff will have a clearer understanding
of the service offer available to them
from Back Office functions and where
to go when they need support with
more complex queries and
transactions.

consistent model for the delivery of Back
Office functions the Council can
eliminate much of the inefficiency,
duplication and fragmentation of effort
highlighted in the case for change.

In addition, through consolidating effort
spent on Back Office functions, where
appropriate, the Council could achieve a
reduction in effort of between 129 - 177
FTE per annum.



6.1 abed

Provision Cycle



08T abed

( 7(

Definition

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Provision Cycle...

What it is...

The Provision Cycle refers to the framework of processes and
activities through which the Council decides how best to meet
an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including
commissioning, contracting and the management of third party

What it isn’t...

The Provision Cycle is not a ‘one size fits all’ approach to making
decisions about how the Council will provide products and

services. It will adapt to circumstances, particularly in situations
involving discussion and decision making with external partners.

suppliers.

capabilities:

* The Provision Cycle is comprised of the following business

QCommissioning ? Procurement \E Contract

Management

* A decision making capability in of itself. The Provision Cycle
provides the framework through which services can make
decisions. It does not remove accountability or responsibility
from services.

Why do we need it...

111 FTEs

We currently spend approx. 111 FTEs
worth of effort on the Provision
Cycle.

We have a lot, 4,300, of low value
suppliers where we are only spending
an average of £17.8k per year.

&
The effort we spend on the Provision Cycle

is highly fragmented across directorates,
services, teams and roles.

164,000 Transactions

We process over 164,000 transactions
relating to the Provision Cycle each year.

<
We spend approximately £400m on goods

and services from over 4,500 external
suppliers each year.

\'s

We do not have a consistent approach to
managing the delivery of the ‘Provision
Cycle’ across the Council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




T8T abed

2859 OXFORD S HI RE. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Provision Cycle do...

== What is the role of the Provision Cycle within the Council’s operating model?

The Provision Cycle provides a consistent framework of business Level 2 business process delivered through the Provision Cycle
processes and sub-processes through the completion of which the

Council makes decisions about how it will deliver and manage the Identify

products and services it requires in order to achieve its strategic Identification of a need to achieve a specific outcome (Council,
objectives. Directorate, Service, Team)

A description of the level 2 business processes delivered across the Analyse

Provision Cycle is shown opposite.
Analysis of the options available to achieve the required outcome.
Decision through appropriate governance on course of action,
such as to commission, provide in-house or alternative model.

Prepare

Preparation of required documents and materials.

Tender

Execution of tender process if required for chosen option.

Manage

(e
Prepa Management of the contractual arrangements.

The Provision
I Cycle

Review
A visual representation of the Provision Cycle....

Review of whether the chosen option has achieved the outcome.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



28T obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s future ambition for Provision Cycle...

Future ambition for the Provision Cycle

Commissioning,
Procurement and
Contract
Management are
entirely done by

specialist teams.

Specialism
Commissioning,
Procurement and
Contract
Management are
devolved and
. operated in each
Location service.

There is a mixed
economy of self
service and
specialist teams
as appropriate.

Key features of the layer have a spectrum of options for how they could be designed and delivered. The
icon below indicates the Council’s broad position for the future, with a box highlighting how this may vary.

o v

Whole council
accountability and
devolved delive
of commissionin|
procurement an

contract

WELELEINENS

In the future the Council will
have...

* A mixed economy of specialist
teams and self service
depending on area of the
Provision Cycle (e.g. specialist
procurement capability).

*  Whole Council oversight of the
Provision Cycle with a hub —
spoke functional model based
on skills needed.

Customer offer

@
[ ] [ ]
i
Members
The Provision Cycle will
ensure that officers engage
with members when

considering how to meet

identified needs and
outcomes.

Staff

The Provision Cycle will
enable staff to make
informed decisions about
how to provide, and
manage, products and
services to residents.

4]

Businesses
The Provision Cycle will
enable the Council to
provide businesses with
clear and consistent
messages about the strategic
commissioning direction of
the Council.

L34

Residents
The Council will consult
residents on changes to services
which are commissioned to
meet their needs, considering
co-production work where
appropriate.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




€8T abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following design principles have been used to drive the design of the
Provision Cycle as part of the Council’s TOM (i)...

Provision Cycle design principles

Customer
offering

We will embrace the ‘digital age’ in the way in which we engage with our customers.
We will work with our customers, where appropriate, to identify needs, describe outcomes and design services.

We will hold a ‘single record’ for each of our customers (including partners and businesses) that will make it easier
for them to work with us.

We will design processes around the user and their experience, enabling self-service at every opportunity.
Our processes will be simplified, standardised and automated wherever possible.

Our processes will be designed around managing risk rather than eliminating it.

Technology

Systems, applications and infrastructure will be designed around business need, with a consistent approach to
functional requirements.

We will be less reliant on property and paper for the delivery of services to our customers.

We will rationalise, standardise and link our applications to support new ways of working.

Information

The decisions we make will be informed by sound business intelligence and data analytics
We will collect and store data once, sharing between departments where appropriate.

Our staff will have access to standardised performance information and reports (in real time where possible), to
ensure consistency across the organisation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following design principles have been used to drive the design of the
Provision Cycle as part of the Council’s TOM (ii)...

Provision Cycle design principles cont.

*  We will embed accountabilities at the right level to enable us to make the right decision, at the right level, at the
right time.

-
T T
Organisational
structure

*  We will provide transparency, clarity and consistency on roles and expectations across the organisation.

*  We will consolidate strategic and common functions with a clear purpose, maintaining flexibility in local delivery.

8T abed

YY) *  We will empower our staff to take ownership of the relationship with customers and to drive the delivery of
T solutions.

People *  We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.
capabilities

*  We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.

* We will empower and support our partners to utilise performance information to innovate, take measured risks
and manage demand.

Performance
Management

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Provision Cycle look like in the future (i)...

Key characteristics of the Provision Cycle in the future

Consistent Enabling Powered by technology

The provision
cycle

1.

GgT abed

e
prep®
Provision Cycle activities are The business capabilities within the Technology will be at the heart of the
delivered in a standardised and Provision Cycle will provide end users future Provision Cycle providing end
consistent across the whole of the (both within and outside the Council) with users with easy access to the tools,
Council. a responsive and quality service. information and insight they need to

make the right decision about how to
meet the needs of the Council’s
customers.

How will the functional model for the Provision Cycle work...

The Provision Cycle, delivered on a consistent whole Council basis, will enable the Council to achieve its ambition of having a consistent,

leading practice, framework for making decisions about how to deliver and manage the many complex products and services it requires in
order to achieve its strategic objectives.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



0gT abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

What will the Provision Cycle look like in the future (ii)...

Centralised, hub - spoke, or devolved?

The placement of the business capabilities that make up the Provision Cycle within the organisation is important if stakeholders are to have the
confidence that the proposed model will provide them with the responsive, high quality service, that they need in order to meet the needs of

the Council’s customers.

Even with consistent processes, enabling technology and the right people with the right skills, if the business capabilities are not properly

aligned to the service areas they support, their impact and purpose becomes harder to realise.

Three organisational models were considered, each with pros and cons, with the hub — spoke model being preferred as this was considered to
offer the best way to achieve the Council’s ambition for the Provision Cycle.

Central hub

°' Strong corporate oversight of

commissioning, procurement and
contract management activity.

* Facilitates more effective governance
and compliance as there is only ‘one
way of doing things’.

Hub - spoke

' Provides strong structure to leverage

spend and category expertise
effectively across the organisations

* Corporate oversight facilitates
deployment of good practice,
standard processes and tools

" Loss of service / operational

autonomy, control and
responsiveness.

* Challenge around maintaining
specialist service knowledge and skill
sets.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* Can lead to multiple interfaces with
the supplier/internal customer

* Relies on collaboration from services
to support Provision Cycle activity led
by the hubs.

- Preferred option

Devolved

°- Retains service operational

autonomy, control and
responsiveness

‘- There is limited corporate oversight
of commissioning, procurement and
contract management outside of
finance / budgetary controls.




/8T abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Provision Cycle work in the future (i)...

The functional model for the Provision Cycle

Directorate / Service A

_ Directorate / Service C
Directorate / Service Directorate / Service
Provision Cycle hub Provision Cycle hub

Corporate Provision Cycle hub

Corporate Provision Cycle hub

* Provides functional / professional leadership for all Provision Cycle activities with clear
roles and responsibilities.

* Provides standard policies, processes, procedures and templates for Provision Cycle.

* Coordinates and oversees governance of the Provision Cycle drawing on resources from
directorate / service hubs to make timely decisions on appropriate course of action.

* Leads on those activities within the cycle that can be delivered on a whole Council basis
(e.g. spend analytics, tendering etc).

* Coordinates engagement with other Enabling & Support Services as required (e.g.
Finance, Legal, ICT).

Directorate / service Provision Cycle hub

* Provides dedicated Provision Cycle
resource to directorates / service
areas based on level of expenditure,
complexity of product / service and
contractual landscape.

* Consolidates, where appropriate,
Provision Cycle activities taking place
within directorate / service areas.

* Works to the Provision Cycle policies,
processes, procedures and templates
set by the corporate Provision Cycle
hub therefore driving consistency
across the Council.

* Roles and responsibilities are clearly
defined and are consistent with the
professional / functional model set by
the Corporate Hub.

* Line management can be provided by
Directorate / Service area or it can be
provided by the Corporate Provision
Cycle hub.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




88T abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Provision Cycle work in the future (ii)... | .iuer detai on the teht siing methodology i

available at Appendix G.

Sizing the effort required*

Through the application of benchmarks, such as those published by CIPS and Gartner*, we are able to apply a ratio of addressable spend
against the FTE required to manage those activities as a starting point for right sizing the effort required to deliver the Provision Cycle in the
Council’'s TOM.

This benchmark is generally accepted as approx. £10 - 15m of addressable spend per procurement and contract management FTE*

Applying the benchmark

The spend analysis completed as part of the operating model assessment identified that...

@®» \We have an addressable spend of Of this expenditure is classified Of our top 20 suppliers by
E approx. £400m i 50‘y i 0, ifi
. per year with 0+ as Adults, Childrens or 0 spend classified as Adults
external suppliers. Healthcare. Social Care.

Applying the £10 - 15m addressable spend per FTE to the Council’s £400m addressable spend baseline gives a target FTE of approx. 27 - 40.

Populating the hubs

Taking the Council’s current addressable spend we are able to identify that the Council has 3 broad categories of expenditure and that the
target Provision Cycle FTE could be apportioned accordingly.

[ ] .
1|'  Health & Social Care < pjgce, infrastructure & environment 4 Corporate Services
lb‘J £280m | | £80m I £40m

19-28 FTE 5-8FTE 3-4FTE

Further analysis will be required during the construct phase to confirm the category structure and agree the distribution of effort across the
proposed directorate / service hubs and the corporate services hub.

Detail on the different roles that will be required to successfully deliver the Council’s ambition for the Provision Cycle is shown on the next
slide.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



68T abed

How will the Provision Cycle work in the future (iii)... | .fimer detan onthe roles setout belows

available at Appendix G.

Provision Cycle roles *

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for the
Provision Cycle. The balance and structure of these roles across the corporate Provision Cycle hub and the directorate / service hubs will be
determined during the construct phase.

Indicative Provision Cycle roles

a Head of Provision Cycle

Category Manager .
Strategic Contract Manager

Sub-Category Manager Strategic Contract Officer

Strategic Contract Support
Officer

Sub-Category Officer

(o (O (o

NV 1T IaVANII]sIe]ad A/l roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team
Officer size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).

(o (o (D (o

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



06T abed

How will the Provision Cycle work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

Operational service areas:

Provision Cycle hubs work
in partnership with service
areas to support and input
into critical Provision
Cycle decisions and enable
the effective delivery of
outcomes.

Directorate / service area
Provision Cycle hubs
provide dedicated
resource to directorates /
service areas based on
level of expenditure,
complexity of product /
service and contractual
landscape.

Leadership and governance:

* Corporate Provision Cycle hub provides functional / professional
leadership for all Provision Cycle activities with clear roles and
responsibilities.

Coordinates and oversees governance of the Provision Cycle drawing
on resources from directorate / service hubs.

Clear decision points for courses of action throughout Provision Cycle.

The Provision Cycle

Partners and external organisations:

* Provision Cycle hubs work with, and enable the rest of the
organisation, to work in as close and collaborative way with its
partners as possible (e.g. through the sharing of market insight and
supplier information)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Support functions
(B1 / ICT / Finance):

Corporate Provision Cycle
hub works alongside other
enabling services (Legal,
Finance and ICT) to ensure
that they bring a
consistent and joined up
approach to working with
service areas.

A multi-disciplinary
approach is embedded at
the heart of the offer
enabling services make to
the wider organisation.




T6T abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this (i)...

Enablers*

Strategy

fosess O X FO R D'S H I R E o

SIS COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix G.

A documented Provision Cycle strategy, signed-off at cabinet,
is needed to guide activity across the organisation.

Category sourcing strategies need to be in place for all major
categories of spend.

The role of the Provision Cycle across the organisation will
encompass advanced value levers like demand management,
design and specification, make vs. buy, transportation and
supplier performance management.

Clear and consistent strategies for when the Provision Cycle
involves discussion and decision making with external partners

Simplified and standardised processes are required that drive
whole organisational involvement at the earliest stage of
product/service development.

A formal contract management framework, integrated within
the Provision Cycle strategy, is needed.

Continuous improvement must be a core feature of all
supplier management tasks and must feature in all major
contracts held by the organisation.

Governance

» Policies and procedures need to be in place governing activity
across the cycle. These need to be reviewed and examined
regularly to ensure best practices are employed.

» Benefits and savings reported through the Provision Cycle
need to be regarded as accurate and trusted by senior
management.

* Regular audits will need to take place to monitor compliance
with actions to address non-compliance taken.

+ Standard reporting will need to be produced monthly to
identify off contract and non contract spend.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Technology

 eSourcing applications need to be deployed to support across
the Provision Cycle.

* Payment performance must be measured and reported across
operational units and actions taken to address issues.

* The benefits delivered through the Provision Cycle must be
clearly understood and benefit management tools must be
routinely used across the organisation.




26T abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this (ii)...

o

Enablers cont. *

AT O X FO R D 'S HI R E. o
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix G.

An organisational culture that recognises that there is a
‘collective responsibility’ for determining how the needs and
wants of customer are met.

A compliance oriented culture where expectations are clear
around the processes and activities that services must
undertake when determining how to deliver products /
services.

A value focused and collaborative culture where leaders are
proactive in seeking support and challenge from other areas
of the organisation to inform Provision Cycle decisions.

Being prepared to take risks and be agile, learning from
initiatives that do not work to improve the ones that do.

Data needs to be available in a single database and common
business information tools must be accessible to users, e.g.
dashboards to monitor organisation actions.

Where appropriate data should be consolidated so that
applications receive master data from a single source.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

People & Structure

» An appropriately sized Provision Cycle organisation structure
needs to be in place to support the Provision Cycle strategy.

Category teams must be in place for all major spend categories.
There needs to be flexibility within structure to move junior
resources between teams and allocate resources to support
projects.

Co-located Provision Cycle resources must support specific
operational needs.

» Regular communications should be provided to the
organisation providing updates on new suppliers/contracts,
supplier performance issues, supply market news and changes
to processes and procedures.




How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Effectiveness

€6T abed

Outcomes

.

Effectiveness

The Provision Cycle provides the Council with a consistent, leading practice, set of processes and activities for
deciding how to meet, and manage, a recognised need.

Financial, performance and contractual data are all used to challenge the organisation to provide services in the
most efficient way while maintaining quality.

The Council is able to allocate resources to those areas of the business that have the greatest need based on
spend, risk, demand etc.

The Provision Cycle enables greater collaboration and multi-disciplinary working between Service Areas and the
Corporate Hub.

The Provision Cycle drives the sharing of leading practice across the whole organisation breaking down legacy
silos.

Greater central oversight/ awareness and documentation of key contractual risk areas and mitigating actions.
There is a reduction in the number of failed or failing contracts.

Contracts are re-tendered in plenty of time before contract expiration allowing for the proper assessment of
options in line with Corporate / Service strategic objectives.

The organisation is able to demonstrate value for money and identify opportunities to increase value where
current arrangements are falling short.

Practice across the Provision Cycle continuously reviewed for alternatives and innovation.

Greater opportunities to share good practice across the centrally managed team and ensure that all staff are
carrying out optimal processes.

More effective central procurement training and staff performance management enhances service delivery.

When a contract is not performing, there is clear evidence of the corrective action and mitigation taken.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




What will the Provision Cycle look like in practice...

*Further user stories are available at Appendix G.

An example user story*

User story... What does this user story show...

David is a
manager in the
estates team,
specialising in
facilities
management.

“A cleaning contract is * Areview of a contract’s value for money, historical performance
coming to an end, | want to and forecasting, and decision making in respect of future
determine who should contracting options

provide cleaning services in
the future”.

David Smith

The involvement of different teams in each step of the contract
review process.

1. Conduct a review 2. Assess contract 3. Consider alternatives 4. Consider extension 5. Completion

v6T obed

* One of the officers within

the Provision Cycle hub,
Anna, contacts David to

inform him that a cleaning
contract is up for renewal.

* Anna then starts to gather

evidence from David
about the supplier’s
performance to inform a
decision about the future
of the contract, and also
gathers previous supplier
management reviews and
information on other

cleaning contracts held by

the Council.

* Anna works with David
and his team to
undertakes an
assessment of whether
the current supplier has
performed well against
their current contract
requirements, sharing
the outcome of the
review with David’s
operational team.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* Anna then uses the
information provided by
David along with her
own contract review
outcomes to decide
whether the current
cleaning supplier is
providing value for
money, or if alternative
suppliers /
commissioning models
need to be explored in
order to improve the
quality of support in
future.

* Anna (in collaboration
with David) concludes
that the current contract
is providing the Council
with good value for
money, and so she
assesses whether a
contract extension is
permissible.

* Following the relevant
approvals, Anna takes the
terms and requirements of
the extended contract to the
relevant board for approval.

* Following approval, David,
Anna and other relevant
stakeholder begin to
negotiate the contract

* The contract can be extension with the supplier.

extended. Anna and

David seek the required

approvals from David’s

service director.

* Once negotiations are
completed the team seeks
approval from from the
Delegated Authoriser.



G6T obed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the benefits of doing this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for the
Provision Cycle can be found in the Revised
Financial Case and at Appendix G.

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

)

Adopting a consistent approach to the
delivery of the Provision Cycle will
deliver improved outcomes for the
Council and its Customers.

v’ Clearer alignment and understanding
of how commissioning decisions align
to the Council’s strategy.

v’ Better value through more effective
and proactive procurement and
management of contracts.

v' Better management of risks relating
to contracting and procurement
regulations.

v" Reduced spend through better
category management and control.

v" The Council is agile with an ability to
engage with widest range of
providers, such as CVS and SMEs as
required to best meet service need.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

£

A better experience for staff who are
making decisions about how to meet
an identified need or requirement.

v' Simple, standardised and automated
processes for staff to follow.

v’ Fit for purpose technology providing
staff with access to the information
they need to make decisions.

v’ Clear, proportionate and enabling
governance processes that support
decision making rather than obstruct it.

v" Improved access to specialist
procurement and contract
management resources.

v Alignment of specialist procurement
and contract management resources to
areas of highest need

<

The Council could achieve benefits of
£0.98m — £2.16m per annum through
consolidating Provision Cycle effort,
where appropriate, and moving towards
a consistent model for delivering the
Provision Cycle.

v' Reduction in FTE of between 15 — 28
through consolidating Provision Cycle
effort.

v Further reduction in FTE of between 6 —
17 through move towards consistent,
standardised model for delivery
enabled by process, technology and
information.

v' Potential for 3" party spend benefits of
between £1.5m - £3.9m through
proposed model and improved
management of spend.



96T abed

Enabling & Support Services



/6T abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What are Enabling & Support Services...

Definition

What it is...

HR - Provision of HR support including resource requirements and competencies to meet planned and projected service demand. Including
recruitment, training and staff development activities within the department.

Finance - Financial management for example budget cycles, management accounting reports, internal audit functions and completion of final

accounts.

Legal - Provision of legal advisory services in the Council. This definition is used only for those responsible for the provision of professional
legal and court services, and Democratic Services.

Business Administration Support BAS- Provision of support to services through multi-disciplinary teams with administrative, clerical and
secretarial skills alongside specialist knowledge within the service or support service line

ICT - The provision, maintenance and development of ICT services and assets

Why do we need it?

Overall, OCC staff spend a higher
percentage of time on Enabling &
Support Services than staff in other
councils.

91.64%

3915 individual roles who allocate some
time to Enabling & Support Services
which is 91.64% of all roles in the
organisation

&
Some process areas are highly

fragmented and dispersed, meaning lots
of staff are ‘having a go’

There is a lack of consistency in service

delivery due to so many different ways of
working across the council

Administration is the largest area of
Enabling & Support Services with 81% of
roles allocating a portion of their time to

this activity.

(]
(] (]
s
Customers of the layer — internal and
external — can become frustrated by

some processes and technology —
resulting in reduced satisfaction levels.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s future ambition for Enabling & Support Services...

=== Future ambition for Enabling & Support Services

Key features of the layer have a spectrum of options for how they could be designed and delivered. The
icon below indicates the Council’s broad position for the future, with a box highlighting how this may vary.

Functions
devolved and
operated
within

Service led or whole services
council

Recognition that the delivery of

T e : !3u5|ne§s & Admlnlstratlon Support

accountability , ) in particular will be more complex

an‘i d|‘?"°"’ed \ and it is key that specialist service
SHEH knowledge is not lost

A ‘whole council’ approach is broadly in place for HR, Finance, ICT and Legal and the ambition is to

86T obed

Entirely done
by specialist
teams

Self serve or specialist teams

strengthen this and remove inconsistency of activity taking place within service areas

Mixed The level of expertise and
economy, = specialism associated with some of
self service 5) the functions means many activities
; should not be devolved to staff
outside of the core function.

and specialist:

Move towards more increased self service, where appropriate and where technology can enable

Customer segments and customer offer

Key customer segments

. Staff have the highest
influence on the
services and the impact
of change to this area
will be seen most
prominently here.

ICT, HR, Finance and
Legal generally serves
internal customers.

N ~

Business

Partners

Customer offer

* Customers want a service that is both easy to use and understand so that they
can help themselves quickly and easily.

* Customers want simple signposting to clear and complete guidance so that
they can ensure they are complying with relevant procedures, governance and
regulations.

* |If specialist support is needed, customers want to receive a professional,
consistent service with timely responses.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




66T abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following design principles have been used to drive the design of the
Enabling & Support Services as part of the Council’s TOM...

Enabling & Support Services design principles

@)

Customer offering

Processes

Technology

2

Information

|
i

Organisational structure

(14
L/ N\

People capabilities

Performance
Management

We will design our customer management approach to embrace the digital age

Our processes will be simplified, standardised and ‘self serve’ wherever possible.
Our processes will be designed around controlling risk rather than eliminating it.

We will be less reliant on property and paper for service delivery.
We will rationalise, standardise and link our applications to support new ways of working.

We will collect and store data once, sharing between departments where appropriate.
Our staff will have access to standardised performance information and reports (in real time where possible), to
ensure consistency across the organisation.

We will embed accountabilities at the right level to enable us to make the right decision, at the right level, at the
right time.

We will empower our staff to take ownership of the relationship with customers and to drive the delivery of
solutions.

We will empower and support our partners to utilise performance information to innovate, take measured risks
and manage demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




00¢ abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Enabling & Support Services look like in the future (i)...

Key characteristics of Enabling & Support Services in the future

A new business
administration function

N

7\

A ‘whole council’ business
administration support function
that is centrally managed,
demand led, flexible and drives
self-service / business partnering
across the Council.

Development of functional
teams to support delivery of
key processes

)

Demand led functional teams
which support the whole council
— driving consistency and
efficiency. New teams are
implemented as the business
need is identified (e.qg.
recruitment).

Targeted improvements to
key processes

Process improvement principles
(simplification, standardisation
and automation) applied to key
high volume processes e.g. use
of procurement cards to
eliminate high volume, low
value transaction costs.

How will the functional model for enabling and support service work...

The Enabling & Support Services layer of the Council’s TOM will have standardised and consistent processes that are delivered, where
appropriate, on a whole Council basis so that the siloed, fragmented and duplicative ways of working identified in the case for change are
eliminated. Enabling & Support Services capabilities will be consolidated wherever appropriate, with the development of a new business
administration and support function and the development of key functional teams to support service areas with more complex transactions.
Technology, systems and processes will be streamlined wherever appropriate and consideration will be given to the most appropriate
channels through which to deliver Enabling & Support Services activities (self-service, business partnering, corporately).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




TOg abed

What will it look like in the future (ii)...

The functional model for Enabling & Support Services

R O X FO R D 'S HI R E. o

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

The model below sets out how the council’s key enabling and support capabilities will work together to form the Enabling & Support Services
layer of the Council’s TOM.

Self service activity is
pushed out to staff
where appropriate and
where technology

Enabling & Support Services

A one council BAS
service which is
centrally managed.

Virtual teams to enable
consistent management
and flexibility of
resource where co
location is not
appropriate

Local on-site presence
at some locations
where appropriate to
allow the service to
operate

permits. N o A\ A\ A
HR eg
A strengthened
Business Partnering = ®
approach building trust 0 Ad A
and working together —
providing primarily
strategic advice. Cofinty Hall Location B i
8 ty Functional Teams Operationgiyentres
Teams are co located /ﬁilled team 1 Skilled team 1 Scanning
4 i it 7 Personal Support
and provide support to
P . pl:? /’ Skilled team 2 Skilled team 2 FOI & Cyplaints
a consistent service / Others
men_u _ with ?ddltlonal Skilled team 3 ) Meeting Support
specialisms aligned to Location C
services eg Finance and Skillgyeam 4 Skilled team 1
recruitment.
/
/
/

A mix of skills levels
within each team from
apprentices through to
Senior BAS officers.

/

Please note:
The identified teams, number of locations and Business Partners are for illustrative
purposes only

Demand led functional
teams which support
the whole council —
driving consistency and
efficiency. New teams
are implemented as the
business need is
identified (eg high
volume activity).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




20z abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Enabling & Support Services work in the future (i)?

Self service &
the IBC

Business
Partners

BAS service

Recruitment
team

Process redesign
across the
functions

Key features of the functional model for Enabling & Support Services

All staff across the council will utilise the appropriate technology to help themselves
The point at which an activity becomes non self service will be identified eg volume, complexity, role.
Detail on the current capability of the IBC and the requirements of it for the TOM are provided in section 4.i.

Strategic business partners in relation to HR, Finance, BAS and ICT
The roles will be more clearly defined so staff across the council understand the role of Business Partners
Business Partners will build strong relationships with service areas while being an advocate for their function

BAS to become a professionalised service with clear development opportunities and a defined career path
centrally managed by an overall Service Manager who also has the role of Business Partner who reports into CLT
Services will be delivered consistently against a generic service menu

The service menu will be supplemented by Service Specific service menus which define specialist administration
for services — developed in conjunction with the customer to understand strategic priorities

Functional teams support the whole council in a particular activity, rather than being aligned to a service

There is an ambition to go paperless as far as possible with the introduction of a scanning team which scans and
distributes all applicable post

A team of officers based within a BAS team will coordinate FOI & Complaints and liaise with Legal and the Access
and Disclosure officers. Reponses will be uploaded to the internet where appropriate and requests will be
monitored to understand trends and publish additional data which is repeatedly requested.

A council wide recruitment team will be implemented which is able to support high volume and complex
recruitment processes

Providing guidance to business partners on future trends (eg retirement) and forecasting recruitment implications
Introduction of a ‘pool of talent’ database of previous applicants CVs — enabling coordinators to identify individuals
who may be suitable for current identified vacant posts

A number of processes have been redesigned across HR, Finance, Legal and ICT to deliver efficiencies and new
ways of working — this approach can be applied across the enabling and support functions.
As far as possible the IBC processes will be reviewed to enable the layer

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




€0¢ abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Enabling & Support Services work in the future (ii)...

*Further detail on the roles set
out below is available at
Appendix H.

Enabling & Support Services roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required. The balance and structure of these roles across the

will be determined during the construct phase.

Indicative Enabling & Support roles

BAS Service Manager &
Business Partner

(ot (ot

h BAS Operational Lead ﬁ BAS Team Leader
L
a Senior BAS officer g BAS Officer

h BAS Assistant a BAS Apprentice
U

Business Administration Services Recruitment — within HR

Resourcing Manager

Resourcing Advisor

Workforce Planning Officer

Marketing Officer

i I' Recruitment Co-ordinator

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

. _ _ size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




0z abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Enabling & Support Services work in the future (iii)...

Enabling & Support Services roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required. The balance and structure of these roles across the

will be determined during the construct phase.

HR

HR Officers

(o (o

-
UP
HR Support Business
Officers Advisors

Indicative Enabling & Support roles

Legal

Director of HR Director of Law and
Monitoring

HR Business h .. h .
Partners Solicitors Barristers
Legal Legal
Assistants Secretaries
V'Y Services Officers

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Enabling & Support Services work in the future (iv)...

Enabling & Support Services roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required. The balance and structure of these roles across the
will be determined during the construct phase.

Indicative Enabling & Support roles

o Finance ICT
QO
(@]
@ Director of Finance Director of ICT and
N Digital
o
& Business Partners o] i off | Service Delivery M Business
Inance Icers . Partners
Officers
Qe QP %P «P
Assistant Business a Analysts a Engineers
Managers Advisors
h Accountants ’\ Auditors h IT Consultants a Digital Officers
ap & «p

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

. _ _ size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




90¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Enabling & Support Services work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

Operational service areas:

Business partners will
build strong relationships
within service areas while
acting as advocates for
their function.

The functions within
Enabling & Support
Services will understand
the customer
requirements and agree
the strategic priorities
together. This ultimately
provides services which
are flexible and evolve
over time to meet the
changing requirements of
service areas.

Leadership and governance:

* Following the agreement of strategic priorities, where appropriate

there will be a focus on compliance with some training and
processes mandatory with defined consequences for lack of
compliance.

Enabling & Support
Services

Partners and external organisations:

* Roles and responsibilities will be defined to avoid ambiguity e.g
recruitment process documented with key contacts identified to
enable relationship building.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Support functions
(Bl / ICT / Finance):

Will work closely together
to understand the priority
areas of Bl that will
provide the greatest level
of insight.

Staff will have access to
information and training
to help them navigate the
various processes in
relation to Enabling &
Support.




/0¢ abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this?...

Enablers*

2% COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix H.

Need for new robust and accountable governance.

The implementation of service menus in some functions to
enable staff to challenge non value add activities.

Clearly defined individual responsibilities allowing for clearer
visibility and accountability.

Consequences for non compliance

Where appropriate, some training should be mandated. A
training and capability framework should be developed to
ensure managers and staff have the skills to deliver.

Implementation of a case management system to enable staff
and customers to track their queries

Development of further middleware to enable systems to
speak to each other.

Improved business intelligence and analytics capability in order
to use data i.e. budgets, service issues etc. to drive the layer’s
future decisions

Training for staff to use technology effectively.

Publishing FOI responses online where appropriate to do so.

Significant process re-engineering and continuous improvement
with staff able to challenge ways of working.

Manual spreadsheets which have been built into processes
should be reviewed and stopped.

Authorisation levels within processes should be reviewed to
determine if they are necessary and effective — this could
streamline many processes and reduce unnecessary delays.

IBC

The IBC is a critical enabler for this layer of the operating
model.

Review each of the processes linked to the IBC to redesign and
streamline as much as possible — there are restrictions in
capability and compatibility resulting in many manual work
arounds — this needs to be overcome as much as possible to
increase efficiency.

Identify what business intelligence the IBC is able to provide.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




80¢ abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this?...

Enablers cont.*

&% COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix H.

Performance management Culture

Enabling & Support Services performance management
information clearly evidences that they are delivering against
service requirements / objectives and that these are aligned to
the Council’s Corporate strategy

Performance measures to be agreed with the customers of the
function.

BAS performance measured against agreed service level
agreements.

Leadership and management skills will be valued and
recognised with staff equipped with the right tools to be great
managers.

Staff will be encouraged to embrace change.

A learning culture will be adopted with staff able to learn and
develop themselves

Feedback will be actively encouraged to support the
development of staff

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




60¢ abed

How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Efficiency

Effectiveness

D)

Outcomes

.

Experience

The speed that activities can be completed is increased through improved processes, reduced workarounds and
new ways of working which are more aligned to the technology available

Processes are completed by the appropriate people within the organisation with the relevant levels of expertise to
drive efficiency

The Council is able to flex and allocate resources to respond to peaks in demand for support

Improved business intelligence and oversight of services enables effective planning and resourcing decisions to be
made which is responsive to identifiable trends and peaks in demand

Readily available and up to date information and training enables staff to help themselves more effectively

Enabling & Support Services performance management information clearly evidences that they are delivering
against service requirements / objectives and that these are aligned to the Council’s Corporate strategy

More targeted and relevant information is available online for both internal and external customers improving
satisfaction levels

Customers have a clear understanding of what the services and roles within Enabling & Support Services will and
will not provide and who to contact to resolve queries

Efficient processes and reduced workarounds mean staff are able to focus on priority tasks and do not become
frustrated

Processes are continuously refined and improved with staff empowered to share their views and suggestions
around new ways of working.

Greater opportunities to share good practice across the teams through the business partners and one council BAS
team.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Enabling & Support Services look like in practice... | e e storesare

available at Appendix H.

An example user story — Business Administration Support*

Sue is a manager User story... What does this user story show...
in the Council’s “I’m generally quite self * The ease of accessing BAS teams for appropriate support;
roperty team. ici e : .
property SupEs PUt Vi * The flexibility of the service which is able to allocate the best
presentation for a team . : .
s . skilled resource to fulfil the request and manage and prioritise
Sue Jones briefing which | need
., workloads
drafting”.
T
Q
«Q
@ 1. Identify need 2. Access BAS 3. Allocate work 4. Liaise with contact 5. Completion
N
|_\
o
* Due to a legislative * Sue knows from the * John, the BAS team * Mike contacts Sue to talk < Mike completes the piece
change Sue needs to service menu that this is leader receives through in more detail of work and hands over to
quickly develop a something that the BAS notification of the work her requirements. Sue.
resentation for a staff i i
RUEEE LA : team can support with. requgst and reviews the T R T « Due to the ongoing
briefing which is due in 1 ; requirements. . " o
week. * Sue sends an email to will get a first draft over engagement Sue is quickly
the BAS team which is * John knows the skill set for Sue to review able to review the work
* Sue broadly knows the aligned to her. She ofhisteamandisableto o iy pi and see that it is as
key points that need to doesn’t usually need to allocate the best person the following week discussed and up to
be included in the contact them but it’s for the job - Mike. s : standard.
presentation but does not useful to know that o . f )
have the capacity or skills there is a team available Mike is currefntlly wor:mg '\:'ke .conflrfms tokJ.ohn that
t0 do this herself to support when ona piece of planned the piece of work is
work but knows there is complete and this is
necessary. - ;
sufficient time to logged on the system.

complete the request.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



TT¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Enabling & Support Services look like in practice...

*Further user stories are
available at Appendix H.

An example user story — FOl Request*

Nick is a journalist User story... What does this user story show...

and blogger “I’'m looking for some * The presence of a new online FOI search tool;

working in information on OCC
Banbury. manager salaries for an
Nick Hulme upcoming article”.

* The role of the co-ordinator in managing the end — to — end
process and leading relationships with FOI requestors.

1. Search Online 2. Submit request 3. Clarification 4. Preparation

* Nick wants to access * Nick emails an FOI * Experienced FOI * Lucy prepares the
some information request to the OCC FOI coordinator Lucy looks as response and checks
regarding manager mailbox. the request and knows that there are no staff
salaries at OCC in 2018, . . this is something that names or personnel

" * Nick receives an . : :
to compare with other automated email can be progressed at this numbers contained in
local authorities. stage without the need the HR report.

T RS SRR to clarify with the Access

* Nick uses the new online timescales for a ) 4 * As the request is
FOI search tool to response. and Disclosure Officer. e o be
identify whether a * Lucy requests the internally sensitive,
similar request has relevant report on Lucy passes the
already ben submitted manager salaries from drafted response to
« He concludes that the the. HR systems.team, the Access antlj
tffeniEen [ i Il which stores this Disclosure Officer for
centrally. internal review.

for is not available
online.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* The request is due to be
delivered within national
guideline timescales .

* Lucy sends the final
response to Nick. The
response provides the
information Nick is looking
for, but Nick is also informed
of his rights to contest the
Council’s response.

* The response is uploaded
onto the OCC website which
Nick can refer back to if
needed



2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Enabling & Support Services look like in practice... | ;i s ore e

An example user story - Recruitment*

Jane is a manager User story... What does this user story show...
e in the BAS Service “One of my team has * The role of the new ‘pool of talent’ database within the
announced that she’s recruitment process;
leaving at the end of this . . : .
g f . The support that recruitment co-ordinators will provide to
Jane Rogers month and | need to find a S :
" simplify the recruitment process.
replacement”.
o
@ . . . . . . , 5. Pre-employment
LC?) 1. Identify need 2. Identify candidates 3. Interview candidates 4. Confirm appointee checks
N
|_\
N
* Due to a sudden * Tom searches the ‘Pool * Jane confirms that she * Jane confirms her * IBC send through pre-
resignation Jane needs of Talent’ database to would like to interview preferred candidate and employment screening
to quickly locate a identify any appropriate all candidates. rings him to confirm that forms to the successful
candidate to fill an candidates. « As BAS is a hizh vol he has been successful. candidate.
upcoming BAS Officer . . S ) 5@ high volume .
vacancy. * 3 suitable candidates are recruitment area, Tom * Tom contacts IBC to * As the appointee may be
identified within the liaises with IBC to log organise a provisional supporting children’s
* Jane has the standard database, who have relevant requisitions and offer. Services, Tom prepares
role description for a BAS previously been organise formal the DBS paperwork
. *|B he f ’
Officer and reaches out interviewed by OCC and interviews with SR
: . . offer paperwork to the * The outcomes from the
to the OCC Recruitment were of appointable candidates. : f
Team. Tom, a Co- standard candidate, and the checks are reviewed by
rifirera i e : * Jane interviews the candidate confirms that Jane, who confirms that
Recruitment Team picks e Tom hanc!s oyer their candida'tes and he would like to join OCC. the out_comes and tI:\at she
uo h CVs/ applications for determines her would like the appointee
p her request. L . . S
similar roles to Jane. preferred candidate. to join the organisation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Enabling & Support Services look like in practice... | st

available at Appendix H.

An example user story - On boarding*

Sophie is a young User story... What does this user story show...

graduate and has “This is my first job and | The ease of joining the OCC once offered a role.
received a great can’t wait to get started! |

. ) The additional support given to new starters prior to joining to
job offer in really want to hit the Pportg P . &

provide a welcoming on boarding experience.

Sophie Byrne Finance at OCC ground running!”.

Access and equipment supplied on Day 1 so that new joiners can
get to work.

T
) 1. Accept the offer 2. Buddying 3. Accessing training 4. Day One 5. Settling in
(@)

@

N

H

w . .

* Sophie receives an offer « Before joining she is * Sophie is given access to * On her first day, Sophie is * By the end of the first week
from the council for her contacted by a current the e-learning platform welcomed by Sandra at Sophie feels part of the
graduate job. member of the Finance and asked to complete reception and picks up team after working with

* Through the IBC she team, Sa.ndra, who has some r.nandaf:o.ry . her ID pass. them all wee!< and being

been assigned as her induction training prior able to contribute from day

effortlessly accepts the * She gets up to her desk

offer and the process of buddy. to her first day. and receives her ICT 1.
on boarding begins. * Sophie asks Sandra * She intuitively works her equipment and mobile * Through a number of
about facilities for way through the phone. training courses within her
storing her bike at training, ald.mg her o @ llerming T e s first wee.k Sophie IS. up to
County Hall and whether understanding of the 5 speed with the basic
, . - . she has access to OCC’s ° .
there’s anything she can council’s ways of working . functionality of the IBC and
. L. . internal systems and all :
do prior to joining to and the terminology she ) : has received systems
g . ; the financial databases PN
help her hit the ground will start becoming . specific training.
. she will need.
running. accustomed to.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



v T abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the benefits of doing this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for Enabling
& Support Services can be found in the Revised
Financial Case and at Appendix H.

)

Adopting a consistent approach to the
delivery of Enabling & Support Services.

v' Less duplication and a reduction in the
number of repetitive manual tasks
allows staff to address more
important tasks.

v' Professionalisation of Business &
Administration Support enables more
efficient and measurable performance
management.

v Processes are redesigned to maximise
efficiencies and integrate with
systems

v Business & Administration Support
will impact on the whole organisation
and this helps to embed the new
culture, ways of working and
behaviours quickly.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

A better experience for staff
delivering and receiving services

Staff are motivated to progress through
a clear and defined career path.

Defined roles and responsibilities
empower staff to make decisions and
say no to non value add activity.

Through increased business partnering
staff have more visibility across the lines
of service in the council and a more
connected experience.

Intuitive self-service empowers the staff
to help themselves. Improvements to
case & report management systems
alongside other technologies mean
repetitive manual tasks can be reduced.

<

Benefits of £3.3m — £3.7m per annum
through consolidation and process
redesign.

v Through consolidating its current effort
on BAS and recruitment activity along

with redesigned processes can achieve a
reduction, of between 89 — 97 FTE while
delivering a better experience for staff
delivering and using the service.



GT¢ obed

Strategic Capability



9T¢ abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Strategic Capability...

Definition
What it is... What it isn’t...
* The Strategic Capability is comprised of the following business * A group of people who do useful things that can just be called
capabilities:

Engagement management

policy oX management

Communications

Consultation & @HD QA & performance

Strategy & fx_} Project & programme @
X

upon as a resource pool - the staff in the strategic function will
have clear roles and responsibilities and will undertake priority
X pieces of work.

Why do we need it...

318 FTEs

We currently spend approx. 318 FTEs
worth of effort on Strategic Capability.
Which is 2% more than the County
Council Comparator group.

Kr
There is currently a disconnect between the
Council’s key priorities and service and

directorate planning. This means we often
miss the ‘so what’ of strategies and policies.

D
&
The effort we spend on Strategic

Capability is highly fragmented across
directorates, services, teams and roles.

There is a lack of consistency across the
Council in the use of performance
management information to drive and
manage business.

There is recognition that we can get this
stuff right ‘on a good day’ but that we
could and should have more good days.

Y

There is a lack of clarity on the offering of
the existing Strategic Capability i.e. what
activity remains the responsibility of the

service areas.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/T¢ abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Strategic Capability do (i)...

What is the role of the Strategic Capability within the Council’s operating model?

This layer brings together the key capabilities required for the Council to define its priority aims and vision for the future of Oxfordshire and
manage/support the delivery and monitoring of those aims. It will help the whole Council to have a consistent approach and build on existing
good practice in these areas.

This function will be responsible for articulating the vision, direction of travel and
priorities for the Council, directed by and working with Members. This function will

[ | l l I Strategy & Policy lead or co-deliver on cross-cutting and complex issues or those with significant

reputational impact, providing specialist knowledge of strategy and policies.

Quality assurance & This function will have a strategic role in setting out the framework and key guidance for QA
& performance monitoring in the Council. It will work closely with the strategy & policy

Performance . } o i )
functlon and service areas to ensure prlorlty aims as set out in the corporate plan are bemg
management monitored.

This function will have two key responsibilities. One is to provide the necessary
specialist project management capacity for cross-cutting projects. The second is to
have an independent function to provide assurance of the initiation and delivery of
cross-cutting projects and programmes to the FFF Board.

Project & programme

management

This function will lead or co-deliver on internal communications as well as
external communications which are cross-cutting or have the the
potential for significant reputational impact — to ensure join up between
the two.

This function will be responsible for setting out the framework and

' N Consultation & key guidance for managing consultations and other engagement
'4» engagement act|V|t|es: This function WI|‘| IeaFj o'r‘co—dellver on. cross-cuttmg and

complex issues or those with significant reputational impact.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



8T¢ abed

High-level Strategy and Policy

Strategy
development
(whole council)

Policy

development
(cross cutting or high
impact)

Council policy
monitoring

Cross-cutting
coordination

Manage strategic external relationships and partnerships

Key: Process Level 0 Process Level 1 Process Level 2

Managing
political
interface

Strategic
Knowledge
management

Strategic
[ELYES

Policy reports,
briefings and
advice

== \What processes are delivered by the Strategic Capability?

Strategic Capability

Strategic QA,
Performance
Management
and
Improvement

Strategic
Performance
measurement
framework

Strategic
Performance
management

Strategic Quality
standards and
framework

Share knowledge
of specific risks
across other parts
of the organisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

What will the strategic capability layer do (ii)...

Strategic
Portfolio,
Programme
and Project
Management

Strategic
Portfolio
management

Strategic
Programme
management

Strategic Project

management

Strategic Change

management

Strategic Communications,
Consultation and engagement

Strategic direction setting on how
manage consultations and engagement

Monitor
[SSEINE]
environment

Brand and
reputation
management

Strategic
consultations

activities

Strategic
communications

Stakeholder
strategy

Strategic
engagement

In the future the process taxonomy
shown to the left will be delivered
by the Strategic Capability layer of
the Council’s target operating
model.

As per the functional models for the
layer shown in the following slides,
the responsibility for leading and
supporting the delivery of each of
the level 3 sub-processes will be
distributed across different
functions/teams but the approach
to each will be consistent across the
whole Council.

164




6T¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of designing it’s TOM the Council has set the following ambition for

the strategic capability layer...

Future ambition for the Strategic Capability

This layer will bring together the key capabilities required for the Council to define its priority aims and vision for the future of Oxfordshire and
manage/support the delivery and monitoring of those aims. This layer has an ambition for clarity and collaboration — it will be clear what
activities and responsibilities lay within the service area and the support and responsibilities of the strategic functions.

Customer segments and customer offer

Members

. There will be improved clarity on the

involvement of members in the co-design of

the Council’s strategy and vision.

. There will be streamlined processes to

ensure a more efficient turnaround of

papers to Cabinet, Council and Committees.

Partners

. The Council’s strategic capabilities will
be able to better identify and enable
opportunities for working in
partnership with the Council via
communications and improved
relationship management.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Residents

Residents will be able to see how the
Council is delivering against its strategic
vision for Oxfordshire.

More engagement activities with
residents will be conducted by service
area specialists.

Staff

There will be greater clarity on the role
and responsibilities of the strategic
capabilities and the strategic/policy
responsibilities of service areas.

Staff will have clear points of contact
and access to specialist knowledge and
advice as well as support for cross-
cutting priority issues.



\‘“ \’ﬁ

X

OXFORDSHIRE
.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following design principles have been used to drive the design of the
Strategic Capability as part of the Council’s TOM (i)...

Processes

Technology

0zz abed

Information

Shh
Organisational

Structure

(L 14
P

People capabilities

Performance
Management

Strategic Capability design principles

We will provide transparency, consistency and clarity of expectations of the strategic offerings .

We will work with members to identify their needs and consider the member offering of this layer.

Our processes will be simplified, standardised and automated wherever possible.

We will design processes which enable self-service where possible and appropriate.

We will utilise technology in the management of information and the delivery of services to our customers.

We will rationalise, standardise and link our applications with the whole operating model to support new ways of
working.

We will capture, where possible, soft intelligence and utilise this to enable better relationships with our external
customers, particularly partners and members.

Our performance management processes will be underpinned by sound business intelligence and data analytics.

We will consolidate strategic and common functions with a clear purpose, maintaining flexibility in local delivery.

We will encourage our staff to collaborate with the strategic capabilities to better enable the Council to achieve its
strategic ambitions.

We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.

We will measure the right things, through a consistent performance management framework, from corporate
outcomes to individual performance.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




Tce abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE pu—

#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

What will the Strategic Capability look like in the future...

Key characteristics of the Strategic Capability
Whilst the functions themselves within the strategic capabilities will look familiar, there are some key differences in what this will look like in

the future;
* Internal and external communications, currently two separate functions, will be consolidated into one team.

* Consultation and engagement, currently two separate functions, will be consolidated into one team.
* Performance management, currently undertaken in various directorates/services, will be consolidated into one team.

* There will be better join up between the strategic capabilities.

Sets operational and public-facing standards to measure in the corporate plan.

Project and programme management

. Dri d Perform Performance
Strategy and Policy . _ " O-r e
monitored... Management

informs...

Consultation and Engagement

Strategic Capabilities

Communications
(internal & external)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



zee abed

52 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Strategy & Policy...

Functional model
How will the consolidated function work?

. The consolidated function will be responsible for articulating the vision, direction

Strategy & of travel and priorities for the Council, directed by and working with Members.
PO“CV . This function will lead or co-deliver cross-cutting issues, providing specialist
. knowledge of strategy and policies.
function

. This function will have clear and specific ongoing responsibilities such as
supporting the development of the corporate plan and supporting certain scrutiny
committees as well as an element of flexibility to deal with potential
‘emergency/unforeseen priority’ issues.

How will the service area and consolidated function interact?

Liaison between *  Directorates will have a designated individual who will be the named point of
po.ints of contact contact for taking issues to the Strategy & Policy team. This person should be
In corporate someone who is embedded into and has oversight of the directorate. There
f‘{"CtiO" and needs to be a mandate for this role at DLT and service manager level.
directorates *  There will also be a senior named point of contact for each directorate within the
strategy & policy function to provide a link to the individual with the greatest
understanding of the services in that directorate.

What activity will happen in the service areas?

. Service areas will play a key role in informing and working on the development of

There will be clear points of contact in the corporate policies to ensure subject matter expertise is utilised.

function and respective directorates. Staff will contactthe | «  Service areas will be responsible for the transition of strategies and policies to
designated individual for their directorate with any BAU to ensure they are used in practice.

queries. This individual is then responsible for escalating *  Service areas will also be responsible for creating delivery plans which articulate

queries/issues, when required, to their directorate lead in

how their service will help deliver the Council’s key priorities, as set out in the
the corporate function.

corporate plan.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



gze abed

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Performance
Management...

Functional model

Quality
Assurance &
Performance
Management
Function
'Y Y Y

Service Areas

Accountable officers in service areas will be responsible
for liaising with the performance hub to identify
measures and indicators to drive their business and
monitor delivery against the Council’s priority aims.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

How will the consolidated function work?

The function will have a strategic role in setting out the framework and key
guidance for QA & performance monitoring in the Council.

The hub will work closely with the strategy & policy function to ensure priority
aims as set out in the corporate plan are being monitored.

The hub will provide a consolidated view of the Council’s performance to the
relevant board responsible for strategic oversight of the Council.

The performance hub will be responsible for data collection, cleansing, analysis
and reporting which is not automated. The hub will work closely with the BI
function, who will support the analysis and reporting of data.

How will the service areas and consolidated function interact?

There will be a representative for Children's, Adults Services, Communities and
Resources within this function to provide a specialist point of contact if there are
any issues/queries.

These points of contact will also proactively liaise with service areas to provide
support identifying performance measures.

What activity will happen in the service areas?

Service areas will need to provide the performance measures (e.g. KPI's) they
need to be tracked. They must ensure that the measurements they are tracking
will help them drive their day-to-day operations and show how the service is
helping the Council meet its priority aims.

Most importantly, it will be the responsibilities of services areas to use
performance data to make decisions, they will be held accountable for failure to
monitor performance measurements.




yze abed

*Further detail on the

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Roles... roles set out below is

available at Appendix I.

Strategic Capability roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for
strategic capabilities. The balance and detailed structure of these roles across the corporate services provision for Strategy & Policy and QA
Performance Management will be determined during the construct phase.

Indicative roles for strategy & policy and performance

a Head of strategy, policy and performance

Senior Strategy & Policy Officer Senior Performance Officer

Performance Officer

Strategy & Policy Officer

Strategic Research
Officer

Performance Analyst

(O (o

(o (o O

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

. _ _ size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




Gee obed

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Project and Programme

Management...

Functional model

Project and Programme
Management function

PMO
Assurance

PMO

Project
Resource

Service Areas

Staff will follow guidance and templates issued by
the PMO Assurance team when proposing new
projects and obtaining FFF Board approval to
proceed. Strategic Directors are responsible for
reporting on project progress to FFF Board, including
highlighting relevant risks and issues requiring Board
input.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

How will the consolidated function work?

There are two key parts to this function; the Project Management Office (PMO)
Assurance team and a consolidated resource pool (PMO Project Resource).

The PMO Assurance team provides assurance of cross-cutting/priority projects
and programmes, working closely with the Fit for the Future (FFF) Board to
support their prioritisation of projects and tracking of progress.

The PMO Project Resource will be made up of project managers and business
analysts. The PMO Lead will be responsible for transparently allocating these
resources in compliance with FFF Board priorities.

How will the service area and consolidated function interact?

What activity will happen in the service areas?

PMO Assurance team members will sit on the directorate/service groups which
manage projects and programmes (currently Working Groups) to provide
guidance on the relevant processes and highlight any projects or issues that need
to be raised to the FFF Board.

Project management resource will work with service areas to manage the
delivery of projects including monthly highlight reporting to the PMO and FFF
Board.

Business Analyst resource will support service areas or undertake
research/analysis on approved tasks with clear scope and time-scales.

Service areas will provide the operational capacity for change for projects,
including those given consolidated project management resource.

Service areas will manage and deliver any BAU work and projects which are not
cross-cutting, following consistent approaches, standards and guidance available
from the corporate function.




9¢e¢ abed

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Roles (iii

)...

*Further detail on the
roles set out below is
available at Appendix I.

Strategic Capability roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for
strategic capabilities. The balance and detailed structure of these roles across the consolidated project and programme management function

can be found in the appendix.

Indicative roles for project and programme management

Programme Service Manager

PMO Assurance Lead

Project Managers

Business Analysts

(o (® (o

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).




/ze abed

wofis OXFORDSHIRE s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Communications...

Functional model

How will the consolidated function work?

*  This function will lead or co-deliver on internal and external communications
within its set remit of communications (e.g. cross-cutting issues) as well as

Communications communications with the potential for significant reputational impact.

e This function will be responsible for monitoring the reach and impact of internal
and external communications e.g. social media metrics. This function will work
closely with Business Intelligence to derive better value from data relating to
external communications.

function

How will the service areas and centralised function interact?

. There will be a named point of contact for each directorate within the
communications function, these points of contacts will attend DLTs as required.

. Anybody from within the Council can contact their relevant directorate point of
contact with issues/queries relating to external communications

. Specialist support for internal communications will primarily be available for

Service Areas leaders within directorates, while internal communications which are more day-

to-day or operational will be undertaken by staff in service areas.

Staff can directly contact the named person What activity will h in th . 5
for their directorate within the corporate at activity witl happen In the service areas:

function for advice and guidance when the *  Service areas will handle BAU communications which do not meet the threshold
query relates to external communications. criteria for the centralised communications teams. Service areas can access self-
Su;?portfrom the co.rpor.atefu.nction r_e/atgd serve advice and guidance from the communications team on the intranet.

to internal communications will be primarily . Everyone in the Council will contribute to effective external and internal

a\./allablefor senior leaders within communications in order to keep residents and staff informed and engaged.
directorates.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



gze obed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Consultation &

Engagement...

Functional model

*See appendix | for details on
the customer offering of this
function e.g. this function’s role
in statutory consultations.

Consultation and
Engagement
function

Service Areas

Support from the corporate function will be primarily
available for senior leaders within directorates on
strategic consultation and engagement issues. Staff with
queries related to consultation and engagement at a
more operational level will raise this with a member of
their directorate leadership team.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

How will the consolidated function work?

. The function will have a strategic role in setting out the framework and key
guidance for Consultation and Engagement activities in the Council.

. This function will lead or co-deliver cross-cutting/priority issues, providing
specialist knowledge of consultation and engagement activities.

. This function will collect data e.g. from the residents survey. The Business
Intelligence (BI) function can then undertake customer insight analysis which the
consultation and engagement team can use to derive insight and value from
consultation/engagement data.

How will the service area and consolidated function interact?

. Requests for support from this consolidated team should be from leaders within
directorates regarding strategic consultation and engagement issues.

. All staff, however, will be able to access self-serve information and guidance on
the intranet.

What activity will happen in the service areas?

. Service areas have the best knowledge of their customers and will therefore be
responsible for identifying the relevant individuals/groups that need to be engaged
(e.g. in co-production activities) and will be responsible for managing long-term
relationships with groups (e.g. Children in Care Council, Oxfordshire Stronger
Communities Alliance).

. Service areas will have the specialist service knowledge required to lead on the
majority of consultations — requesting support/advice from engagement specialists
when required.




6¢¢ abed

*Further detail on the

How will the Strategic Capability work in the future — Roles (ii)... | rolessetoubeiowss

available at Appendix I.

Strategic Capability roles*

The following roles, some of which already exist across the organisation, will be required in order for the Council to achieve its ambition for
strategic capabilities. The balance and detailed structure of these roles across the corporate services provision for Communications, Consulting
and Engagement Performance Management will be determined during the construct phase.

Indicative roles for communications, consultations and engagement

Head of Communications, Consultations
and Engagement

N External - Internal Strategic Consultation &
Communications Communications Engagement Lead
Lead « Lead
- Senior Engagement Officer
g Senior Communications Officer Qe
i i Senior Consultation Officer
- Communications Officer
- Consultation & Engagement
P Officer

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




0gg abed

a,

252) O X F O R D'S H I R E. sy

%) COUNTY COUNCIL
There are close interdependencies between the Strategic Capability

functions and how innovation is fostered across the Council...

= Strategic Capability links with innovation

Through the design work, a review of the Council’s current innovation capabilities was undertaken, with further detail provided in Section 4:
Enablers at slides 254 - 257. While there are pockets of excellent practice across the organisation, a more strategic and whole-council approach

would help to join up learning across the organisation and maximise impact.

To achieve this, functions in the Strategic Capability layer will be able to support the development of the Innovation Hub and the Innovation
Jumpstart approach. A functional model is depicted below setting out how the Council can approach innovation to better leverage its unique
position with the County and the rest of the UK (e.g. access to partners) alongside growing its own internal innovation capability in order to
deliver better services to its customers. There is also a strong interdependency with the Business Intelligence layer of the TOM.

Oxfordshire & the rest of the UK

OCC Customers

Innovation Hub

Focused on external innovation
projects.

Backed by the Council.

Uses external funding, where
available, to de-risk projects.

Emphasis on cutting edge projects
(e.g. driver-less cars).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Innovation
Hub

Innovation Jumpstart

Focused on internal innovation
projects.

Managed by internal innovation team.

End to end innovation (ideation to
pilot).
Ongoing support post pilot.

Brings the best of OCC innovation
capability, external networks and
wider Oxfordshire and rest of UK
ecosystem.

176



T¢e abed

Looking at the innovation hub in more detail...

The innovation hub

The innovation hub will be both externally and internally focused with the following responsibilities:

* Innovation jumpstart programme management

* Problem analysis with an awareness of possibilities
* Prototyping

* Strategic partner identification & development

* Partner identification and problem specification
support for partners

* Investment sourcing where external investment is
suitable

* Business model and case development support
* Commercialisation support
* Benefit realisation plan — KPIs to achieve objectives

* Mentoring staff and embedding innovation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Inward ¢

Structure

Flexible

Favours: Dynamic,
entrepreneurial, adaptive,
cutting edge services & products

OCC | Hub external:
Focused on transformation,
agility, product optimisation,
cross-platform, rapid iteration.
High risk/reward

OCC | Hub Core internal
activity:
Focused on efficiency, stability,

long timescale of
planning/delivery, process
optimisation. Low Risk/Reward

Favours: Structure, control,
coordination, stability,
efficiency. Smooth processes

The OCC Innovation Hub....

Outward

Focus



2 OXFORDSHIRE pu—

% COUNTY COUNCIL

How will the Strategic Capability work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

Members

* The Strategic Capability will invest time in building strong
relationships with members as they will be a key part of the
Operational service areas: development of the Council’s vision and ambition and will be active Support functions
in monitoring the delivery of this ambition. (B / ICT / Finance):

* The Strategic Capability
layer will work closely
with the business

* The Strategic Capability intelligence (BI) layer.

will work in partnership
with service areas to
enable effective working
on cross-cutting issues.

Zse obed

. . Bl will be key to providing

Strateglc (OF) pa blllty the ability and capacity to
develop and deliver
technical solutions, where
possible, which automate,
simplify and streamline
the collection and use of
performance

Governance: management information.

* The strategic capability will be influenced by leadership who will set
agreed criteria/thresholds for when pieces of work require strategic
oversight and therefore fall into the remit of this layer.

* The layer will work in-line with the agreed business rules for sign
off processes and prioritisation of work undertaken by this layer.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



cge abed

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (i)...

Enabling requirements*

Strategy

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix I.

There needs to be clarity in who is involved in the setting of
the overall strategy, direction and ambition for the Council so
that this can be established in good time and can then be
acted on sooner rather than later.

There needs to be a way of capturing the priority aims in the
corporate plan at a service level to ensure everyone is working
towards the same vision through comprehensive strategic and
outcomes frameworks.

There will need to be clear, simplified and standardised
processes where possible. This is particularly important for the
processes of requesting and prioritising work and for sign-off
processes.

Any exceptions to the standard process should also be clear
and follow set rules.

Governance

* There will need to be a mechanism to prioritise the work of
each of the strategic capabilities to ensure this is inline with
the Councils’ priorities.

* There will need to be stronger governance mechanisms to
encourage the right behaviours and ensure compliance e.g.
notifying the strategy & policy function of a cross-cutting
issue, complying with deadlines.

» There will need to be greater clarity on who
(individual/group) is responsible for making sign
off decisions and who is only being consulted.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Technology

» Technology will be vital to the automation and simplification of
existing processes, particularly for the collection and analysis of
performance management data.

» Technology could be used to the advantage of this layer to
better capture information requirements.




yez abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (ii)...

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

*A detailed explanation of each enabler required
is available at Appendix I.

Enabling requirements cont.*

Collaboration will be vital for achieving the Council’s strategic
ambitions.

* Individuals need to be empowered to come up with new and
innovative ideas/solutions.
* Individuals within this layer must be flexible on the type of

work they undertake as tasks will be responsive to business
need.

* There will need to be mutual recognition and understanding

between strategic functions and operational services of their
respective strengths and skills.

* This layer needs more consistent and comprehensive policy
and political intelligence (local, regional, national) to inform the
direction of travel and decision making.

* This layer needs improved partner intelligence to enable better
management of external relationships.

« This layer needs better business insights on Oxfordshire e.g.
population intelligence to inform the Council’s strategic
vision and to manage performance and identify any priority
areas.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

People & Structure

* Individuals within this layer need a strong understanding and
appreciation of the context of working in a political
organisation.

* Individuals within this layer need to have an aptitude for
understanding the drivers of competing viewpoints (ideas,
interests, institutions) and influence these views.

* The structures within this layer will need to maximise
collaboration and limit the potential for issues to
become lost in siloes.




How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Effectiveness

Gee obed

Outcomes

Experience

A streamlined approach which has the right number of staff, with the flexibility to focus capacity to work on
priority issues.

Key responsibilities are met while not operating at a higher cost than similar authorities.

By providing easy to use guidance and self-serve information which has been recognised by customers as meeting
their needs.

By receiving positive/constructive customer feedback (staff and member feedback) where there has been a
collaborative approach to an issue to allow for continuous improvement.

More people know what the Council’s vision is and how they contribute to it (staff), what it will deliver for them
(residents) and where they can be involved (partners).

Impact of decisions/strategies achieve the intended outcomes.
Customers feel that the strategic capabilities are adding value and are not just an overhead.

High quality decision-making occurs in a planned way.

Giving members confidence in the Council’s processes and building trusted relationships.

All customers should have a positive experience with those in this layer and feel like confident that key issues have
a responsible owner to see them through.

Customers are aware of the process and decision making and are kept informed and are able to contribute the
process to ensure the best value is achieved.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




9g¢ abed

£52) O X F O R D'S H I R E. o
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

*Further user stories are available at
Appendix I.

What will the Strategic Capability look like in practice...

An example user story*

User story... What does this user story show...

“l ended up in a last minute .
meeting with residents from

my division and | was able to
answer their questions

about Council services and
performance”.

L. 3. Use in meeting with L itive il j j
1. Contact staff member 2. Visit webpage g 4. Positive lrfteractlon with
colleagues residents

1 April Roberts
April is a Cabinet
member at

New ways to store information in a way that is more readily
available will enable members have the right information at the
Oxfordshire
County Council.

right time when talking to residents.

There will be improved performance monitoring and
information which members will have access to.

* April contacted Mark in the
Strategy & Policy team to see if
there was any performance
information she could have
sight of in advance a meeting
with residents from her
division.

* Mark was able to direct April to
the Council’s webpage and talk
her through all the new
publically available information
as well as the Cabinet pages
with the most up to date
detailed reports.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* April and her residents used the .

information online to inform the
content of their meetings. Using
the data to discuss key issues of
note.

Residents were impressed with
the services offered by the
Council and that Oxfordshire are
performing better in most of
these services than comparator
councils.

Residents were pleased that
they could easily access and re-
visit this information on-line.

April was pleased to have had
the right information to enable a
positive meeting.



wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

* Further detail on the benefits case for the
Strategic Capability can be found in the Revised
Financial Case and at Appendix I.

What are the benefits of doing this...

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

) % <

Adopting a consistent approach to the
strategic capabilities will deliver
improved outcomes for its residents.

Benefits of £1m — £1.9m per annum
through consolidating strategic functions
could be achieved.

A better experience for staff both within
the strategic capability teams and
within the service areas.

v’ Every part of the Council will work
together towards the same strategic

v' Improved clarity on the customer v Through consolidating the Council’s

/€¢ abed

direction and shared outcomes.

v’ Service areas will have access to the
right performance data and insights
to enable them to improve services
for customers.

v' Customers will have access to key
information on the performance of
Council services compared to other
County Councils.

v" More joined up and consistent
approach to consultation and
engagement activities.

v' Members will have increased
confidence in the Council’s processes.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

offering and role of the centralised
functions and therefore what activities
will remain the responsibilities service
areas.

Simple, standardised and automated
processes for staff to follow.

Clear, proportionate and enabling
governance processes that support
decision making rather than obstruct it.

current effort on its strategic capability
functions it can achieve a reduction, of
between 18 — 34 FTE in the total effort
it expends on these capabilities while

delivering a better experience for staff
and improved outcomes for customers.



g¢e abed

Business Intelligence



6c¢ abed

( 7(

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is Business Intelligence...

Definition
What it is... What it isn’t...
* The Business Intelligence (BI) function exists to provide * Business Intelligence is not a storage point for all data within the
information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers organisation.

including businesses, partners and staff within the organisation. « Itis not a resource to correct source data, or improve the quality

* Bl is comprised of the following business capabilities: and accuracy of information.
Understand s Predict and N Drive resource * A decision making tool in itself; outputs will always require
and Influence forecast efficiencies interpretation using professional judgement.
« Supported by the Bl function, Council staff will have access to * Acentral function that will dictate to service areas. It will need
technology and data to drive insights for their service areas. to go hand in hand with operational delivery.

Why do we need it...

44.4 FTEs G <=

44.41 FTEs worth of effort is spent on Bl

. . ) Bl could enable the Council to make more Having data insights will augment delivery
and reporting activities across the Council, . . . . . S S
. . . L. locality and community focused decisions and intervention requiring innovation in
mainly on diagnostic and descriptive ) . .
from richer, contextual data insights. our approach to problem solving.

reporting.

% r

Decision making processes will become
more evidence and data driven.
Explore and evidence arguments and
challenges.

Gathering insight into the various
communities and localities within
Oxfordshire, and the unique challenges
they face.

Bl is a strategic asset that provides insight
for the Council, as well as more broadly
with businesses and partners.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Ot’¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE pu—

%) COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Business Intelligence do...

== \What is the role of business intelligence within the Council’s TOM

Business intelligence will help the Council get significant insights from the data and information it holds. It can be used to reference the software,
infrastructure, policies and procedures that will allow the Council to make evidence based, and data-led decisions.

Business Intelligence Process Taxonomy

Business Intelligence

Business Information and
Reporting

Security, privacy and data

. A range of these processes and activities will take place using
protection controls

existing and established teams and owners. A newly constituted
Establish information security, Bl team, however, will work across the Council to provide
privacy, and data protection additional insights for services areas to support them in the
strategies and levels delivery of their services. The Bl team will be required to engage
and help develop, test and report back on security, privacy and
data controls.

Statutory reporting

Management Information

Test, evaluate, and implement
information security and privacy
and data protection controls

Business and performance
reporting

Needs analysis and insight Two processes were renamed during High Level Design to more accurately reflect the activities they

included.
* Needs analysis and insight was formerly called ‘Business Intelligence’, and
* Data science, analytics and modelling was formerly called ‘Data analytics’.

Data science, analytics and
modelling

Assurance

Two new processes were recommended for inclusion to support the ambition and plan for Bl as a
Data presentation, visualisation strategic capability and asset for the Council, these were:

and communication * Assurance, and
* Data presentation, visualisation and communication.

Key: Process Level 0 Process Level 1 Process Level 2

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Tt abed

( 7(

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s future ambition Business Intelligence...

Future ambition for Business Intelligence

Future ambition for Business Intelligence... Narrative...
Business Intelligence will underpin Understand and Influence: * Proactive reporting to
the Council’s TOM by providing the * |dentifying the questions we should be asking to influence our understand patterns
insight needed to inform effective strategic outcomes. and trends.
?euil'on rnakm‘i. AT efft:)cltlwte Bl Prednlrtﬁndforecast: ) ) . . - - Ability to make better
unction s a cr:leziclena er od‘ nfluence outcomest rougt prog;tlve rer;or mdg.\;v |c.]c decisions, through an
understand an .m uence, predict articulate current position, identifies trends and identify areas informed, single version
and forecast, drive resource of focus. of the truth.
efficiencies, and connect, leverage Drive Resource efficiencies:
and consolidate data from multiple  Reduce the number of processes and people associated with * Manage what are now
data sources, both internal and delivering diagnostic and descriptive Management Information. t!ghter budgets a.md
external to the Council. The Bl team Connect, leverage and consolidate data from Multiple Data financial constraints.
will work with operational teams, to Sources:
support them in the delivery of their * Address traditional challenges around system connectivity,
services. compatibility and information structures.
Offer to customers...
o
~
—— ()
L &
Business Partners Staff

The Business Intelligence function will The Business Intelligence function will The Business Intelligence function will

work with businesses who want to use work with partners to provide them with ensure that information provided to staff

the Council’s Bl outputs to inform their data and analysis, and use partner data, is comprehensive, accurate, timely and

work around workforce, markets, place developing broader and deeper insights. appropriately focused.

and demand.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2 abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following design principles have been used to drive the design of
Business Intelligence as part of the Council’s TOM (i)...

Business Intelligence design principles

These design principles will apply across the whole council and will be supported by the Business Intelligence function.

@)

Customer offering

Processes

Technology

T

Organisational structure

[ X 1)
za~

People capabilities

Performance
Management

We will ensure that strategy reflects the needs of our customers.
We will ensure that our service offers reflect the needs of our customers.

We will provide analytical support to services areas.
We will be ‘intelligent clients’.

We will use business intelligence and policy analysis to understand our technology requirements.

We will use business intelligence to improve the way in which we use our information.

We will do more horizon scanning to improve our political awareness.

We will empower our staff to take ownership of the relationship with customers and to drive the delivery of
solutions.
We will enable all our people to use their creativity to develop innovative solutions to the challenges we face.

We will manage the performance of our people in a timely manner with up-to-date information.
We will record performance management through multiple channels.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




What will Business Intelligence look like in the future...

A small team

Team Lead
Data Analyst Data Scientist Data Consolidator

e

Report Dev Dashboard Dev Business Analyst

e abed

The team is cross functional and
works across the Council using
consistent methods and
interactions.

Key characteristics of business intelligence in the future

Working with a range of
stakeholders

IGT Function Sponsorship
e ﬁ

Partners and
External Sources

Information
Management

The constitution of the team
requires relationships with
other areas of the Council, to
develop the elements of how Bl
will work.

Whole Council
approach

Departmental ° Shared Service Independent
Analytical needs aligned 1o 6 s

ng
speciic business and functional methods coardinaled across methodologies developed
areas irectorates

« Team memters in Bl roles are + Funclional knowledge and
close to business, issues and i il through .
customer groups structure Vibwpoits shared Council wide

« Bl resouice is.0n hand 1o o . T allows.
provide Immediate tactical working within 2 shared service for fasler, betier adoplion
inputs process and culture ‘across the Council

°L C allocation of 81 .meadxlmmmmsmas

view and focus on local praciice resources ‘on aliocation and availability of
issues + Resources in Shared Senvice resources.

« Limited strategic view of are more liksly 10 be focused on + Potantial that team lacks
pressures on ot b practical and

« Notinvolved in strategic aligned fo
decision making and planning + Difficult to buikd cross-functional

* Duplication, ad-hoc and not alignment and consensus on BI
able to standardise or scale initiatives

functicnal experience and
experiise.

The importance of a distinct physical
team, working in partnership with
service areas, is key to developing B
from departmental views to an
enterprise solution supporting layers
and teams.

each of the layers.

How will the functional model for Business Intelligence work...
The Bl function is a strategic function, initially established where the team is physically co-located. The constitution of the team reflects the
requirements to have relationships with other areas of the TOM, to establish the components of a functional Bl layer. The team is cross

functional and enterprise in its operating methods in the operating model.

The importance of a separate physical team is key to shifting Bl from Departmental ‘views’ to an enterprise solution serving customers in

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




vz abed

A
IR

oA OXFORDSHIRE p—

Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What will Business Intelligence look like in the future (ii)...

The placement of the Team within the Organisation model is important. Even with the right tools and skilled resource, if the team is not aligned

Physical, virtual, shared, central or independent

properly, its impact and purpose becomes harder to realise. Three models were considered, each with pros and cons, with the whole council
model being preferred as this offered the best way to maintain the ambition of building a Bl function that provided a strategic asset to the
Council.

u’

Departmental

Analytical needs aligned to specific
business and functional areas
Team members in Bl roles are
close to business, issues and
customer groups

Bl resource is on hand to provide
immediate tactical inputs

Incomplete cross-functional view
and focus on local practice issues
Limited strategic view of pressures
on the organisation

Not involved in strategic decision
making and planning

Duplication, ad-hoc and not able to
standardise or scale

Shared Service

Standardised processes and
methods coordinated across
Directorates

Functional knowledge and
experience accessible through
structure

Uses existing experience of
working within a shared service
process and culture

Less transparent allocation of Bl
resources

Resources in Shared Service are
more likely to be focused on
priorities of service they are
aligned to

Difficult to build cross-functional
alignment and consensus on B
initiatives

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Whole council approach

Standardised processes and
methodologies developed through
a cross Council mandate
Objective and strategic viewpoints
shared Council wide

Direct reporting to CLT allows for
faster, better adoption across the
Council

Pushback from services areas on
allocation and availability of
resources

Potential that team lacks business
practical and functional experience
and expertise




252) O X F O R D'S H I R E. sy
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

How will Business Intelligence work in the future...

Bl structure and roles *

In order to support early activity, an initial team size of six is optimal. Any lower and the load is too large on individuals or across the
team. Higher than this and its more expensive to resource and run and makes agile delivery more challenging

Indicative roles for Business Intelligence

i i Team Lead

Data Consolidator (e Data Analyst Data Scientist
UP a

Girg abed

Report Developer i i Dashboard ™ Business Analyst

o Developer QP

All roles shown are indicative and do not define specific jobs, structures or team

size in the future organisation. Further work will be required as part of construct
and implementation phase to finalise (including location in corporate structure).

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9tr¢ obed

How will Business Intelligence work with the rest of the Council...

The interaction model

Getting the required resource and capabilities in place is important, providing end users with quality data and reporting that can be trusted
and used effectively for decision making is crucial. The Bl Team in this respect will be required to engage, interface and develop links with
other parts of the business (Layers, Services, Teams, Partners)

Business / service users

* Bl will need ongoing
collaboration with
operational services to
deliver insightful and
productive services,
reports and analytics.

Interactions with business
areas and service users
will be essential to
establish consensus on the
right data, indicators and
metrics, as well as the
required formatting of a
deliverable.

Leadership and governance:

Partners and external organisations:

Support functions
The primary remit of Bl is to drive improved insight, reporting and (BI / ICT / Finance):
decision making. It is important that top-level support from within

the organisation is available and visibly engaged, willing to dedicate

time to demonstrating these capabilities to wider audiences

* Adequate and consistent
support from IT to ensure
that the technology
elements leveraged are
effective in enabling Bl
service delivery

Business intelligence
Work with the IM Team to

ensure data is held,
managed and processed
efficiently, effectively and
securely and that it is of

the highest quality to

Work closely with external data providers to identify and secure support decision-making

consistent and reliable data sets for use in dashboards and reports. and business processes.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/¢ abed

A OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What Wi" it IOOk Iike in practice.“ *Further user stories are available at Appendix J.

An example user story*

User story... “An rise in What does this user story show...
Lee is a manager referrals for adolescents
in the MASH involved in CSE has
team, with a focus prompted Lee to look
on children at risk. beyond presented Use of historical data to augment decision making

information to see if other

variables are at play”.

Modelling of information on patterns, attributes and
characteristics of over 100k records

Understanding of demand in order to divert to other forms of
intervention

1. Develop hypothesis 2. Identify data 3. Develop model 4. Train and Test 5. Deploy

Lee Williams

* After experiencing a rise * Lee works with the BI * The Data Scientist * Once developed, the data ~ * The model is run on a
in the number of Team to develop the reviews the data and repository is split 80/20. weekly basis against new
referrals of CSE, Lee and hypothesis develops the Machine The 80% of data is then MASH cases.
:(;!::iiii l;?jli(\;?jzm . Tf)gether they then Learnlng.model used to train the model. o leels se.nt an at.Jtomated
cases and anecdotally discuss and source the * Outputs in the model . !_ee and c.olleagl.!es are report highlighting those
data for the model, development are tested involved in the fine cases closed, but where
* There are patterns in pulling information from with Lee and his team, tuning of the model factors in the history
terms of demographics, the case management particularly looking to variables. suggest that there is an
environmental factors system, partner data and mitigate bias in the .0 d. th del increased likelihood of the
and backgrounds that open data sources model calculations el lress, Wi s child/young person
i then tests the remaining e :
suggest certain 20% for fi becoming involved in CSE.
attributes in low need o for fit. .
cases could be « The model is signed off * Cases are then considered
characteristics that by Lee and moved to foniefSilolothen
predict likelihood of production partners for early
future CSE intervention.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



8¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE pu—

3% COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (i)...

Enabling requirements*

« Business intelligence will underpin the Council’s TOM by « Strong governance needed to ensure all data sharing,
providing the insight needed to inform effective decision publishing, storing in line with legislation, and that partners
making. are also following this

« An effective Bl capacity is a critical enabler to understand and .

For each product produced by business intelligence a list of
who will receive it; how often; when; and for what they are
expected to use it for.

influence, predict and forecast, drive resource efficiencies,
and connect, leverage and consolidate data from multiple

data sources both internal and external to the organisation
* Datasharing agreements to be in place to ensure all are

aware of what can and is being shared.

* Governance and oversight of Bl activity across the Council and * Move from the storage of information locally in spreadsheets,
within Service areas needs to be determined and adopted to in a communal place with easy access.
* All Layers and Services need to be engaged with ongoing * Easy and intuitive tools.

opportunities using automation and other techniques to
diagnostic and descriptive reporting to maintain capacity
release. * Need to make current technology e.g. Tableau available to all
in the organisation

* Need to be table to link to partner applications and systems.

* Improve customer experience when accessing data.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



61¢ abed

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

What needs to change in order to achieve this* (ii)...

Enabling requirements*

I People & sructure

* Information needs to be good quality from internal sources so  The Bl function is to be organised in a way that enables agile
that the effort of the Bl team is focused on collecting and working and development, together with strong Layer and
curating data. Service area alignment.

« All areas of the Council will need to engage with the consistent « The BI function will work closely with enabling functions and
approach to Business Intelligence, actively contributing standards, internal data providers such as the ICT team, Line of
information to generate cross-cutting insights. Business system administrators and external Partners and data

* The gathering and use of information must be undertaken Sources.
within the guiding principles of the Bl enablers and legislative « It will work closely with the Strategic Capability layer and other
parameters. areas of the business to identify and develop reporting

metrics/KPIs and insights, build competency in predictive and
prescriptive reporting and use available technologies to
effectively publish and share those outputs.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



0G¢ abed

How will the Council know it has been successful...

Measures of success

Effectiveness

Outcomes

Experience

Timeliness measures.

Cost measures.

When layer drives improvements in value greater than the cost of operating the layer.
How the information is produced; level of automation vs manual intervention.
Efficiency = quantifiable outcomes/investment (it’s delivering value when this is >1).

We see ‘improved decision making’.

Tangible changes to how the Council operates are caused by the work of the Bl layer.
Rapid feedback on the outcomes of prototype interventions

The customer has timely, accurate information.

When it’s making measurable difference to service delivery.

Improved satisfaction of residents.

Improved/ good rating of service by external.

The impact of council planning and services is more positive because of BI.

The customer has relevant information that they can act on.

Outcome information and an ability to baseline as well as a form hypothesis which are either testable or
narratively compelling about BI’s role in changing outcomes.

Customer feedback: staff, partners, businesses.

People from strategic functions, Bl, and service areas have a common understanding and a positive experience of
working together.

Bl is seen as a positive force not a burden.

The customer has relevant information that they can act on.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




TG¢ abed

8% OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the benefits of doing this...

* Further detail on the benefits case for Business
Intelligence can be found in the Revised Financial
Case and at Appendix J.

Outcomes, experience and benefits*

)

Bl seen as a candidate for automation,
simplification and standardisation.

v Automation — regular reports and
routines in report development

v' Single data source — prevents
resources from having to source,
acquire and clean data for service
specific needs

v’ Standard reports — Agreed templates
for distribution and consumption. The
reports are as they come

v' Bl Portal — Access for staff to reports
and insights broader than the domain
they work in

v' Self Service — Training and support to
allow end users to create custom
views and slicing of data

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Customer insight, demand and
behaviour used to improve customer
experience.

v’ Customer Insight — broader and deeper
use of data to show needs and
circumstances of customer groups more
holistically.

v’ Forecasting demand — Using Machine
Learning to help services predict and
plan for peaks and troughs in demand.

v’ Behaviour and Sentiment insights —
Using data to build a deeper
understanding of customer satisfaction,
experience and their views.

v' Decision Support — Applying insights to
direct evidence-based decision making

v' Knowledge Management — Collective
holding of information to give a single
version of the truth, preventing
fragmented views or repeated requests
for information

<

Benefits of £76,500 through de-duplication
and in standardising some reporting
activity in the current Bl processes.

v Despite being a small opportunity in
terms of savings when compared to
other Layers, further benefit savings
coming about indirectly as Insights,
Needs Analysis and Forecasting help
Layers and Teams to shape future
interventions and understanding of the
various Customer segments.



4. Enablers




&85 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

D
RN
o,

Key enablers will be required to deliver the Target Operating Model and
maximise the benefits that the Council could achieve through it...

Key enablers required for the TOM

Enablers describe the supporting changes needed to create the right conditions for the target operating model to be implemented and
sustained, maximising the benefits that the Council could achieve through it. They can be grouped into a number of categories.

The following enablers have been described as part of the layer by layer run through of the TOM (slides 42 — 197) with further information
available as part of the appendices to this business case.

Customer Performance

Organisation
g Management

Offering

The following enablers are described at an organisational level as part of this section of the business case. Where relevant, specific enabler
requirements per layer are also highlighted in the TOM design, as well as the appendices.

€Ge abed

People

Capabilities Technology Information

Processes

Integrated
Role of th it
Governance Culture ole ot the Business

manager Centre (IBC)

Each enabler has been described using the following structure:

Where are we today? How will this change in the TOM? What will this look like in practice?
What is the current state assessment of the How will the enabler be different in the What will this change actually look like in
council in regard to this enabler (from the future TOM? the future TOM?

Case for Change)?

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



4a. Processes




GGe abed

= \Where are we today?

( Y (

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The case for change identified that there were significant opportunities to
improve processes right across the Council...

Why it matters

Processes are the sequenced series of activities that are undertaken
to deliver services or support the Council. Aligned with clear policies,
they are the binding factor between having the right people and
state of the art technology in high-performing organisations.

Having clear, well-designed and properly supported processes would
allow the Council to maximise the value of its resources and improve
outcomes for customers. When designed to be adaptable, processes
can enable the council to be flexible for the future. The quality of
these processes is important in creating a productive and successful
working culture.

What'’s already happening

With a move to self-service systems, such as the IBC, the Council
have shown they are already considering how they can adapt their
processes, in order to gain efficiency services. However the
majority of process re-design work to date has been in isolation
within services, rather than holistic in approach.

Many services have their own ways around current processes, in
order to overcome some of the challenges provided by faults in the
process. To truly be successful, future redesign initiatives should
take such a lens and re-examine the end-to-end design and
implications of processes.

Current state

o Processes are clunky, complex and are not intuitive, designed by specialists rather than the end-users.

o Self-serve model puts burden on managers, who feel they have had insufficient training to use new systems.

o Guidance on processes is hard to find, especially on the intranet, and is hard to decipher if found.

o The interfaces between different parts of the business along the process are broken.

o There are lots of work-arounds due to the complexity of processes.

o There is a non-compliance culture around some processes, with teams developing new ways of tackling an issue.

o Systems assume and support specialist understanding rather than generalists doing self-serve. Managers have to re-learn the

processes they do not follow regularly, and this is time consuming.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




2 OXFORDSHIRE

X

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

o

\‘“ ﬂ

During the design of the TOM the following process improvement principles
have been applied to 28 level 3 processes...

How will this change as part of the Council’s TOM?

The design principles for the TOM state the following in relation to oom o o
processes. GO Simplified - We have simplified processes for

customers and staff by eliminating repetition,
removing unnecessary hand offs and highlighting
where technology could be used to support delivery.

*  We will design processes around the user and their experience,
enabling self-service at every opportunity.

S-DU *  We will be transparent about the ways in which we manage risk. o—b =0
% There are different levels of processes — each level provides a o—e, Standardised - We have standardised common
NG further breakdown of the groupings in the level above. During the business processes, part/cular'ly' around the identify
ol detailed design phase, a number of processes at a mid-range level and assess stages of the Provision Cycle.
S of detail (Level 3 sub-processes) have been re-designed as
‘exemplars’ of the process improvement principles shown opposite ey Eliminated - We have eliminated steps which serve no
and to prove the concept of the TOM layer. o = purpose by replacing them with proactive,
Level 0 preventative and targeted activities.

E”fefpf"SA 28 level 3 sub-
Level 1 ‘ processes re-designed D Automated - We have automated activities through
S

Process Group during design phase M. esigning in’ available modern technologies for
customers, staff and suppliers.

Level 2
Business Processes

Level 3
Sub-Processes

*’ Customer focused - We have designed steps with the

customer in mind.

Level 4
Activities The following slides summarise the level 3 sub-processes looked at
during the design phase to show improvements to key activities.
Level 5
Tasks & Steps This work will need to be completed to the same level of detail for

all other processes during the construct and implement phase.
Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/Ge¢ abed

) Nl

Process list (i)...

What will this look like in practice - Front Office (i)

Operating model layer

Pre Front Door

Pre Front Door

Pre Front Door

Customer Management

Customer Management

Customer Management

Customer Management

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Level 1 Process

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Level 2 process

Managing appointments
and payments

Managing appointments
and payments

Processing requests and
applications

Processing requests and
applications

Level 3 process

Light touch strategic co-
ordination.

Proactive enabling
support.

Council led co-delivery.

Pay for it.

Book it.

Apply for it.

Report it.

Detail available at...

Appendix C

Appendix C

Appendix C

Appendix D

Appendix D

Appendix D

Appendix D



Process list (ii)...

What will this look like in practice - Front Office (ii)

Operating model layer Level 1 Process Level 2 process Level 3 process Detail available at...

Customer Assessment Rules based assessment. Appendix E
-
2 :
L% Customer Assessment Complex assessment. Appendix E
N
ol
oo Customer Assessment Automated assessment. Appendix E

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



6G¢ abed

Process list (iii)...

What will this look like in practice — Back Office (i)

Operating model layer Level 1 Process

Provision Cycle

Provision Cycle

Provision Cycle

Provision Cycle

Provision Cycle

Provision Cycle

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Level 2 process

Identify

Assess

Assess

Assess

Manage

Review

Level 3 process

Needs analysis and

business requirements.

Spend analysis.

Market and supplier
analysis.

Category strategy and
plan.

Supplier development.

Category review.

Detail available at...

Appendix G

Appendix G

Appendix G

Appendix G

Appendix G

Appendix G



09¢ abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

Process list (iv)...

What will this look like in practice — Back Office (ii)

Operating model layer Level 1 Process Level 2 process Level 3 process Detail available at...

Enabling & Support

Services Legal Governance Respond to FOI. Appendix H
Enat?llng & Support HR Managing recruitment On-board starters. Appendix H
Services

Enak?llng & Support HR Managing recruitment Recruit a staff member Appendix H
Services

Enabling & Support . .
Services HR Terminating employment  Manage leavers. Appendix H
Enabling & Support ICT IT operations Staff IT password resets. Appendix H

Services

Process accounts payable
Finance and expense Use embedded P-cards. Appendix H
reimbursements

Enabling & Support
Services

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



T9¢ abed

z
¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

Process list (v)...

What will this look like in practice — Back Office (iii)

Level 1 Process

Operating model layer

Enabling & Support

. Business support
Services PP

Enabling & Support

. Business support
Services PP

Strategic Capability

Business Intelligence

Business Intelligence

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Level 2 process

Data transactions and
Management

Data transactions and
Management

Strategic QA,
performance
management and
improvement

Business information and
reporting

Business information and
reporting

Level 3 process

Bulk data uploading
(SEN).

Bulk data uploading
(Transport).

Performance reporting to
Cabinet.

Automate a report.

Needs analysis and
insight.

Detail available at...

Appendix H

Appendix H

Appendix |

Appendix J

Appendix J



Q
o
o
)
o
o
<

Page 262




€9¢ abed

( Y (

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The case for change identified that there were significant opportunities to
improve the skills and capabilities of people across the Council...

= \Where are we today?

Why it matters

In order to become resilient for the future, the Council need to consider doing things in new and different ways. For this to occur, they need
to consider the capabilities of the people in their workforce. This is because doing things differently requires new skills, experience and a
differing knowledge base.

For example digital literacy is a skill which will need to be enhanced throughout the organisation. If new systems and tools are introduced
within the organisation, their adoption and effectiveness in improving efficiency is only as good as the employee’s ability to use them
correctly. Digital solutions must be designed to be as intuitive as possible, whilst also ensuring that staff less confident with technology have
adequate support and training.

As different skills are valued in the organisation, training and development opportunities for existing staff will be critical. This, in combination
with the recruitment for more specialist skills and experience will put the Council in the best position for the future.

Key findings

Below is a summary of our findings from a combination of stakeholder interviews, cross-cutting workshops, CLT workshops, and digital fitness
assessment interviews:

* The Council is not fully considering the skills required for the future when recruiting and there is not a collective plan for how best to fill
skill gaps in the organisation. The development and training offer for staff across the organisation is also inconsistent.

* Oxfordshire has locally specific recruitment challenges, with a saturated job market, making the hiring of new talent a more challenging
prospect.

* Alot of organisational knowledge and expertise is held by individuals within the Council but this can be lost when they move on, creating
duplication, fragmentation and inconsistency in how areas of the organisation works.

*  While many members of staff are motivated and dedicated to making a difference in Oxfordshire, there is a view that there is a resistance
to change in parts of the organisation and a positive attitude is needed to deliver new ways of working.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9z abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
%y COUNTY COUNCIL

will be critical to the success of the Council’s TOM*...

How will this change as part of the Council’s TOM?

1

Leaders that champion
the change

Members and Senior leaders
of the organisation, that
champion the change by role
modelling new behaviours
and ways of working.

Having the right people, with the right skills and capabilities in the right roles

2

Effective recruitment

The TOM will require new
skills that are not available
within current resource.
Effective recruitment will
be required to secure staff
with the right skills and
abilities.

3

An appropriate
appetite for risk

Trusting and encourage
staff to take full ownership
of their roles will be critical
to the success of the TOM.

4

A performance
driven culture

A performance driven
culture where poor
performance is dealt with
and positive performance
is praised and recognised
needs to be in place.

5

A responsive and
agile organisational
structure

An evolved organisation
that is more agile and
responsive to disruption,
and is able to adapt by
implementing change on a
rapid and ongoing basis.

6

A mobile, tech
enabled workforce

A workforce that is tech-
savvy, mobile and can
work remotely. A
workforce that is not
constrained by teams or
services, but thinks in a
multi-disciplinary way.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

7

The right
competencies and
procedures

Competencies and
procedures to support the
new organisation and
reflect the required
attributes and behaviours
to deliver new ways of
working.

8

Staff that are
customer focused.

An organisation-wide
commitment to being
customer focussed
including conducting
ongoing user research,
testing online sites and
services with end users.

* Further detail on the people requirements for each layer of
the TOM can be found at the relevant appendix.




Gog abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

85D OXFORDS HI RE o

Embracing flexible working is a good example of how the Council’s approach
to its people and capabilities will need to change in the future...

What will this look like in practice — Flexible working

Flexible working is not just about providing a piece of technology for staff, but changing the working practices for staff, including working

locations, working hours, job sharing, hot desking, outcomes based performance.

The Council has trialled elements of mobile working (hot desking etc) in several areas but engagement with staff during the design of the TOM
has highlighted that there is more that can be done to support staff, evolve working practices and ultimately to help the Council achieve its

strategic ambitions.
Flexible working

A key element to enable the Council’s TOM is an empowered, networked and flexible
workforce. While technology is one enabler for flexible working, there are many other
factors which must be considered and incorporated in order to be truly flexible:

* Agreater focus on outcomes and delivery
* Trust, communication and empowerment of both managers and their teams

* An awareness that one size doesn’t fit all (service areas have different needs for
different roles)

* New ways to better support service teams
* Overcoming risk aversion

¢ Communal areas to share and collaborate

Key requirements for flexible working proposed by the TOM design:

Workforce Planning/ Performance Management
Scheduling (Service)

Performance Management
(Individuals)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Examples of different flexible role requirements

O

Desk based Multi-site
(planned locational working)

O C
s ¢4

Home based Specialist
(unplanned locational working)

Dashboards




4c. Technology




/9¢ abed

The case for change identified that there were significant opportunities to
improve the way in which the Council used Technology...

Case for change

Why it matters

Information Technology (IT) is a fundamental part of all organisations today. Ensuring employees have the right systems, infrastructure and
tools to do their jobs is a constant challenge as technology is advancing at such a rapid pace, while the needs of customers and employees are
also changing. Having a consistent governance of IT across the council is critical to ensuring the security of information, maintenance of
processes and management of risks. At the same time, there needs to be a clear IT strategy to account for technology developments and
application improvements over time, reflecting the operating model of the organisation.

Key findings
ICT decisions made tactically; Lack of a single view of customer; ‘Digital’ ambitions are lacking
maturing strategic oversight. duplication of functionality. and potential untapped.

A review of the Digital Platform was carried out, contrasted against the functionality requirements identified in each of the the layers. The
review looked at the six areas below, analysing how the current/planned platform needed to evolve to deliver on the TOM. Layer specific

interviews were carried out in areas of importance. It highlighted that the main areas for delivery lie with Integrations, new product
procurement, build and deploy and Data & Reporting.

Integrations Process & Data &

Change Reporting

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




89¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

During the design process the Council used the following approach to
identify what technology the TOM would require...

Approach to identifying and costing new technology for the TOM

230+ User Stories
developed in

workshops to capture

Review the current and
planned capability of
the OCC Digital
Platform

Identify the technology
requirements based on

the functions developed in
High Level and Detailed
Design

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

needs and value of
technology from the
perspective of users.

All requirements
mapped to OCC Digital
Platforms to identify
gaps in the current
and planned platform

develop costs to buy,
implement, develop,

Working with
Digital and ICT
teams to identify
technology options Review and determine
and products to logical order of
address gaps and implementation,

functional timescales and resources

requirements

Use industry knowledge
and experience to

L Cost model
decommission elements

developed and

and maintain the future o
agreed with Digital
platform
and ICT teams



69¢ abed

¢85 OXFORDSHIRE
y COUNTY COUNCIL

The capability of the current and planned Digital Platform was also reviewed

against the emerging requirements of the TOM...
Reviewing the OCC Digital Platform

In developing the TOM and Layer requirements, current systems in use and planned as part of the OCC Digital Platform have been assessed.
There is the potential to re-use or scale elements of the existing applications landscape, i.e. GOSS, Tableau and ESRI. There are further elements
required to support the delivery intentions of the TOM.

Most components of the Digital Platform are largely available to support the TOM. However, there are still decisions to be made on procurement
of new components, re-procurement of existing components and decommissioning of legacy products. Key areas are highlighted in the diagram

below. .
o “As-Is Digital Platform” Build and Deploy
Functionality Functionality to support new
Requirements for self Mobile Working 7~ Channels areas, Pre Front Door and
service, community and Customer Assessment will

Geographic data . . 5 "
decisions for the portal.
| - L

With multiple /" Business Intelligence Data and Reporting

|

| Management AT G hi .. .
know what others are g - decision support and rich

Data Integration

further API’s and scaling

planned product development time in the Web
Management Verification
=~ ==
: Service Bus Business Rules
. Orchestration
Integrations t- \
|
H Data General " . .
requirements écrgss All layers highlighted the need
layers to have insight, for broader data and access,
doing and bring data out Gis visuals. Some product
\
and up for customers, procurement, replacement
Media Extract, Master Data . . .
er - and licence growth is required
of exiting products are to enable this.
required.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case 215



0/¢ abed

As part of the approach, technology requirements were gathered from each
layer using user stories to be customer-focused...

User led technology requirements

Throughout the High level and Detailed Design, technology requirements emerged, implicit and explicitly. This served as a general method by
which to consider the OCC digital platform, general requirements and named software. To develop further detail, each layer had dedicated
technology sessions to identify exemplar User Stories. These focus on what various customer groups need, in order to get value, from
interactions with the Council. Over 250 user stories were generated and the methodology for determining technology requirements from these

user stories is outlined below.

User Stories

250+ user stories

generated at
workshops. These
considered what
different groups
needed in order to
get value from the
operating model
layer or the Council
as a whole.

s e
~"
~

Functionality

Each story was
reviewed and
functionality required
was extrapolated and
then ordered by
frequency.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

(L

Technology b §

Functionality was

then mapped to
Gaps D

relevant
Requirements

identified by gaps

technology and
software

How frequently functions appeared in
the user stories

Function Frequency

Dashboards 30
Visualisation 30
Knowledge 19
Management

Integration 18
Smart 14
Outbound

Forums 13
Decision 11
Support

The highest frequency of functionality
highlights how important each layer,
despite Customer type, wanted to see
data, from many sources, in an
appealing and intuitive way.




&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The functional requirements resulting from the TOM design were then
mapped to the Council’s platform components...

= [Mapping functional requirements to platform components

Access and — . . . e
. Three areas where new products are required, Identity Management, Identity Verification and
Presentation - Multi-Channel. Preferred products have been identified, but yet to be procured.
Layer Multi-Channel Identity
A recurring requirement across multiple TOM layers is in the need for online functionality to support Customers
;_,U Customer and Staff in collaboration across services, self service and building capacity across various segments. Options are
«Q Management for a specific product or additions to the existing Drupal CMS product. This will also require integration with
CI\D) Collaboration other common platform components, for example scheduling, maps and addresses.
\] 1
= Integration - — A range of requirements highlighted the need to expose and integrate information
with - - from across Line of Business applications within OCC, creating views and insight. In
Partners and terms of partners, there is the opportunity to invest in an existing project bringing

LoB Cerner API's Automation Health and Social Care data together.

Knowledge Management featured repeatedly throughout

Information the TOM. The need for views of data and dashboards will

Architecture

require expansion of the current product Tableau. A new
product to capture and share work in Policy, Strategy and
Programmes is required

SharePoint Tableau Portfolio Management ~ Media Management Meta Data Management

People

Line of

Partners

Business

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2/ ¢ abed

,:.,,(4 OXFORDSHIRE
#0% COUNTY COUNCIL

A high level assessment of the technology costs required to enable the TOM
was undertaken...*

Costs for the Platform

At this level of Design for the TOM, costs to add and future proof the OCC Digital Platform are considered over 5 areas

1. Cost to purchase — This includes activity around specification development, procurement, selection and initial product acquisition

2. Cost to implement — This covers new products and includes supplier costs for implementation and internal resource to configure,
migrate, train and Go Live.

3. Cost to build — This cost is associated with development of existing technology within the platform, required to support the TOM. Costs
are based on an ‘Agile’ approach, using sprint teams of four, a medium level of build difficulty and management overhead costs.

4. Cost to exit — Used in cases where we exit contracts earlier than planned

5. Cost to maintain — The revenue costs for support and annual maintenance and licence fees for suppliers

Technology costs are those which relate directly to the implementation of the TOM. They are not the full scope of technology costs which OCC
might face as an organisation over the coming years e.g. replacement of the telephony system, meeting room AV, applications etc.

Based on a review undertaken in this phase, a breakdown of estimated technology costs associated with platforms is provided in the Revised
Financial Case section at slide 265. This is summarised below:

- Upfront purchase Implementation

Costs £1.1m £3.8m £0.3m per year

An alternative option considered the variation in costs for Enterprise Resource Planning (system for enterprise-wide HR and Finance
management), depending on the route the Council chooses to adopt in relation to the IBC. The alternative overall costs are summarised below:

Upfront purchase | Implementation Maintenance * Please note that for the purpose of the
Revised Financial Case, we have assumed that

IBC will be retained. Therefore, option 1 has
Costs £2.7m £4.8m £0.5m peryear been used to inform the overall cost-benefit

profile. The findings from the detailed review
of IBC can be found in section 4i.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



¢/ ¢ abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Gaps in the current platform will need to be filled through additional
software and development in order to meet the requirements of the TOM...

Filling the gaps

The diagram highlights where key functional gaps in the Council’s current platform will need to be addressed to support the TOM:

Channels of contact
Software and hosting options to move

| Social
1

1

I to telephony and channel strategy that

|

1

! !
| Software to support the i '
! increased activityand | !
supports roaming, mobile and I engagement across P
conferencing principles . : digital channels. ' \

-veuTuUrar —vﬂ = =vrueme=Wi

Customer

Development of modules and features of the current CMS, Web
Portal and Generic Apps to build and deploy digital features to
enable communities and various customer groups in Pre-Front Door,

I Customer Management and Assessment activity

= TuSTmMyTTVRI@genmrT T T T T T s s s s s m—m

User
Management

User
Authentication

Security

Social

>,

Service Bus Business Rules

h Procurement of

two software

Vs ,
1 L'cenClng Web Content
! Extending the
1 licences for
1
i Process
| already in place. orchesraton
Applications
- A _J

_——— e ————

shared services—>!  solutions to

Business Intelligence

General N
Reporting KPI Reporting
Viz

deliver Identity
ol i Verification and
Geographic
Services

Management

-

\

%)
1

Enterprise

1 . !

, Media : Generic Apps D"h’a

1 Warehouse

1 prod uct for the : Management Geographic
: b analysis

' management of |

! Council media |

1 and assets. '

Document
Management

Search

projects across the Organisation. A performance management product
to bring data and create insights.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Data Integration ]

Extract, Master Data

I
_______________________ N e e e e e e, ————— e
Programme Management and Corporate Performance

Two further solutions are required in the Business Intelligence group. A

1
1
1
1
! PMO product to support how the Council manages programmes and
\
1

: | Integrations
: I Multiple requirements across layers to have insight, know what
\ ! others are doing and bring data out and up for customers,
: ! further API’s and scaling of exiting products are required. Cerner
, 1 isa product across Health and Social Care.

[}



v/ abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

By addressing these gaps, the Council can harness technology to deliver a
significantly improved experience for its customers...

How technology will help customers

154)

Residents

¢ Residents will be able to

access Council services
through digital channels
that are simple and easy to
use.

¢  The Council will use

improved technology to
improve first time
resolution, reduce failure
demand and eliminate
duplication.

*  Where appropriate

technology will be used to
enable residents to support
themselves (automated
processes, targeted
information and
communication).

[ ]
Members

Members will be able to
access the information they
(and their constituents)
require about Council
services / performance
through channels that work
for them.

Opportunity to develop a
Member portal that
Members can customise to
provide them with the data
and information that really
matters to them.

Technology will be used to
improve communication
with Members.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

A

Staff

Technology will be used to
empower staff giving them
access to the information
and data they need to
deliver improved outcomes
for Customers.

Processes will be simplified,
standardised and
automated, where
appropriate, releasing staff
capacity to focus on
delivery to Customers.

Technology will provide an
opportunity to improve
staff experience (e.g.
through the development
of a staff portal).

()

Partners / Businesses

Technology can support
partners and businesses to
interact with the council
and get the information
and guidance that they
require.

More integrated systems
will help partners and
businesses work with the
council to give and receive
data needed to co-ordinate
delivery of services.

Technology will improve
access and use of business
insights for partners and
businesses, which can then
inform the development of
their service plans and
strategies.



4d. Information




The case for change identified that there were significant opportunities to
increase the impact that information has on how the Council operates...

m— \NNhere are we today?

Why it matters

Customer insight
Using data to gain a
better understanding of
customers ensures
services are delivered to
help them achieve the
outcomes they want and
resolve their core needs.

9/ ¢ abed

Early intervention
Tracking performance
metrics in real time
allows organisations to
intervene earlier to
mitigate against larger
problems or issues do
not arise at a later date.

Highlight opportunities
Data can provide a clear
understanding of processes
and their effectiveness in
service delivery. Continuous
improvement can be driven
by the knowledge of these
key pain points in the
process, ensuring an efficient
use of time and effort.

Since 2013, worldwide data has been growing by 40% a year. Smart organisations are harnessing this as a true business asset, leveraged to
deliver insight and drive effective decision making. Oxfordshire has seen companies such as the bike-sharing Ofo launch, using data gathering as

a core component of their business model. Big Data, Bl & Analytics now represents the biggest game-changing opportunity for driving effective
business strategy across 4 key areas:

Decision making
Access to the right data
empowers leadership
teams to benefit from
evidence based decision
making, maximising the
use of resources to
deliver the optimal
outcome for citizens, as
well as informing future
investment cases.

Key findings

The Digital Fitness
Assessment and
Business Information
and Reporting
workshops highlighted
the following key
findings:

Data is held in siloes by data
specialists, so people can’t
access data easily.

There is no strategy to
collect data from customers.
The Council do not always
ask for data from partners.

Staff use data reactively,
instead of proactively
managing demand.

Data isn’t used to inform
service delivery.

There are pockets of strong
data analytics capabilities in
the Council.

There is no dedicated Business
Intelligence function.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Having the right information and the right capabilities to analyse and draw

insight from will be critical to the success of the TOM...

How will this change as part of the Council’s TOM?

1

Information will be presented in
accessible and visual ways

The Council will harness real-time
dashboards for all services and activities
across the organisation to track
performance metrics and intervene when
appropriate.

4

Information will be accurate

Reviewing how information is stored,
captured, managed and manipulated
across the county, creating a clear
strategy and vision for how data will be
used going forward and what
infrastructure is required. Developing
staff awareness on the importance of
accurate data.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Data will be regularly
reconciled

Sharing data across all directoratesin a
consistent format which allows it to be
combined to create a single view of
customers. Creating a data warehouse as
the foundation.

5

Information will be shared
(where appropriate)

Developing strategic data sharing
partnerships with other local
organisations. Requesting relevant data
from companies that the Council works
with (such as partners of the Public
Health service).

3

The Council will invest in data
modelling and predictive skill
sets

Bringing together Council and third party
data to create a more holistic view of
Oxfordshire and all the interactions
within the county.

6

Data will be owned by the
council as a whole, rather than
by individual service areas

Perceived data ownership within service
areas is currently a significant barrier. It will
be vital to find a way for services to
subscribe to the new model whilst ensuring
the safety and security of our customer’s
personal data.



8/ ¢ abed

wIrs

£%5 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The table below summarises the impact that having the right information
will have across the TOM...

What will this look like in practice?

Pre- Front Door

Customer

Management

Customer
Assessment

Provision Cycle

Enabling and
Support

Strategic
Capability

Business
Intelligence

Data
visualisation

Data
reconciliation

Modelling and
prediction

Accuracy

Data sharing
partnerships

What is happening
in different
communities

Capturing activity
and insights from
community activity

Tracking outcomes
of those who have
worked with.

Build on information
to make it more
real-time.

People who are
solving their
problem locally or
themselves

Activity pushed out to
our customers

Know when to flex the
workforce or amend
prioritisation
thresholds

Share a view of place
using the richest data
available

All agencies to share a
view of place using
the richest data
available

Better able to assess
individuals with richer
data

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Demand /
throughout
data

Access to
relevant data
from other
agencies

KPIs quality standards
and if these are being
achieved

Benchmarking data

Service user feedback
/ population views,
stakeholder input

Live budget
information

What are others
doing, who is out
there, what are likely
costs, what is a fair
price?

Staff performance
data including skills

Customer feedback
and HR
performance data

Need relevant
information in
order to manage
performance and
identify priority
areas.

Political
intelligence,
local/regional/nati
onal

In-depth strategic
policy intelligence

Customer
intelligence to give
an overarching
view

Access to ‘soft’
intelligence and
data

Intuitive end user
tools for self
service

Intelligence will be
about seeing how
impacts in one
area support
another

Residents
interactions with
our services

Across the
organization in
Line of Business
applications,
spreadsheets

Population and
demographic data



n
ofd
Q
V)]
v
<
@
<

Page 279




wIrs

£2 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of the design of the TOM consideration was given to how the Council
could utilise its assets to support residents and staff...

= \Where are we today?

Why it matters

Consideration of assets and place is needed to ensure that the optimum physical areas are available to support the delivery of each element of the
operating model.

Choices around customer-facing assets are required which support the council’s ambition of providing a simple digital front door for the majority of
residents, while ensuring that additional support is available for those who need it. This will include providing the right locations and environments
for face-to-face customer interactions, particularly for those who cannot use digital channels or have more complex needs.

In addition, revised use of assets to meet staff needs is important when implementing the new operating model and its component functions.
Improved processes and technology will enable agile working for members of staff, supporting further asset rationalisation. However, some
business capabilities would benefit from co-location to better enable skills and knowledge sharing, as well as collaboration across the council.

08¢ abed

Key findings
Below is a summary of the emerging thinking from a combination of stakeholder interviews and discussions within the layer design working groups:
* The Council’s corporate estate has been reduced over a number of years, with ongoing work to reduce it further.

* Through the One Public Estate programme, the council is undertaking a series of reviews with other public sector partners, local authorities and
community organisations to develop the best means to maximise the use of all the public assets in local areas and release any surplus assets.

* There is an aspiration for a greater local presence in different communities across Oxfordshire. However, a number of council assets are not
located in the right areas or accessible for customers so there is limited flexibility in how they can be used and work is underway to address this.

* Many non-customer facing staff are based in the council’s estate located in central Oxford with high property costs and this will be considered in
the future as part of the office accommodation strategy

* Assets such as libraries and some partner locations have the supporting infrastructure for staff to work remotely but this is not fully utilised.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



T8¢ abed

3;:(‘ OXFORDSHIRE
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The Council’s current corporate assets and implications for the TOM...

How will this change as part of the Council’s TOM?

The Council utilises a wide variety of assets for the delivery of its
functions across the county. These amount to hundreds of
corporate assets spread across the county. In addition, the
council has responsibility for the schools estate but the
operating model does not have direct implications for this group
of assets.

e N
ni

There are a number of factors about the council’s current
corporate estate / emerging asset plan which should be
considered within the context of the operating model:

* Key council offices are heavily centralised within Oxford City.
Work is underway to consider the requirements for
accommodation across the county within the office
accommodation strategy;

* Other assets, particularly libraries and fire stations, are well
dispersed around the county;

* The assets of partners are not represented here but the
council already undertakes some shared space arrangements
with key partners such as Health and Police. The One Public
Estate programme is looking at asset rationalisation
opportunities and consideration of the Operating Model
requirements and implications will need to be factored into
this programme.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Z8¢ abed

= \Nhat will this look like in practice - Residents

= \Nhat will this look like in practice - Staff

2 OXFORDSHIRE
.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

o

A

How will assets change in the TOM?

As described in the Front Office section, the future operating model will actively promote the use of lower cost contact
channels, such as digital, but there will be a continued need for face-to-face customer interactions.

Customer-facing activity currently takes place at a variety of physical locations around the county, particularly libraries and m

main office reception desks. The future operating model will enable these existing locations to: Residents

Use improved technology to connect customer-facing staff to the information they need to signpost people and resolve
queries efficiently and effectively;

Deliver a consistent Assisted Digital offer in designated locations to support greater uptake of digital channels.
This will use existing assets in a more efficient and connected way to provide an effective and consistent Front Door for the council.

There is also strategic potential to develop a more integrated place-based model of public services across Oxfordshire. The county council does not
currently have ‘one stop shops’ for customer interactions but some districts, such as Cherwell, use key assets in this way. The consistent Front Door
in the new TOM provides a foundation for more integrated use of customer-facing locations on a case-by-case basis. The council can therefore use

this to progress an aspiration of a more local presence for services across the county through local community hubs when appropriate.

Key asset implications of the operating model regarding staff include:

Consolidation of effort and reduced fragmentation of roles will support the council’s ambition to continue to rationalise its
estate and release surplus assets;

There is potential to relocate non-customer facing staff currently based in Oxford to less central but more cost effective
assets. Options will need further exploration;

Co-location of key functions with partner organisations can support more efficient and collaborative working, but will need to
consider additional requirements e.g. Confidentiality and security requirements by the Police for the MASH.

The use of assets for staff in the new TOM will be dependent on the size and delivery model of the relevant business capabilities.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



4f. Governance




During the design phase an assessment was made of the Council’s existing
high level governance arrangements...

=== Where are we today?

Current governance arrangements across the Council do support the effective running of the organisation and enable suitable decision-making
at operational and strategic levels. However, a number of opportunities were identified to build on and improve these arrangements.

It is not always clear at what level decisions should
be made.

Greater consistency across the Council would
improve confidence in navigating governance
arrangements

Current arrangements work primarily due to
good practice and behaviours, but this is reliant
on individuals

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

There are a number of groups and boards acting in a variety of advisory,
steering or decision making capacities. The role of these different forums,
the relationships between them and their position in the Council’s formal
governance framework is not always clear or easy to navigate.

Currently decisions or issues can be reviewed in multiple forums,
sometimes with similar membership. There are opportunities to develop
greater consistency in process, such as standard templates, as well as
improving alignment of timetables for meetings and approvals.

There is a lot of reliance on individuals to know when and where to raise
issues for discussion or decision and the approach is often ad hoc. While
this generally works, there can be missed opportunities for broader
strategic input or making good connections across the organisation.

More defined procedures would help to give assurance on proportionate
governance and the balance between taking action (e.g. using delegated
responsibility) and appropriate oversight. Consistent recording of
decisions made and actions taken would better connect governance.




Gg8g abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of the design of the TOM the following ambition and design
principles for governance have been developed...

Ambition
The ambition is to have an improved governance model which is joined-up and streamlined with transparent decision making processes and
appropriate checks and balances. It will support decision making which is responsive, proportionate and with the appropriate rigour, recognising that
some decisions are complex with wide implications and will require significant negotiation and engagement beyond the formal process.

= Design principles

Below are the key design principles identified by the working group examining governance which will be used to develop and test potential
future governance models, building on what works well in existing arrangements.

We will be clear about where accountability for decision making lies.
Accountability

S
\‘\ We will be clear about who is responsible for making decisions including member and officer decisions, while also
.

recognising the complexity involved in some issues requiring a decision.
Responsibility

=
&

We will have a consistent approach to governance including managing compliance issues.

Consistency

m We will have streamlined governance processes which are proportionate, enabling and appropriate.
Proportionality

@ We will make decisions in a transparent way, recording our reasoning. We will clearly communicate both the
outcome of decisions and the reasons that they were taken.

Transparency

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



\‘“ \’ﬁ

X

OXFORDSHIRE
.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following areas of governance were identified as priority areas for
development through the implementation of the TOM...

Key priorities

Clarify the role of
existing forums.

Join up governance
of transformation
and operations
where appropriate.

98¢ abed

Improve
transparency and
communication of
decision making.

Clarify the
approach to
compliance.

Priority areas of focus

Why?

Individual governance forums understand their purpose and business but the role,
decision-making powers and connections between them across the whole governance
arrangements is not consistently understood. Some forums are more formalised than
others with established Terms of Reference. There could be better consistency in Terms
of Reference for particular types of forum doing the same role in different directorates.

Currently there are some different forums for ‘transformation’ and ‘BAU/Operations’
discussions and decision making. Limited join up between the different forums increases
the risk that decisions are made without relevant information or other perspectives. For
example a decision to undertake a new transformation activity might be made without
sufficient oversight of the impact this will have on the Council’s day-to-day business.

Capturing decisions made and actions to be taken is done in different ways, both in
regular forums and in one-off meetings. This can make it more difficult to track the
impact and outcome of decisions. In addition, there could be greater consistency in
communicating decisions made and the rationale, which are important pieces of
information which can encourage greater understanding and compliance.

There is clarity on the statutory responsibilities of the Council and where a statutory
officer is legally accountable. However, it can be harder to identify accountability and
responsibility for non-statutory decisions in the Council. Clearer checks and balances
would help to prevent non-compliance, which can be inadvertent, as well as identify and
improve areas of poor compliance.

How will it be different?

* Managing transformation
and managing BAU will
where possible be done in
a singular forum, allowing
for increased join-up.

* Greater definition and
clarity on the roles and
responsibilities of
leadership teams in the
council.

L_* Directorate Leadership
Teams (DLTs) runin a
more consistent way,
considering certain fixed
agenda items and having
relevant input from
business partners and
specialists when required.

* The recording and
communication of
decisions will be more
transparent.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



4g. Culture




8g8¢ abed

= \Where are we today?

wIrs

£2 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

Sustaining change and maximising benefits from implementation of TOM wiill
require changes in the culture of the Council...

Why it matters

Culture is a key aspect of success for any organisation, helping to tie its people and strategy together across all components of its operating
model. However, it is often intangible and can be one of the hardest areas for an organisation to shift. Key elements of defining and shaping
culture include:

Purpose — The common sense of mission for everyone in the organisation

Vision — What the ideal future looks like

Values — The qualities and beliefs held by people in the organisation

Behaviours — How people in the organisation embody their values in their day-to-day actions, whether individually or collectively.

There should be a continuous link between all these elements and the Council’s strategy and the outcomes it wants to deliver. If this is
achieved, then it will help to build and maintain a common sense of identity and commitment to the Council’s goals and how it works.

Key findings

Below is a summary of the key findings on existing organisational culture from a combination of stakeholder interviews and discussions within
the layer design working groups:

* There is no single overarching culture in the Council, with a range of different attitudes and behaviours in directorates and service areas.
This diversity is inevitable given the wide range of services delivered but a common core culture would help to build more collaboration
and collective purpose.

* Building on the point above, there is a silo mentality which can prevent services working effectively together to address common issues.

* There is a lack of compliance with agreed ways of working and procedures, with a number of workarounds by staff. This has been created
or exacerbated by complex processes or technology, but improved compliance is needed to support consistent working as an organisation.

* There is also aversion to taking measured risks across the council, which can limit innovation & creativity.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

During the design phase the following approach was used to think about
what the Council’s culture would need to look like in the future...

= How will this change as part of the Council’s TOM?

Culture represents shared assumptions that guide a group’s behaviour, and is manifested through behaviours within the organisation. These
behaviours, combined with beliefs and values, drive the culture within the organisation. Critical to changing culture is changing behaviour.
When an organisation sets out to improve the behaviours of its people, those behaviours improve the culture which improves performance
outcomes. Therefore, a focus on behaviours is essential for the Council, when implementing the new TOM.

When establishing the new TOM, a focus on culture will help the Council to ensure that changes to the operating model are embedded
effectively, and that staff take ownership of the transformation of the organisation. Culture has the ability to shape behaviour in an
organisation and influence the performance of the associated staff, if established and monitored effectively.

Behaviours

¥

Vision for the TOM > Behavioural change >

\

Performance
The introduction of a new Target Operating Model presents the Council with an opportunity to deliberately design a culture within the
organisation that supports the Council to achieve its strategic objectives. This can be done through a series of steps, which are shown in the
diagram below.

68¢ abed

Define your

cultural
aspirationsin
line with your
strategy

Identify key
behavioural

priorities Monitor your

Intervene to

volve and progress

Assess your el_t) ea

current culture align your
culture

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



06¢ abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

The following cultural aspirations have been identified as part of the design
of the Council’s TOM...

= \What will this look like in practice

The culture of the Council will reflect our values as an organisation:

We work together in a We do the best we can for We strive to find the We are open to change and
supportive and honest way residents best solutions doing things differently
Open Customer focused

The Council as an organisation must embrace a
culture of openness. This will enable and
empower staff to think freely and creatively.

Collaborative
Collaboration must be at the heart of the TOM.
Staff must be encourage to be open, to share
and to work together across organisational
boundaries in order to provide better services
to customers.

Collective

The Council is not a group of individual
businesses but a single organisation. Leaders
must embrace collective responsibility for the
decisions they make and for the performance of
the whole Council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

In order for the TOM to be successful the Council
must embrace a customer focused culture.
Products and services must be designed with the
Customer in mind and every decision must be
challenged as to whether it will deliver value for
the Council’s customers.

Consistent
The Council must be consistent in its compliance

with the key principles of the design if the TOM is
to be implemented successfully and benefits to be
realised. Non-compliance must be identified and
appropriate action taken.



4h. Role of the manager




( Y (

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The case for change identified that there were significant opportunities for
OCC to clarify and improve the role of managers across the Council...

= \Where are we today?

The activity analysis highlighted three areas most relevant to this theme; management and supervision, workforce planning and workforce
scheduling. The Council spends a very similar amount of FTE effort in these categories as the comparator group. With regards to management
and supervision, the category with the greatest percentage of staff time, 6.2% of the Council’s total FTE effort was spent. The comparator
group had 6.1% of total FTE time in this same category, showing only a marginal difference.

Discussions within the cross-cutting workshops elaborated on these findings:

1 Managers are having to juggle their day job with managerial tasks, as they do not get given sufficient time for managerial activities.

26¢ obed

Increasing pressure has been put on managers with the move to the IBC and self-service systems. Some HR and payroll tasks have been
reallocated to middle managers without what they consider to be ‘sufficient’ training.

3 Some tasks managers do not conduct regularly, and the re-learning process is time intensive.

On the IBC system approval is by line manager, not cost-centre manager, which is not the way the organisation is currently structured. This
can result in requests being escalated to a level that is not appropriate.

5 Accountability and responsibility is not always clear, and at times is misunderstood.

Having spoken to a cross-section of staff in the cross-cutting workshops it was evident that expectations around the role of a manager are
unclear. Senior leadership are increasingly spending time focusing on strategic thinking and decision making, and therefore need to be able to
depend on their managers for operational leadership. However currently managers feel insufficiently supported, unclear of their responsibilities,
and held back by the IBC system. Clarification around the role and expectations of the manager will help both senior leadership, and the
managers themselves, perform more effectively in the future.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



€6¢ abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

In order for the Council’s TOM to be successful the following key changes are
required to the role of managers across the organisation...

How will this change as part of the TOM?

1

Clear roles and responsibilities

There will be a clear ‘deal’ for managers
which makes the expectations of all
parties clear enabling a re-focusing of
managers on core managerial tasks,
better driving productivity and
performance

4

Workforce scheduling

Linked to agile working the TOM will
require and effective workforce
scheduling capability to enable

Managers to effectively and efficiently
assign workflow and monitor
productivity.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Improved productivity

A robust, coherent and consistent
productivity and performance
management programme will be putin
place across the Council that will help
managers monitor and performance
manage their staff.

5

A culture of collective
responsibility

Managers across the organisation must
embrace a culture of collective
responsibility. This will demonstrate the
commitment of leaders and raise the
profile of the Council’s strategic
objectives and transformation
programme.

3

Appropriate layers of
management

As part of the construct and implement
phase management layers across the
organisation will reviewed and assessed
for appropriateness.

6

Processes designed with
managers in mind

Processes will no longer be designed in
isolation from managers. Managers will
be consulted and will collaborate on the
development of processes and activities
that will be expected to undertake
themselves with appropriate training
and support provided.



v6¢ abed

289 OXFORDSHIRE g

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

As a result of these changes managers across the Council will be clear on
what is expected of them and where they can go for help...

= \What will this look like in practice?

As part of the Council’s TOM, managers will be clear about the expectations the Council has of them in relation to behaviours, priorities and
skills. There will be service-specific expectations and responsibilities, but the core expectations for all managers are as follows:

Behaviours .

Managers are expected to...

Be accountable and act with integrity.

Be loyal and committed.

Role model behaviours and inspire their teams.
Be flexible and adaptable.

Support compliance with Council policies and
procedures.

Managers are expected to...

Priorities .

Articulate and realise the corporate strategy within
their teams.

Create, support and maintain high performing teams.
Continuously improve productivity.

Plan and schedule work and resources effectively.

Be informed about the internal and external strategic
and operational context.

Make evidence-based decisions.

Managers are expected to...

R/ N .
(N

Across all their areas of responsibility, without
necessarily being an expert.

Commercially astute.

Customer focused.

Able to respond with agility to crises.
Financially literate.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Managers expect...

Role modelling of core behaviours through the
County Leadership Team.

Coherent and consistent messaging.

A positive corporate culture.

Systems and support which facilitate flexible
working.

Managers expect...

A clear and well communicated corporate strategy.
Clear, defined and realistic expectations of
managers.

Facilities and space for new ways of working.
Access to the right of data and insight.

Support for innovation.

Managers expect...

A suitable induction.

Appropriate and stretching personal development
opportunities.

Effective succession planning.

Active identification and nurturing of talent.

The right specialist support.



Page 295




96¢ abed

¢85 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What is the Council’s partnership with the IBC...

*Figures have been taken from the May 2015
Cabinet paper.

Background

After consultation in 2014, the Council agreed to enter into a public partnership with Hampshire

County Council - outsourcing the majority of their Finance and HR transactional activities into the

Integrated Business Centre (IBC).

The proposed benefits of the operational partnership were:

* Cost reduction — sharing of risk and cost through use of leading practices alongside maximising
the partnerships buying power.

* Capacity for the future — knowledge sharing and skills transfer, removal of barriers through
deep integration between partners and opportunity to expand this partnership.

* Quality and sharing — Delivery of quality customer service to reflect best practices.

* Financial benefit — Within the council’s medium term financial plan* the target for outsourcing

HR and Finance functions represented £0.8M/year. After investment costs of £6M the payback
realisation for the partnership was forecast as 2022 (7.5 years).

Key Question

Can the partnership
with the IBC, in its
current form,
support the delivery
of the Target
Operating Model?

1. Limited access to SAP makes it difficult for OCC staff to access some

IBC Running Costs 2015-18

types of data in the right format for analysis.

2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18

2. Some OCC processes are convoluted and manual as the systems are

£000 £000 £000

4. Requests for change are not managed quickly enough.

not all compatible with the IBC. TOTAL 4,403 4,452 4,521
3. There is reputational damage following implementation and issues * OCC HR and Finance functions continue to provide a
around staff engagement. level of resource above that which was anticipated at

the outset of the partnership in order to support

delivery and process changes and is in addition to the
5. Three more partners are joining the partnership in 2018 and there are running costs set out above.

concerns around the level of resource within the Partnership available
to support the Council in implementing the target operating model.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




/6¢ abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the key
challenges OCC has
encountered as
part of the
partnership...
Following council wide
engagement through multiple

groups of staff, a number of key
challenges were identified.

Staff engagement included:

S

Working Groups —
Enabling & IBC

Managers

&

OCC Staff

OCC’s On-boarding process

As part of the on-boarding process
there was limited consideration
given by OCC to change
management leading to a limited
assessment of the culture gap and
processes in working in a new
shared services partnership.

Speed of Change

Difficulty getting the IBC to
progress change requests for
improvement projects. This has
led to a review of the change
request policy.

Response Times

Timeliness of response is identified
as a big issue for staff. Itis not
uncommon to submita query and
at the end of the 5 day SLA receive
either a request for more
information or a poor response to
reset the clock

Error Reporting

The format of the error reports that
come back from the IBC are not
standardised (and are often
manually edited) meaning their
translation into an OCC response to
staff can’t be automated.

6

7/

8

Bulk Data Upload (BDU)

There is still a high reliance
across OCC on manual inputs
from line of business
applications into the BDU
middleware in order to facilitate
quick uploads to SAP.

Limited access to Data.

Limited OCC access to the data
contained in the IBC means it is
difficult to develop BI. There is
currently a two hour lag between
any transaction into/out of the
IBC.

OCC’s Engagement

There is evidence of very low
uptake for IBC training amongst
OCC staff resulting in further
pressure on the knowledge and
understanding of the IBC
systems and processes.

Trust

The challenges experience by
OCC during the on-boarding
process has led to a lack of trust
by senior management which
has translated into service areas.



86¢ abed

How is the partnership functioning...

Strengths and challenges

- swenas Challenges

Increasing trust levels:

* Following a request from HR, full access to the Council’s workforce
data has been granted.

* Inorderto improve the timeliness of OCC restructuring processes
options are being explored with the Partnership including further
access to workforce and personnel data.

Initial on boarding:

* Alimited amount of operational due diligence prior to joining, with
OCC not proactively redesigning their financial and HR processes led
to a difficult start to working in the shared services arrangement.

* This was coupled with a lack of change management at the outset of
the Partnership.

Pipeline of change requests:

* Recognition of the Council’s top issues through the Joint Working
Operational Management Forum.

* Commitment to changes for eight current issues and improvements

the recruitment and supplier self-service systems.

made to address three others alongside continuing developments to

Improving service levels:

* There have been significant improvements to the recruitment
process, supplier self-service and budget profiling amongst others.

* New Customer Interaction Centre model being developed to tackle
the common issues reported by suppliers/customers.

* Successful piloting of the web chat across twelve HR pages has
received very positive feedback.

Improved relationship management:

* Three tiers of working groups for the IBC have been established -
strategic, professional and user level.

* OCC have direct influence on changes through the Joint Working
Operational Management Forum..

Partnership engagement levels:

* OCCis an operational partner to the IBC with a limited amount of
influence compared to the strategic partners.

* Historically there has been limited management of the partnership
by OCC (active monitoring of Joint Accountability Statements etc.)

* Lack of clear senior support for the IBC across OCC has led to little
trust within service areas resulting in significant duplication of effort.

* The Council’s commitment to training, recently, only 30 of 275
managers attending recruitment training were from OCC.

* There has been limited co-production of processes between the
council and IBC leading to lack of clarity, at an operational level,
about roles and responsibilities and inefficiencies on both sides

* Culturally there is a lack of understanding across the Council that it is
an operational partner to a shared service, meaning that processes
can not always be bespoke to one partner.

The partnership’s change capacity:

* There is concern amongst OCCs staff that the partnership may not be
able to provide sufficient capacity to meet the pace of change
required by the council especially with the added workload that the
on boarding of three new partners will bring.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




ol

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

A high level assessment of the partnership’s core processes has been
undertaken by OCC professional leads...

m— Approach

A high level assessment of the performance of the partnerships core process, from an OCC perspective, was undertaken with the professional
leads working group. Using the experience and perspective in the room each high level process undertaken by the partnership (13 financial, 15
HR and 2 service related) were discussed and rated.

Through this activity we have been able to build an initial view of issues and performance and target areas for further investigation,
considering each of 30 high level IBC processes. Having now set out what we need from the TOM, further work has now been commissioned
on this basis to give a more detailed evidence based assessment of the alignment of the TOM with the IBC partnership model.

It is important to note that at this stage as these outline assessment is indicative for the internal development of the TOM, that IBC partners
have not had the opportunity to comment in detail on the position and that these conclusions represent an indicative position to be reviewed,
following the detailed work commissioned.

The Council and its IBC partners remain committed to developing the partnership model to their mutual benefit.

66¢ abed

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

To what extent has the partnership delivered against initial expectations...

Comparing current performance with initial expectations
By comparing the known functionality and benefits of the partnership against those that were proposed to the council OCC can assess the
extent to which its initial expectations have been met. It is important to note that the proposed financial and FTE benefits have been taken
from the paper submitted to cabinet on the 26t May 2015, with the actual FTE reduction figures supplied by HR. For the processes investigated
a number of joint accountability statements were created when the partnership began, these include where responsibilities lie for each party
and a set of high level service standards, however these are not always present and no SLAs were created to monitor the quality of a response.

Proposed Actual

67.45 FTE

(Taken from May 2015 cabinet paper)

£805k/year (taken from budget)
Circa £130k of resources retained in Finance and
HR.

* Quarterly performance reports since November 2017 (6 monthly
reports previously).
* No service quality JAS in place, therefore uncertainty over
whether quality is being delivered through the partnership.

No monitoring of service quality in place at the
start of the partnership.

Approx. 70% of processes perceived as
challenging by OCC

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



TOg abed

i;:{ OXFORDSHIRE
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the key questions OCC need to consider when thinking of the

future of the partnership...

The shared service

In late 2018 three London boroughs will begin the on-boarding process into the IBC partnership (as operational partners). This will increase
the potential for knowledge and skills sharing as well as further spreading the risks and costs (an associated indicative saving of £204k/year)
however it will also result in an increase in the volume of change requests and will change the level of influence OCC has on the partnership.
The success of any partnership is dependent on commitment and collaboration from both sides, much of the decision as to whether the IBC
should be kept is dependent on how much the Council are committed to a shared service and the extent to which that service can then

deliver the TOM.

In order to determine the appetite within the Council for working with the partnership in the future, there are a number of questions OCC

need to consider:
Challenges facing the partnership...

The lack of easy access to certain types of OCC data being
held within the partnership.

Many OCC processes have not been designed with the
partnership in mind.

Levels of trust in the partnership are low among OCC
operational staff are low.

Additional partners are joining the shared service, changing
the demands on the system and sharing the influence.

There is a freeze on non-statutory change requests within the
partnership with the change request process under review.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case -
CONFIDENTIAL

Questions to consider as a result...

To what extent are OCC willing to require the partnership to

share data to facilitate improved business intelligence?

- Is the Council willing to redesign end-end financial and HR
processes?

Is the Council willing to commit to the partnership and
mandate training and compliance?

- Is the Council committed to working with other partners in
delivering the shared services?

Are OCC comfortable with the capacity of the partnership to

support change in future as part of the delivery of the TOM?




3;:(‘ OXFORDSHIRE
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How does the partnership with the IBC, in its current form, align with the design
principles set out in the Target Operating Model (i)...

Design Principles RAG Rating

In its current form the partnership cannot support

@ * We will hold a ‘single record’ for each of our customers the Council to develop a single customer record.
(internal and external) making it easier for us to understand A
CUSEET our communities, manage demand and offer support/ The partnership does not currently provide OCC
T offering intervention based on need. with a single view of a staff member’s HR and
Q financial data.
®
0 IBC processes have been designed with limited
o *  We will design processes around the user and their occ mvoIvgment, this is improving however
N . i . . shared services must cater to all partners.
experience, enabling self-service at every opportunity.
Processes A i i i
*  We will be transparent about the ways in which we manage Financial approvals must go through Il.ne
risk managers not cost centres as IBC SAP is set up to

route through the organisational (HR) hierarchy
rather than financial

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



22 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

How does the partnership with the IBC, in its current form, align with the design
principles set out in the Target Operating Model (ii)...

Design Principles RAG Rating cont.

L_Fﬁ * Systems, applications and infrastructure will be designed around business Liirsuesi:a?isor:?:/Ji(tsf:ci:\fesmb;gjiiisti/sgfurce
Technology need, with a consistent approach to functional requirements. A processes per'ceived as Un-intuitive or
*  We will ensure that technology is always an enabler, not a hindrance. .
challenging.
* We will collect and store data once, sharing between departments where Data can be requested from the IBC
T * appropriate. A by a service area and then shared
jab) Information * QOur staff will have access to standardised performance information and however this is currently in an IBC
((% reports to ensure consistency across the organisation. format and not in real-time.
A foundational component of the council’s . ... 0 0 0 0
target operating model is Business Intelligence. \‘;ASL;tI?;nearf/lizz ; Cus’quer Insight / Forecasting demand
Measuring if the BI's targeted benefits can be  Mobile R . Deuspn Support ‘ o
supported by the current IBC will also help the viobrie eporting * Behaviour and Sentiment insights
Council in determining its viability. % Single data source % Holistic views of community and customer segments
v = Supported by IBC % = Not currently x Standard reports % Holding and using data for its purpose
supported by IBC x Bl Portal x Knowledge Management

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



v0g abed

wIrs

€8 OXFORDSHIRE
s/ COUNTY COUNCIL

Can the partnership with the IBC, in its current form, support the delivery of
the Target Operating Model...

Current state of the IBC

In its current form, it is

Following the high level assessment set out in this section it is
unclear whether the current form of the partnership could

Can the partnership with unclear whether the deliver the vision the Council has laid out.
the IBC, in its current » partnership with the There are concerns about the capacity of the partnership tp
form, support the delivery IBC can support the support the Council’s change programme at the pace required.
Of the Target Operatin . Further work is required to confirm whether the partnership
Mg p /?p Y delivery of the Target has the capacity to support the change required by OCC.
oael: Operating Model.
Future state of the IBC
Following the completion of the TOM design, the Council
Ifth hi ith now has clarity over how it will operate in the future.
Could the partnership f the partnership wit Discussions now should be held with the partnership to
be adapted to support the IBC.Can be understand the extent to which the partnership could be
the delivery of the adapted, it may be adapted to support the deliver of this model.
Taraet Operatin able to deliver the A deeper review and gap analysis of the JAS statements
g p g Te to ti will help to facilitate this conversation.
Model? arget Operating _ T ) '
: Model Following these discussions there will be clarity over the

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

level of compromise that may be required which canin
turn lead to conversations over mitigation strategies and
decisions over OCC’s role in the partnership.



Gog abed

( 7(

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

How could the Council approach adapting the partnership with the IBC...

Key advantages and challenges of the IBC

* Current relationship is improving, evidence suggests the IBC is taking on more of
, partner’s role, with improving levels of trust and performance reporting.

* Remaining will not require a full transformational change.
Benefits * Through the on boarding of more councils cost will be shared further.

Running costs

The on-boarding of the 3 London
boroughs reduces the cost share by
£204k, these costs Include staff and

system maintenance.

* Pace of change, historic evidence shows the IBC to be slow at reacting to change
requests, this will need to change to keep pace with the TOM timeline and future 2017/18 2019/20
£M Projected £M
challenges.
Challenges | . |cyel of influence, following the on boarding of more partners this may diminish. TOTAL 4.52 432 |

Partnership Solutions

In order to begin mitigating the challenges of the IBC a number of changes should be made in order to improve the partnership:

[
i
OCC Relationship Manager

* Single OCC relationship Manager for
the IBC to provide a consistent point of
contact between the IBC and OCC.

* This will give the IBC clarity of the
council’s priorities and allow for
improved prioritisation of change
activity etc.

* The role would also provide the
partnership with consistent message
around OCC BAU issues across the
council functions, ICT, Finance etc.

S

Process redesign

OCC processes that interact with the IBC
will be co-produced with the partnership
in the future.

This will provide clarity over roles and
responsibilities, increase efficiency and
also improve trust levels within the
partnership.

In addition this should also improve the
speed of information flow between
partners.

Rebranding the IBC

Should OCC conclude that the
partnership can support the delivery of
the TOM, following the completion of
the further work required, a large
scale communications campaign
should be launched to rebrand the IBC.
Once launched, mandatory training
should be put in place.

A champions scheme will also help to
change the internal view of the IBC
within all tiers of the council.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



90¢ abed

85 OXFORDSHIRE
&%/ COUNTY COUNCIL

What are the next steps for the Council...

Summary
A O 1S
Challenges Further work Next steps
The high level assessment set out in this Building on the challenges identified Following the completion of this work
section has identified a number of further work is required to assess the OCC will have a clear view on whether or
challenges facing the partnership performance of the partnership and to not the partnership can support the
including un-intuitive processes, a slow work with the IBC to understand where it delivery of the Target Operating Model
pace of change and new partners coming could be adapted to support the delivery that can be considered as part of detailed
on board. of the Target Operating Model. This work implementation planning.
began in August 2018.

What are the next steps?

Following the review, there are several immediate measures the council can take to begin mitigating the challenges facing the partnership,
including discussions with the IBC to assess whether or not the partnership can deliver against the requirements of the TOM.

November

@ July 2018 @ October 2018 @ 2018

Consideration of options
as part of detailed
implementation planning.

Discussions with the IBC about TOM requirements
and ability of the partnership to deliver.

Delivery of the TOM.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



4j. Innovation




80¢ abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE

IR

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

As part of the detailed design of the TOM a rapid review has been carried out
of the Council’s current innovation capabilities...

Current state of play

Sector leading innovation in
pockets

A few teams, specifically in the areas of
transport, health and social care are
sector leading in innovation at a policy
level & private-public collaboration;
mostly breakthrough innovation in
emerging tech.

Outward facing initiatives

The vast majority of innovation projects
are externally-funded and deliver
outcomes focussed on benefits for the
county and less so for the Council. This
has, however, ensured that the

innovation team requires little resources.

Low profile brilliance

Run by a small number of highly-driven
individuals, innovation successes are
largely unknown within the organisations
—a missed opportunity when it comes to
inspiring everyone in OCC to adopt an
innovation mindset

Ecosystem available
to tap into

A well-established ecosystem of start-ups,
established players of the industry,
academia & peer organisations is
available to tap into for a broader
adoption of incremental innovation
across the organisation

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Capacity a blocker

Teams across the organisation have little
spare capacity for new initiatives.
Releasing capacity across the organisation
along with skills development &
incentivisation of innovative thinking can
accelerate the achievement of benefits.

Need for strategy

Current innovation projects are market
led. There is no shortage of innovative
ideas within OCC. A strategic approach to
innovation will ensure alignment with the
overall vision, optimal utilisation of scarce
resources
& responsible investments.

The set up of the Innovation Hub is a
great start — but there is more that needs
to be done.



60¢ abed

This included an assessment of the Council’s current innovation maturity
against the following six dimensions...

Current innovation maturity

Define governance to sustain the capability;
transition to BAU.

* Governance adopted for Innovation Jumpstart
Wave 1 has been acceptable; wider op model .
design work will embed innovation S’(_O‘n
* Blockers identified from Wave 1 of Innovation 9)
Jumpstart, and now are in the position to
overcome these.

* First version of innovation
process created on the back of
Wave 1 Innovation Jumpstart

* Delivery tools and methods can
be procured from external
partners to start

<
2,
06/6‘
Identify and acquire the right skills;
embed a culture of innovation.

* Limited availability of user
research, human centred design,
and prototyping skills

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Assess existing strategies and capabilities;
identify opportunities.

* DFA and wider work has led to a good
understanding of the Council’s challenges.
0,3\ * Limited understanding or engagement with
001, customers / partners to understand real needs

Improve knowledge; build a wider
innovation network.

* External innovation network barely
tapped into; staff rarely given the
opportunity to be inspired by this
network

* Not enough ‘innovation Champions’

Inspire

* Co-creation role in Adults a great start. Human-
centred design approaches not widely known or
used

* Agile delivery adopted for some projects

¢ Little prototyping and piloting of new concepts



0TE abed

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

12852 O X FO R D'S H I R E. s

The review and the maturity assessment identified the following changes
that the Council needs to make in order to take advantage of innovation

opportunities ...

Opportunities for change

Inspiration necessary to sustain
creative thinking

Showcase of new technology & case
studies from elsewhere will inspire and
stimulate staff. Wave 1 of the Innovation
Jumpstart approach was successful in
creating awareness & expanding the
reach. Subsequent waves would require
showcasing innovation from elsewhere to
provide stimulus to participants

Dedicated resources needed to
move at speed

Wave 1 of Innovation Jumpstart suffered
from delays despite high-engagement
from staff — primarily because of capacity
constraints (especially in the Digital & IT
teams). To innovate successfully,
dedicated resources are critical.

Risk averseness hampers
innovation

Some areas of innovation are still
unproven and hence lack the robust
business case that is used for day-to-day
transformation projects. An appetite for
risk is essential for innovation. We have
the right governance in place to minimise
and contain losses that may arise from
failed trials.

Human-centred design skills
crucial to success

An emphasis on human-centred design
skills will allow staff to effectively shape
the ideas to meet the needs of the end
user. The co-creation team can help
facilitate this development, subject to
capacity.

Lack of funding could hamper
innovation

Teams across the organisation have little
spare capacity for new initiatives.
Releasing capacity across the organisation
along with skills development &
incentivisation of innovative thinking can
accelerate the achievement of benefits.

Procurement likely to be a
blocker to realising ideas

Moving from PID to pilot rapidly may
require smarter & faster ways to procure
services from external organisations —
specifically in areas where OCC does not
have the skills in-house. E.g. app
development, human-centred design etc.

The development of the Innovation Hub and the Innovation Jumpstart approach, working alongside the Strategic Capability functions, will

help the Council to take advantage of innovation opportunities.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



5. Revised financial case




ZT¢ obed

The analysis has validated the benefits identified in the case for change...

Benefit categories

It is estimated OCC could achieve c.£34m - £58m of on-going benefits over the next five years through 3 key areas.

The design of the TOM
Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that the Council validates the benefits
could deliver between c.£22m - £33m of benefits. The level of outlined in the initial
1 FTE Operating model capacity released will depend on the Council’s ambition and the case for change,
savings transformation choices made through construct and implement, but a range of estimating that OCC
€.603 — 885 FTE through a whole council redesign should be could achieve c. £22m
achievable. - £33m of potential
benefits.
The Operating Model
A wholesale review of procurement and contracts should yield Assessment estimated
significant benefits for the Council. Based on experience elsewhere that OCC could
31 Strategic sourcing and the work undertaken through the 3" party spend review and achieve c.£8m - £17m
party . . o . . . .
2 spend & process Strategic Sourcing Plans (SSPs), it is estimated the Council could of potential benefits.
improvements achieve at least £8m of benefit on its third party spend (This is in The SSPs developed in
addition to the FTE savings identified as part of the Provision Cycle this phase start to
layer of the operating model). validate this through 3
specific examples*.
Based on experience elsewhere, there are a number of The Operating Model
opportunities for non-people related initiatives to drive additional Assessment estimated
3 Income Commercialisation income from the Council’s services. This could include service cost that OCC could
recovery, trading or commercialisation opportunities, or a further achieve c.£4m - £8m
review of fees and charges. of potential benefits.

* SSPs have been produced for Adult’s residential & nursing homes, Children’s residential care and Children’s fostering. These support a number of existing initiatives within directorates related to these areas identified within the Medium Term Financial Plan and
further work is being undertaken to progress these.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

A number of benefit drivers have been applied to calculate the potential
benefits that can be achieved across each layer of the TOM (i) ...

Approach to calculating benefits

Benefit Operating Overwew (o]
Model Layer (s) Overview of approach to calculating benefits

Identification, with service areas, of existing channels for customer interactions and
potential to shift this for priority processes across service areas (channel shift).

Cust Effici & . . . . . .
ustomer |C|e.ncy Application of Society for IT practitioners in the public sector (SOCITM) ratios to
Management / effectiveness . . L. . . .
FTE OCC's existing FTE effort and existing cost for customer interactions providing a %
Customer Manage . .
o Assessment demand reduction range (low to high).
Q Application of the same % reduction range to FTE effort associated with coo-
L(% ordination and support activities for customer interactions (Middle Office).
w Estimate of FTE effort required in future provision cycle hubs using best practice
B Economies of ratios (CIPs and Gartner) for effort based on OCC addressable spend (approx.
scale & focus of £400m per annum).
. . Comparison of future effort required with existing FTE effort across all roles
FTE Provision Cycle expertise . . . s .
. spending more than 40% of time on provision cycle activities to provide target
Efficiency & .
effectiveness range for reduction of FTEs.
Rationalisation of FTE effort on all roles spending less than 40% of time on provision
cycle activities in line with leading practice benchmarks across the public sector.
Consolidation of FTE effort across QA, Performance Management & Improvement
and Programme & Project Management based on leading practice and analysis
undertaken as part of the Programme Service review.
ETE Strategic Efficiency & Rationalisation of fragmented FTE effort (roles spending less than 40% of time)
Capabilities effectiveness across Marketing, PR & Communications and residual FTE effort on QA,

Performance Management & Improvement.
Reduction in FTE effort required to support partnerships and undertake
administrative tasks through prioritisation and streamlining.



v TS abed

2
dR

2 OXFORDSHIRE

Y COUNTY COUNCIL

A number of benefit drivers have been applied to calculate the potential
benefits that can be achieved across each layer of the TOM (ii

Approach to calculating benefits (cont.)

Benefit Operating Overwew of benefit
Model Layer (s) Overview of approach to calculating benefits

FTE

FTE

FTE

Business
intelligence

Enabling &
Support Services

Service Delivery

Efficiency &
Effectiveness
Start, stop,
continue

Economies of scale
& focus of expertise
Start, stop,
continue

Manage demand

A combination of
the above drivers
will improve service
delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Elimination of duplication and automation of standard reporting activity will
reduce FTE effort required for Bl activities.

Based on previous experience and automation of software, benefits have
been calculated, using a % range, against the existing baseline of FTE effort
on Bl activities.

BAS — Using experience from elsewhere and qualitative feedback from
stakeholder engagement, a % reduction in FTE effort on BAS activities has
been identified. This is based on a number of factors including productivity
improvements, standardisation etc.

HR processes — Volumetric analysis and experience from elsewhere can be
used to drive financial benefits, calculated as a target % reduction, through
improving the processes and increasing productivity.

Process redesign — Volumetric analysis of time spent on password resets,
embedded P-cards and Bulk Data Uploads has been used to identify the
proportion of FTE effort that can be reduced through redesigning inefficient
processes.

Changes to the Council’s operating model will increase the efficiency and
effectiveness of service delivery.

Based on experience elsewhere and best practice, a reduction in FTE effort
required for service delivery has been applied.

This is based on a high level assessment undertaken as part of the OMA and
a more detailed assessment through service redesign will help test this.



2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

A number of benefit drivers have been applied to calculate the potential
benefits that can be achieved across each layer of the TOM ({iii) ...

Approach to calculating benefits (cont.)

Operating Overwew of benefit
Benefit category Model Layer (s) Overview of approach to calculating benefits

Strategic Sourcing Plans (SSPs) — A detailed analysis of all existing
residential and foster care placements to identify benefits through
negotiations, contractual restructures, volume consolidation etc.

* Sourcing opportunities — Analysis of the Council’s third party

n) expenditure as part of the Case for Change identified a number of
g * Sourcing levers other sourcing opportunities to drive better value for money from
I 3 party spend N/A * Manage demand 3 party spend. These benefits have been informed by desktop
w party sp » Efficiency & analysis of spend and contracts data, experience from elsewhere
E Effectiveness and opportunities identified by stakeholders.

* Process changes — A number of opportunities to drive effective ways
of working in the way the Council manages its external expenditure
were identified as part of the Case for Change. Benefits have been
calculated based on previous experience and analysis of addressable
spend.

* A high level analysis as part of the Case for Change including, service
cost recovery analysis, identified opportunities for OCC to generate
Income N/A * Income generation additional income through the services it provides.
* Further work is taking place over August and September looking at
the Council’s approach to income generation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9T¢ abed

( 7(

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Pulling each of these benefit drivers together provides the Council with the

opportunity to achieve the following overall benefit profile...

Benefit drivers (mid-point scenario shown)

Operating Benefit drivers

model layer (s)

Existing cost /

FTE No.

Estimated
benefit /
FTE No.

Estimated
benefits %.

Customer * Efficiency & effectiveness — Using channel shift levers particularly
Management / through using technology to focus on self-service.

Customer * Manage demand — Reduction in avoidable customer contact
Assessment through proactively pushing customers to the best channel.

* Economies of scale & focus of expertise — Leveraging category
expertise and right-sizing effort based on addressable spend.

» Efficiency & effectiveness — Consolidating effort and moving to a
consistent, standardised model for delivery across the cycle.

Provision Cycle

Strategic * Efficiency & effectiveness — Consolidating effort to enhance
Capabilities joined up working between the functions.

* Automation — Automation of routine reports to prevent people

Business . . .
. from producing their own versions.
Intelligence .. . . .
* Efficiency & effectiveness — Training to encourage self-service.
e Economies of scale & focus of expertise — Consolidation of similar
. activities to allow access to specialist skills.
Enabling & P

Automation — Using technology to automate processes.
Manage demand - Standardised and simplified processes to
reduce volumes of transactions to be processed.

Support Services

Service Delivery A combination of the above drivers will improve service delivery.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

£64m / 1648

£5m /111

£18m /318

f2m /44

£23m /506

£33m /1124

£19m /513 30%
£2m /33 40%
£1m /26 6%
£64k / 1 3%
£4m /93 17%
£2m /78 6%



3;:(‘ OXFORDSHIRE
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

To achieve the benefits set out in this revised case for change, the Council
will need to invest in the following programme implementation costs...

TOM programme implementation costs

The Operating Model Design phase has been an opportunity to test and develop estimated programme implementation costs.

FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23

1. Technology implementation £0.9m £3.5m £1.2m £1.0m £0.3m £6.9m
1.1 Technology platform components** £0.2m £2.2m £1.2m £1.0m £0.3m £4.9m
1.2 Technology support £0.7m £1.3m - - - £2.0m

2. People £0.0m £0.3m £1.2m £1.1m £0.4m £3.0m
2.1 Training - £0.1m £0.6m £0.3m - £1.0m

2.2 Backfill eg. Delivering elements of
HR, Communications, Engagement, - £0.2m £0.6m £0.8m £0.4m £2.0m
Programme Leadership etc.

/T€ abed

3. Commissioned support £3.0m £5.0m £0.0m £0.0m £0.0m £8.0m
3.1 Strategic advice & programme £1.0m £1.6m i i ) £2.6m
management
3.2 Ongoing support to Programme
Management Office (PMO) £0.5m £0.8m £1.3m
3.3 Service construct & implement £1.2m £2.0m - - - £3.2m
3.4 Organisation Design (OD) £0.3m £0.6m - £0.9m

*For accuracy, total figures have been calculated before rounding.
**These costs account for the upfront purchase and implementation costs for new platforms. They exclude the increased annual maintenance costs per year of new systems. A detailed breakdown of this is provided on the next slide.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



8T¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

X

.Y COUNTY COUNCIL

BEST

\‘“ ﬂ

As well as in the following technology costs...

Technology costs

Following on from the initial case for change, we have undertaken a further assessment of system requirements and required components for
the implementation of the TOM. These are outlined below and recognise the previous investments in technology made by the Council.

Technology requirement Ir.nple.mentation Cost type™

Multichannel — Multiple capabilities to interact with Council 1 £0.4m £0.1m £20.0k
Identity management — Microsoft Identity Manager (MIM) 1 £1.0k £50.0k £5.0k
Identity verification — Contego 1 £25.0k £50.0k £10.0k
Build of online transactions 1-3 - £2.0m £50.0k
Website and content hosting platform - Drupal collaboration 1-2 £50.0k £0.2m -
Health information sharing — Cerner 2 £0.1m £50.0k £55.0k
Information storage / management — SharePoint 1 £0.3m £0.2m £80.0k
Portfolio and agile project management — Trello 1 - £30.0k £30.0k
Business intelligence data visualisation — Tableau 1-2 £0.2m - £40.0k
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system — Development 2-4 - £1.0m -
Information & data architecture 1-2 - - -
Application Programme Interface (API) for secure data exchange £80.0k £0.1m

* Please note:
Upfront purchase costs are one-off costs applied in the year of purchase.
Implementation costs are one-off costs which have been profiled across the implementation timelines.
Maintenance costs are recurring annual costs that have not been included in the overall costs of implementation or cost-benefit profile. The cost-benefit profile represents one-off investments required for implementation.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



6TE abed

£52) O X F O R D'S H I R E. o
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Pulling the revised benefits and costs together provides the Council with the

following cost - benefit profile over the next five years...
Cost - benefit profile

Through implementing the TOM it is estimated that Council will 0
deliver between £34m and £58m of on-going benefits over the 4
next five years. 0
5 40

This cost-benefit profile aligns with the proposed = 35
implementation plan outlined in section 7 of this business case. E 30
This assumes that FTE benefits through operating model E 25
transformation will begin to be realised on the 1%t of the month 2 20

H 1 7 . [
following each ‘release’ (please refer to section 7 for an @ 15
explanation of what a release is and how this links to OCC’s 'g 10
services and operating model layers). © 5 .

. . . S . 0 L
As outlined previously, the est|rT1ated r'equwed investment is 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23
made up of one-off costs associated with external . .
implementation support, people costs and technology. The Financial year

. e . ’ mm Annual benefit === Cumulative annual benefit
Council may be able to capitalise a proportion of these.

These investments will enable the Council to construct and 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

implement its TOM, as well as to implement the new ways of
working and technologies that are required to deliver the savings
identified in this revised case for change.

Annual recurring benefit

. . £0m £14m £18m £10m £4m
delivered in year

Cumulative annual recurring
The graph to the right shows the benefit off the baseline over a benefit

five year period, using the mid-point benefit scenario (c.£46m).

£0m £14m £32m £42m £46m

The following one off costs will be incurred over the period to

Cost assumptions implement the TOM.
* A summary of the assumptions that underpin this cost-benefit profile

can be found at slides 269 — 270 of Section 5: Revised Financial Case.

*  For the avoidance of doubt redundancy costs have been excluded from In-year one off costs** -£4m -£9m -£2m -£2m -£1m
the cost estimate calculation.

*For simplicity, all numbers in this table are rounded to the nearest whole number. The totals have
. . . been calculated before rounding for accuracy.
Oxfordshire Cou nty Cou ncil - Business case ** The costs shown in this table exclude recurring maintenance costs for technology.



0zg abed

£ OXFORDSHIRE

X

2% COUNTY COUNCIL

This benefit profile can be broken down to show both the split by benefit
component as well as the timeline for realisation...

Benefit realisation profile (mid point scenario shown)

It is possible to identify the proportion of estimated benefits associated with each of the 3 key benefit components as outlined below.

Income ‘ 129%

These high level percentages can be broken down further to identify the estimated benefits associated with each Financial Year. This aligns with
the profiling on the previous slide. In addition to this, the FTE benefits can also be broken down by release as per the implementation plan.

18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23
Financial year

3" party
spend

FTE
benefits

e | e e o | o | e | o e

FTE benefits* 0 £0m 201 £7m 372 £14m 171 £7m 0 £0 744 £28m
Release 1 0 £0m 55 £2m 55 £2m 0 £0 0 £0 110 £4m
Release 2 0 £0m 40 £2m 52 £2m 13 £1Im 0 £0 104 £4m
Release 3 0 £0m 81 £3m 163 £6m 81 £3m 0 £0 326 £11m
Release 4 0 £0m 25 £im 102 £4m 76 £3m 0 £0 204 £9m
3 party spend - £0m - £5m = £2.3m = £2.3m = £2.3m = £12m
Commercialisation £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m

*Please note that for accuracy, totals have been calculated before rounding. This results in rounding errors as all numbers in this table have been rounded.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Tcg abed

52 O X F O R D'S H I R E. s

% COUNTY COUNCIL

The revised financial case will support the Council with responding to its
budgetary pressures...

= Linking the revised financial case to the Council’s current financial plan

The Council has identified that over the next four years it faces cumulative pressures, improvements and investments of £57.8m.

The revised financial case, set out in Section 5 of this document, builds on the existing transformation activities the Council has underway,
whilst recognising that there is some overlap with existing Directorate Savings, to provides a clear roadmap for how the Council can achieve the
minimum level of benefit required (£34m) to meet its existing budgetary pressures (as set out on slide 7).

£40.0 Thgminimumben.efitcasescenfarioset ettt
out in the TOM business case delivers the i High business case benefit scenario - £58m i
£30.0 minimum level of benefit required for ! :
the Council to meet existing budgetary ! !
£20.0 pressures. i i
I | L 1
£10.0 ! — - — - - i
M Minimum business case benefit scenario - £34m !
£0.0 i i
| £25.6m !
2 -£10.0 ' !
2 ! £15.6m !
2 00 i Overlap with existing Directorate Savings i
L F]
£30.0 £22.7m t_
-£40.0
The estimated benefit range to be
-£50.0 delivered through the TOM includes
£15.6m of overlap with existing
£60.0 - £57.8m Directorate Savings
-£70.0
Pressures, Improvements and Corporate measures Directorate Savings (existing Operating Model Benéefits (including re-profiled
investments MTFP savings) transformation savings)

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



zeg obed

#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

The following assumptions underpin the target cost - benefit profile set out
in this revised case for change (i)...

Benefit assumptions

The main benefit assumptions used in the development of this revised case for change have been based on agreement within the Programme
team, HR and service representatives and practical experience from similar programmes.

1

2

00 N O v b

FTE Baseline: The Activity Analysis provides the baseline of effort by service and process. This baselining of current state activity and
subsequent calculations is based on data collected by the Council during July 2017.

Cost Baseline: The cost baseline has been developed from an average salary for each unique post in the organisation. This is based on
actual salary data provided by HR for the development of the initial case for change, and includes 30% on-costs.

Redundancy costs: No redundancy costs have been factored into the business case. Impact will be mitigated by regular staff turnover
and the Council has a good track record on redeployment of staff. It is assumed that the Council has sufficient funds separately from
the programme to cover any redundancy costs that come to light through the programme.

Pay protection: The cost of any future pay protection is currently not included in the programme cost information.

Benefit levers: For each benefit lever, the percentage saving for the proposed TOM is based on experience in similar authorities, and
examples from leading practice, at a conservative estimate of the potential benefit range and has been tested with officers.

Volumes: Where it has been available, and has been provided, we have used the Council's volumetric data (numbers of calls, emails,
face to face interactions) to inform the design of the TOM and any potential efficiencies.

Changes in staff numbers: During the implementation phase, the Organisation Design may lead to an increase or decrease in staff
numbers.

Approval of identified benefits: The timetable set out in this business case assumes prompt approval of identified benefits through
the agreed governance route for the implementation of the TOM. Delay in this process will impact the cost benefit profile as set out
on slide 266.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



#3%) COUNTY COUNCIL

The following assumptions underpin the target cost - benefit profile set out
in this revised case for change (ii)...

Cost assumptions

The main cost assumptions used in the development of this business case have been based on agreement within the Programme team, as well
as practical experience from similar programmes on the role and cost of transformation support. In relation to technology costs, these have
been developed and tested with the Director of Digital & ICT.

Scope of technology costs: The technology costs included in this revised case for change are only those which relate directly to the
implementation of the TOM. They are not the full scope of technology costs which OCC might face over the coming years e.g.
maintenance, updates and support of existing ICT infrastructure; license costs for existing systems etc.

Existing technology costs: The current staff costs are c.£1.36m with an additional £0.2m for licences and supplier support. These costs
are expected to rise as new products, integration and support increases (these anticipated increases are included in the costs shown on
slide 265).

Investment in technology: The current level of investment for the activity already in train and signed of by FFF board will remain the
same (e.g. Capita 360).

IBC: As part of the detailed design, we have undertaken a review of the IBC. The technology cost profile in this revised case for change
assumes that IBC will be retained.

Planned activities: Digital and ICT resource may be required to support specification and selection activity for some platforms. This will
impact delivery of planned activity in 2018/19. This could be mitigated through the use of external resources and product suppliers to
support the in house team.

Technology benefits: There may be some benefits generated through rationalisation, but these will be small in comparison to the level
of investment.

Optimisation of the TOM: The external support costs set out in this revised financial case assume that any optimisation of the TOM once
implemented will be delivered by Council teams. There may however be instances where the Council requires further external support
with this optimisation. These costs have not been included in this revised financial case.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



6. Service impact & gap analysis




Geg obed

( 7(

O X FO R D 'S H I R E s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The TOM has been reviewed by each service area in order to understand the
impact on the service and the gap between current and future ways of

working...

Service impact & gap analysis approach

There has been a range of opportunities to consider service impact throughout the design process. In addition, each service area (based on CLT
members and their direct reports) has had two dedicated opportunities (one at the end of the high level design phase and one at the end of
the detailed design phase) to review the emerging TOM design and comment on the potential impact of the proposed design on the service.

In addition at the end of the detailed design phase the service areas were also asked to capture the gap (H/M/L) between the proposed way of

working set out in the TOM and the current way of working within the service area. These gaps have been used to inform the composition and
sequencing of each of the proposed releases set out on slide 311 in Section 7: Construct & Implement.

Service impact testing round 1 (High level design)

At the end of the high level design phase service areas were asked
to review the high level design and RAG rate a series of statements
summarising the key changes arising from the TOM based on their
impact on the service. Services also discussed a number of changes
and opportunities for the Front Office in their areas.

Proposed change Proposed change Proposed change
would result in would work for would work for the
service area not service area but service area...
being able to fulfil consideration would

statutory obligations need to be given to...

due to...

Service Impact Testing RAG Key....

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Service impact testing round 2 (detailed design)

At the end of the detailed design phase service areas were asked to
repeat the RAG rating exercise (based on the additional
information provided) and to consider the gap between the

proposed future way of working and the current way of working
within that service area.

I R R

Significant gap Medium gap Low gap between
between current between current current state and
state and future state and future future state.
state. state.
Gap Analysis Key....



9zg abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council
Proactive signposting
Digital customer portal
Digital self-service
Customer management
Multi-skilled customer management function
Multi-purpose face-to-face sites
Strategic customer approach
Improved screening & triage
Simplifying non-complex assessments
Customer assessment Channel shift to reduce manual interventions

Streamlining complex assessments

Enhanced partnership working & shared records

=<

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

More Active Engagement

me) Category Management M

jab)
@ . . .

@ Provision cycle Strategic Contract Management M
N

~ Operational Contract Management H

Transparent Governance M

Self Service H

Business Partnering M

Enabling & support services Centrally managed BAS H

Virtual BAS Teams H

Functional BAS Teams M

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Although service areas across the Council broadly believe changes will have a
positive impact, there is still a considerable gap to move to future ways of
working...

- Summary of service impact & gap analysis across the Council (cont.)

2y Strategy & Policy Definition —
jab}
Q :
o) Project Management Framework — H
w
N .
o Clear project approval process — H
Strategic capability
Single view of corporate performance — M
Streamlined performance reporting — M
Outcome based KPIS at a corporate level — M
Automated standardised reporting — M
Business intelligence Quality assurance checks — H
Data will be easy to update and share — H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



6¢¢ abed

28 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following changes proposed as part of the TOM were flagged as needing
further consideration as part of construct or implement activities (i)...

Front Office

1

Use of signposting, information
and guidance to divert or avoid
demand.

Concern that this could lead to an
inconsistent customer experience and
increase demand for services as
customer that come through the front
door are more likely to be eligible for
services..

4

Development of simple and
consistent digital customer
portal.

Concern that this would further
increase the risk that vulnerable or

digitally isolated residents are unable to
access Council services.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Application of digital self
service principles wherever
possible.

Challenge around ensuring that this does
not disadvantage vulnerable or digitally-
isolated residents and that customers of
some service areas will not be able to
self-serve.

5

Streamlining of complex
assessments.

Challenge from service areas that some

assessments are unavoidably complex

and require a ‘multi-faceted’ approach.

It was emphasised that a ‘one size fits’
all approach is not viable.

3

Use of multi-skilled customer
management staff to
undertake core customer
management activities.
Concern that this could result in loss of
service specific customer management
skills and knowledge with service areas

reliant on a council wide offer / service
resulting in loss of control.

Responses to these challenges have been
considered throughout the design
process. These include developing a
flexible customer offer based on the
complexity of their circumstances,
assisted digital solutions, and clear roles
and responsibilities between the
Customer function and operational
service areas. Further consideration,
mitigation and responses will be
developed as part of the construct and
implement phase.




ocg oabed

28 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following changes proposed as part of the TOM were flagged as needing
further consideration as part of construct or implement activities (ii)...

Back Office

1

Embedding a council wide
category management
approach to the management
of third party spend.
Concern from service areas that this
could result in loss of control / could
result in lost opportunities to leverage

benefits opportunities from spending
with partners.

4

Use of virtual BAS teams.

Service areas recognise that this is a
significant step-change from current
practice and could lead to a loss of
direct, line management control of
administration resources.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

2

Corporate oversight of
strategic contract
management.

Concern from service areas that this
could result in loss of ownership of
contracts for which they are
accountable. Additional challenge that
service areas are experts in the services
they commission.

5

Increase in levels of self-service
and self-sufficiency across the
Back-Office.

Challenge from service areas that this
has not worked in the past due to
process, technology and cultural
changes. Risk that this shifts further
work onto managers impacting service
delivery.

3

Development of a consolidated
Business Administration
Service.

Challenge from service areas that this
will result in loss of service specific
administration capabilities and risk the
transfer of these activities to front line
staff.

Responses to these challenges have been
considered throughout the design
process. These include providing greater
clarity on the roles and responsibilities
between back office functions and service
areas, as well as highlighting the key
dependency of technology and systems
which are fit for purpose. Further
consideration, mitigation and responses
will be developed as part of the construct
and implement phase.




6a. People directorate




zsg obed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer management (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Customer Proactively signposting, information and
management advice and guidance to divert or avoid
particular types of customer demand.

Customer External customers will have access to a

management simple and consistent digital customer
portal that will allow them to access Council
services and track their progress with
minimal effort.

Customer Whenever possible digital self service

management principles will be applied to allow customers
quick and easy access to transactional
services.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

. |
I |
. |



cee abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer management (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Customer
management

Customer
management

Customer
management

Design statement..

A multi-skilled and enhanced customer
management function will undertake all
core activities related to initial information
and service requests.

Enable sites with regular face to face
contact to be more multi-purpose and
better supported for signposting.

A strategic approach to customers to
continually improve customer experience,
outcomes and Council operations.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

EIRIEIEIESE



yeg abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer assessment...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Customer
assessment

Customer
assessment

Customer
assessment

Customer
assessment

Customer
assessment

Design statement..

Improved screening and triage so that
customers reach the right service at the
right time.

Simplifying or removing non-complex

assessments for transactional services.

Assessment channel shift to forms of less
manual intervention from Council staff.

Streamlining complex assessments both
within and between service areas.

Enhanced partnership working and shared
records with partners where possible.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

“ Childrens Public Health
| impact | Gap | impact | Gap | impact | Gap



Ggeg abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Provision cycle...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

“ Childrens Public Health

Provision cycle Commissioning & Procurement will have
more upfront active engagement with
service areas and the market to get an
understanding of service priorities.

Provision cycle We will embed a council-wide category
management approach to how we manage
third party spend.

Provision cycle Strategic contract managementi.e. KPIs will

be managed at a corporate level

Provision cycle Operational contract management will be
delivered in services

Provision cycle There will be a consistent and transparent
governance process in place for a clearer
approval process.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

[ | e e | @ | o | @n



ogcg abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Enabling & support services...

— |mpact & gap analysis

m Childrens Public Health

i I (e e e O e =

Enabling & support Levels of self-service and self-sufficiency will

services increase where technology allows H H

Enabling & support  There will be an integrated and

services strengthened business partnering approach H M
for the delivery of ICT, Finance, HR and BAS.

Enabling & support BAS will be managed centrally as a defined

services service which supports the whole council L M
with staff co located in teams where
possible.

Enabling & support ~ Where appropriate virtual BAS teams will

services be created to enable consistent
management and flexibility of resource at H H L
locations across the region where small
numbers of BAS staff are located.

Enabling & support  There will be BAS functional teams which

services provide a specific service to the whole H H L

council — as an example this could include
recruitment

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/€€ abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Strategic There will be organisation wide clarity over
Capabilities what is meant by ‘strategy and policy’ at
both a corporate and a service level.

Strategic There will be a single and clear framework

capabilities on how OCC does project management. This
framework will set out the level of
oversight/governance proportionate to the
risk/value of projects.

Strategic There will be a simplified and clear process

capabilities articulating where projects go for approval
and at what stage e.g. role of FFF Board, CLT,
procurement gateway process.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

“ Childrens Public Health



g¢g obed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Strategic There will be a single view of corporate

capabilities performance i.e. monitoring the Council’s
performance against key indicators and
what the Council wants to be known for.

Strategic The process for performance reporting will
capabilities be streamlined all the way from service
areas through to cabinet.

Strategic A greater number of corporate performance
capabilities indicators will be based on outcomes.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

“ Childrens Public Health



6cE abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Business intelligence...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Business
intelligence

Business
intelligence

Business
intelligence

Design statement..

Standardised reporting will be automated,
reducing the time spent by front line service
staff on reporting tasks.

Quality assurance checks will be built into
the processes where data is gathered and
collected throughout the Council

Data will be kept it up to date and accurate,
to ensure that others can access and use it
when they need to.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

- :
I M
. M



6b. Communities directorate




TvE abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer management (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
Planning & Place . . .
Operations Capital Delivery Rescue

e e mnmnmnmn

Customer Proactively sighposting,

management information and advice and
guidance to divert or avoid
particular types of customer
demand.

Customer External customers will have

management access to a simple and
consistent digital customer
portal that will allow them to
access Council services and
track their progress with
minimal effort.

Customer Whenever possible digital self

management  service principles will be
applied to allow customers
quick and easy access to
transactional services.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Zvs obed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer management (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Customer
management

Customer
management

Customer
management

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
Planning & Place . . .
Operations Capital Delivery Rescue
e mnmnmnmn

A multi-skilled and enhanced
customer management
function will undertake all
core activities related to initial
information and service
requests.

Enable sites with regular face
to face contact to be more
multi-purpose and better

supported for signposting. L H Not applicable M
A strategic approach to

customers to continually

improve customer experience, M

outcomes and Council
operations.

M . M . M

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



ci¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer assessment...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
Planning & Place 0 i Capital Deli R
TOM Layer... Design statement.. perations aprtal befivery escue

M

Customer Improved screening and triage
assessment so that customers reach the
right service at the right time.

Customer Simplifying or removing non-
assessment complex assessments for )
transactional services. Not applicable M
Customer Assessment channel shift to
assessment forms of less manual .
. . . Not applicable M
intervention from Council
staff.
Customer Streamlining complex
assessment assessments both within and

Not applicable
between service areas.

Customer Enhanced partnership working
assessment and shared records with
partners where possible.

- :
- H
- H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



yi¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Provision cycle...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
TOM ) Planning & Place 0 i Capital Deli R
Design statement.. perations apital Delivery escue

o | tmpact | Gap | tmpact | Gap | Impact | Gap | mpsct | Gop |

Provision = Commissioning & Procurement will

cycle have more upfront active
engagement with service areas
and the market to get an
understanding of service priorities.

Provision We will embed a council-wide

cycle category management approach to H M M
how we manage third party spend.

Provision  Strategic contract managementi.e.

cycle KPIs will be managed at a
corporate level H L L H

Provision  Operational contract management

cycle will be delivered in services

Provision  There will be a consistent and

cycle transparent governance process in H H L L
place for a clearer approval
process.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Gi¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Enabling & support services (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
TOM ) Planning & Place 0 i Capital Deli R
Design statement.. perations apital Delivery escue

o [ tmpact | _Gap | tmpact | Gap | Impact | Gap | mpact | Gop |

Enabling & Levels of self-service and self-
support sufficiency will increase where
services technology allows

M H H L

Enabling &  There will be an integrated and

support strengthened business
services partnering approach for the H L
delivery of ICT, Finance, HR and
BAS.
Enabling &  BAS will be managed centrally as
support a defined service which supports H H H M
services the whole council with staff co
located in teams where possible.
Enabling & @ Where appropriate virtual BAS
support teams will be created to enable
services consistent management and
flexibility of resource at locations H H H M

across the region where small
numbers of BAS staff are
located.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



ot¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Enabling & support services (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
TOM Planning & Place 0 i Capital Deli R
e Design statement.. perations apital Delivery escue

Enabling &  There will be BAS functional

support teams which provide a specific

services service to the whole council — as
an example this could include
recruitment

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/€ abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

. Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
A 2 HeE Operations Capital Deliver Rescue
TOM Layer... Design statement.. P P y

Strategic There will be organisation

capabilities wide clarity over what is
meant by ‘strategy and policy’
at both a corporate and a

service level.
Strategic There will be a single and clear
capabilities framework on how OCC does

project management. This
framework will set out the
level of oversight/governance
proportionate to the
risk/value of projects.

Strategic There will be a simplified and

capabilities clear process articulating
where projects go for approval
and at what stage e.g. role of
FFF Board, CLT, procurement
gateway process.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



8¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
Operations Capital Delivery Rescue

Planning & Place
TOM Layer... Design statement..

Strategic There will be a single view of

capabilities corporate performance i.e.
monitoring the Council’s
performance against key
indicators and what the
Council wants to be known

for.
Strategic The process for performance
capabilities reporting will be streamlined

all the way from service areas
through to cabinet.

Strategic A greater number of corporate

capabilities performance indicators will be
based on outcomes.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



61¢ abed

Back office: Business intelligence...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Business
intelligence

Business
intelligence

Business
intelligence

Infrastructure Investment and Oxfordshire Fire &
Operations Capital Delivery Rescue

Planning & Place
Design statement..

Standardised reporting will be
automated, reducing the time
spent by front line service staff
on reporting tasks.

Quality assurance checks will
be built into the processes
where data is gathered and
collected throughout the
Council

Data will be kept it up to date
and accurate, to ensure that
others can access and use it
when they need to.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



6¢c. Resources directorate




&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer management (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

Finance / Customer -
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

e e mnm“

Customer management  Proactively signposting, information and advice and
guidance to divert or avoid particular types of
customer demand. M H

TGE abed

Customer management  External customers will have access to a simple and
consistent digital customer portal that will allow
them to access Council services and track their
progress with minimal effort. H H

Customer management  Whenever possible digital self service principles will
be applied to allow customers quick and easy access
to transactional services. M

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



2S¢ obed

Front office: Customer management (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

Finance / Customer
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Customer management A multi-skilled and enhanced customer
management function will undertake all core
activities related to initial information and service
requests.

Customer management  Enable sites with regular face to face contact to be
more multi-purpose and better supported for
signposting.

Customer management A strategic approach to customers to continually
improve customer experience, outcomes and
Council operations.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



€Ge abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Front office: Customer assessment...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer...

Design statement..

Finance / Customer _
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

Customer assessment

Customer assessment

Customer assessment

Customer assessment

Customer assessment

Improved screening and triage so that customers
reach the right service at the right time.

Simplifying or removing non-complex assessments
for transactional services.

Assessment channel shift to forms of less manual
intervention from Council staff.

Streamlining complex assessments both within and
between service areas.

Enhanced partnership working and shared records
with partners where possible.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

M

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable



yGg abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Provision cycle...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Provision cycle Commissioning & Procurement will have more
upfront active engagement with service areas and
the market to get an understanding of service

priorities.

Provision cycle We will embed a council-wide category
management approach to how we manage third
party spend.

Provision cycle Strategic contract managementi.e. KPIs will be

managed at a corporate level

Provision cycle Operational contract management will be delivered
in services

Provision cycle There will be a consistent and transparent
governance process in place for a clearer approval
process.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Finance / Customer -
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

M

- |
- ’
I M
- L



GGg abed

22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Enabling & support services...

Impact & gap analysis

Finance / Customer .
Experience / PMO DT G
TOM Layer... Design statement.. P
Enabling & support Levels of self-service and self-sufficiency will

services increase where technology allows H M

Enabling & support There will be an integrated and strengthened

services business partnering approach for the delivery of ICT, M M
Finance, HR and BAS.

Enabling & support BAS will be managed centrally as a defined service

services which supports the whole council with staff co H H
located in teams where possible.

Enabling & support Where appropriate virtual BAS teams will be created

services to enable consistent management and flexibility of
resource at locations across the region where small H H
numbers of BAS staff are located.

Enabling & support There will be BAS functional teams which provide a

services specific service to the whole council — as an example H L

this could include recruitment

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (i)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

Finance / Customer -
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

M .
| .
| .

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Strategic capabilities There will be organisation wide clarity over what is
meant by ‘strategy and policy’ at both a corporate
and a service level.

Strategic capabilities There will be a single and clear framework on how
OCC does project management. This framework will
set out the level of oversight/governance
proportionate to the risk/value of projects.

9G¢ abed

Strategic capabilities There will be a simplified and clear process
articulating where projects go for approval and at
what stage e.g. role of FFF Board, CLT, procurement
gateway process.

L
H
H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



/G¢ abed

B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Strategic capabilities (ii)...

— |mpact & gap analysis

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Strategic capabilities There will be a single view of corporate
performance i.e. monitoring the Council’s
performance against key indicators and what the
Council wants to be known for.

Strategic capabilities The process for performance reporting will be
streamlined all the way from service areas through to
cabinet.

Strategic capabilities A greater number of corporate performance

indicators will be based on outcomes.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Finance / Customer
Experlence/ PMO Strategy & Policy



B OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Back office: Business intelligence...

— |mpact & gap analysis

Finance / Customer _
Experience / PMO Strategy & Policy

H
|
|

TOM Layer... Design statement..

Business intelligence Standardised reporting will be automated, reducing
the time spent by front line service staff on
reporting tasks.

Business intelligence Quiality assurance checks will be built into the
processes where data is gathered and collected
throughout the Council

8G¢ abed

Business intelligence Data will be kept it up to date and accurate, to
ensure that others can access and use it when they

H
H
need to.
H

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



7. Construct & implement




7a. Overview




T9g abed

£%5 OXFORDSHIRE

¢ COUNTY COUNCIL

The Council will need to adopt the following ‘construct and implement’
methodology in order to successfully deliver the TOM...

An overview of ‘construct & implement’

To implement the TOM and achieve whole Council organisational change OCC will need to introduce change in steps, informed by the holistic
design set out in this business case, so that change is achieved gradually rather than through a ‘big bang.’

This means change is more likely to be successful and benefits are realised throughout the programme rather than at the end.

Construct & implement principles

Implementation of the TOM will require a great deal of change, over a relatively long period of time.

Change must be made across a number of different areas and these must come together for the change to be coherent and for
there to be a greater chance of new ways of working being adopted.

The best way to ensure that change is successfully delivered in a manageable and controlled way is to introduce it in steps, rather
than as one ‘big bang’ — Implementation of the TOM is based on regular change steps.

While the change will be implemented through steps, and the change will be gradual, the overall change will be informed by a clear
view of the holistic TOM design for OCC.

Each step change the Council makes, will be referred to as a ‘release.” Each release will bring
together change across three areas — people, processes and technology.

Process

The technology that will be developed to support the changes — referred to as the ‘Digital
Platform’ — will be produced in stages, building on learning from each stage.

This methodology for technology development allows business requirements to be developed and
completed in small increments as they become complete and ready for use. Using this approach,
business change can be completed without delays or dependency on a long development process.

Using this approach we will be able to get to a testable product faster, which allows time for
refinement and improvement before it is made available to the end users.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



29¢ obed

The construct and implement methodology shifts the focus from the
horizontal layers of the operating model to directorates / service areas...

Construct & implement methodology

The detailed design work focussed on developing the horizontal layers of the target operating model and their associated benefits. During the
construct and implement phase, the focus shifts to the vertical components of the future council — in many instances these will be equivalent to

what OCC already thinks of as service areas.
. . Target O ting Model Service Implementation Ma
During the construct and implement phases the changes Hasltpestighioae g J

signified by the TOM are applied to each service area in =
turn. Once all services have been through this process, E
the delivery of the new council will be complete.

ot Managemest (e 1ot Oer’)

W g8 Je

To accelerate the delivery of benefits and improve the
efficiency of the implementation process, services are
frequently grouped together into a series of ‘releases’.

It is important that each release is taken through the
construct and implement phase in sequence, i.e. changes
to a service can only be implemented once all construct

aCt'Vk'lt,'e‘:) hlave been completed. This is clarified in the Linking the TOM design to the service implementation map
graphic below:

- Complete
[ inprogress
[ Pending

@ Go live

Construct activities Implementation activities

1
i i * Determine service offer * Implement and test IT solutions
| m : * Define processes e Refurbish assets

i i * Develop policies and procedures * Migrate data to new systems

i | * Specify enabler requirements * Populate new staffing structures
! 1 | * Finalise org structure and define roles * Train staff

H _ : e Consult Members, staff and service users * Manage go-live

L

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



7b. Implementation plan




t9¢ abed

&2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The diagram below sets out the proposed plan for how the Council should
construct and implement its TOM...

Target implementation plan*

The implementation plan

ShOWn opposite sets out Aug Sept | Oct : MNow Dec Jan : Feb Mar Apr May : June July Aug Sept Oct MNov Dec 2020
the activities shown on Strategic advice, ' '
N . oversight and core Ongaing stroteghc adivee ard suppart
the following slides 312 — tiv _ : : : ; : : : . : : :
316 required to construct | = frgmmme !- - T T ' '
. mﬂﬂﬂgﬂﬂ!ﬂf i . i
and implement the ol _;utarmucasr
. Rring ¢ plan I
Council’s TOM over the i L eremobitication
; f e —------_-auu. i i i i ki i )
next 2 years. e : : Releasel | ) Release2 ! . Release3d ! :I Release 4 =——b
E g fine. o, ;'
The releases shown on : ml I---I I---I i I--.
the plan opposite are — : : ;L_._q .....
ndicaive with the = T

proposed phasing of

I
releases set out at slides :
317 B 322. " Dwmml Embed new ways of ;

i warking B i -—_-_-- ------ 1 ]

The County Leadership ; ; e —————— : Golive2 I :
i . i |

¥

Team will further develop
this high-level release

: i i : Go live 3 :
planin order to confirm a : : : : i : i '
L : i i i i ; i i il 5 L ;
realistic phased approach ; g ; ; | i ; : 5 e e eeainems
. . . Additioral COC baselming omd : : £ i i i
to implementation given requirements

operational and | oo g oo 2 |

regulatory factors.

Key N.B. The precise make up and ordering of eoch release will be determined during the implementation

pianning and pre-mobilization work.
Inderim support Release 1 Release 2 Felease 3 Aeloase & Gao lkue
& mukilsation acinities aciriiies ackrtes actnatics

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Gog abed

wIrs

2 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The typical activities that take place within a release are set out below...

Service construct

Releases focus on constructing and implementing the stepped changes to process, people and technology required by each horizontal and
vertical component of the Council’s TOM in order to achieve the target benefits.

The interventions required by each enabling component or by each service area will vary. However, they will all follow a similar flow of design,
implement and optimise activities as set out below:

e s e

1. Define final
service offer

2. Design ‘ready to
implement’ future
processes

3. Develop detailed
policies and
procedures

4. Specify enablers

5. Determine
organisational
structure and role
profiles

Determine the future offer for each service area. This will enable choices to be made
about what each service area is going to do in the future (and the identification of any
activities that can be stopped).

Develop detailed process maps to show the detailed steps, decision points, hand-off
points, inputs, and outputs associated with each process for each service area.

Based on the above tasks, the policies and procedures that each service will need to
adhere to in the future will be developed. These will constitute the basis on which future
service interactions will be planned and managed.

Determine the specific enabler requirements for each service area, including access
channels, people capabilities, technology and information requirements. This will involve
engagement across all levels in each service area.

Design of the future organisational structures for each service, utilising top down
modelling and bottom up rightsizing to determine team size.
Development of consistent role profiles for new posts.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Documented offer
for each service.

Documented process
maps for each
service.

Policies and
procedures for each
service.

Documented
specifications for
each service.

Documented org.
structure and role
profiles for each
service.



99¢ abed

wIrs

2 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

These are then supplemented by the following technology activities (i)...

Technology activities

The Council’s TOM is heavily dependent on technology. Many of the opportunities identified, and their associated benefits, are predicated on
having technology capable of supporting effective self-service, improving the Council’s use of data and automating key business processes.

These activities focus on the users of the required technology to ensure it addresses

1. User
experience
design and
testing

2. Develop
content

why they want to use it, what they want to do with it and how they use it. They include:

Design the why, what and how for users for any new processes, known as User
Experience (UX) design. This will be based on workshops testing designs with users.

Design the customer-facing side of the website so it is easy to use by customers,
including how information is structured and presented (information architecture)
and how digital content is created and managed (Content Management System).

Using a Customer Reference Group with a range of representatives to test content
and the design with users in mind for each major release.

These activities focus on rationalising and ordering information available on the website
or other digital platforms to ensure it meets the needs of customers. They include:

Conduct audit of existing content to manage and reduce content irrelevant to the
customer.

Create guidelines for how information is presented on the website, including tone
and style to ensure consistency in content.

Create plan for moving content to relevant systems (content migration), such as
moving forms online. This will be linked to building the required digital platform.

Provide training for people creating information and content for the website.

Quality assurance of the new information and content being launched for each
release.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Detailed documents setting out
how users will experience and
navigate systems and
technology

Content audit report.
Future content blueprint.
Content guidelines.

Content migration plan.



/9¢ abed

wIrs

2 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

These are then supplemented by the following technology activities (ii)...

Technology activities cont.

N S S

3. Platform
design and
delivery

A platform underpins and connects all digital elements of the Council’s business so they
can interact and support each other as seamlessly as possible. The whole platform will
be designed and built in small stages to constantly improve and learn from previous
stages. In technology terms, this is known as an ‘Agile SCRUM’ methodology. Key
activities include:

* Confirm technical requirements for the platform based on the needs of service
areas and users which are identified in each release.

* Define functional business requirements by describing the features from the
perspective of the user (User stories). This will include:

- Defining what is needed to satisfy the user (Acceptance Criteria);

- Ensuring the user stories provide the right level of detail to fully inform the
development work; and

- Assessing how complex it will be to deliver requirements, in order to plan
the speed of implementation and when key milestones will be met.

* Day-to-day project management of the series of stages to build the platform.

* Co-ordinate testing with representatives who will use the platform to ensure it
meets the defined Acceptance Criteria

* Co-ordinate testing of platform to ensure it operates in practice in line with the
design.

* Handover into business as usual once the final design is complete and approved.

Clear prioritised overarching
programme of work for the
development team which is
continually updated (Backlog)

For each stage of development:

Defined programme of work
Documentation detailing
activities and outputs of each
stage

Review of lessons learned to
inform next stage of
development

For user acceptance testing:

Plan for testing the built
components with users
Documented results from
users on the testing
Closure report



89¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

And the following human resources and organisation design activities...

HR & OD activities

The majority of the benefits identified in the business case for the Council’s TOM are associated with FTE reductions. To achieve these benefits,
the Council will need to run through an HR process for each service area — assessing the capabilities required for the future, carrying out formal

consultation, providing training and populating the new staff structures.

_m

1. Populate new * Develop and detail the process for populating new service structures. This will entail

staff structures supporting decision making about slotting and recruitment procedures, ring-fencing
current post holders, planning and providing oversight for the completion of the formal
consultation process, supporting recruitment activity and the management of any
redundancy processes.

2. Provide training * Develop bespoke training packages to ensure staff are able to adopt the new ways of
and capacity working and abide by new process requirements, prior to go live.
building support * Provide 1:1 coaching and support in specific areas where the Council has developed new

functions e.g. business intelligence.

3. Post go live * Implement a three month post go-live change management programme in each service
change area, designed to ensure new ways of working and the associated culture change becomes
management and embedded.

OD support

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Consultation
documents and
recruitment
procedure manuals.

Bespoke training
packages.

Change management
and OD materials.



69¢ abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

In addition to the above the Council will also need to focus on the following
activities in order to successfully implement the TOM...

Additional activities

_m

1. Develop release * Develop a detailed release plan identifying the order in which services will move through
plan and critical the construct and implement phase and the scheduling of all associated activities.
* Develop risk and issues log to cover the construct and implementation programme.

programme . . . - L .
AT * Develop dependencies map and identify opportunities to minimise interruption to
i business as usual.
2. Mobilise * Conduct change readiness assessment across the Council.
construct and * Conduct communications and engagement across the Council, such as staff briefings

setting out details of the approach being taken to implementation.

implementation ! . !
* Design and establish programme governance and reporting arrangements.

programme
3. Provision of * Ongoing oversight for the delivery of the programme, enabled by robust and effective
Ongoing governance

Ongoing co-ordination and support to the programme board (e.g. supporting the
administration of relevant meetings by managing the development of highlight reports).

* Develop and maintain a structured benefits realisation approach, including establishing
and monitoring a benefit realisation tracker.

programme support
and coordination

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Release plan, risk
and issues log and
dependencies map.

Change readiness
report, revised
programme
governance structure
and terms of
reference and
reporting tools.

Completed benefit
realisation tracker.



7c. Roadmap




T/ abed

Implementation roadmap
The table below shows an indicative ordering of the horizontal layer components of the TOM and vertical service areas covered in each release.
These have been prioritised based on the benefits that can be released, the risk associated with implementation, along with speed and complexity
to implement. It should be noted that there will be a time lag from when technology goes live to when benefits can be realised.

HSos OXFORDSHIRE s
%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This includes the following implementation roadmap showing the proposed
composition of each release...

TOM layer (involves all service areas)

* Customer Management

* Customer Assessment
1 * Provision Cycle

* Business Intelligence

* Strategic Capability

2 * Pre-front door
3 * N/A
4 * N/A

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

* Enabling & Support Services

Residual service area redesign (All service areas will be impacted by the implementation of
the horizontal TOM layers)

Remainder of:
* Policy
* Customer Experience

Remainder of:

* Infrastructure Operations
* Planning and Place

* Public Health

* Law & Governance

Remainder of:

* Adult’s Services

* Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue

* Investment and Capital Delivery

Remainder of:
e Children’s Services

* HR
* Finance
e T

This high-level view will be updated and a more detailed release plan created in preparation for Construct and Implement. The implementation of
horizontal layers will involve change and create opportunities for all service areas, but the implementation plan will also need to reflect how
functions within service areas might be ordered across different releases. The plan will need to ensure there is sufficient review and approval time
for key milestones and is likely to need further refinement when technology decisions are made.

£4.0m

£f4.1m

£11.3m

£8.5m



22 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Release 1 focuses on designing the ‘horizontal’ building blocks that form the

foundation of the Council’s TOM...

Proposed release 1

| Sept18 | Oct18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan19 | Feb19 | Mar19 | Apr19 : May19 : Jun19

Service

|
construct i K Define Def/ne

W H offer processes structure

[ . Cex

I = Kickoff : sign of L : : : :

............................... o e b B e _,_,_,_,__,_,__,_,_1...
Technology i :
support e Bu:/d Build UAT
design

HR and OD
Support :

Costs / benefits associated directly with release 1

Benefits - £2.0m £2.0m - - £4.0m

Cost -£2.5m -£2.5m

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case

Release 1 focusses on
activities related to
customers and strategic
capabilities required across
the Council to drive
simplified and standardised
ways of working. This will
ensure that the Council has
a strong foundation for its
TOM.

This will also drive a number
of non-financial benefits in
the way in which the
Council manages both its
external and internal
customers.

In addition to this, a number
of opportunities are
dependent on significant
improvements to the
Council’s existing Bl (as
evident from section 6) so
early implementation of this
component will be essential.




These building blocks need to be supported by a number of enabling services
in release 2...

Proposed release 2

Feb19 | Mar19 | Apr19 :

May 19 Jun19 | Jul19 | Augl19 | Sep19 : Oct19 | Nov19

Service

|
construct 1
|
|
: 1 =
.................................. o A A A A "ﬁ
Technology i i :
support Solut/on :
i design
LoB req
HR and OD
support

Costs / benefits associated directly with release 2

£1.6m

Benefits - £2.0m £0.5m - £4.1m

Cost -£1.25m -£1.25m -£2.5m

The construct and build of
Enabling & Support Services
in release 2 is in light of the
time that may be required for
the Council to come to a
decision regarding IBC
(further details around this
are providing in section 4.1.).

Irrespective of the route the
Council decides to pursue
with regards to the IBC, there
will be a time lag associated
with either negotiating
change in the partnership
terms or undertaking a
potential technology scoping
exercise for alternative
solutions.

Despite the above
considerations, it is important
to consider a relatively early
implementation for these
functions given the enabling
nature.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




Release 3 then shifts the focus to the construction and implementation of
the Council’s ‘vertical’ services ...

Proposed release 3

It is important to shift the
focus from the horizontal

" Jul19 | Augl9 | Sep19 | Oct19 | Nov19 @ Dec19 | Jan20 | Feb20 | Mar20 : Apr20

components of the TOM to
Service 1 Co the Council’s vertical services
construct I : 1 : : : : : i
: | | 1 I : |n. release 3.
................................................ L_ _KJEE_?f_,___,_ __E ..................i...........:‘1'.%?..‘.’Eff...L,_,__-_,__,_,_g_,_,_ Given the vast nature of
Technology : . '} = 5 5 ': ' - | services the Council delivers,
support H 1 i | itisvital to consider the
: : phasing of these services
: I__ _________ 'I taking into account
S SRS SN S 1. S SRS SO S GG ive- i 1. | complexity of the service,
HRandOD : : el : :: statutory requirements etc.
support : 1! | These considerations will
; s : ; L Apmepepmepare epeepeeslepeeys mpeey—— ———_J | have a significant impact on

Costs / benefits associated directly with release 3

Primarily this release will
18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 focus on remaining service

redesign in Adult’s Services

the risk to implementation.

Benefits = £2.8m £5.7m £2.8m = £11.3m given the large proportion of
FTE effort and increased
Cost -£2.5m -£2.5m complexity. In addition to

this, the gap analysis (section

6) indicates there are
Net benefit £8.8m s
significant gaps so a greater

level of change is required.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



With the final service areas being constructed and implemented as part of

release 4...

Proposed release 4

Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20

May20 © Jun20 © Jul20 | Aug20 : Sep20

Service construct

Defme Define
offer processes structure
: Cex
chk off

.....................................; ........... al” lh” _ alr” aleh” el H‘ﬂ i’ eh” leh” i 1. ..........................

Technology .
support Solut/on
E design
LoB req
HR and OD
support

Costs / benefits associated directly with release 4

Benefits - £f1.1m £f4.2m £3.2m - £8.5m

Cost -£2.5m -£2.5m

The last release continues to
build out the Council’s
services.

The primary focus of this
release will be on remaining
service redesign in Children’s
Services which has the largest
FTE effort across the whole
Council and is also one of the
most complex services. As a
result of this, implementation
can be expected to take
longer, requiring an entirely
dedicated team to work
through some of the
challenges in implementing
new ways of working.

In addition to this, the HR, ICT
and Finance services will also
be built out following the
Council’s decision around IBC
and the subsequent
implementation of the
Enabling & Support services
layer of the TOM.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case




7d. Assumptions




ml
dR

28 OXFORDSHIRE

Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The target implementation plan for the TOM has been constructed based on
the following assumptions...

Planning assumptions

1

Governance - Governance for TOM Implementation will align under the existing FFF programme governance structures and
arrangements and will make use of established bodies such as the FFF programme board. Work to re-affirm the programme’s
governance arrangements will be conducted during August and September to ensure they comprehensively meet the needs for TOM
implementation

Procurement — The procurement of any identified technology requirements will start immediately upon approval of the business case
and will be informed by both the business case and the detailed technology assessment and gap analysis to take place during August and
September.

Organisational change — Organisational design / change activity will take place as part of each release rather than as a single
organisational wide approach.

Construct and implement phasing - Final operating model component / service area prioritisation will be determined through an
assessment of the benefits they release, the risk associated with implementation, along with speed and complexity to implement. The
availability of supporting ICT will also influence how services will be addressed. The technical elements of the construct and implement
plan — particularly relating to core technology requirements, will be revisited following the detailed technology assessment and gap
analysis.

Approval of identified benefits: The timetable set out in this business case assumes prompt approval of identified benefits through the
agreed governance route for the implementation of the TOM. Delay in this process will impact the cost benefit profile as set out on slide
266.

Optimisation of the TOM: The external support costs set out in this revised financial case assume that any optimisation of the TOM once
implemented will be delivered by Council teams. There may however be instances where the Council requires further external support
with this optimisation. These costs have not been included in this revised financial case.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Page 378




2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following risks have been identified as part of the design of the TOM (i)...

Risks

The risks set out over the following section have been identified over the course of the design of the TOM. The list below is not exhaustive and it is
expected that further risks will be identified through the proposed construct and implement phases.

All risks and issues associated with the TOM will be managed through the project lifecycle.

People Retention of key capabilities Robust and open communications strategy and clear Likelihood: L
during a potential extended transition plans will be established for each service, detailing Impact: M
U period of uncertainty and actions and assigned owners.
jab) . . -
@) consultation. * Implement plan for accelerating development/opportunities
@ for existing staff.
g * Where possible, we will start recruiting for new talent
%e) immediately and assess all recruiting alternatives.

Change The large scale of H H * Clear accountability for management of BAU vs. Likelihood: M
organisational change could transformation activities will be established. Impact: M
impact the delivery of ¢ Updated governance for management and prioritisation of
business as usual activities. transformation alongside BAU activities will be

implemented.

Change End state ways of working M H * There will be detailed implementation plans which are Likelihood: L
and practices not being fully regularly tracked with risks and issues raised and mitigated Impact: M
adopted and embedded through robust governance.
within the services. * Dedicated implementation costs have been identified for

training and development of staff to enable them to fully
adopt new ways of working.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



wIrs

2 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following risks have been identified as part of the design of the TOM (ii)...

Risks

T N s e I

Comprehensive change management and engagement plan Likelihood: L
with an approach to measure, report on and enact a change Impact: M

Change
-
jab}
«Q
D
Eg Change
o

Change

Cultures and behaviours
do not change and
subsequently the full
benefits of new ways of
working are not
realised.

The required digital take
up from residents for
online services is not
realised, or takes too
long to reach targets
and generate the
required efficiencies
from the digital
platform.

Wider strategic changes
involving external
partners, such as an
Integrated Care System,
may create complexity
or misalignment with
TOM design.

in cultures and behaviours.

There will be effective communication throughout the
programme.

Clear buy in and sponsorship from all leaders within the
Council.

Effective marketing campaign to be launched alongside
implementation, with a defined Assisted Digital offer in line
with the TOM.

A structured benefits realisation approach will be
established, with an agreed time period between going live
with technology and realising the benefits.

We will engage and use customer-led design to ensure
digital solutions that are simple, easy to use and provide an
excellent experience .

The TOM supports the Council to be aligned as a whole
organisation and better placed to influence and participate
in wider system developments.

TOM provides an operating blueprint which is adaptable to
changing strategy.

We will continue engagement with service areas to direct
construct and implement activities in alignment with
discussions with other partners.

Likelihood: L
Impact: L

Likelihood: M
Impact: M



2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following risks have been identified as part of the design of the TOM (iii)...

Risks
After
Change The Council may not be Implementation plans for each release and service area will  Likelihood: L
able to improve some clearly set out the scope of processes, people, technology Impact: L
processes and technology and other enablers for transformation.
used in integrated working * Ongoing engagement with partners will inform and shape
with partners, as they are design during Construct and Implement phases.

not within OCC control or

U follow statutory
g requirements.
@ People Proposals and implications M H * Approach to HR and Organisational Development processes Likelihood: L
w of the TOM may not be is defined in the Implementation Plan. This will be supported Impact: M
log accepted by the relevant by a clear methodology, actions and assigned owners.

staff bodies. * There will be robust consultation and engagement for the

consideration of impact and implementation approach for
each release and service area.

Systems The IBC platform remains H H * Options assessment is being undertaken of the capability of  Likelihood: M
as is without any changes IBC to support required change, building on the relevant Impact: M
so is unable to support the section of this business case. This will inform decision making
Council’s TOM, without a and approach for construct and implement phase.
clear decision point on * There is ongoing engagement with IBC stakeholders to
options. determine and assess options.

* We will establish clarity on timelines and impact for decision
making on available options.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



Z8g abed

wIrs

2 OXFORDSHIRE

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The following risks have been identified as part of the design of the TOM (iv)...

Risks

I N ) = N

Technology

Technology

Technology

Technology and system
development is an
important enabler for the
TOM, requiring digital and
ICT resource to support
specification and selection
activity. This will impact
delivery of planned activity
in 2018/19.

Some of the Council’s
existing technology
architecture will not fully
enable the TOM as it is basic
and / or ageing, such as the
current version of
Sharepoint and the voice
platform.

Existing infrastructure and
staff support constraints,
such as mobile and fixed line
telephony, may not support
the requirements of the
TOM.

Dedicated implementation costs have been Likelihood: M
identified for support for implementing technology  Impact: L
needed to enable the TOM

Impact and prioritisation of transformational vs

business as usual activities will be managed as part

of the wider governance approach.

The use of additional resource and product suppliers

is being considered to support implementation.

Additional work is currently being undertaken to Likelihood: M
analyse the Council’s existing technology Impact: M
architecture, future requirements and the gap.

Existing architecture will be utilised as far as possible

where this enables the blueprint and design

principles set out in the TOM.

Clear prioritisation and ordering of technology

implementation to support TOM releases will be

established.

Additional work being undertaken to identify Likelihood: M
potential constraints, analyse the impact and assess Impact: M
options to support TOM implementation.

Implementation plan for each release and service

area will detail any infrastructure constraints and

how these will be mitigated.



w259 OXFORDSHIRE
&% COUNTY COUNCIL

The following risks have been identified as part of the design of the TOM (v)...

Risks
After
Categor Likelihood Mitigating acti
Technology The cost of the digital and ICT * Costs considered within the business case and will be Likelihood: M
team will increase as a result further developed through Construct and Implement Impact: L
of the demands of the TOM. activities.
These costs will increase as * Robust benefits realisation tracking approach will be
new products, integration used to clearly monitor and demonstrate the case for
and support increases in all costs associated with the TOM and how they
supporting the TOM. enable benefits.

€8¢ abed

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



9. Next steps




2 OXFORDSHIRE

wIrs

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

This business case provides the Council with a comprehensive design for a
more efficient and effective organisation. The Council now has a decision to
make about whether it wants to implement this design and how it wants to

do that...

Next steps

The Council has taken significant steps towards becoming a more efficient and effective organisation in the future. The operating model
assessment enabled the Council to look at itself in a holistic manner, to understand how its effort and resource were being deployed and to

develop an overarching case for change.

LY The subsequent design of the Council’s TOM has engaged staff from right across the organisation to set out an exciting vision of the future, and

g a roadmap for transforming the whole Council over the next two years. The Council now has a decisions to make about whether it wants to

D implement this design and how it wants to do that.

w

oo October January August October October

o Y 2017 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2018 Y 2020
Key decision

point

Following the completion

of the detailed design
<& X <@ phase a decision will be
& 4 & made as to the approach
@Q @Q @Q the Council will take to
('O (,o (,o implementation and how

the Council wants to
deliver this.

Implementation of the core
components of the new operating
model including change and project
management, benefit realisation
and technology implementation.
Duration: c. 18 months - 2 years



ogg abed

2 OXFORDSHIRE

IR

%Y COUNTY COUNCIL

The decision as to whether or not the Council chooses to implement the
TOM is of critical importance. Delay will impact on the benefit profile and

will reduce the options the Council has to enhance service provision and
ensure financial sustainability...

Conclusion
The Operating Model and the approach to implementation described in this Business Case has been designed to tackle the particular challenges
faced by Oxfordshire County Council. Successful implementation will enable the Council to address the issues identified in the analysis

conducted during the summer of 2017. It will ensure the Council is better equipped to cope with ongoing financial pressure as well as improve
outcomes and experience for residents and staff.

Implementing the TOM will enable the Council to adopt an approach that is consistent, streamlined, entrepreneurial, agile, innovative and
ambitious. It will provide an opportunity to address existing inefficiencies in the way the Council is organised and operated. It will enhance the
Council’s capacity and capability to address front line service challenges — enabling specialists to focus on delivering better outcomes for
residents, at the same time as improving efficiency and resilience within services and at a whole council level.

Fundamentally, the transformation described in this document will provide an opportunity to achieve these benefits at the same time as
reducing the cost of running the Council. While the Council has made prudent decisions in the past about its finances, ensuring it is in a better
position than many other local authorities, it will still need to make significant savings in the coming years. Implementing the TOM will enable
the Council to meet this challenge by reducing expenditure in certain areas by design.

The consequences of not implementing the Operating Model are difficult to quantify. To some extent, the Council has been attempting to
achieve the benefits described above, but without the coherence and structure an Operating Model implementation programme provides, for
many years. The Council’s own assessment of the effectiveness of this programme suggests that the benefits achieved have been somewhat
limited. If the Council decides not to pursue the more structured approach described in this document, or opts for a partial implementation
aimed at achieving the minimum level of benefit required to meet existing pressures, then it is highly likely that the required reductions in
spending will be apportioned out across existing services, with the result that any progress that is achieved will become piecemeal, levels of risk
will increase and there would be a greater likelihood of unforeseen consequences arising.

Implementing the TOM in full, following a structured and coherent programme and investing in the right level of support and enabling
technology, offers the Council the best chance of securing a strong and sustainable future, delivering on its strategic objectives and playing its
part in improving the lives of everyone living and working in Oxfordshire.

Oxfordshire County Council - Business case



CC9

Service and Community Impact Assessment (SCIA)

Front Sheet:

Directorate and Service Area:

Corporate Policy on behalf of the Chief Executive

What is being assessed (e.g. name of policy, procedure, project,
service or proposed service change):

Implementing a new Operating Model for Oxfordshire County Council

Responsible owner / senior officer:

The Chief Executive

Date of assessment:

August 2018

Summary of judgement:

The Operating Model as set out describes at a high-level the design of a new
approach for overall council operations. In itself, this decision will not have a direct
impact on residents or staff. However, the detailed implications and outputs of the
Construct and Implement phase will impact on these groups

Detailed impact assessment and where appropriate user testing and consultation,
will need to be undertaken throughout the Construct and Implement phases as each
new service area is considered. High-level potential impact, initial mitigating activity
undertaken through design and plans for further assessment throughout
implementation are set out in the attached Service and Community Impact
Assessment. This emphasises that full assessments and plans will need to be
developed alongside detailed implementation planning.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatiffd 3@@eBBOxfordshire County Council 1




CC9

Detail of Assessment:

Purpose of assessment:

This assessment has been undertaken ahead of a Cabinet decision to adopt a new
operating model for the County Council.

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 (“the 2010 Act”) imposes a duty on the
Council to give due regard to three needs in exercising its functions. This
proposal is such a function. The three needs are:

o Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act.

o Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic, and those who do not.

Complying with section 149 may involve treating some people more favourably than
others, but only to the extent that that does not amount to conduct which is otherwise
unlawful under the new Act.

The need to advance equality of opportunity involves having due regard to the
need to:

remove or minimise disadvantages which are connected to a relevant
protected characteristic and which are suffered by persons who share that
characteristic,

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and which are different from the needs other people, and
encourage those who share a relevant characteristic to take part in public life
or in any other activity in which participation by such people is
disproportionately low.

take steps to meet the needs of disabled people which are different from the
needs of people who are not disabled and include steps to take account of a
person’s disabilities.

The need to foster good relations between different groups involves having due
regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

These protected characteristics are:

age
disability

gender reassignment

pregnancy and maternity

race — this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality
religion or belief — this includes lack of belief

sex

sexual orientation

marriage and civil partnership

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeR&@EVB&& for Oxfordshire County Council 2




CC9

E-Social Value i
1 1
| Under the Public Services (Social Value Act) 2012 the Council also has an obligation |
| to consider how the procurement of services contracts with a life value of more than |

£173,934" might improve the economic, social, and environmental well-being of the |
area affected by the proposed contract, and how it might act to secure this |
improvement. However, it is best practice to consider social value for all types of }
contracts, service delivery decisions and new/updated policies. In this context, !
L policy is a general term that could include a strategy, projectorcontract, | __| |

Context / Background:

A report to Cabinet in September 2018 will set out work that has led to the
development of a new Operating Model for the Council and summaries the business
case for change. It will seek Cabinet approval to adopt the Operating Model as the
basis for whole-council transformation, ahead of a future decision on the detail of
investment in implementation.

Proposals:

The Operating Model contains proposals to redesign the County Council based on
seven functional ‘layers’ which cut horizontally across services. These are set out in
Fig. 1 below.

The Business Case also incorporates proposals reviewing procurement and contract
management for third party spend and for further commercialisation.

M EC Procurement Threshold for Services

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatirfd®@@eBBPoxfordshire County Council 3


http://www.ojec.com/Threshholds.aspx

06¢ abed

CC9

Individuals, communities, members, the council and partner organisations working together to build resilience,

Pre-Front Door - ; . :
develop strengths and create opportunities in local areas, which helps to reduce the need for council services.

The customer management layer contains all activities undertaken by the council that involve interaction with

Customer Management . : . X ;
customers and/or have an immediate impact on service delivery to customers.

Q
-
£
@)
-
c
o
S
[N

The customer assessment layer contains activities that are a key part of many customer interactions with the

Customer Assessment E—— . : . : ;
council, with information being used to decide whether and how services are provided.

The Provision Cycle layer provides the framework of processes and activities through which the Council
The Provision Cycle decides how best to meet an identified need or to achieve a specific outcome, including commissioning,
contracting and the management of third party suppliers.

The Enabling & Support Services layer provides services that are optimised to meet the needs of internal
customers through process improvement, the use of enhanced digital systems and clear delineation of roles
and responsibilities.

Enabling and support
services

The strategic capability layer provides the capabilities that the Council requires in order to define its
Strategic capability vision, high level strategy and objectives, as well as capabilities required to support, manage and review the
realisation of each of these.

Back Office

The business intelligence layer provide information, intelligence and insight to a range of customers including

Business intelligence : S AR
'€ businesses, partners and staff within the organisation.

Fig. 1: Operating Model Layers Summary

SCIA for Implementing a new Operating Model for Oxfordshire County Council 4



CC9

Evidence / Intelligence:

The Operating Model so far has been developed by service leaders and staff -
making use of their detailed understanding of service and customer needs -
supported by professional advisors. Regular reference has been made back to
elected members (as set out in the report). At a cross-council level, extensive use of
the Council’s core evidence base and strategic framework has informed the direction
and conclusions of the report, including the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term
Financial Plan, JSNA and external inspection conclusions.

The proposals within the Operating Model are a high-level description of a new
approach for overall council operations. In themselves, they do not directly amount to
proposals that will impact on individual services users of staff. However, the detailed
implications and outputs of the next proposed phase of activity, the ‘Implement and
Construct phase, may impact on these groups. Detailed impact assessment will
need to be undertaken throughout the Construct and Implement phases as each new
service area is considered and through this process, detailed consideration of
evidence of user groups of particular services and customer access channels will
need to be assessed. Engagement, consultation and user testing will also need to be
incorporated into delivery plans.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifd®@@eB@Aoxfordshire County Council 5




CC9

Alternatives considered / rejected:
The options set out in the report and the reasons for the final recommendation are
replicated below:

Description

Commentary

Adopt the proposed
Operating Model to enable
delivery of the estimated
range of savings (£34m-
£58m) to the fullest extent
appropriate — agree to the
proposals as set out and go
forward to identify options for
delivery

Recommended — the business case sets out the costs and
benefits of the model, the potential for improvements to
resident outcomes and includes new ways to support
prevention and minimise future demand contributing to long-
term financial sustainability. Delivering the maximum benefits
may create capacity to manage future pressures and for policy
and investment choices. It will also help create a council that is
agile and resilient to change with greater capacity to manage
risk and deliver agreed political objectives.

Adopt the proposed
Operating Model to enable
delivery of required MTFP
savings only, i.e. £33m —
agree to implement the
proposals only as far as
required to deliver the MTFP
savings without a requirement
to deliver additional benefits

Not recommended — the business case does not support the
case for not pursuing implementation to the furthest extent
possible — when taking into full account the requirements of
service delivery:

e Firstly, the costs of delivery are not related to savings
on a linear basis - significant enabling investment is
required, for example in technology, to release the
initial savings;

e Secondly, there are no proposals within the business
case that are intended to lead to reduction in resident
outcomes - rather, the range of savings shown
throughout provides the flexibility for professional
judgement and policy choices to be made during the
construction phase where the Council will be able to
assess the extent to which it thinks the Operating
Model can be applied without impacting on outcomes.
Where there is risk of impact, the model would not be
applied, or changed, or the risk mitigated in some
other way whilst maintaining overall benefits within the
envelope identified.

Therefore, not taking the full possible savings obtainable,
whilst making the significant enabling investment, would
represent poor value for money.

Do nothing — deliver required
MTFP savings through
identifying service reductions
and individual efficiency
initiatives, including those
which have yet to be
identified.

Not recommended — this option is likely to have a negative
impact on resident outcomes through service reductions.
Minimal proactive investment in prevention and reducing
demand will be possible, undermining any strategy to cope
with increased demand in the future and reducing the ability of
the Council to establish long-term financial sustainability.
Relying on individual efficiency initiatives increases risk in the
MTFP as these have not yet been identified. Continuing with
individual initiatives perpetuates the challenges of duplication
and un-joined up services and support functions. No benefit
will be released to enable policy and investment choices.

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRa&@aVid8el for Oxfordshire County Council

6



CC9

Impact Assessment — the wider community

Overall, the intention of the operating model is to create a Council that is Fit for the
Future, meaning that it is financially sustainable, equipped to address rising demand
and focusses resources on front-line outcomes. It should, therefore, ultimately have
a positive impact on the population as a whole and particularly on those most in
need of services. This is most clear when considered against the alterative of direct
reductions in service levels. There is the potential for specific positive outcomes to
one of more particular groups depending on how the model is implemented and on
choices that are made on how any benefits are reinvested. However, such future
policy choices will need to be subject to individual impact assessments in the usual
way, including where relevant the SCIA process associated with Service and
Resource Planning.

Of the seven layers of the Operating Model, three relate directly to customer-facing
activity:

e Pre-front door
e Customer management
e Customer assessment

The characteristics of service users and customers across the Council’s diverse
services varies considerably, from universal services, used by the whole population
to services targeted at extremely specific groups. The impact on specific individuals
and identified groups of applying the model will only therefore be able to be
assessed in the detail of the Construct and Implement Phase and the action plan
below recognises the need for that future assessment — including through
appropriate consultation, engagement, user-testing and co-production.

However, the three outward-facing layers, if implemented, will create some shared
characteristics for services which mean that it useful at this stage to consider
potential impact and ensure appropriate mitigations are in place within the proposals.

The three key characteristics of the front-office layers and their potential differential
impacts are set out below:

e Digital by design: Development and promotion of channel-shift opportunities
across all service areas, with a particular focus on digital and self-service.
This will be enabled by a simple digital customer portal, integrated systems
and an assisted digital offer.

As identified in the 2018 JSNA (see insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk) local data on
internet and digital service use is limited. However, national data sets —
including the Office of National Statistics Opinions and Lifestyle survey
(ons.gov.uk) and Ofcom’s Communications Market Reports and its Adult’s
Media Use and Attitudes Report (see ofcom.org.uk) — can be used as a
working basis to make working-assumption about Oxfordshire’s population to
be tested through consultation, engagement and more detailed local analysis.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifd 3@@eB830xfordshire County Council 7



CC9

Together, the data sources listed make a number of conclusions relevant for
consideration in expanding the Council’s digital and self-service capacity:

- Nearly all adults aged 16-54 are now online

- The total proportion of non-users of the internet has remained
unchanged at ~12% through 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 studies -
suggesting a plateau of usership

- Older people and those in less affluent socio-economic groups are
more likely to be non-users of the internet

- Adults are increasingly likely to use a smartphone to go online

- Half of all adults have completed a government process online and
half have looked at government sites for public service information

- More than half (52%) of non-users of the internet say they do not go
online because they do not see the need, one in five (22%) mention
a reason relating to the internet being ‘too complicated’ and 15%
mention a cost related reason. Older non-users are more likely than
younger non-users to say they don’t go online because they do not
see the need, while young non-users are more likely to cite cost.

- A majority (63%) of non-users say nothing would prompt them to go
online in the next 12 months, a figure that has decreased since
2016 from 75%. More than two in five (44%) of non-users have
asked someone else to use the internet on their behalf in the past
year.

- Smartphone ownership peaks at 95% for 16-24 year olds

- A significantly lower proportion of disabled people, when asked,
stated that they had used the internet to find information about good
and services (57% disabled compared with 80% not disabled)

The available data therefore suggests that age, deprivation and disability can
be excluding factors and these are discussed below.

Rurality may be a potential excluding factor from digital access as some
(although certainly not all) of the remaining areas of the County with less
connectivity are in rural areas. The Better Broadband for Oxfordshire website
(betterbroadbandoxfordsire.orguk) estimates that 96% of homes and
businesses in Oxfordshire will be able to access superfast broadband by the
end of 2018. This places Oxfordshire in the upper quartile of counties in terms
of superfast broadband access, but will leave approximately 8,500 premises
without access and where there is no fully funded solution in place due to the
very high cost of intervention required.

A lack of data on other protected groups does not necessarily indicate that
there is no exclusion and so services will need to continue to monitor the
impact of digital and self-service during implementation and in the future for
other groups not specifically addressed here i.e.: gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belied; sex, sexual orientation;
marriage and civil partnership.

The design of the Operating Model is deliberately Digital by Design and not
Digital by Default. A design decision was made to adopt an approach of

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRagavid8et for Oxfordshire County Council 8



CC9

building digital and automated access where appropriate which most people
would choose to use as their first option, rather than forcing digital as the only
route. Alongside digital access, an Assisted Digital approach will ensure that
those unable to access digital of automated services or who might be at risk
of experiencing disadvantage in service outcomes such an access route will
be able to make the choice to access assisted digital channels, according to
their needs. The business case states that assisted digital is:

- Designed to meet well-defined assisted digital user needs

- Helps users build the skills and confidence to use online channels
independently [and in doing-so, build transferable skills]

- Is easy for users to find — at the times and places they need it

- Istrusted, free to use and easy to access.

It is envisaged that this would be provided face to face — including through
libraries and receptions and in people’s own homes, on the telephone and
through webchat where an agent can assist with an enquiry on-line, in real-
time.

Enhanced Customer function: An enhanced customer function with the right
mix of resources and service specialisms to effectively signpost, filter, resolve
gueries at first contact or route to operational service areas. This supports a
consistent Front Door across the whole council to assist residents, members
and staff.

It is not the case now that accessing the Council is always straight-forward,;
the Activity Analysis identifies multiple telephone numbers and access points
and different ways of handling digital enquiries. Therefore, standardising and
improving contact routs overall offers the opportunity to enhance the
experience for all. Clearly this requires that the standardisation and
consolidation of customer service functions and in particular assessment
processes are successfully delivered. In the event of any given service’s
standards dropping through such a change, and given the specific user
demographics of many specialist services, it is possible that one or more
protected groups would be disproportionately affected. Alongside assessing
the potential differential impact for specific services as the change is
designed, it will therefore be critical to monitor implementation and service
performance in the future including through the consideration of demographic
indicators against performance indicators e.g. complaints (see note below on
the recently revised Equalities Policy and Strategy 2018-2022).

Enabling service areas and communities: Links with the Pre-Front Door
will help people to find solutions and create opportunities in their local
communities. Operational service areas will be able to focus on more complex
customers and service delivery, supported by streamlined processes and
improved technology.

This focus of the Operating Model seeks to ensure that the Council is
enhancing the community’s capacity to deliver innovative, local and
empowering solutions.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatirfd®@@eB@POxfordshire County Council 9



CC9

While the Council is already extensively engaged with community and
voluntary sector organisations and initiatives, integrating community
involvement as a fundamental aspect of all service design is a new approach.
It is the intention for the Council to act in the main as an enabler in this area of
the Operating Model: to support the right conditions for strong communities, to
empower others to take actions and to connect resources together to
maximise impact. Prevention and the reduction of demand on traditional
council services through more successful early community intervention is core
to the purpose of this approach.

As such, detailed design of community based initiatives will need to consider
the extent to which they have the potential to have a differential impact on
protected groups considering that:

e Geographic communities and communities-of-interest with lower social
cohesion, social capital and capacity for action may be at risk of
disadvantage if these factors are not identified as new approaches are
designed;

e |solated groups living within strong communities may be at risk of
disadvantage if these factors are not identified as new approaches are
designed.

The remaining four layers of the Operating Model are predominantly concerned with
back-office services:

The provision cycle

Enabling and support services
Strategic Capability

Business Intelligence

While in themselves changes proposed within these layers should not be
experienced directly by the population, the successful implementation of these
layers, and in particular Strategic Capability and Business Intelligence, will be part of
the mechanism by which the Council delivers on its commitments within the recently
agreed Equality Policy and Strategy (2018-2022) to:

e Improve the Council’s understanding of its customers

e Improve the Council’'s understanding of users’ views on services

e Improve access to the Council’'s web and digital services making sure that all
residents are able to access the information they need as easily as possible

e Improve the quality of data on services users to improve responses and
outcomes and to better understand needs

Improving in these areas will support the Council’s commitment to equality, diversity,

fairness and inclusion by supporting individual services to improve the quality of
analysis within their own service planning and impact assessments.

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRagEVBRE for Oxfordshire County Council 10



CC9

The business case also concludes that the Council can generate additional benefits
through improved procurement and the management of third party spend and
commercialisation. Again, it is not possible to assess the impact of these proposals
in aggregate as detail is not yet available of what might change. The implementation
of any new contracting or contract management arrangements or the establishment
of any commercial arrangement will need to be assessed for service impact in the
normal course of service and policy review.

Impact Assessment — staff

The business case identifies that there is a potential loss of between 600 and 890 full
time equivalent posts within the Council as a result of implementing the business
case — before consideration is given to the potential reinvestment of some savings in
service provision. (It also notes that other savings options not recommended, would
also result in reduction in headcount, but in a less managed process.) As the report
makes clear however, the high-level assessment of an overall reduction in
headcount cannot be directly equated to specific job losses through redundancies
and it is not therefore possible to examine the impact on particular groups at this
stage. It is clear however that there is a likelihood of a significant number of potential
redundancy situations. The report goes on to note that it is the Council’s policy to
minimise redundancy through retraining and redeployment and three factors will
support the delivery of this policy in the current situation:

o Firstly, the programme is expected to be delivered over two-three
years. With staff turnover of 650 per year, there is opportunity to limit
the real impact by carefully managing HR planning over the
programme period,;

o Secondly, the Council has a good track record of applying its
redundancy policy and has experience, working with staff and the
unions, of limiting the impact of reorganisations on individuals

o Finally, at the upper end of the scale of potential savings, choices will
be able to be made about how resources released are invested. It may
be the case that the Council is in a position to choose to reinvest in
some services, focussing resources on frontline impact. This would
reduce the net number of posts lost as resources would effectively shift
across the organisation. This would be a decision for elected
councillors through the normal budgeting processes.

The Equality Policy and Strategy (2018-2022) also sets out objectives for promoting
a culture of fairness and inclusion in employment demonstrating our commitment
towards greater equality in our workforce. It draws on evidence within the most
recent Equality in Employment Report (from 2017) which gives the Council a good
understanding of the make-up of its staff group.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifd 3@@eB8rOxfordshire County Council 11



CC9

The relevant objectives in the Equality Policy and Strategy are to:

e Improve the balance of gender in the workforce, particularly in services where
a group is under-represented;

e Increase the representation of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic employees in
the workforce;

e Increase the number of people under 25 employed in the workforce;

e Improve how employees with disabilities are supported so they can be fully
involved in the workplace, access career development opportunities and be
successful at work.

Implementation of the Operating Model will bring about new ways of working and
change across the organisation. Therefore, it presents both an opportunity for
accelerating change and challenges with respect to delivering these objectives.
Programme implementation planning will need to take these objectives into account
and examine detailed evidence and impact analysis of proposed change before they
are agreed, through the usual processes.

The detail of identified potential impact on groups, other service providers and staff is
set out below.

This assessment is initial and high-level, and mitigations should be regarded as
indicative pending the full development of implementation strategies and plans. As
noted in the Cabinet report, each phase-release plan will need to demonstrate that
sufficient impact assessment has been undertaken before approval.

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeR&@EVB8& for Oxfordshire County Council 12



CC9

Impact on Individuals and Communities:

e Age

Risks

Mitigations

Older people are the most likely age
group not to have access to the internet
and could be excluded by services that
were digital or self-service only

The Operating Model is designed
specifically to be digital by choice, rather
than digital only. Assisted digital options
are being designed in from the outset
including supported access through
physical locations (eg Libraries),
supported access via telephone and on-
line support where appropriate. Services
will not be shifted to an automated or
digital approach where this is not
deemed appropriate for the specific
service and individual impact
assessments will be made. The usual
community and formal support
mechanisms for more vulnerable older
people will remain in place. ‘The pre-front
door’ element of the business case seeks
to strengthen community support and the
Council continues to support
programmes such as the ‘Digital
Buddies’ scheme to reduce digital
exclusion.

Younger people are more likely to access
online services through mobile devices.
There is a risk that if investment in new
devices and formats is not sustained,
automated services will be less
accessible for choosing mobile access.

Digital and automated services need to
be designed for the devices our
customers are most likely to use

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifd3@@eB8B0xfordshire County Council

13




CC9

e Disability

Risks

Mitigations

People with disabilities are less likely
than the wider population to access
services and information through digital
channels and could be excluded by
services that were digital or self-service
only.

The Operating Model is designed
specifically to be digital by choice, rather
than digital only. Assisted digital options
are being designed in from the outset
including supported access through
physical locations (eg Libraries),
supported access via telephone and on-
line support where appropriate. Services
will not be shifted to an automated or
digital approach where this is not
deemed appropriate for the specific
service and individual impact
assessments will be made. The usual
community and formal support
mechanisms for vulnerable disabled
people will remain in place. ‘The pre-front
door’ element of the business case seeks
to strengthen community support and the
Council continues to support
programmes such as the ‘Digital
Buddies’ scheme to reduce digital
exclusion.

e Deprivation

Risks

Mitigations

People experiencing deprivation are less
likely than the wider population to have
access to the internet and could be
excluded by services that were digital or
self-service only.

The Operating Model is designed
specifically to be digital by choice, rather
than digital only. Assisted digital options
are being designed in from the outset
including supported access through
physical locations (eg Libraries),
supported access via telephone and on-
line support where appropriate. Public
wifi and computers are available for free
in all libraries mitigating risks associated
with cost of access. Services will not be
shifted to an automated or digital
approach where this is not deemed
appropriate for the specific service and
individual impact assessments will be
made. The usual community and formal
support mechanisms for vulnerable
disabled people will remain in place. ‘The
pre-front door’ element of the business

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRa@EV@EE) for Oxfordshire County Council 14




CC9

case seeks to strengthen community
support and the Council continues to
support programmes such as the ‘Digital
Buddies’ scheme to reduce digital
exclusion.

e Rurality

Risks

Mitigations

Lack of superfast connectivity for a
number of rural communities could
exclude customers in these communities
from access digital of self-service
channels.

The Operating Model is designed
specifically to be digital by choice, rather
than digital only. Other options will
remain (as set out above). The Council
continues to support a successful and
effective broadband programme to
extend access as far as possible within
available funding limits.

Impact on Staff:

Risks

Mitigations

Impact of wide-spread change is likely to
lead to a significant number of
redundancy situations

To develop a comprehensive
implementation strategy that meets the
council’s policy of minimising the
redundancy through retraining and
redeployment. Take advantage of the
two-three year timescale of the
programme to carefully manage
employment strategy to minimise net
redundancies and ensure existing staff
are in a position to undertake any new
opportunities that may emerge from
potential decisions to reinvest in
services. The Operating Model
incorporates substantial investment for
training, communications and
engagement.

That the scale of change in the
organisation, including a period of
restricted recruitment, could impact on
the Council’s ability to deliver the
objectives with the Equalities Policy and
Strategy (2018-2022). These include the
development of greater diversity in the

The objectives of the Equalities Policy
and Strategy need to be incorporated
into any Operating Model implementation
strategy and monitored as performance
indicators of the overall programme.

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifg®3@@effddOxfordshire County Council

15




CC9

workforce, including the recruitment of
more young people and members of
BAME communities.

That any specific change could impact To undertake impact analysis of each
disproportionately on one or more reorganisation process in the normal
protected groups. way.

That the scale of change could A full staff engagement and change plan
negatively impact on staff levels of will need to be delivered as part of
stress, or anxiety, or overall wellbeing. implementation planning. The Operating

Model proposals includes significant
investment in change preparedness. The
Council already invests in a staff welfare
programme including access to
Occupational Health advisors, a helpline
and specific courses on resilience and
experiencing change.

Impact on other Council services:

Not applicable - the Operating Model proposals are inherently cross-council and
designed to impact across services.

Impact on providers:

The specific impact on providers will need to be assessed within the Construct and
Implement phase of the programme, as the details of design are understood.

r R

Social Value
If the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 applies to this proposal, please
summarise here how you have considered how the contract might improve the
economic, social, and environmental well-being of the relevant area.
How might the proposal improve the economic well-being of the relevant area?
n/a

How might the proposal improve the environmental well-being of the relevant
area?

n/a

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRRa@avidlel for Oxfordshire County Council 16



CC9

Action plan:

Action By When Person responsible
Implementation strategies | To be confirmed in the Fit for the Future Board
and plans will need to set | programme

out how impact on the
community will be
assessed and mitigated.
This will only be possible
as the detail of plans is
developed.

implementation strategies
and plans

Implementation strategies
and plans will need to set
out how impact on staff
will be assessed and
mitigated. This will only be
possible as the detail of
plans is developed.

To be confirmed in the
programme
implementation strategies
and plans

Fit for the Future Board

Detailed impact
assessments will need to
be undertaken alongside
the development of each
new service offering — in
the usual way — and this
will need to examine the
available evidence on the
make-up of customers for
specific services and
assess any potential
disproportionate impact on
protected groups and
identify corresponding
mitigations.

To be confirmed in the
programme
implementation strategies
and plans

Fit for the Future Board

SCIA for Implementing a new Operatifd 3@@effdd0xfordshire County Council

17




CC9

Monitoring and review:

Try to be as specific as possible about when the assessment will be reviewed and
updated, linking to key dates (for example when consultation outcomes will be
available, before a Cabinet decision, at a key milestone in implementation)

The SCIA will need to be reviewed and updated as implementation strategies and
plans are brought forward for agreement.

Person responsible for assessment: Robin Rogers

Version Date Notes
(e.g. Initial draft, amended following consultation)

0.1 August 2018

SCIA for Implementing a new OpeRRag@avidtit for Oxfordshire County Council 18




Agenda Item 10

CC10

Division(s): N/A

COUNCIL - 11 SEPTEMBER 2018
JOINT WORKING ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN
OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL & CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL:
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

Report by Director of Law & Governance

Introduction

1. Cabinet agreed on 4 June 2018 to enter into a joint working arrangement with
Cherwell District Council. These arrangements are governed by a formal
“Section113 Agreement”.

2. Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 enables local authorities to
enter into agreements with one another for the placing at the disposal of each
other their respective officers for carrying out their respective functions. The
Section 113 Agreement establishes a structure to enable proposals for joint
working to be approved with the necessary Member oversight.

3. The Section 113 Agreement envisages that the two Councils will establish
“such joint committees to facilitate joint appointments working as agreed by the
two councils”.

4. ltis proposed that two such Joint Committees are established as follows:

a. Joint Personnel Committee — to take decisions on certain staffing matters
arising from and necessary for implementing, the shared service approach

b. Joint Appeals Committee — to hear and determine staffing appeals arising
from the shared service proposals

5. Draft terms of reference for both these bodies are included at Annex 1. This
report therefore asks Full Council to establish these two committees and to:

a. Delegate to the Audit and Governance Committee (meeting on 12
September) to approve the final terms of reference of the established
Joint Personnel Committee and Joint Appeals Committee; and

b. Ask the Monitoring Officer to use his delegated authority to appoint
members to the Committee in accordance with the rules on political
proportionality and with the wishes of Group Leaders.

The Joint Committees — in practice: status and purpose

6. The Joint Committees would be formal Committees of the Council under Local
Government legislation. As such, they would be subject to the rules on political

Page 405



10.

11.

12.

13.

CC10

proportionality, to the normal legal and constitutional rules on access to
information and would carry out a mix of executive and non-executive functions.

In practice, the Joint Committees would operate where proposals for shared
working are approved by each Council’'s Executive. The Agreement provides
for a Partnership Working Group (an informal group) of both councils to explore
the creation of a shared management team and possible areas of shared
services and to recommend these to each authority. Once each authority has
approved such proposals, it would then be for the Joint Personnel Committee to
determine the staffing implications of each shared service proposal, to put
these into effect. (The proposed main functions are shown in Annex 1).

The Joint Appeals Committee would then operate, as required, to consider any
appeals from senior officers with regards to personnel decisions taken to
implement and monitor shared service proposals by the Joint Personnel
Committee, or any officers acting under delegated powers. (The proposed main
functions are shown in Annex 1).

It is proposed that Council delegates to Audit and Governance Committee the
decision to approve the final Terms of Reference of both Joint Committees. As
part of its Constitutional remit, the Audit and Governance Committee will also
be considering other governance protocols, including an ‘ethical walls’
arrangement to regulate any instances where there may otherwise be potential
conflicts of interest for officers (or indeed dual hatted members) of either
authority who may be working/deciding on services/projects for the other.

Membership of the Joint Committees

It is proposed that the membership of the committees would be as follows:

a. Joint Personnel Committee — 10 councillors, 5 from each authority
(Cherwell DC and this Council) with 5 named substitutes from each
authority.

b. Joint Appeals Committee — 6 councillors, 3 from each authority.

It is proposed that Council asks the Director of Law and Governance to
exercise his delegated authority under the Constitution to give effect to the
wishes of political groups and thereby formally to appoint members to the
respective Joint Committees.

Financial and legal implications

While it is likely that these Joint Committees would be serviced by Oxfordshire
County Council's Democratic Services officers, it is not envisaged that the
establishment of these Joint Committees would have any significant, additional
financial implications either in terms of running costs or any implications for
special responsibility allowances.

The Joint Committees would be established under Section 101(5) of the Local

Government Act 1972 and in accordance with The Local Authorities
(Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012.

Page 406



CC10

RECOMMENDATION

14. Council is RECOMMENDED to:

€) establish a Joint Personnel Committee and a Joint Appeals
Committee;

(b) delegate to the Audit and Governance Committee the decision to
approve the final Terms of Reference of both of the Joint
Committees;

(c) ask the Director of Law and Governance to exercise his delegated
authority to give effect to the wishes of Group Leaders and to
make appointments to these Joint Committees; and

(d) ask the Monitoring Officer to exercise his delegated authority to
make the necessary and consequential changes to the
Constitution to reflect these decisions.

NICK GRAHAM

Director of Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer

September 2018

Background paper: Section 113 Agreement between Cherwell District Council and
Oxfordshire County Council

Page 407



This page is intentionally left blank



CcC10

Terms of Reference — Partnership Working Group, Joint Personnel

Committee and Joint Appeals Committee

Preamble

1.1 The councils shall act at all times in a way that promotes effective collaborative
working. In particular, each, council will:

1.2

1.3

1.4

work in good faith with the other council towards the mutual advantage of the
councils and to explore opportunities and develop them into New Proposals where
appropriate;

co-operate as appropriate, seeking improvement and efficiencies in relevant
policies, procedures and structures where economic and effective (and, for the
avoidance of doubt where to do so would not fetter the discretion and political will of
a council), to meet the requirements of their Best Value Duty;

provide such reasonable information (as may be determined by the council from
whom the information is sought) to each of the other councils in a form that is
readily usable and in a full and timely manner. Relevant information shall include,
without restriction or limitation any information that could reasonably be expected to
impact upon this Agreement or the councils to this Agreement, save where to
disclose such information would place the disclosing council in contravention of any
applicable law or regulation;

co-operate in identifying, as early as reasonably possible, any issues or problems
that will or may tend to prevent the achievement of the Joint Working Objectives
and to reach and implement solutions to overcome such issues or problems and the
identification and resolution of such issues or problems where possible through the
Partnership Working Group or Joint Staffing Committee or, in the event that the
relevant body is unable to agree, through the Executive/Cabinet or Councils as
appropriate, or through the Dispute Resolution Process as set out in the Inter
Authority Section 113 Agreement.

The councils acknowledge that any decisions made or authorisations given pursuant
to this Agreement are subject to appropriate delegations and the decision
making/authorisation procedures of each individual council. Any decisions are not
intended to fetter the decision making requirements set out in the Constitution or
legitimate democratic discretion of any of the councils.

Each council shall nominate members for appointment to each of the Joint
Committees and the Partnership Working Group and may also nominate substitute
members who may attend and vote in the absence of a nominee. A council may
change their nominees from time to time by notice in writing to the Monitoring
Officer for their council.

The Chair and Vice Chair shall be appointed by the relevant Joint Committee and the
Chairing of the Joint Committees shall rotate between the councils on an annual
basis. If the Chair is from one authority the Vice Chair shall be from the other. For the
municipal year 2018/19 Cherwell District Council will Chair the Partnership Working
Group and Oxfordshire County Council will Chair the Joint Personnel Committee and
Joint Appeals Committee.

Page 409



15

1.6

1.7

CC10
The formal Joint Committee shall adopt the Standing Orders and Procedure Rules
of Oxfordshire County Council

The Partnership Working Group will be administered by Cherwell District Council
Democratic Officers, the Joint Personnel Committee and Joint Appeals Panel will be
supported by Oxfordshire County Council Democratic Officers.

The establishment of the Joint Committees does not prevent either of the council
from carrying out any of the Joint Committee functions concurrently.

Page 410



CcC10

PARTNERSHIP WORKING GROUP
CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL AND OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

This Partnership Working Group is joint working group of Cherwell District Council and
Oxfordshire County Council. It is established as an informal working group with the express
intention of exploring the creation of a shared management team and possible areas of
shared services, and for preparing recommendations to both authorities for achieving
effective joint arrangements.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
MEMBERSHIP

e 5 elected members from each council as appointed by the Leaders
e 5 substitute members to be appointed for each council

OBJECTIVES
Overview:

To consider joint arrangement proposals and performance and to make recommendations to
the Joint Personnel Committee or separate councils for decision as required.

In detail:

To oversee the development, on a service by service basis, of a detailed business case for
the creation of joint arrangements. This is likely to include recommendations as to:

o Delivering an effective and lean joint management structure

¢ Identifying areas to develop joint working in line with the principles agreed by both
councils - including opportunities for development of aligned policy and procedures
where appropriate

e Scoping the financial baselines and the capacity to improve (or maintain) the financial
position of both councils

¢ Identifying other key benefits and associated success criteria for shared arrangements
Establishing shared support services, serving the needs of both councils to the
standards agreed by each

¢ Maximising the opportunities for joint initiatives and joint working with partners in ways
that better meet the needs of residents

e Determining and recommending a mechanism/formula for the allocation of associated
costs and efficiencies across both organisations, including a ratio for the apportionment
of costs, one-off costs including redundancy and associated pension costs, arising from
the creation of the Shared Senior Management Team and Shared Services

o Detailing the risks to both Councils and recommending mitigating actions to both
authorities

e Establishing protocols to deal with Communications and those specified in the Inter
Authority Section 113 Agreement

The Partnership Working Group will produce recommendations to the Joint Personnel
Committee, Executive, Cabinet and Full Councils of both authorities, as appropriate.

Page 411



CcC10

REMEDIES UNDER THE SECTION 113 AGREEMENT

The Working Group shall have the role, as agreed under the Section 113 Agreement
(Clauses 7.3, 7.5 and 10.1) in terms of seeking to achieve a remedy where, under one
council wishes to withdraw from the Agreement and the informal Dispute under Clause 10 of
the Agreement has not been successful.

QUORUM

The Working Group’s meetings will be considered quorate if three elected members from
each council are present.

NUMBER AND FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The Working Group will meet on at least four occasions a year.
The Working Group will convene at a time convenient to a majority of its Members.

The meetings will alternate between Banbury and Oxford. Officers will facilitate a standard
agenda for the meetings and maintain a record of decisions and actions, together with a
risks and issues log.

TIMETABLE

At its first meeting, the Working Group will agree a workplan (officers to provide a draft
workplan in advance) and timescale. Notwithstanding this, it is expected that:

¢ Draft recommendations will be sent to the controlling and opposition groups of both
authorities

¢ Final recommendations will be sent to the Joint Personnel Committee or each authority’s
Executive and Council as required

In any event, the Group will report to both Councils on its findings and recommendations in
relation to the establishment of a Shared Management Team no later than six months after
the signing date of the relevant Section 113 agreement.

STATUS OF THE WORKING GROUP

The Working Group is an informal working group of both authorities. As such, its meetings
will not be subject to the constitutional provisions relating to access to proportionality or the
information procedure rules of either authority. Its final recommendations, and the rationale
for them, will of course be made public.

Page 412



CcC10

JOINT PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL AND OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Under Local Government Act 1972 s.101 (5) two or more local authorities may appoint a
joint committee to discharge any of their functions that are not reserved for the sole decision
of a single authority in legislation. The Joint Committee can authorise an officer employed by
either authority to act on its behalf. Whilst it is envisaged that the majority of daily business
and processes such as recruitment, personnel and appeals will be carried out under each
employing authority’s decision making processes, there are a few functions which are best
delivered through joint arrangements.

Area: the Joint Committee shall exercise its authority for the areas comprising of Cherwell
District Council and Oxfordshire County Council.

Membership: the Committee shall be comprised of 10 Councillors, 5 from Cherwell District
Council and 5 from Oxfordshire County Council with 5 named substitutes from each
authority. All Councillors including substitutes will receive appropriate training before they
can participate as a Committee member.

Quorum: will be 3 Members from each authority.

Chairman: the Chairman and Vice Chairman will be elected by the committee and will be
representative of each authority.

Decision making: decision will be by a majority of Members of the committee present and
voting.

Terms of Reference

e To have responsibility for and to take any decision on staffing matters, (other than
those delegated to officers) and any other non-executive decisions function
specifically delegated to the committee by the respective councils, for any shared
service established for the councils

¢ To have responsibility for and to take any executive decisions (other than those
delegated to officers), specifically delegated to it by the respective Executive
arrangements of the councils with regard to any shared service established for the
councils

o To ensure that any shared service meets the requirements of the councils in
furthering the objectives of their respective corporate plans.

e To set and monitor performance standards and budgets for shared services,
providing intervention where required.

e To take all executive decisions with regard to any established and future shared
service.

Shared Management

In the case of shared Chief Officer posts:

Page 413



CcC10

To act as the interviewing panel for the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive),
making recommendations to the councils for formal appointment.

To act as the interviewing panel and appoint shared chief officers (Officers who
report to the Chief Executive) working across the councils (NB. Anyone involved in
the decision for a particular post must be present throughout the entire interview
process).

Shared Posts

Where a business case has been agreed by the councils and a decision made to share a
service between them to:

Agree posts to be declared ‘at risk’, and to approve dismissal, including compulsory
or voluntary redundancy and the exercise of discretionary awards to any post where
costs are shared or are going to be shared. This excludes the dismissal of the Head
of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer or the Monitoring Officer (if shared) on the
grounds of misconduct which must be the subject of a resolution of the relevant full
Council following compliance with the procedure set out in the Officer Employment
Procedure Rules.

Determine the terms and conditions of employment of any posts where costs are
shared or are going to be shared.

Determine and review all policies affecting the employment of staff in posts where
costs are shared or going to be shared.

Approve the creation of new posts where this is an increase to the establishment and
there is no budget where costs are shared or are going to be shared.

Approve any restructuring of teams involving more than twenty posts where costs are
shared or are going to be shared.

Shred Statutory Officer Discipline

The role and responsibilities of the Joint Personnel Committee with regard to shared
Statutory Officer disciplinary action is to:

Deal with minor instances of unsatisfactory conduct at an early stage.

Ensure that the Statutory Officer clearly understands the standards of conduct expected
of him/her.

Carry out, or make arrangements for, an investigation when any breach of discipline is
alleged.

Ensure that the Statutory Officer subject to investigation is kept up-to-date with progress.

Decide, in the most serious cases whether or not to suspend or (where the Statutory
Officer has already been suspended by the Head of Paid Service or Monitoring Officer
under their delegated powers) to continue the suspension of the Statutory Officer, in
accordance with the Statutory Officer disciplinary policy.

Page 414



CcC10

o Report to Full Council (of the employing authority) in respect of a recommendation to
dismiss, having convened a Panel comprising Independent Persons in accordance with
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules.

Page 415



CcC10

JOINT APPEALS PANEL

CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL AND OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Area: The Joint Committee shall exercise its authority for the areas comprising of Cherwell
District Council and Oxfordshire County Council.

Membership: The Committee shall be comprised of 6 councillors, 3 from Cherwell District
Council and 3 from Oxfordshire County Council with 3 named substitutes from each
authority. They may not be members of the Joint Personnel Committee. All councillors
including substitutes will receive appropriate training before they can participate as a
Committee member.

Quorum: will be 2 Members from each authority.

Chairman: The Chairman and Vice Chairman will be elected by the Committee and will be
representative of each authority.

Decision making: decision will be by a majority of Members of the Committee present and
voting.

Terms of Reference

o To hear and determine any appeals by or grievance appeals against the Head of
Paid Service (Chief Executive) made by any member of the Senior Management
Team of either council.

¢ To hear and determine any appeals brought by Chief Executive and if shared
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer against any disciplinary sanctions
imposed short of dismissal.

e To hear and determine any appeals against any disciplinary sanctions imposed

on a Chief Officer who is shared between Cherwell District Council and
Oxfordshire County Council excluding the statutory officers referred to above.

Page 416



Agenda Item 11

Division(s): N/A

COUNTY COUNCIL - 11 SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE CABINET

N.B. Please note that decisions are set out below under the relevant Cabinet
Member at 17 July 2018. Where responsibility has moved following the
changes to Cabinet Member portfolios this is indicated under the individual
item)

Cabinet Member: Leader

1. Engagement of External Advisory Services
(Cabinet, 17 July 2018)

Cabinet considered a report seeking the agreement of Cabinet to the principle
of engaging an external provider to deliver expert advisory services to the
Council over the next three years on the Fit for the Future programme and
other associated strategic change initiatives. The report also set out the
proposed procurement approach

Cabinet approved entering into an agreement to the Islington procurement
framework.

Cabinet Member: Adult Social Care

2. Innovation Funding
(Cabinet, 17 July 2018))

The Innovation Fund for Daytime support 2018-19 was open to applications
from all community and voluntary organisations to deliver new innovative
projects for daytime support in Oxfordshire.

As per the agreed cross-party decision-making process, the cross-party panel
reviewed the applications and assessed them against grant criteria.

Cabinet considered a report setting out the final cross-party panel
recommendations and agreed funding to the following projects/groups

(1) Witney Day Centre

(2) Green Pastures

(3) My Life My Choice

(4) Age UK Oxfordshire

(5) Faringdon Sensory Garden

(6) Marston Community Gardening

(7) Oxfordshire Chinese Community & Advice

Page 417



CC

Cabinet Member: Public Health & Education

3.

Follow-up to Call in - Home to School Transport and Travel

Policy

(Cabinet, 17 July 2018)

(Following the changes to Cabinet Member Portfolios this is now the
responsibility of the Cabinet Member for Education & Cultural Services)

At their meeting on 5 July 2018, the Performance Scrutiny Committee
considered the decision of Cabinet made on 19 June 2018 following proper
notice of a call in. The Committee referred the decision back to Cabinet for it
to consider in the light of material concerns.

Cabinet agreed to defer the decision on transport for Special Educational
Needs as originally set out at Minute 68/18, resolution 1(a) and (b) until late
Autumn school term to allow discussion; they reconfirmed the remaining
decisions subject to the removal of reference to the new Post 16 Home to
School/College Transport Policy. Cabinet further agreed that a Cabinet
Advisory Group be set up to consider the issues raised

Cabinet Member: Environment

4.

Performance Scrutiny Household Recycling Deep Dive

Recommendations
(Cabinet, 17 July 2018)

The Performance Scrutiny Committee had led a deep dive into Oxfordshire's
falling household recycling rates and deteriorating performance outlook to
understand the underlying reasons for this and to commend remedial action.

Cabinet considered and responded to a report detailing the recommendations
arising from the deep dive and instructed that their response be reported to
the next meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee.

Cabinet Member: Finance

Financial Monitoring and Medium Term Financial Plan

Delivery Report - May 2018
(Cabinet, 17 July 2018)

Cabinet considered a report that set out the forecast position of the revenue
budgets as at the end of May 2018. The report also included an update on
the Medium Term Financial Plan savings, reserves and balances.

Cabinet approved virements; noted the use of the £7.5m iBCF ringfenced
grant funding in 2018/19; approved the transfer of the Troubled Families
Payment by Results Grant Funding into the Government Initiatives Reserve
for use by Children’s Services; approved the transfer of £3.9m from the

Page 418



CC

Budget Priorities Reserve to the Transformation Reserve; approved the bad
debt write-offs and fees and charges.

Capital Programme Monitoring Report - May 2018
(Cabinet 17 July 2018)

Cabinet had before them the first separate capital programme update and
monitoring report. The report focused on the delivery of the 2018/19 capital
programme based on projections at the end of May 2018 and new inclusions
within the overall ten-year capital programme.

Cabinet approved the updated Capital Programme and in particular gave
approval to:

e the basic need programme;

e the School Structural Maintenance Programme for 2018/19;

e the inclusion of the budget requirement for the developer led new primary
schools for Crab Hill, Wantage, North Curbridge, West Witney and
Graven Hill, Bicester;

e the commencement of the re-provision of Maltfield House;

e the stage 0 budget requirement towards the Children Services Phase 2
electronic social care record system;

e the revised two-year Highways Structural Maintenance Programme;

e the additional Highways Structural Maintenance Programme for 2018/19;

e the production of a business case to support the significant borrowing
investment in the Council’s assets;

e the inclusion of funding for the investment in the Street Lighting estate;

e the inclusion of the Botley Road Corridor scheme as part of the Growth
Deal Infrastructure Programme;

e the inclusion of the budget requirements towards the Housing
Infrastructure Fund bid projects for Didcot Garden Town and A40; and

e the inclusion of the budget requirement towards improvements to facilities
at Didcot Library.

Cabinet Member: Property & Cultural Services

7.

Cogges Manor Farm

(Cabinet,17 July 2018)

(Following the changes to Cabinet Member Portfolios this is now the
responsibility of the Cabinet Member for Transformation)

Cogges Heritage Trust (the Trust) have provisionally been awarded circa £1m
of Heritage Lottery Funding (HLF) to undertake work / improvements to the
Cogges Manor Farm buildings which are owned by the County Council and
leased to the Trust. The Council retains responsibility for structural repairs.

The current lease terms do not align with HLF policy and consequently the
HLF have asked the Council to vary the lease terms. The HLF requirement to
make changes to the lease has brought an opportunity to reconsider the
future of Cogges Farm and neg_pé’@g %Iflir) changes. An alternative proposal



CC

has been put to the Trust, and this was submitted by the Trust to the HLF
Board on 26 June 2018. Cabinet considered a report seeking approval to the
proposals which is required to enable the Council to proceed if agreement on
terms can be reached.

Cabinet agreed to declare the property surplus to requirements and approved
the principle of transferring Cogges Manor Farm to the Cogges Heritage
Trust, on terms that accord with the Council’s statutory obligations or if terms
cannot be agreed, to grant a new lease upon terms that satisfy the Council’s
and HLF requirements. Cabinet further agreed subject to the transfer of
Cogges Manor Farm, to approve the transfer of £1m to Cogges Heritage Trust
in full and final settlement of all the Council’s liabilities and obligations under
the lease.

IAN HUDSPETH
Leader of the Council August 2018

Page 420



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Taped Responses - Q&A 10 July 2018

	9 Themed Debate - Fit for Future
	CC_SEP1118R06 - fit for future Report - Annex 1 (cab report)
	Operating model business case Full v.FINAL
	CC_SEP1118R07 - fit for future Report SCIA

	10 Joint Working Arrangements between Oxfordshire County Council and Cherwell District Council: Governance Arrangements
	CC_SEP1118R04 - Joint Working Arrangements - Annex

	11 Report of the Cabinet

